
School Board of Clay County
Teacher Inservice Center, 2233 Village Square Parkway, Fleming Island, FL

May 2, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Date: May 02 2024 (6:00 p.m.)

Student Showcase (None)

Invocation (Jennifer Ahrens-Sims, Asbury United Methodist Church, Orange Park)

Pledge of Allegiance

Call to Order

Recognitions and Awards

1. Recognition of Cognia Accreditation Renewal

2. Recognize Winners of the 2024 Math Field Day

3. Recognition of Winterguard and Indoor Percussion Championships

4. Recognition of Visual Arts Students

5. Recognition of 2023-2024 Superintendent's Student Advisory Council Members

6. 2024-2025 Drug Free Schools Calendar Winners

7. Recognition of State & International Science Fair Winners

8. Recognition of 2024 Wes Whiddon Scholarship Recipients

9. Recognize Recipients of Superintendent's Florida Pre-Paid Scholarships

10. Recognition of Student Finalist for the Youth Volunteer of the Year Award

Presenters

School Showcase (None)

Presentations from the Audience (Public Comment)

Discussion Agenda

Human Resources

11. D1 - Human Resources Special Action A

12. D2 - Human Resources Special Action B

13. D3 - Human Resources Special Action C

Page 1 of 564

DRAFT



Instruction-Reading/Library Media

14. D4 - Public Hearing to Approve as Advertised Revisions to the CHALLENGED MATERIALS POLICY-
RECONSIDERATION OR  REVIEW OF LIBRARY MATERIALS

Legal Advertisement Notice of PH for Proposed Challenged Materials Policy-Reconsideration or Review of Library
Materials.pdf

04.2024 Proposed Challenged Materials Policy-Reconsideration or Review of Library Materials.pdf

Consent Agenda

Superintendent

15. C1 - Minutes of School Board Workshop on March 26, 2024; Student Discipline Hearings and Regular Meeting on
April 4, 2024

2024 Mar 26 Workshop.pdf

2024 Apr 4 Student Hearings.pdf (Confidential)

2024 Apr 4 Regular Mtg.pdf

16. C2 - Controlled Open Enrollment (COE) Plan for the 2024-2025 School Year

Clay County District Schools COE Plan 2024-25 SY.pdf

School Board Member

17. C3 - School Board Member Out-of-County Travel Expenses Estimated to Attend FSBA/FADSS Annual Summer
Conference

Human Resources

18. C4 - Personnel Consent Agenda

Personnel Consent Agenda (1).pdf

19. C5 - Renewal of List of Physicians and Medical Facilities authorized to conduct physical examinations required for
certain groups of employees.

Approved Physicians, Facilities, Fees - Sheet1.pdf

Instruction-Academic Services

20. C6 - K-12 Academic Services Out of State and Overnight Student Travel

May 2024 Student Travel.pdf

21. C7 - Sharing Security and Privacy Agreement between the School Board of Clay County and the Boys and Girls Club
of Northeast Florida (BGCNF)

240142 Boys & Girls Club Privacy Agreement.pdf

22. C8 - Approval for new 3-year Florida Virtual School Curriculum Contract for K-12

FLVS Contract 240150  2023-2024 Board.pdf

23. C9 - Approval for the Purchase of i-Ready Mathematics K-5 for the 2024-2025 School Year

240152 - Curriculum Associates Contract - pending Board approval.pdf

Instruction-Professional Development

Page 2 of 564

DRAFT



24. C10 - Affiliation Agreement between Clay County District Schools and University of Central Florida (UCF)

240141 UCF Teacher Internship.pdf

Instruction-Reading/Library Media

25. C11 - Library Media Services Manual

Library Media Services Manual May 2024 (Draft) (1).pdf

Instruction-Climate and Culture

26. C12 - Proclamation of Mental Health Month May 2024

2024 Mental Health Awareness Month Proclamation.pdf

27. C13 - Approval to Advertise and Notice of Public Hearing 2024-2025 Student & Family Handbook and Code of
Student Conduct

Summary of Changes - 24_25 Code of Conduct.pdf

Board Redline Copy - 2024_2025 - CCDS Student and Family Handbook and Code of Student Conduct.pdf

Legal Adv. Notice of PH Student and Family Handbook and Code of Student Conduct.pdf

Business Affairs

28. C14 - Proposed Allocation Changes for 2023-2024

29. C15 - Proposed Allocation Changes for 2024-2025

Business Affairs-Accounting

30. C16 - Monthly Financial Reports for March, 2024

March 2024 Monthly Board Financial Report.pdf

March 2024 Monthly Board Property Report.pdf

Contracts Signed by Superintendent $50,000 to $100,000.pdf

31. C17 - Budget Amendment Report for March  31, 2024

Business Affairs-Property

32. C18 - DELETION OF CERTAIN ITEMS REPORT APRIL, 2024

DELETION OF CERTAIN ITEMS REPORT APRIL, 2024.pdf

Business Affairs-Purchasing

33. C19 - BID Renewal

34. C20 - Contract - Third-Party Administrator (TPA) Benefit Consultant

240157 Bailey Group Service Agreement.pdf

35. C21 - BID Award - PLACEHOLDER

36. C22 - RFP to be Awarded - PLACEHOLDER

Operations-Facilities

Page 3 of 564

DRAFT



37. C23 - Schematic/Preliminary/Final (Phase I, II, and III) Plans and Specifications for Keystone Heights High School
Visitor Concession Stand

38. C24 - Change Order #2 for Green Cove Springs Junior High School Window/HVAC Replacement (Buildings 1, 2, &
3)

Change Order #2 GCJ Window HVAC Replacement Building 1, 2, & 3

39. C25 - Change Order #1 for Orange Park Junior High School Roof Repair/Replacement Buildings 1, 2, 3, & 4

Change Order #1 for OPJ Roof Repair Replacement Buildings 1, 2, 3, & 4

40. C26 - Prequalification of Contractors

Table for Board Backup Contractor Prequal, 5.2.24

41. C27 - Wilkinson Junior High School Fire Alarm Replacement Contract Award

42. C28 - Interlocal Agreement with the Clay County Sheriff’s Office for Low-Priced Gasoline in the Middleburg Area

43. C29 - Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP) Bid Package 1 (Construction Site Preparation) for Oakleaf Junior High
School Classroom Addition

44. C30 - Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP) Bid Package 1 (Construction Site Preparation) for Lake Asbury Junior High
School Classroom Addition

45. C31 - Schematic/Preliminary/Final (Phase I, II, and III) Plans and Specifications for the construction site preparation
for the classroom addition at Lake Asbury Junior High School GMP 1 for the construction site preparation

46. C32 - Schematic/Preliminary/Final (Phase I, II, and III) Plans and Specifications for the construction site preparation
for the classroom addition at Oakleaf Junior High School GMP 1 for the construction site preparation

Adoption of Consent Agenda

CCEA Update  (Victoria Kidwell)

CESPA Update  (Lonnie Roberts)

Superintendent's Update and Presentations

School Board Attorney Remarks

School Board Member Remarks

Adjournment

Page 4 of 564

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

May 2, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
Recognition of Cognia Accreditation Renewal

Description

Gap Analysis

Previous Outcomes

Expected Outcomes

Strategic Plan Goal

Recommendation

Contact
Bonnie O'Nora, Board Assistant, bonnie.onora@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 5 of 564

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

May 2, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
Recognize Winners of the 2024 Math Field Day

Description
Elementary students in grades 4-6 competed in teams on Math Field Day, held at Oakleaf High School.  Winners of this event are
being recognized.
Fourth Grade:
Fifth Grade:
Sixth Grade:
 

Gap Analysis

Previous Outcomes

Expected Outcomes

Strategic Plan Goal

Recommendation
Recognition only.

Contact
Bonnie O'Nora, Board Assistant, bonnie.onora@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 6 of 564

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

May 2, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
Recognition of Winterguard and Indoor Percussion Championships

Description

Gap Analysis

Previous Outcomes

Expected Outcomes

Strategic Plan Goal

Recommendation

Contact
Bonnie O'Nora, Board Assistant, bonnie.onora@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 7 of 564

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

May 2, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
Recognition of Visual Arts Students

Description

Gap Analysis

Previous Outcomes

Expected Outcomes

Strategic Plan Goal

Recommendation

Contact
Chris Gugel, Fine Arts Specialist, christopher.gugel@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 8 of 564

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

May 2, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
Recognition of 2023-2024 Superintendent's Student Advisory Council Members

Description
Students participating in the 2023-2024 Superintendent's Student Advisory Council will be recognized.

Isabella Amador -
Tyler Davies-
Alexander Gordon-
Donald Stepp-
Jaydin Pinney-
Taylor White-
Angel Zheng-
Lindsay Gillis-
Benjamin Ulsch-
Mattie Reape-
Ashley Zamora -
Allison Musillami-
Logan Michael-
Nora Burke-
Carson Nicholson-
Avery Crawford -
Karlee Wessels-
Mauli Patel-
Brenna Finnegan -
Lene' Hornick-
Peyton Mathews-
Noah Montoro-
Riya Patel-
Shaylla Bivens -
Amelia "Josie" Choulat-
Emily Moore-
Tayani Maxwell-
Audrey Polk-
Dana Loftis-
Danielle Ackerson-
Daniel Kapusta-
Benjamin Ulsch-
Zeinab Faraj-

 
 

Page 9 of 564

DRAFT



Gap Analysis

Previous Outcomes

Expected Outcomes

Strategic Plan Goal

Recommendation
Recognition only.

Contact
Kelly Watt. Chief of Staff, kelly.watt@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 10 of 564

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

May 2, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
2024-2025 Drug Free Schools Calendar Winners

Description
The Drug-Free Schools Prevention Calendar has been recognizing local students for their positive drug-free messages presented
through their artwork for the past 23 years.  The idea originated during Red Ribbon Week Breakfast in October 1997 and has
continued to be a welcomed tradition that the community has embraced.  The Clay Action Coalition and the Clay County District
Schools are proud to honor the area elementary and junior high students whose drug prevention messages and artwork are
showcased in the 2023-2024 Drug-Free calendar.
Front Cover Haven Tomalis 4th Orange Park Elementary
Inside
Cover

Zoey Watson K Orange Park Elementary

August Arianna Frias 4th Thunderbolt Elementary
September Amiya Alkaifi 6th Lake Asbury Elementary
October Candy Huang 5th Thunderbolt Elementary

November Addyson Munoz 3rd
Swimming Pen Creek
Elementary

December Madeleine Milter 5th Plantation Oaks Elementary
January Ava Chesser 4th Shadowlawn Elementary
February Addison Kuhlken 2nd Orange Park Elementary

March
Aribella
Monasmith

6th Coppergate School of the Arts

April Khloe Smith 3rd  Shadowlawn Elementary
May Connor Morgan 2nd Paterson Elementary
June Kasilyn Kirchaine 5th S.B. Jennings Elementary
July Tyler Phillips 1st Middleburg Elementary

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
N/A

Strategic Plan Goal
N/A

Recommendation
N/A

Contact
Laura Fogarty, Director of Climate & Culture (904) 336-6513 laura.fogarty@myoneclay.net
Erika Gilbert School Counselor Specialist (904) 336-6879 erika.gilbert@myoneclay.net

Page 11 of 564

DRAFT



Financial Impact
N/A

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 12 of 564

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

May 2, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
Recognition of State & International Science Fair Winners

Description

Gap Analysis

Previous Outcomes

Expected Outcomes

Strategic Plan Goal

Recommendation

Contact
Bonnie O'Nora, Board Assistant, bonnie.onora@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 13 of 564

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

May 2, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
Recognition of 2024 Wes Whiddon Scholarship Recipients

Description
Recognition of the 2024 recipients of the Wes Whiddon Scholarship.
 

Gap Analysis

Previous Outcomes

Expected Outcomes

Strategic Plan Goal

Recommendation
Recognition only.

Contact
Bonnie O'Nora, Board Assistant, bonnie.onora@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 14 of 564

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

May 2, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
Recognize Recipients of Superintendent's Florida Pre-Paid Scholarships

Description

Gap Analysis

Previous Outcomes

Expected Outcomes

Strategic Plan Goal

Recommendation

Contact
Bonnie O'Nora, Board Assistant, bonnie.onora@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
Recognition only.

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 15 of 564

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

May 2, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
Recognition of Student Finalist for the Youth Volunteer of the Year Award

Description
The Florida Department of Education has selected Tyler Davies (OPH) as a finalist for the Youth Volunteer of the Year award.

Gap Analysis

Previous Outcomes

Expected Outcomes

Strategic Plan Goal

Recommendation

Contact
Bonnie O'Nora, Board Assistant, bonnie.onora@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 16 of 564

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

May 2, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
D1 - Human Resources Special Action A

Description
Florida Statutes (F.S. 1012.22(1)(9f), State Board Rules and Clay County School Board Policies require Board notification
and/or action regarding decisions and recommendations of the Superintendent related to Personnel matters.  

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
N/A

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 2:  Enact a highly effective recruitment and professional development plan along with opportunities for growth and career
development to ensure all students have access to a world class education to become life-long learners for success in a global and
competitive workplace and in acquiring applicable life skills.
Strategy 2.1.1 Develop strategic partnerships with organizations and universities to source new talent for a diverse workforce that
is effective and highly-qualified for non-instructional, instructional, and administrative positions throughout CCDS.
Strategy 2.1.3 Expand involvement in community-sponsored career fairs, providing the opportunity to recruit a diverse
population to the multiple career paths within CCDS.
Strategy 2.1.4 Continue to streamline the application and onboarding process to successfully engage and hire quality applicants.
Strategy 2.1.5 Collaborate to strengthen CCDS’ branding and marketing to increase the awareness and presence of career
opportunities.

Recommendation
Approve the action as presented.

Contact
Brenda G. Troutman, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources  (904) 336 6701   Brenda.Troutman@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 17 of 564

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

May 2, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
D2 - Human Resources Special Action B

Description
Florida Statutes (F.S. 1012.22(1)(9f), State Board Rules and Clay County School Board Policies require Board notification
and/or action regarding decisions and recommendations of the Superintendent related to Personnel matters.  

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
N/A

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 2:  Enact a highly effective recruitment and professional development plan along with opportunities for growth and career
development to ensure all students have access to a world class education to become life-long learners for success in a global and
competitive workplace and in acquiring applicable life skills.
Strategy 2.1.1 Develop strategic partnerships with organizations and universities to source new talent for a diverse workforce that
is effective and highly-qualified for non-instructional, instructional, and administrative positions throughout CCDS.
Strategy 2.1.3 Expand involvement in community-sponsored career fairs, providing the opportunity to recruit a diverse
population to the multiple career paths within CCDS.
Strategy 2.1.4 Continue to streamline the application and onboarding process to successfully engage and hire quality applicants.
Strategy 2.1.5 Collaborate to strengthen CCDS’ branding and marketing to increase the awareness and presence of career
opportunities.

Recommendation
Approve the action as presented.

Contact
Brenda G. Troutman, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources  (904) 336 6701   Brenda.Troutman@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 18 of 564

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

May 2, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
D3 - Human Resources Special Action C

Description
Florida Statutes (F.S. 1012.22(1)(9f), State Board Rules and Clay County School Board Policies require Board notification
and/or action regarding decisions and recommendations of the Superintendent related to Personnel matters.  

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
N/A

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 2:  Enact a highly effective recruitment and professional development plan along with opportunities for growth and career
development to ensure all students have access to a world class education to become life-long learners for success in a global and
competitive workplace and in acquiring applicable life skills.
Strategy 2.1.1 Develop strategic partnerships with organizations and universities to source new talent for a diverse workforce that
is effective and highly-qualified for non-instructional, instructional, and administrative positions throughout CCDS.
Strategy 2.1.3 Expand involvement in community-sponsored career fairs, providing the opportunity to recruit a diverse
population to the multiple career paths within CCDS.
Strategy 2.1.4 Continue to streamline the application and onboarding process to successfully engage and hire quality applicants.
Strategy 2.1.5 Collaborate to strengthen CCDS’ branding and marketing to increase the awareness and presence of career
opportunities.

Recommendation
Approve the action as presented.

Contact
Brenda G. Troutman, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources  (904) 336 6701   Brenda.Troutman@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 19 of 564

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

May 2, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
D4 - Public Hearing to Approve as Advertised Revisions to the CHALLENGED MATERIALS POLICY-
RECONSIDERATION OR  REVIEW OF LIBRARY MATERIALS

Description
The update provides information regarding the implementation of state and local policies respecting district and state rules
related to school libraries. The update serves as a tool for standardization of practice for school and district-level staff
responsibilities.
It is important for all administrative personnel and instructional materials administrators to be familiar with the policies, and
guidelines applicable to library materials.  Contents of this document are based on: 1. Current regulations, 2. State and County
policies, and 3. Standardized procedures.

Gap Analysis
Adopting the CHALLENGED MATERIALS POLICY- RECONSIDERATION OR REVIEW OF LIBRARY
MATERIALS ensures Clay County meets the requirements of the Statutes and Regulations regarding library book challenges.
This document defines the mandated responsibilities of districts concerning challenged library materials. 
Every effort shall be made by Clay County District Schools to provide library books and other educational media essential to an
effective instructional program. Library materials shall be selected to meet the educational goals of the district in providing basic
materials for all students, continuity in instructional programs, and meeting the needs of special individuals and programs.

Previous Outcomes
The Challenged Materials Process was previously updated in April 2023. 

Expected Outcomes
In accordance with state statute, an advertisement on the proposed revisions to the CHALLENGED MATERIALS POLICY-
RECONSIDERATION OR REVIEW OF LIBRARY MATERIALS  will be made public and a vote will be taken following a
public hearing on the proposed modifications, to be held on May 2, 2024.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 1:Engage all students to attain the necessary skills and knowledge to be future-ready graduates.
Strategy 1: Strengthen our high-quality instructional system through increased alignment to state standards, with an emphasis on
literacy.

Recommendation
That the School Board approves as advertised revisions to the CHALLENGED MATERIALS POLICY- RECONSIDERATION
OR REVIEW OF LIBRARY MATERIALS

Contact
Jennifer Collins, Supervisor of School Improvement and Leadership Development, jennifer.collins@myoneclay.net
Jeremiah Blocker, School Board Attorney, jeremiah.blocker@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
0

Review Comments

Attachments

Legal Advertisement Notice of PH for Proposed Challenged Materials Policy-Reconsideration or Review of Library
Materials.pdf

04.2024 Proposed Challenged Materials Policy-Reconsideration or Review of Library Materials.pdf

Page 20 of 564

DRAFT



 Approval  to  Advertise:  The  School  Board  of  Clay  County,  Florida  (“the  Board”)  approves  the  advertisement  of 
 revisions to Challenged Materials Policy-Reconsideration or Review of Library Materials. 

 Purpose  &  Effect:  The  proposed  amendments  are  intended  to  simplify,  update,  and  ensure  alignment  of 
 School  Board  Policies  with  state  law,  federal  law,  State  Board  of  Education  Rules,  and  other  applicable  rules 
 and regulations. 

 Access  to  Text  of  Proposed  Amendments:  The  full  text  of  the  proposed  revisions  to  Challenged  Materials 
 Policy-Reconsideration  or  Review  of  Library  Materials  is  available  for  inspection  and  copying  by  the  public  in 
 the  Office  of  the  Superintendent  for  Clay  County  District  Schools,  located  at  900  Walnut  Street,  Green  Cove 
 Springs,  Florida  32043.  The  full  text  is  also  available  via  the  School  District’s  website  at  www.oneclay.net  under 
 the  School  Board  Meeting  Links,  School  Board  Agendas  -  March  7,  2024.  The  Superintendent  is  authorized 
 to  correct  technical  errors  in  grammar,  numbering,  section  designations,  and  cross-references  as  may  be 
 necessary to reflect the intention of such Policy amendments. 

 Rule  Making  Authority:  The  Board  is  authorized  to  adopt  revisions  to  Challenged  Materials 
 Policy-Reconsideration  or  Review  of  Library  materials  under  sections  120.54,  1001.31,  and  1001.32  of  the 
 Florida Statutes. 

 Laws  Implemented:  The  laws  implemented  by  the  above-referenced  policy  revisions  are  noted  under  each 
 section of the Policy. 

 Person(s)  Originating  Policy  Changes:  The  proposed  policy  was  originated  by  the  Superintendent  and  his 
 designee(s) in collaboration with the School Board Attorney. 

 Public  Hearing:  The  Board  intends  to  formally  adopt  proposed  revisions  to  Challenged  Materials 
 Policy-Reconsideration  or  Review  of  Library  Materials  following  a  public  hearing.  The  public  hearing  shall  be 
 held  on  Thursday,  May  2,  2024,  during  the  course  of  the  Board’s  regular  meeting,  which  begins  at  6:00  p.m. 
 and  takes  place  in  the  Boardroom  at  the  Teacher  In-service  Training  Center  at  Fleming  Island  High  School, 
 2233 Village Square Parkway, Orange Park, Florida. 

 Any  person  requiring  special  accommodations  to  attend  or  participate  in  public  meetings  should  advise  the 
 School  District  at  least  48  hours  before  the  meeting  by  contacting  the  Superintendent’s  Office  at  (904) 
 336-6508  .  If  you  are  hearing  or  speech  impaired,  you  may  contact  the  District  by  email  addressed  to 
 bonnie.onora@myoneclay.net  or by calling  (904) 336-6584  (TDD). 

 If  a  person  decides  to  appeal  any  decision  made  by  the  Board  with  respect  to  any  matter  considered  at  the 
 meeting,  he  or  she  will  need  a  record  of  the  proceedings,  and,  for  such  purpose,  he  or  she  may  need  to  ensure 
 that  a  verbatim  record  of  the  proceedings  is  made,  which  record  includes  the  testimony  and  evidence  upon 
 which the appeal is to be based. 

Page 21 of 564

DRAFT



Proposed: CHALLENGED MATERIALS POLICY- RECONSIDERATION OR
REVIEW OF LIBRARY MATERIALS

Introduction
This policy outlines the information related to challenged library materials, including reconsideration and/or
review, in Clay County District Schools.

This policy ensures that all parents have informed consent regarding the appropriate access level for their
students in checking out books from the school library.

All challenged titles that violate statute will be removed in compliance with Florida law. Challenges to titles that
are without merit will be dismissed. Challenges to titles that are found to have mature themes will not be
removed from CCDS collections. Such titles will either be flagged for particular grade bands or will require
additional parental consent as selected on the Library Book Access form.

**Disclaimer**
Please note that even though the Media Specialists are proactive in ensuring that students check out age
appropriate books, there are books in the library that range in interest levels. Both from a reading level and
subject content, the appropriateness of individual titles are unique to each child’s ability and family values.
Books in the library may contain content that is not appropriate for all ages including the topics or themes listed
in the community standards below.

Terms and Definitions
For purposes of this policy, "parent" means a parent of a student enrolled in the District's schools. "Resident"
means a person residing in the county who has maintained their residence in Florida for the preceding year,
has purchased a home that is occupied by them as their residence, or has established a domicile in Florida
pursuant to F.S. 222.17. A “petitioner” means a parent or guardian of a child enrolled in the District, an
employee of the District, or a resident of CLAY COUNTY who objects to a book in a library collection.
The terminology “library material” is used in this document to refer to books in the school library and digital
media (including but not limited to videos, DVDs, sound recordings, periodicals, computer software, or other
electronic media.)

Parental Rights Regarding Libraries
As parents are the ultimate decision maker for their child(ren), CCDS strongly supports a parent’s right to
determine titles that are appropriate or inappropriate for their child to read. At the start of each school year,
parents must decide if their child has permission to check out titles from the school’s collection. Parents can
also elect to receive a daily email in order to remain updated on their child’s library activity.

CCDS recognizes that each family views book subject matter and content differently. Book titles vary in subject
matter and content. To ensure that parents approve of their child accessing titles with more mature content,
titles flagged as mature will require parents to select the Unlimited Library Access option on the Secondary
Library Book Access Level form.

Petitioner’s Responsibilities
The petition must be made in writing on the prescribed form, be signed by the parent or resident, AND include
the required contact information based on the criteria set forth in F.S. 1006.31(2) or 1006.40(3)(d). A Petitioner
who does not complete and return the form receives no further consideration.

1
Page 22 of 564

DRAFT



Proposed: CHALLENGED MATERIALS POLICY- RECONSIDERATION OR
REVIEW OF LIBRARY MATERIALS

Request for Review and Consideration
The District shall handle complaints regarding the reconsideration of Library Materials. A Petitioner (a parent or
guardian of a child enrolled in the District, an employee of the District, or a resident of CLAY COUNTY) may
object to the library material by filing the CCDS Specific Material Objection Form 6A-7.0714 found on the
Board’s website.

The complaint must be sent to the Supervisor of Instructional Resources for processing. The District Library
Media Specialist notifies the school media specialists of the challenged library material. If a school library has a
copy of the Challenged title, the media specialist has 3 working days to remove the title from the school
shelves to a secure location. The title is not removed from the collection catalog at that time.

Community Standards
The board approved community standards will be used to review materials that do not violate 847.012, F.S.
and take into consideration the standards used to determine the propriety of the material including (F.S.
1006.34(2)(b)):

1. The age of the students who normally could be expected to have access to the material.
2. Materials must be suited to student needs and their ability to comprehend the material presented.
3. The consideration of the broad racial, ethnic, socioeconomic, and cultural diversity of the students of

this state.

The following community standards will be applied to any title that does not violate Florida Chapter 847.012,
which requires that such titles must be removed. These community standards will also apply to purchasing
guidelines of library materials. See appendix in procedures manual.

The Board approved community standards are to help ensure that parents are able to make more fully
informed decisions about what their student is reading and is considered appropriate by each parent.

To assist in this, any challenged title that is found to contain subject matter or content that meets the criteria
listed below would be flagged as mature. Those titles will not be removed from the collection but would require
additional parental consent in order for a student to access that title.

Profanity/obscene language
Elementary - no crude profanity, racial, or religious slurs
Junior High - limited profanity, racial, or religious slurs
High - no pervasive use of racial slurs, or crude or excessive profanity

Horror (Descriptional of pervasive/gruesome behavior arousing feelings of extreme fear, shock, or
disgust).
Violence (Intense behavior/morbid behavior involving physical force intended to hurt, abuse,
damage/torture, kill someone, animal cruelty).
Glorification of weapons (belief or action of describing a weapon as admirable; ex: person parading a
gun around the street, non ex: military parade with armed personnel)
Glorification of suicide, self-harm, or mental illness (belief or action that these are admirable; ex:
character bragging to others that he/she cut his/her wrist; non ex: characters dealing with a friend who
committed suicide)

2
Page 23 of 564

DRAFT



Proposed: CHALLENGED MATERIALS POLICY- RECONSIDERATION OR
REVIEW OF LIBRARY MATERIALS

Glorification of drug, alcohol, or tobacco use by minors. (belief or action that these are admirable or
more important than they truly are; ex: character of minor age continuously using illegal drugs; non ex:
a character of minor age referring to his parent as a drug/alcohol addict)
Gender theory, medical transition
Sexual Content that is not F.S. 847.012

Statutory Compliance Team
1. Within seven (7) working days of receiving the complaint, the district team of the Chief Academic

Officer, the Supervisor of Instructional Resources, and the District Media Specialist will pre-screen the
requests returning meritless challenges to the petitioner, applying board approved community
standards, and removing those that fall under violation of F.S. 847.012. Then the Supervisor of
Instructional Resources will advise the Statutory Compliance Team (SCT) of the remaining requests.

2. The SCT includes eight (8) members, both district employees and parents. The district members should
include three (3) of the following: the Supervisor of Instructional Resources, the Chief Academic Officer,
the District Library Media Specialist, and School-based Media Specialists. The parents will be
appointed by each school board member and may be a representative from each school board
member’s district. The SCT shall establish a quorum at each meeting, which consists of at least two (2)
out of three (3) district employees and three (3) out of five (5) parent members. The SCT may meet in
person and/or virtually.

3. Within a reasonable amount of time, the Statutory Compliance Team (SCT) will review each
submission. The committee retains the right to do any of the following:

a. Based upon its own review, recommend immediate and permanent removal of materials that
violate s. 847.012, F.S., or other pertinent Florida Statute or are determined to contain content
that is obviously pornographic or inappropriate for the grade level or age group for which the
material is used; or

b. Reject or deny and return a petitioner’s request if (a) the material in question obviously does not
meet the aforementioned criteria or violate the aforementioned statutes, (b) is a meritless
complaint, or (c) complains of materials which have been previously reviewed, have been
determined to be appropriate for the grade level or age group for which the material is used and
upon which approval has been given. This decision is not appealable; the Petitioner may
resubmit their request for reconsideration in a format which corrects the prior deficiencies (if
correctable); or

c. The SCT shall use board approved community standards to review materials that do not violate
847.012, F.S. to determine if the library material should be returned to the collection or
designated as parental advisory status.

d. Regardless of any interpretation of the preceding paragraphs to the contrary, a Challenge may
be dismissed by the Chief Academic Officer of the district if it is determined by him/her that the
Challenge is meritless, fails to comply with any provision set forth above, or is a duplicate of a
Challenge filed by the same or a different individual.

e. Petitioner may appeal Statutory Compliance Team decision as noted in the Appeals Section.

3
Page 24 of 564

DRAFT



Proposed: CHALLENGED MATERIALS POLICY- RECONSIDERATION OR
REVIEW OF LIBRARY MATERIALS

Appeals
The Petitioner may appeal any Final Decisions of the Superintendent’s Designee, which are based on the
Statutory Compliance Team or his/her own review, and which Final Decisions are or will be forwarded to the
School Board for final approval.

1. Within ten (10) calendar days of the Superintendent’s Designee’s decision, the Petitioner shall file with
the Superintendent’s office a request for appeal. This appeal can be accessed on the district’s website
and is submitted using the Google form document.

2. Upon receipt of the Request for Appeal, the office of the Superintendent will mail a Notice of Board
action to the Petitioner which states the date of the School Board meeting at which the Final Decision
will be considered by the School Board.

3. It is understood that this vote is not a School Board endorsement of the content or subject
matter, but a vote to state that the law and policy have been followed.

4. In considering these matters, the School Board shall be sitting as a quasi judicial body, accordingly, and
pursuant to F. S. 286.0114(3)(d), speakers shall be allowed to address the Board on this matter.

5. All decisions of the School Board are final.

4
Page 25 of 564

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

May 2, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C1 - Minutes of School Board Workshop on March 26, 2024; Student Discipline Hearings and Regular Meeting on April 4, 2024

Description
Florida Statute 1001.42(1) requires the superintendent, as secretary, to keep such minutes and records as are necessary to set
forth clearly all actions and proceedings of the school board.  The minutes of each meeting shall be reviewed, corrected if
necessary, and approved at the next regular meeting; provided that this action may be taken at an intervening special meeting if
the board desires.

Gap Analysis

Previous Outcomes

Expected Outcomes

Strategic Plan Goal

Recommendation
Approve minutes as submitted.

Contact
David S. Broskie, Superintendent of Schools, david.broskie@myoneclay.net; Bonnie O'Nora, Board Assistant

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

2024 Mar 26 Workshop.pdf

2024 Apr 4 Student Hearings.pdf (Confidential)

2024 Apr 4 Regular Mtg.pdf

Page 26 of 564

DRAFT



Date: Mar 26 2024 (9:00 a.m.)

School Board of Clay County

District Multi-Purpose Center, Corner of Walnut Street and Gratio Place, Green Cove Springs, FL

March 26, 2024 - School Board Workshop

Invocation  (Ashley Gilhousen)

Call to Order  (Present: Erin Skipper, District 1; Mary Bolla, District 2; Beth Clark, District 3, Michele Hanson, District 4; Ashley Gilhousen,
District 5; and Superintendent David S. Broskie)

Workshop Items

1. Review Draft Agenda for Regular School Board Meeting on April 4, 2024

april-4-2024-regular-school-board-meeting_agenda_packet..pdf

Minutes:

Consent Agenda

C19 Request for the Adoption of Resolution #2024-19, Authorizing the Issuance of the Certificates of Participation, Series
2024A and Request for the Adoption of Resolution #2024-20, Authorizing the Issuance of the Refunding Certificates of
Participation, Series 2024B - Jerry Ford, President of Ford and Associates, Inc., Financial Advisors, explained the process for
the proposed loan to fund construction of two classroom wings as well as retiring debt for existing loans to eliminate stale
provisions and bring current documents that are more streamlined and consistent with industry practices; Raymond James will
be the underwriters; the total loan will be for approximately $57.5M with $36M of that being the new money portion; Mrs.
Hanson requested clarification on a lower number previously reported and was advised that prior number did not include
furniture, fixtures, and equipment as well as civil engineering and site work incorporated in the total projection; Mrs. Skipper
stated the need to consider school sizes moving forward and build larger schools; Mrs. Gilhousen appreciated the small-town
setting of neighborhood schools that makes Clay unique; Mrs. Bolla pointed out that the state could decline a requested build if
it is not justified by enrollment numbers; Mrs. Clark stated that the schools will receive more tax dollars with growth but it is
hard to estimate what that amount would be; Mr. Ford indicated he believes Clay is on the cusp of explosive growth,
necessitating a need to ensure cash flow, keep liquidity where it needs to be, and protect the fund balance;

Recognitions:

Recognize President's Volunteer Service Award Recipients - no discussion;
Recognition of State Thespians - no discussion;
Recognition of State Champions - no discussion;

Discussion Agenda:

D1 Human Resources Special Action A - no discussion;
D2 Human Resources Special Action B - no discussion;
D3 Human Resources Special Action C - no discussion;
D4 Public Hearing to Approve as Advertised the Adoption of K-12 Social Studies and K-12 Science Materials - brief discussion
of McGraw Hill Florida textbooks being produced as textbook companies have realized the need to change to meet market
demands; 

Consent Agenda:

C1 Minutes of School Board Special Meeting and School Board Workshop on February 27, 2024; Student Discipline Hearings
and Regular Meeting on March 7, 2024 - no discussion;
C2 Personnel Consent Agenda - no discussion;
C3 Proposed Supplement Allocations for 2024-25 - Superintendent Broskie provided the board with a document delineating
changes from the prior year, including model classroom teachers, a future educator's program to promote recruitment, and the
restructuring of the Exceptional Student Education (ESE) program; Page 27 of 564

DRAFT



C4 Reappointments of Instructional and Support Personnel 2024-2025 School Year - Mr. Broskie discussed the process of
reappointments of personnel; 
C5 Proclamation #24-14 to Establish April 22 - 26, 2024, as Administrative Professionals' Week and Wednesday, April 24,
2024, as Administrative Professionals' Day in Clay County - no discussion;
C6 Proclamation #24-15 to Establish May 6 - 10, 2024, as Teacher Appreciation Week in Clay County, and Tuesday, May 7,
2024, as Teacher Appreciation Day - no discussion;
C7 K-12 Academic Services Out of State and Overnight Student Travel - no discussion;
C8 Proposed Florida Youth Challenge Academy Student/Employee Calendar for 2024-2025 School Year - no discussion;
C9 2024 Secondary Summer Programs Calendars Revised - no discussion;
C10 2024 VPK, 3rd Grade Summer Camp Calendar Revised - no discussion;
C11 CCDS-Adult & Community Education (ClayACE) and Electrical Training Alliance of Jacksonville (ETAJ) MOU for Post-
Secondary Adult Pre-Apprenticeship Program - no discussion;
C12 Affiliation Agreement between Clay County District Schools and Jacksonville University (JU) - no discussion;
C13 Affiliation Agreement between Clay County District Schools and Arizona State University (ASU) - no discussion;
C14 Proclamation #24-16 to Establish April, 2024 as School Library Month in Clay County - no discussion;
C15 Proclamation #24-17, National School Nurse Week - no discussion;
C16 Proclamation #24-18; Month of the Military Child, Purple Up Day April 17, 2024 - no discussion;
C17 Proposed Allocation Changes for 2023-2024 - no discussion;
C18 Proposed Allocation Changes for 2024-2025 - no discussion;
C20 Monthly Financial Reports for February, 2024 - Mrs. Hanson requested that notations, such as budget transfer funds, be
more clear; Dr. Legutko advised she would create a summary page for clarity beginning in September 2024;
C21 Budget Amendment Report for February 29, 2024 - no discussion;
C22 NSF Checks - brief discussion of the process to attempt collection for non-sufficient funds checks and the transition to
greater utilization of MySchoolBucks; 
C23 Approval of the 2024-2025 Payroll Calendars - no discussion;
C24 Deletion of Certain Items Report March, 2024 - no discussion;
C25 BID Renewal - no discussion;
C26 Substantial and Final Completion of Keystone Heights Elementary School New Cafeteria/Classrooms - no discussion;
C27 Substantial and Final Completion of Bannerman Learning Center Parking Lot Renovations/Security Lighting Replacement
- no discussion;
C28 Appointments for the Citizens Oversight Committee - no discussion;
C29 School Concurrency Proportionate Share Mitigation (PSM) Agreement between the Clay County School Board, Clay
County, and Forester (USA) Real Estate Group, Inc., a Delaware Corporation (Baxley Villas) - this pertains to eighteen spots
for development off of Baxley Road; Mrs. Hanson asked whether this would be a lump sum payment, and Lance Addison,
Coordinator of Facilities and Planning, indicated that it would be dependent on how many dwelling units are in a particular
phase; 
C30 Lakeside Elementary School Restroom Renovation Contract Award - no discussion;
C31 Orange Park Elementary School Restroom Renovation Contract Award - no discussion;
C32 Prequalification of Contractors - no discussion;
C33 Orange Park High School Media Center Renovation Contract Award - no discussion;
C34 S. Bryan Jennings Fire Alarm Repair/Replacement Contract Award - no discussion;
C35 Substantial and Final Completion of Fleming Island High School Replace Batting Practice Building and Erosion Control -
no discussion;
C36 Substantial and Final Completion of Middleburg High School Cafeteria Expansion - no discussion.

2. Lexia Presentation

LEXIA School Board Presentation.pdf

Minutes:

Melanie McIver, Supervisor of Reading/Language Arts, provided the attached presentation which reviewed Lexia, a supplemental
reading program, highlighting the following:

the Lexia online learning platform components
Scarborough's Reading Rope and how Lexia supports those components
how the program is utilized
when Lexia is used within the reading block for various age groups
overview of student engagement for the current school year
PowerUp student usage for the current school year
utilization of off-line Hub Tools;
the impact of Lexia on student achievement
educator use
how Lexia builds partnership support
strategies to build efficacy

Board member discussion included the provision for teacher to access needed phonies on a different level, the survey that was sent
to all K-10 teachers, printable work that may be sent home, and improvements needed for teachers to be able to utilize the "Resource
Hub to Parent" in less time

Page 28 of 564

DRAFT



Mr. Broskie distributed a document delineating the number of minutes per week in which students are engaged in online curricular
programs.

3. Land Sale - Swimming Pen Creek Elementary

SPC Land Sale Presentation.pdf

Minutes:

Lance Addison, Coordinator of Facilities and Planning, shared the attached visual presentation re a proposed land sale by a private
citizen of a small portion of land (0.6 acres) owned by Clay County School Board, currently within the boundaries of Swimming Pen
Creek Elementary.  CCSB would retain ownership of the sidewalk that leads to SPC.  The land is currently being leased by a
contractor, who has installed new fencing and gates that will be conveyed to CCSB after the lease term.  The board granted
consensus for the exploration of this land sale to move forward.

Questions from the Audience

4. Questions From the Audience

Minutes:

Vicki Kidwell questioned whether additional supplemental allocations could be added, referencing a supplement that was discussed
during bargaining.  Mr. Broskie advised supplements may be added to any regular board agenda.

Superintendent Comments

5. Superintendent Comments

Minutes:

Mr. Broskie reminded the Board of an executive session scheduled with the labor attorney on April 10, 2024.

He also indicated that the current schedule for the June 18th workshop poses a conflict with Summer Leadership and gained the
board's consensus to move that workshop to June 17, 2024.

School Board Attorney Comments  (None)

School Board Comments  (None)

Adjournment  (11:02 a.m.)

Superintendent of Schools School Board Chair

Page 29 of 564

DRAFT



Date: Apr 04 2024 (6:00 p.m.)

School Board of Clay County

Teacher Inservice Center, 2233 Village Square Parkway, Fleming Island, FL

April 4, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Student Showcase  (Tynes Elementary Chorus, Megan Hines, Music Teacher)

Invocation  (Pastor Jason Brown, Black Pond Baptist Church, Middleburg)

Pledge of Allegiance

Call to Order  (Present: Erin Skipper, District 1; Mary Bolla, District 2, Beth Clark, District 3; Ashley Gilhousen, District 5; Roger Dailey,
Chief Academic Officer (substituting for Superintendent David Broskie). Not Present: Superintendent David Broskie, Michele Hanson,
District 4.)

Recognitions and Awards

1. Recognition of State Thespians

Minutes:

Chris Gugel, Fine Arts Specialist, recognized the following State Thespians:

Rylee Love, MHS, Solo Musical
Lismary Corporan, MHS, Solo Musical
Aiden Schaeffer & Chloe Netherland, LAJ, Duet Acting
Ella Alcott, LAJ, Monologue
Lara Peyton, LAJ, Solo Musical
Mackenna Mack, LAJ, Monologue
Jade Bevis, Adrian Pietras, Abigail Cosby, OHS, Small Group Musical
Aaliah Salazar, Adrian Pietras, Carlee Varnado, Gale Crosby, Haley Dixon, Jade Bevis, Kaelyn Newman, Layla Sharqawi,
Malcolm Shipman, Miracle Haile, Nolan Archer, Nya Russell, Shelby Lovett, Val Caamano, Zee Arthur, Bella Jackson, OHS,
Large Group Musical
Layla Sharqawi & Zee Arthur, OHS, Duet Acting
Jordyne Barnes & Jai Burgos, OHS, Duet Acting
Isabella Feliciano, RHS, Solo Musical
Jamie-Lynn Hartley, RHS, Solo Musical
Nicholas Williams, FIH, Solo Musical
Cash Belcher, FIH, Solo Musical
Cash Belcher, Sydney Fontenot, Lucy Schragg, FIH, Small Group Musical
Eden Rodriguez & Alina Goudie, FIH, Duet Musical Theatre
Ashlynn Amburgey & Payten Tison, FIH, Duet Musical Theatre
Nicholas Williams, Alina Goudie, Lucy Schraff, Eden Rodriguez, Sydney Fontenot, Ashlynn Amburgey, Maria Routel Ferguson,
Nate Netherland, Payten Tison, Riley Rendelman, Braden Pollock, Jane Weigand, Ellison Shipe, Cash Belcher, Jocey Shrader,
Adalicia Thennes, Alex Williams, Kira Jackson, Skylar Bailey, Caris Broadhurst, Jordan Taylor, FIH, Mainstage Production

2. Recognize President's Volunteer Service Award Recipients

Minutes:

Christine Howell, Orange Park High School, recognized student recipients of The President's Volunteer Service Award, a prestigious
national honor that highlights students' commitment to serving the community and the nation:

Isabelle Carter - Orange Park High
Kaley Zepeda - Clay High
Kiya Domingo - Oakleaf High

Page 30 of 564

DRAFT



Tyler Howell - Fleming Island High
Stella Carter - Orange Park Elementary

3. Recognition of State Champions

Minutes:

Jay Stilianou, Coordinator of District Athletics, recognized the following Winter Sports State Champions:

Clay High Cheer Team:

Baileigh Barbree
Mackenzi Batton
Abigail Blalock
Michael Goldstein
Kyle Horne
Noah Johnson
Lili Jordan
Carleigh Kierbow
Madison Kilgore
Saige Knapp
Tuler LaBelle
Morgan McMinn
Zayden Merry
Kalyn Mitchell
Cody Mobley
Jason Pope
Brayden Ringer
Kyla Sawdo
Jordan Stacy
Emily Winkler
Peyton Wyatt
Kaley Zepeda

Girls Weightlifting

Emma Heck - Clay High

Girls Wrestling

Cheyenne Cruce - Middleburg High

Presenters

School Showcase  (Tynes Elementary School, Sarah Brennan, Principal)

Presentations from the Audience (Public Comment)

4. Public Comment

Minutes:

Public speakers:

Jessica Willson
Bruce Friedman
Holly Bishop
Shannon Hube 
Patricia Shaffer
Echo Nova

Discussion Agenda

Human Resources

5. D1 - Human Resources Special Action A

Special Action A - 04042024.pdf (Confidential)

Motion
Page 31 of 564

DRAFT



Motion to Approve Human Resources Special Action A

Vote Results ( Approved )
Motion: Mary Bolla
Second: Beth Clark
Ashley Gilhousen - Aye
Mary Bolla - Aye
Beth Clark - Aye
Michele Hanson - Not Present
Erin Skipper - Aye

6. D2 - Human Resources Special Action B

Minutes:

There was no Human Resources Special Action B.

7. D3 - Human Resources Special Action C

Minutes:

There was no Human Resources Special Action C.

Instruction-Instructional Resources

8. D4 - Public Hearing to Approve as Advertised the Adoption of K-12 Social Studies and K-12 Science Materials

2023-2024 K-12 Social Studies Teacher Ranking Results.pdf

2023-2024 K-12 Science Preselection Committee Results.pdf

2023-2024 K-12 Social Studies and K-12 Science Adoption NOTICE OF APPROVAL TO ADVERTISE SB Policy.pdf

2023-2024 K12 Social Studies Adoption Packet.pdf

2023-2024 K12 Science Adoption Packet.pdf

Minutes:

Chair Gilhousen opened the public hearing.  With no one coming forward to speak to the item, the public hearing was closed.

Motion
Motion to Approve as Advertised the Adoption of K-12 Social Studies and K-12 Science Materials

Vote Results ( Approved )
Motion: Beth Clark
Second: Mary Bolla
Ashley Gilhousen - Aye
Mary Bolla - Aye
Beth Clark - Aye
Michele Hanson - Not Present
Erin Skipper - Aye

Business Affairs

9. C20 - Request for the Adoption of Resolution #2024-19, Authorizing the Issuance of the Certificates of Participation, Series 2024A
and Request for the Adoption of Resolution #2024-20, Authorizng the Issuance of the Refunding Certificates of Participation, Series
2024B (moved to Discussion by Staff)

696477731_v 1_Board Resolution No. 2024-19 for 2024A Cops Clay Schools.PDF

696479114_v 2_Board Resolution No. 2024-20 for 2024B Cops Clay Schools.PDF

Motion
Page 32 of 564

DRAFT



Motion to Approve Request for Adoption of Resolution #2024-19, Authorizing the Issuance of the Certificates of Participation, Series
2024A, and Request for the Adoption of Resolution #2024-20, Authorizing the Issuance of the Refunding Certificates of
Participation, Series 2024B
Minutes
Following the voting on this item, Chair Gilhousen called a recess of the regular school board meeting at 7:04 p.m.

Vote Results ( Approved )
Motion: Mary Bolla
Second: Erin Skipper
Ashley Gilhousen - Aye
Mary Bolla - Aye
Beth Clark - Aye
Michele Hanson - Not Present
Erin Skipper - Aye

10. C20A - Request Clay County School Board Leasing Corporation Adopt Resolution #2024-19A, Authorizing the Issuance of the
Certificates of Participation, Series 2024A and Adopt Resolution #2024-20A, Authorizing the Issuance of the Refunding Certificates of
Participation, Series 2024B (moved to Discussion by Staff)

696478339_v 1_Leasing Corp. Resolution No. 2024-19A for 2024A Cops Clay Schools.PDF

696479776_v 2_Leasing Corp. Resolution No. 2024-20A for 2024B Cops Clay Schools.PDF

Minutes:

Chair Gilhousen called to order the Board of Directors of the Clay County School Board Leasing Corporation meeting at 7:05 p.m. to
approve the nomination of officers, the election of officers, and the approval of Item C20A.  

Following the nominations and election of officers to the Board of Directors of Clay School Board Leasing Corporation, President
Gilhousen stated the purpose of the meeting as follows:

1. The adoption of Resolution #2024-19A which authorizes the issuance of Certificates of Participation, Series 2024A (COPS), in
an aggregate principal amount not to exceed $36 million, in order to finance through a lease-purchase arrangement the
construction of two (2) new classroom wings at Lake Asbury Junior High and Oakleaf Junior High.  The new wings are
estimated to cost approximately $36 million and any remaining cost will be funded from a combination of other capital outlay
revenue sources including, but not limited to: impact fees and local capital improvement (LCIF) revenues.  The Resolution also
approves the negotiated private sale of the COPS to Raymond James & Associates, Inc., authorizes the execution of Lease
Schedule #2024A, a Series 2024A Supplemental Trust Agreement, a Series 2024A Ground Lease Agreement and a Certificate
Purchase Contract, and approves certain amendments to the Master Lease-Purchase Agreement and Master Trust
Agreement.

2. The adoption of Resolution 2024-20A which authorizes (i) the refunding of outstanding Certificates of Participation (COPs),
series 2012, Series 2014, and Series 2017 through the issuance of refunding Certificates of Participation, Series 2024B in an
aggregate principal amount not to exceed $17,000,000; (ii) approves the negotiated private sale of the COPS to Raymond
James and Associates, Inc.; (iii) authorizes the execution of a Second Amended and Restated Leaese Schedule No. 2008, a
Second Amendment to the Series 2008 Ground Lease Agreement, a Series 2024B Supplemental Trust Agreement and a
Certificate Purchase Contract.

Roger Dailey, Alternate Secretary, read the following recommendations into the record:

A.  Consideration of Resolution No. 2024-19A authorizing issuance of Certificates of Participation, Series 2024A, and the execution of
the following:

Lease Schedule 2024A
Series 2024A Supplemental Trust Agreement
Series 2024A Ground Lease Agreement
Certificate Purchase Contract
Certain amendments to the Master Lease-Purchase Agreement and Master Trust Agreement

B.  Consideration of Resolution No. 2024-20A authorizing issuance of Certificates of Participation, Series 2024B, and the execution of
the following:

Second Amended and Restated Lease Schedule 2008
Series 2024B Supplemental Trust Agreement
Second Amendment to Series 2008 Ground Lease Agreement
Certificate Purchase Contract

Motion
Page 33 of 564

DRAFT



Motion to Approve Proposed Nominations of Officers as Follows: Ashley Gilhousen, President; Mary Bolla, Vice President, David
Broskie, Secretary, Dr. Susan Legutko, Treasurer
Minutes
Ashley Gilhousen, Board Chair, proposed the following officers be nominated: Ashley Gilhousen, President; Mary Bolla, Vice
President, David Broskie, Secretary, Dr. Susan Legutko, Treasurer. Following voting on this motion, Jeremiah Blocker, School Board
Attorney, proposed that a motion be made to designate Roger Dailey as an alternate secretary, due to Superintendent Broskie not
being present at this meeting. Mrs. Gilhousen called for a motion on this item as described. Mrs. Bolla motioned, seconded by Mrs.
Skipper. A vote was taken and the motion passed 4 - 0.

Vote Results ( Approved )
Motion: Beth Clark
Second: Erin Skipper
Ashley Gilhousen - Aye
Mary Bolla - Aye
Beth Clark - Aye
Michele Hanson - Not Present
Erin Skipper - Aye

Motion
Motion to Elect Officers as Follows: Ashley Gilhousen, President; Mary Bolla, Vice President; David Broskie, Secretary; Roger
Dailey, Alternate Secretary; Dr. Susan Legutko, Treasurer

Vote Results ( Approved )
Motion: Erin Skipper
Second: Beth Clark
Ashley Gilhousen - Aye
Mary Bolla - Aye
Beth Clark - Aye
Michele Hanson - Not Present
Erin Skipper - Aye

Motion
Motion to Approve Adoption of Resolution #2024-19A, Authorizing the Issuance of the Certificates of Participation, Series 2024A and
Adopt Resolution #2024-20A, Authorizing the Issuance of the Refunding Certificates of Participation, Series 2024B

Vote Results ( Approved )
Motion: Mary Bolla
Second: Beth Clark
Ashley Gilhousen - Aye
Mary Bolla - Aye
Beth Clark - Aye
Michele Hanson - Not Present
Erin Skipper - Aye

Motion
Motion to Adjourn the Meeting of the Clay County School Board Leasing Corporation
Minutes
Following the adjournment of the meeting of the Clay County School Board Leasing Corporation, at 7:11 p.m., Chair Gilhousen
reconvened the regular meeting

Vote Results ( Approved )
Motion: Mary Bolla
Second: Erin Skipper
Ashley Gilhousen - Aye
Mary Bolla - Aye
Beth Clark - Aye

Page 34 of 564

DRAFT



Michele Hanson - Not Present
Erin Skipper - Aye

Consent Agenda

Superintendent

11. C1 - Minutes of School Board Special Meeting and School Board Workshop on February 27, 2024; Student Discipline Hearings
and Regular Meeting on March 7, 2024

2024 Feb 27 Special Mtg.pdf

2024 Feb 27 Workshop.pdf

2024 Mar 7 Student Hearings.pdf (Confidential)

2024 Mar 7 Regular Mtg.pdf

Human Resources

12. C2 - Personnel Consent Agenda

Personnel Consent Agenda - April 4 2024.pdf

13. C3 - Proposed Supplement Allocations for 2024-25

2024-2025 Supplements.pdf

14. C4 - Reappointments of Instructional and Support Personnel 2024-2025 School Year

2024-2025 Reappointment Agenda.pdf

15. C5 - Proclamation #24-14 to Establish May 6 - 10, 2024, as Teacher Appreciation Week in Clay County, and Tuesday, May 7,
2024, as Teacher Appreciation Day

Teacher Appreciation Proclamation 2023-2024.pdf

16. C6 - Proclamation #24-15 to Establish April 22 - 26, 2024, as Administrative Professionals' Week and Wednesday, April 24, 2024,
as Administrative Professionals' Day in Clay County.

Administrative Professionals Proclamation 2023-2024.pdf

Instruction-Academic Services

17. C7 - K-12 Academic Services Out of State and Overnight Student Travel

April 2024 Student Travel.pdf

18. C8 - Proposed Florida Youth Challenge Academy Student/Employee Calendar for 2024-2025 School Year

FLYCA Student-Employee 2024-2025 Calendar.pdf

19. C9 - 2024 Secondary Summer Programs Calendars Revised

Secondary Summer Programs Calendar 2024 Revised.pdf

20. C10 - 2024 VPK, 3rd Grade Summer Camp Calendar revised

2024 VPK, 3rd Grade Summer Camp Calendar Revised.pdf

21. C11 - Imagine Learning Courseware Agreement

Imagine Learning Quote Q 13382.pdf

240154 Imagine Learning.pdf

Instruction-Adult Education

22. C12 - CCDS-Adult & Community Education (ClayACE) and Electrical Training Alliance of Jacksonville (ETAJ) MOU for Post-
Secondary Adult Pre-Apprenticeship Program

240120 Elec Training Alliance MOU with ACE.pdf

Contract 240120_Executed.pdf

Instruction-Professional Development
Page 35 of 564

DRAFT



23. C13 - Affiliation Agreement between Clay County District Schools and Jacksonville University (JU)

240118 Jacksonville University.pdf

24. C14 - Affiliation Agreement between Clay County District Schools and Arizona State University (ASU)

240130 Arizona State Univ.pdf

Instruction-Reading/Library Media

25. C15 - Proclamation #24-16 to Establish April, 2024 as School Library Month in Clay County

Proclamation-April-2024-School-Library-Media-Month.pdf

Instruction-Climate and Culture

26. C16 - Proclamation #24-17, National School Nurse Week

Nurses Week Proclamation24 (1).pdf

27. C17 - Proclamation # 24-18: Month of the Military Child, Purple Up Day April 17, 2024

Month of Military Child Proclamation 2024.docx.pdf

Business Affairs

28. C18 - Proposed Allocation Changes for 2023-2024

04.04.24 23-24 Allocation Summary.pdf

29. C19 - Proposed Allocation Changes for 2024-2025

Business Affairs-Accounting

30. C21 - Monthly Financial Reports for February, 2024

February 2024 Monthly Board Property Reports.pdf

February 2024 Monthly Board Financial Report.pdf

Contracts Signed by Superintendent $50,000 to $100,000.pdf

31. C22 - Budget Amendment Report for February 29, 2024

Budget Report_February 29 2024.pdf

Business Affairs-Internal Accounts

32. C23 - NSF Checks

chs-nsf-check-write-off-agenda..pdf

Business Affairs-Payroll

33. C24 - Approval of the 2024-2025 Payroll Calendars

2024-2025 Master Payroll Calendar.pdf

2024-2025 Pay Period Work Dates_Calendars - 10 Mo 196 & 197.pdf

2024-2025 Pay Period Work Dates_Calendars - 11 Month 216.pdf

2024-2025 Pay Period Work Dates_Calendars - 12 month 260 .pdf

2024-2025 Pay Period Work Dates_Calendars - 24_25 Payroll Employee Work Days.pdf

2024-2025 Pay Period Work Dates_Calendars - 24_25 Payroll Processing Dates.pdf

2024-2025 Pay Period Work Dates_Calendars - 9 Month ALL.pdf

2024-2025 Pay Period Work Dates_Calendars - SUMMER 2024.pdf

2024-2025 Pay Period Work Dates_Calendars - FYCA .pdf

Business Affairs-Property

34. C25 - DELETION OF CERTAIN ITEMS REPORT MARCH, 2024
Page 36 of 564

DRAFT



DELETION OF CERTAIN ITEMS REPORT MARCH, 2024.pdf

Business Affairs-Purchasing

35. C26 - BID Renewal

Operations-Facilities

36. C27 - Substantial and Final Completion of Keystone Heights Elementary School New Cafeteria/Classrooms

Certificate of Substantial Completion - KHE New Cafeteria Classrooms

Certificate of Final Completion - KHE New Cafeteria Classrooms

37. C28 - Substantial and Final Completion of Bannerman Learning Center Parking Lot Renovations/Security Lighting Replacement

Certificate of Substantial Completion - BLC Parking Lot Renovations

Certificate of Final Completion - BLC Parking Lot Renovations

38. C29 - Appointments for the Citizens Oversight Committee

Citizen Oversight Committee Members.pdf

39. C30 - School Concurrency Proportionate Share Mitigation (PSM) Agreement between the Clay County School Board, Clay
County, and Forestar (USA) Real Estate Group, Inc., a Delaware Corporation (Baxley Villas)

PSM Agreement - Forestar Real Estate Group.pdf

40. C31 - Lakeside Elementary School Restroom Renovation Contract Award

Lakeside Elementary Restroom Renovations Contract 4.4.24.pdf

41. C32 - Orange Park Elementary School Restroom Renovation Contract Award

Orange Park Elementary Restroom Contract 4.4.24.pdf

42. C33 - Prequalification of Contractors

Table for Board Backup Contractor Prequal, 4.4.24

43. C34 - Orange Park High School Media Center Renovation Contract Award

Orange Park High School Media Center Renovation Contract 4.4.24.pdf

44. C35 - S. Bryan Jennings Fire Alarm Repair/Replacement Contract Award

S. Bryan Jennings Fire Alarm Repair.Replacement 4.4.24.pdf

45. C36 - Substantial and Final Completion of Fleming Island High School Replace Batting Practice Building and Erosion Control

FIH Batting Practice Building Substantial and Final Completion.pdf

46. C37 - Substantial and Final Completion of Middleburg High School Cafeteria Expansion

MHS Cafeteria Expansion Substantial and Final Completion.pdf

Adoption of Consent Agenda

47. Adoption of Consent Agenda

Motion
Motion to Adopt Consent Agenda

Vote Results ( Approved )
Motion: Mary Bolla
Second: Erin Skipper
Ashley Gilhousen - Aye
Mary Bolla - Aye
Beth Clark - Aye
Michele Hanson - Not Present
Erin Skipper - Aye

Page 37 of 564

DRAFT



CCEA Update  (Victoria Kidwell)

CESPA Update  (Lonnie Roberts)

Superintendent's Update and Presentations  (None)

School Board Attorney Remarks

48. School Board Attorney Comments

Minutes:

Jeremiah Blocker, School Board Attorney, noted a shade meeting with the district's labor attorney to be held on April 10, 2024.

He also provided a status of ongoing agreements in process with Clay County Sheriff's Office.

School Board Member Remarks

49. School Board Member Comments

Minutes:

Mrs. Skipper is attending a leadership conference in April and looks forward to sharing information with the board.

Mrs. Bolla noted upcoming graduations, Tools4Schools and the incredible volunteer support that event enjoys, appreciation for the
companies and businesses who support Clay Education Foundation, the Dolly Parton Imagination Library, a ribbon-cutting at KHH,
the incredible Career and Technical Education Program offerings, a PACE for Girls luncheon, and an OASIS (Oakleaf Area Schools in
Song) concert that incorporated over 250 students from the Oakleaf area schools.

Adjournment  (7:25 a.m.)

Superintendent of Schools School Board Chair

Page 38 of 564

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

May 2, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C2 - Controlled Open Enrollment (COE) Plan for the 2024-2025 School Year

Description
The Clay County School District's Controlled Open Enrollment (COE) Plan is being brought to the School Board for approval
for the 2024- 2025 school year. Florida Statute § 1002.31 directs each school district to develop a controlled open enrollment
plan. The Clay County School Board has previously developed a policy to establish how students may attend schools outside of
their attendance zone. The COE Plan will set the threshold capacity number to be used by the district in determining which
schools have available capacity and will participate in controlled open enrollment throughout the 2024-2025 school year.

Gap Analysis
The Controlled Open Enrollment plan allows the Clay County School District to make student school assignments using the
parent or guardians' indicated preferential school choice as a significant factor when capacity allows at specific, previously
identified schools.

Previous Outcomes
In 2017, the Clay County School District administered Controlled Open Enrollment for the first time. Throughout Clay County,
11 schools had available capacity in 2017, 10 schools in 2018, 11 schools in 2019, 11 schools in 2020,  5 schools in 2021, and 5
schools in 2022. All schools enrolled new students as a result of COE. The number of applicants for each previous year, and the
current year,  is reflected in the chart below. 
COE Year Number of Applicants
2017-2018 417
2018-2019 406
2019-2020 516
2020-2021 657
2021-2022 241
2022-2023 56*
2023-2024 110**
Total 2,347
 
*56 applicants between July 1 - December 6, 2022
**110 applicants between July 1 - March 26, 2024

Expected Outcomes
For the 2024-25 Controlled Open Enrollment process, the Clay County School District aims to once again incorporate parental
choice as a significant factor in student school assignment, where available capacity allows. Schools with available capacity will
accept students based on the previously approved School Board policy for COE which identifies priority categories to be used
when filling open seats. Should more students apply than seats available for any given school, the Clay County School District
will conduct a random lottery selection process based on School Board policy.

Strategic Plan Goal
The Controlled Open Enrollment process furthers the district's strategic plan of Goal 1: Engage all students to attain the
necessary skills and knowledge to be future-ready graduates.

Recommendation
The School Board recommends approval of the Controlled Open Enrollment (COE) Plan for the 2024- 2025 school year

Contact
Kelly Watt, Chief of Staff, kelly.watt@myoneclay.net
Karen McMillan, Coordinator of School Choice and Charter Schools, karen.mcmillan@myoneclay.net

Page 39 of 564

DRAFT



Financial Impact
No Financial Impact. Note: Students transferring to the Clay County School District from surrounding counties will bring a
positive cash flow to our district based upon increased FTE dollars.

Review Comments

Attachments

Clay County District Schools COE Plan 2024-25 SY.pdf

Page 40 of 564

DRAFT



Clay County School District
Controlled Open Enrollment Plan

Clay County School District strives to provide parents with an opportunity to choose the desired school
for their children. In addition to the established attendance zone, Special Pupil Requests due to hardship
and career academies, the Clay County School District will provide additional options for school
assignment based on Controlled Open Enrollment in accordance with Florida Statute 1002.31. Controlled
Open Enrollment (COE) provides parents and legal guardians of children and youth entering grades K-12
the opportunity to seek enrollment in a school other than the zoned school of attendance. Under this
statute, parents/legal guardians currently residing in any school district in the State of Florida may select
schools from a list identified by the Clay County School District as having available seats based upon
published guidelines.

I. Determination of Capacity

As per legislative changes in July 2022, each school district will determine the capacity of its schools by
grade level and post availability on the district website with updated information every 12 weeks. A Clay
County District school will be subject to Controlled Open enrollment when the school’s enrollment is less
than 80%. The FISH (Florida Inventory of School House) capacity report will be compared with each
school’s enrollment numbers to determine impacted schools. The principals of the impacted schools will
then share grade-level space availability to publish on the district website.

*The determination of capacity and space availability takes two additional factors into account. First,
schools that host specialized programs that require a lower student-to-teacher ratio would be exempt, if
the regular education classrooms are at or above 80%. Secondly, Clay County is experiencing rapid
growth. In order to allow the District to plan for future growth and establish efficient attendance zones
and boundaries, a new school will not be subject to Controlled Open Enrollment until it has been in
operation for three (3) years. Upon completion of the school’s third full year of operation, it will be
included in the annual FISH calculation of available school capacity.

12 Week Dates for 2023-2024
September 11, 2023
December 4, 2023
February 24, 2024

May 30, 2024 *For the following school year

12 Week Dates for 2024-2025
September 9, 2024
December 2, 2024
February 24, 2025

June 3, 2025 *For the following school year

Page 41 of 564

DRAFT



II. Application Process and Lottery

Open COE schools along with an electronic application can be found on the OneClay Open Enrollment
page of the CCDS website. A paper-based copy of the application can be obtained upon request from the
District Office. Submitting an application for Controlled Open Enrollment does not guarantee that the
student will be approved to transfer to the requested school. Applications will not be received by the
school(s). Instead, applications must be submitted online or sent in the mail to the School District central
office.

Clay County School Board
Attn: School Choice Department: Open Enrollment
900 Walnut Street
Green Cove Springs, Florida 32043

Students subject to a current expulsion or suspension will not be permitted to take advantage of the
Controlled Open Enrollment choice.

A student who enrolls or transfers under Controlled Open Enrollment may remain at the Controlled
Open Enrollment school until the student completes the highest grade level at the school. Once the
student has completed the highest grade level of that school, the student must return to their zoned
school or apply for another available seat through Controlled Open Enrollment. The application will
always be available on the CCDS School Choice website.

Link to FAQs

Once an application for an available seat is received, and space is verified, registration information will
be sent to the parent through the email provided in the application. Parents have a two week window to
complete registration and enroll the student. After two weeks (10 working days), incomplete
registrations will be put on the waitlist.

If more applications are received than seats are available, the district will hold a lottery. Parents will be
notified of lottery results through an acceptance email with registration information or a waitlist email.
All students that do not receive a seat through the initial lottery will be put on a waitlist. Applications
received after the lottery will be put on a waitlist in the order received. As capacity becomes available,
parents will be emailed with registration information. Incomplete or incorrect applications will not be
processed. The waitlist will expire on the last day of school each year. Parents will need to reapply
annually if a seat does not become available for the requested school year.

There is no appeal process for Controlled Open Enrollment as it is based strictly on a lottery procedure.

III. Siblings and Preferential Placement

The Controlled Open Enrollment Application includes a section for the parent/guardian to indicate if they
have submitted an application for other siblings to attend the same school. Placement of siblings within

Page 42 of 564

DRAFT



the same school is facilitated whenever feasible during the open enrollment period if appropriate
educational services are available for each sibling at the requested school. There is no guarantee that
sibling preference will be given.

Priority for school assignment pursuant to Controlled Open Enrollment is given based upon:
● Dependent children of active-duty military personnel whose move resulted in military orders;
● Children who have been relocated due to a foster care placement in a different school zone;
● Children who move due to a court-ordered change in custody due to separation or divorce, or

the serious illness or death of a custodial parent;
● Students residing in the school district.

IV. Transportation

As per the legislation passed in July 2022, school districts must provide information on transportation
options. The following information is located on the district website.

Transportation Options
Clay County District Schools does not offer transportation to schools outside of a student’s zoned school.

For other transportation opportunities, parents can look into the following.
● Clay County Public Transportation (This is NOT a part of the public school system)

● The Florida Department of Education offers transportation scholarships of $750 to eligible
students that attend a Florida public school that is different from the school to which the student
was assigned, if the school district does not provide the student with transportation to/from the
school. Visit FDOE’s website for more information.

V. Rescinding of Placement

Controlled Open Enrollment placement may be rescinded if:
● Incorrect or false information was provided in the application;
● Attendance, tardiness, or discipline/behavior problems develop at the receiving school;
● Academic Criterion is not met based on the Florida High School Athletic Association (FHSAA)

requirements of a 2.0 GPA.

Page 43 of 564

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

May 2, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C3 - School Board Member Out-of-County Travel Expenses Estimated to Attend FSBA/FADSS Annual Summer Conference

Description
Reimbursement of travel expenses for school board members is addressed in Florida Statutes 112.061, 1001.39 and the rules of
the State Board of Education.  Specifically, F.S. 1001.39 reads, “… any travel outside of the district that exceeds $500 requires
prior approval by the district school board to confirm that such travel is for official business of the school district and complies
with rules of the State Board of Education.  Any request for travel outside the state must include an itemized list detailing all
anticipated travel expenses, including, but not limited to, the anticipated costs of all means of travel, lodging, and subsistence. 
Immediately preceding a request, the public must have an opportunity to speak on the specific travel agenda item.” 
School Board members typically attend two in-state conferences yearly that are sponsored by the Florida School Boards
Association.  In addition, periodic technical assistance is provided throughout the fiscal year for all Board members.  Currently,
there is no planned out-of-state travel.
Estimated costs below include registration fees, lodging, meals, mileage, and other incidental expenses.
Estimated Travel Expenses To Attend FSBA/FADSS Annual Summer Conference

Date/Conference
Board
Members
Attending

Location Purpose
Estimated
Cost

June
2024 FADSS/FSBA
Annual Joint
Summer Conference

Bolla,
Clark,
Gilhousen,
Hanson,
Skipper

Tampa
FL

Official
Business of
the District

  $5,500

 

Gap Analysis
Professional development provides valuable leadership training for school board members.  The majority of the training, but not
necessarily all training, is provided through the Board’s professional organization, Florida School Boards Association.  Training
includes yearly legislative updates on issues important to school systems in Florida as well as other important topics that impact
public education. 

Previous Outcomes
Board members have attended training and conferences in the past and gained valuable insight on education issues.

Expected Outcomes
Board members will continue to attend upcoming trainings and conferences and gain valuable insight on education issues.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 5.2 Promote fiscal transparency and communication.

Recommendation
Recommend approval

Contact
Bonnie O'Nora, Board Assistant, bonnie.onora@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
$5,500.00 (This is a rough estimate with the assumption that all five board members would have the opportunity to attend.)

Review Comments

Page 44 of 564

DRAFT



Attachments

Page 45 of 564

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

May 2, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C4 - Personnel Consent Agenda

Description
Florida Statutes, State Board Rules and Clay County School Board Policies require Board notification and/or action regarding
decisions and recommendations of the Superintendent related to Personnel matters.  Actions regarding personnel have been
recommended by Supervisors, approved by the Superintendent and are being forwarded to the Board for action or, if appropriate,
for information.  Personnel Actions, Transfer Requests, Pre-employments, Leave Forms or Directives from the Superintendent
are available for review in the Human Resources Division.

Gap Analysis
These personnel actions are necessary for the effective operation of the school district.

Previous Outcomes
The Clay County School Board has approved each month a Personnel Consent Agenda which contains appointments, re-
appointments, transfers, redesignations, retirements, resignations, and conclude employments.

Expected Outcomes
Approval of the Personnel Consent Agenda.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 2:  Enact a highly effective recruitment and professional development plan along with opportunities for growth and career
development to ensure all students have access to a world class education to become life-long learners for success in a global and
competitive workplace and in acquiring applicable life skills.
Strategy 2.1.1 Develop strategic partnerships with organizations and universities to source new talent for a diverse workforce that
is effective and highly-qualified for non-instructional, instructional, and administrative positions throughout CCDS.
Strategy 2.1.3 Expand involvement in community-sponsored career fairs, providing the opportunity to recruit a diverse
population to the multiple career paths within CCDS.
Strategy 2.1.4 Continue to streamline the application and onboarding process to successfully engage and hire quality applicants.
Strategy 2.1.5 Collaborate to strengthen CCDS’ branding and marketing to increase the awareness and presence of career
opportunities.

Recommendation
To approve the Personnel Consent Agenda.

Contact
Brenda G. Troutman, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources.  (904) 336-6701 Brenda.Troutman@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
Personnel changes involving already-allocated positions will result in salary impact per the current Board-approved Salary
Schedule.  This also includes supplemental positions.  See current backup for allocation changes for impact of new positions.

Review Comments

Attachments

Personnel Consent Agenda (1).pdf

Page 46 of 564

DRAFT



Page 47 of 564

DRAFT



Page 48 of 564

DRAFT



Page 49 of 564

DRAFT



Page 50 of 564

DRAFT



Page 51 of 564

DRAFT



Page 52 of 564

DRAFT



Page 53 of 564

DRAFT



Page 54 of 564

DRAFT



Page 55 of 564

DRAFT



Page 56 of 564

DRAFT



Page 57 of 564

DRAFT



Page 58 of 564

DRAFT



Page 59 of 564

DRAFT



Page 60 of 564

DRAFT



Page 61 of 564

DRAFT



Page 62 of 564

DRAFT



Page 63 of 564

DRAFT



Page 64 of 564

DRAFT



Page 65 of 564

DRAFT



Page 66 of 564

DRAFT



Page 67 of 564

DRAFT



Page 68 of 564

DRAFT



Page 69 of 564

DRAFT



Page 70 of 564

DRAFT



Page 71 of 564

DRAFT



Page 72 of 564

DRAFT



Page 73 of 564

DRAFT



Page 74 of 564

DRAFT



Page 75 of 564

DRAFT



Page 76 of 564

DRAFT



Page 77 of 564

DRAFT



Page 78 of 564

DRAFT



Page 79 of 564

DRAFT



Page 80 of 564

DRAFT



Page 81 of 564

DRAFT



Page 82 of 564

DRAFT



Page 83 of 564

DRAFT



Page 84 of 564

DRAFT



Page 85 of 564

DRAFT



Page 86 of 564

DRAFT



Page 87 of 564

DRAFT



Page 88 of 564

DRAFT



Page 89 of 564

DRAFT



Page 90 of 564

DRAFT



Page 91 of 564

DRAFT



Page 92 of 564

DRAFT



Page 93 of 564

DRAFT



Page 94 of 564

DRAFT



Page 95 of 564

DRAFT



Page 96 of 564

DRAFT



Page 97 of 564

DRAFT



Page 98 of 564

DRAFT



Page 99 of 564

DRAFT



Page 100 of 564

DRAFT



Page 101 of 564

DRAFT



Page 102 of 564

DRAFT



Page 103 of 564

DRAFT



Page 104 of 564

DRAFT



Page 105 of 564

DRAFT



Page 106 of 564

DRAFT



Page 107 of 564

DRAFT



Page 108 of 564

DRAFT



Page 109 of 564

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

May 2, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C5 - Renewal of List of Physicians and Medical Facilities authorized to conduct physical examinations required for certain
groups of employees.

Description
School Board Policy and Florida Statutes require Physical Examinations for certain employees and job candidates. 
Physicians/Facilities used in administering physical examinations of employees and fees charged for those services must be
approved by the School Board.  The attached six (6) facilities agreed to conduct the district physical exams for the established
pricing listed, with no increase from the 2023-2024 pricing.  They are considered reasonable and are recommended for approval.
 

Gap Analysis
The district currently has an active list of participating physicians for the 2023-2024 school year and all have agreed to continue
providing services at the same rate as 2023-2024.

Previous Outcomes
The current list of participating and approved physicians consisted of six facilities for the 2023-2024 fiscal year.

Expected Outcomes
The School Board will approve the list of current prices for the 2024-2025 school year so that we can continue using the
physicians on the list through 6/30/2025.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 2 Talent Recruitment, Development, and Retention
Goal 4 Safe and Positive Learning Environment
Goal 5 Fiscal and Operational Efficiency

Recommendation
Approve the Physicians/Facilities and costs presented.

Contact
Brenda G. Troutman, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources.  brenda.troutman@myoneclay.net  904.336.6701

Financial Impact
Approximately $50,000 has been budgeted for physical examinations for certain employees and job candidates.  The quotes
received and recommended are considered reasonable.

Review Comments

Attachments

Approved Physicians, Facilities, Fees - Sheet1.pdf

Page 110 of 564

DRAFT



Approved Physician Facilities for Physical Examinations

(for certain groups of employees)

Pending School Board Approval: 05/02/2024

Physicians/Facilities are recommended at the rates shown effective July 1, 2024 through June 30, 2025.

Physician/Facility Bus Driver Exam Other Employee

ClayMed of North Florida

$100.00 $70.00705 Ferris Street

Green Cove Springs, FL 32043

CareSpot Express Healthcare Middleburg

$85.00 $50.001708 Blanding Blvd.

Middleburg, FL 32068

CareSpot Express Healthcare  Orange Park

$85.00 $50.002140 Kingsley Avenue

Orange Park, FL 32073

CareSpot Urgent Care of Fleming Island

$85.00 $50.001544 County Rd. 220, Suite 100

Fleming Island, FL 32003

Ascension St. Vincent’s $85.00

$75.007963 Normandy Blvd. $30.00 - audiometric

Jacksonville, FL 32221

Ascension St. Vincent’s $85.00

$75.006488 103rd Street $30.00 - audiometric

Jacksonville, FL 32210

Page 111 of 564

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

May 2, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C6 - K-12 Academic Services Out of State and Overnight Student Travel

Description
The School Board recognizes that field trips, when used for teaching and learning integral to the curriculum, are an educationally
sound and important ingredient in the instructional program of the schools. Properly planned and executed field trips supplement
and enrich classroom instruction by providing learning experiences that will enhance mastery of the curriculum standards of the
State of Florida. A field trip is defined as any planned, student-travel activity which is approved as part of the district's
educational program and is under the direct supervision and control of an instructional staff member or any advisor as designated
by the Superintendent.
                                                                                                                                                         Field Trips Details

School Date Destination Group Purpose

Clay High School
4/19 -
4/21/24

Tampa, FL Chorus Students qualified for a choral competition

Clay High School
4/29 -
4/30/24

Orlando, FL NJROTC
Visit to Seaworld and the US Naval Seal Museum at
Fort Pierce

Fleming Island
High

7/28 -
7/31/24

Orlando, FL Cheer Cheer camp

Keystone
Heights High

4/13 -
4/14/24

Apopka, FL
Speech
and Debate
Team

Tournament

Keystone
Heights High

6/15 -
6/22/24

DesMoines,
IA

Speech
and Debate
Team

2 students qualified for the National Speech and
Debate Tournament

MIddleburg High 
4/25-
4/27//24

Fort Valley,
GA

Newly
elected
FCCLA
State
Officers

Leadership retreat for new state officers

Middleburg High 
4/19 -
4/20/24

Daytona
Beach, FL

NJROTC
Academic
Team

Qualified for the National NJROTC Academic
competition

Middleburg High
6/16 -
6/18/24

Tampa, FL
FCCLA
State
Officers

FCCLA Leadership conference

Oakleaf High
5/29 -
6/2/24

Macon, GA Football College tour of Mercer University

Oakleaf High
4/24 -
4/27/25

Gatlinburg,
TN

Band Tentatively scheduled to perform at Dollywood

Oakleaf High
4/12 -
4/13/24

Clinton, SC Football College tour of Presbyterian College

Oakleaf High 4/19/24 Kingsbay, GA NJROTC Tour of Kings Bay Submarine Base
         

 

Page 112 of 564

DRAFT



Gap Analysis
Field trips provide students with a window to the real world that they don't get in the classroom, and they can help students
understand real-world applications to abstract concepts.

Previous Outcomes
All out of county activity trips are selected, planned, evaluated, and approved or rejected in conformity with written district
policy.

Expected Outcomes
It is important to recognize that learning outcomes from field trips can range from cognitive to affective outcomes. Exposing
students to new experiences and can increase interest and engagement in academics regardless of prior interests.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure that every classroom provides a quality and rigorous instructional experience in order to elevate student outcomes.

Recommendation
That the Clay County School Board approve out of county student travel.   

Contact
Roger Dailey, Chief Academic Officer; roger.dailey@myoneclay.net; 904-336-6904
Treasure Pickett, Chief of Secondary Ed; treasure.pickett@myoneclay.net; 904-336-6918

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

May 2024 Student Travel.pdf

Page 113 of 564

DRAFT



Page 114 of 564

DRAFT



Page 115 of 564

DRAFT



Page 116 of 564

DRAFT



Page 117 of 564

DRAFT



Page 118 of 564

DRAFT



Page 119 of 564

DRAFT



Page 120 of 564

DRAFT



Page 121 of 564

DRAFT



Page 122 of 564

DRAFT



Page 123 of 564

DRAFT



Page 124 of 564

DRAFT



Page 125 of 564

DRAFT



Page 126 of 564

DRAFT



Page 127 of 564

DRAFT



Page 128 of 564

DRAFT



Page 129 of 564

DRAFT



Page 130 of 564

DRAFT



Page 131 of 564

DRAFT



Page 132 of 564

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

May 2, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C7 - Sharing Security and Privacy Agreement between the School Board of Clay County and the Boys and Girls Club of
Northeast Florida (BGCNF)

Description
This Sharing Security and Privacy Agreement between the School Board of Clay County and BGCNF updates 220123/230028
previously approved by the school board under item C6 in meeting dated 6/2/22. 

Gap Analysis
Currently seven Clay County schools utilize the BGCNF program and this will allow the unit directors access to participating
students grades, attendance and discipline records. 

Previous Outcomes
BGCNF program has been previously approved to work with students in seven qualifying Clay County Schools (Montclair
Elem., Grove Park Elem., Wilkinson Junior High, Orange Park Junior High, Orange Park High, Clay High and Keystone Heights
High)

Expected Outcomes
The unit directors at each qualifying school location will be granted acess to participating students grades, attendance and
discipline records. This has been approved by the IT department and parents must sign their approval to grant this access as well.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 1: Engage all students to attain the necessary skills and knowlege to be future-ready graduates.
 
Strategy 1.3: Graduate students who are ready to enroll, enlist, or be employed in the workforce.

Recommendation
That the School Board of Clay County approve the Sharing Security and Privacy Agreement between the School Board of Clay
County and the Boys and Girls Clubs of Northeast Florida.  

Contact
Treasure Pickett; Chief of Secondary treasure.pickett@myoneclay.net; 904-336-6918

Financial Impact
N/A

Review Comments

Attachments

240142 Boys & Girls Club Privacy Agreement.pdf

Page 133 of 564

DRAFT



PUR 1-3501 E. 10/05/2026   Contract Review Process for ALL Contracts, September 2022, SBAO (web) 

FOLLOW ALL PROCEDURES ON BACK OF THIS FORM
  Contract #______________________ 

Number Assigned by Purchasing Dept.   

BOARD MEETING DATE:

WHEN BOARD APPROVAL IS REQUIRED DO  
NOT PLACE ITEM ON AGENDA UNTIL  

REVIEW IS COMPLETED 
 Must Have Board Approval over $100,000.00 

Date Submitted: 
Name of Contract Initiator:      Telephone #: 
School/Dept Submitting Contract:     Cost Center # 
Vendor Name: 
Contract Title: 
Contract Type:   New □   Renewal □   Amendment □   Extension □      Previous Year Contract # 
Contract Term:    Renewal Option(s): 
Contract Cost: 
 BUDGETED FUNDS – SEND CONTRACT PACKAGE DIRECTLY TO PURCHASING DEPT

  Funding Source:   Budget Line #_________________________________________________________________ 
  Funding Source:   Budget Line #_________________________________________________________________ 

 NO COST MASTER (COUNTY WIDE) CONTRACT  - SEND CONTRACT PACKAGE DIRECTLY TO PURCHASING DEPT

 INTERNAL ACCOUNT -  IF FUNDED FROM SCHOOL IA FUNDS – SEND CONTRACT PACKAGE DIRECTLY TO SBAO
 REQUIRED DOCUMENTS FOR CONTRACT REVIEW PACKAGE  (when applicable): 
______ Completed Contract Review Form 
______ SBAO Template Contract or other Contract (NOT SIGNED by District / School) 
______ SIGNED Addendum A (if not an SBAO Template Contract) - When using the Addendum A, this Statement MUST BE included in the body of the Contract: 
               “The terms and conditions of Addendum A are hereby incorporated into this Agreement and the same shall govern and prevail over any conflicting terms and/or 
                conditions herein stated.” 
______ Certificate of Insurance (COI) for General Liability & Workers’ Compensation that meet these requirements: 
               COI must list the School Board of Clay County, Florida as an Additional Insured and Certificate Holder.  Insurer must be rated as A- or better. 

   General Liability = $1,000,000 Each Occurrence & $2,000,000 General Aggregate. 
   Auto Liability = $1,000,000 Combined Single Limit ($5,000,000 for Charter Buses). 
  Workers’ Compensation = $100,000 Minimum 

[If exempt from Workers’ Compensation Insurance, vendor/contractor must sign a Release and Hold Harmless Form.  If not exempt, vendor/contractor 
must provide Workers’ Compensation coverage]. 

______ State of Florida Workers Comp Exemption (https://apps.fldfs.com/bocexempt/) (If Applicable) 
 
 

______ Release and Hold Harmless (If Applicable) 
 

 **AREA BELOW FOR DISTRICT PERSONNEL ONLY ** 
CONTRACT REVIEWED BY: COMMENTS BELOW BY REVIEWING DEPARTMENT 

Purchasing Department    

Review Date 

_______________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________ 

School Board Attorney   

Review Date 

_______________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________ 

Other Dept. as Necessary 

Review Date 

_______________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________________ 

PENDING STATUS:  YES    NO IF YES, HIGHLIGHTED COMMENTS ABOVE MUST BE CORRECTED BY INITIATOR 

FINAL STATUS  DATE:______________________ 

CONTRACT REVIEW 

Contracts 220123 & 230028 expy 7/31/26

240142

No Purchasing Requirements

Purchasing attached a copy of Contract 220123 & Contract 230028 - see pages 14-68

February 22, 2024

Boys and Girls Clubs of Northeast Florida

Sharing Security and Privacy Agreement

Zero Cost To District

Zero Cost To District

XXX

Approved by ITS 2/22/2024 - Ethan Caren

Treasure Pickett 904-336-6919

K-12 9007

2 Years Every 2 Years

XX

By Elaine at 3:48 pm, Feb 22, 2024

By Bertha Staefe at 4:20 pm, Mar 04, 2024

JPS

4/11/24

Approved. MOU changes acceptable

Page 134 of 564

DRAFT



PUR 1-3501 E. 10/05/2026   Contract Review Process for ALL Contracts, September 2022, SBAO (web) 

CONTRACT REVIEW PROCESS FOR “ALL” CONTRACTS 
 

Step 1: Contract Initiator and Vendor prepare draft contract 
     (School Board Attorney Office (SBAO) Template Contracts available on SBAO webpage are strongly encouraged) 

Step 2: Complete Contract Review Form, attach Required Documents to include the UNSIGNED Contract by the District / School. 
             

Step 3: If Funded by Budgeted Funds, submit the Contract Review Package to the Purchasing Department. 
    Purchasing will begin the contract review process and submit the contract to the SBAO for review. SBAO may reach out to 
    Initiator and/or other Departments (Risk, IT,) with questions or concerns and will assist with contract revisions.  SBAO 
    will send the Contract Review Package back to the Purchasing Department for final processing and the return to Initiator. 

    Purchasing will log “District” Contracts (Cost/No Cost) on Contract Review Log and save copy of the Contract Review 
    Package PLUS the Final Signed Contract you’ve return to Purchasing in the Contract Review Team Drive.  

Step 5: The Initiator is responsible for finalizing the Contract which includes: 
    Addressing Comments/Revisions, Obtaining Required Signatures, Send District Final Signed Contract to Purchasing OR 
    Retain Internal Accounts Final Signed Contract at School per School Board Record Policy. 
    If there is a Cost associated with Contract, the Initiator must work with their Bookkeeper to finalize the Purchasing Process. 

 Budgeted Funds require a District Purchase Order.   Internal Accounts require an IA Purchase Order. 

Step 4:  If Funded by Internal Account (IA), submit the Contract Review Package directly to SBAO. 
   Email:  contractreview@myoneclay.net 

    The SBAO will begin the contract review process and return it directly to Initiator 

For Contracts using Budgeted Funds or For No Cost / Master (County Wide) Contracts: 
Initiator submits Contract Review Package to Purchasing Department - See Step 3 

For Contracts using Internal Funds Individual to each School: 
Initiator submits Contract Review Package direct to SBAO - See Step 4 

A contract is defined as an agreement between two or more parties that is intended to have legal effect. This may include MOUs, 
Interlocal Agreements, Service Agreements and Contracts.  Contracts document the mutual understanding between the parties as to 
the terms and conditions of their agreement, contain mutual obligations, and clearly state the agreement's consideration. The term 
consideration includes the cost of the services and/or products to be provided by second party (vendor or service provider) and any 
non-monetary performance. No school, department, or other organizational unit has authority to contract in its own name. All Board 
contracts must be made in the legal name of the Board, "The School Board of Clay County, Florida". The School or Department may 
extend this name to include the school or department as follows, "The School Board of Clay County, Florida o/b/o ________________ 
(insert the school or department name)" where o/b/o means "on behalf of". 

All contracts shall be reviewed and approved by the School Board Attorney and/or the Supervisor of Purchasing 
to ensure legality, compliance with Board policy, and to ensure the Board interests are protected before the 
authorized signatory may execute the contract. 

All contracts having a value of $100,000 or more shall be authorized by the Board at a regular or special meeting and signed by the 
Board Chairman.  All approved contracts having a value of less than $100,000 may be executed by the Superintendent or appropriate 
District administrator based on the value of the contract.  

1. All approved contracts having a value of $50,000 or more, but less than $100,000 shall be signed by the Superintendent, or
the   person who has been designated, in writing by the Superintendent, as the Superintendent’s Designee at the time of the
contract signing. All contracts executed pursuant to this subparagraph shall be reported to the School Board in a separate
entry as part of the monthly financial report.

2. All approved contracts having a value of $25,000 or more, but less than $50,000, shall be signed by the Superintendent, or
the Assistant Superintendent for Business Affairs.

3. All approved contracts having a value of less than $25,000 and contracts of any value described in Board Authorized
Contracts above that are exempt from the requirement for Board approval, may be signed by the Superintendent, or the
Assistant Superintendent for their Division, or Chief Officers, or Directors, or Principals.

4. The Superintendent is authorized to approve contract amendments or change orders for the purchase of commodities and
services up to the amount of ten (10) percent or $50,000, whichever is less, of the original contract amount that was
previously approved by the Board.

Employees who enter into agreements without authority may be personally liable for such agreements, whether oral or written. 

For assistance with legal-related matters, please visit the School Board Attorney’s Office (“SBAO”) webpage or call 904-336-6507 
For assistance with insurance-related matters, please visit the Business Affairs - Risk Management webpage or call 904-336-6745 
For assistance with District Purchasing, please visit the Business Affairs - Purchasing webpage or call 904-336-6736 

Page 135 of 564

DRAFT



SHARING SECURITY AND PRIVACY AGREEMENT BETWEEN
THE SCHOOL BOARD OF CLAY COUNTY, FLORIDA

AND
BOYS & GIRLS CLUBS OF NORTHEAST FLORIDA

This Data Sharing Security and Privacy Agreement ("Agreement") is made by and
between THE SCHOOL BOARD OF CLAY COUNTY, FLORIDA, a political subdivision of
the State of Florida, located at 900 Walnut Street, Green Cove Springs, Florida, 32043
(“CCDS”), and BOYS & GIRLS CLUBS OF NORTHEAST FLORIDA, a Florida not for
profit corporation, located at 10 S Newnan Street, 2nd Floor, Jacksonville, Florida, 32202,
("BGC"). CCDS and BGC may be referred to herein as "Party."

RECITALS

WHEREAS, on or about August 1, 2022, CCDS and BGC entered into a Memorandum
of Understanding regarding the establishment and operation of a 21st Community Learning
Center Program Boys & Girls Club. CCDS has seven (7) BGC programs known as Clay High
School, Grove Park Elementary School, Montclair Elementary School, Orange Park High
School, Orange Park Jr. High School, Keystone Heights Junior/Senior High School and
Wilkinson Junior High School in Clay County, Florida;

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Memorandum of Understanding, BGC provides student
supports including a range of academic support programs, and family and community
engagement services, while participating in a collaborative leadership along with fellow core
partners within the Boys & Girls Clubs of Northeast Florida network;

WHEREAS, CCDS and BGC have a common desire to share data in order to evaluate the
efficacy of the 21st Community Learning Center Program school as an effective educational
delivery mode.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties agree, pursuant to the Family Educational Rights and Privacy
Act ("FERPA"), set forth in 20 U.S.C. §12329, and its regulations at Part 99 of Title 34 of the
Code of Federal Regulations ("CFR"), as amended, as follows:

1. TERM AND TERMINATION

1.1 Any Party may terminate its participation in this Agreement with or without cause.
A Notice of Termination shall be provided to the other Party at least sixty (60) days prior to the
effective date of termination.

Page 136 of 564

DRAFT



1.2 CCDS may terminate this Agreement immediately due to negligence, abuse of
confidentiality restrictions, or any material violation of this Agreement by BGC. BGC may
terminate this Agreement immediately due to any material violation of this Agreement by CCDS.

2. COMPENSATION

There is no monetary compensation set forth under this Agreement. The Parties will each
bear their own costs and expenses relating to execution of their respective obligations and
responsibilities as set forth in this Agreement.

3. DEFINITIONS AND ABBREVIATIONS

3.1 "Confidential Information" means any information disclosed by one Party to the
other during the course of this Agreement, which is not generally known to the public in the form
provided, and shall include PII (as defined herein).

3.2 "Disclose," "disclosure," or "re-disclosure" means to permit access to or the
release, transfer, or other communication of PII (as defined herein) contained in education
records by any means, including oral, written, or electronic means, to any party except the party
identified as the party that provided or created the record. See 34 CFR §99.3.

3.3 "Education records" means records that are directly related to a student and
maintained by an educational agency or institution or by a party acting for the agency or
institution. See 34 CFR §99.3.

3.4 "FERPA" means the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act, 20 U.S.C.
§12329, and its implementing regulations enacted at 34 CFR §99, and Sections 1001.41 and
1002.22, Florida Statutes, as they relate to the release of student information.

3.5 "Personally Identifiable Information" ("PII") has the same meaning as under
FERPA at 34 CFR § 99.3.

4. PURPOSE OF THE DISCLOSURE

4.1 BGC uses data in partnership with CCDS in the legitimate educational interest of
students to improve instruction and administer student aid programs by reviewing student-level
data to identify which students need supports, to determine what supports are needed and to
initiate or modify those supports in response to data, aligning with the requirements listed in 34
C.F.R.
§99.31 of the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA). BGC shall administer the
"Efforts to Outcomes" database for the collection of services and outcomes for students within
CCDS community partnership schools in order to continually improve student services which
meaningfully contribute to student success.

4.2 For purposes of this Agreement, BGC shall function as an agent of the CCDS only
with regard to accessing and maintaining pupil record information necessary for BGC's

Page 137 of 564

DRAFT



performance. BGC agrees to the following conditions, as required by 20 U.S.C. §12329 and 34
C.F.R. §99.31(FERPA): (1) BGC is under the direct control of the agency or institution with
respect to the use and maintenance of education records; and (2) BGC is subject to the
requirements of 34 C.F.R. §99.33(a) governing the use and re-disclosure of personally
identifiable information from education records.

4.3 BGC shall comply with all requirements of 34 C.F.R. §99.31(a)(6). BGC shall
conduct its analysis in a manner that does not permit personal identification of parents and
students by anyone other than representatives of BGC authorized by this Agreement who have a
legitimate educational interest in the information for purposes of this Agreement. For the
purposes of auditing or evaluating BGC's federal or state supported program, BGC Year shall
comply with 34
C.F.R. §§99.31(a) and 99.35.

5. JOINT OBLIGATIONS OF THE PARTIES

5.1 CCDS and BGC shall comply with the provisions of FERPA in all respects.
Nothing in this Agreement may be construed to allow any Party to this Agreement to maintain,
use, disclose, redisclose or share PII in a manner not allowed by federal law, regulation, or this
Agreement.

5.2 CCDS and BGC shall each identify at least one point of contact/data custodian
from their respective organizations who shall be responsible for processing and responding to
data requests and general inquiries from the other Party. Upon signing of this Agreement, both
Parties will exchange in writing the name, mailing address, email address, and telephone number
of their point of contact/data custodian, which must be updated from time to time, as applicable.

5.3 BGC point of contact:

Lendward Griffin (LendwardG@BGCNF.org)
Sr. Director of 21st Century Clubs
Contact Number: 904.913.8100
Address: 10 S Newnan Street, 2nd Floor
Jacksonville, Florida 32202

CCDS point of contact:

_________________________
_________________________
Contact Number: __________
Address: _________________
_________________________

Page 138 of 564

DRAFT



6. RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE SCHOOL BOARD OF CLAY COUNTY,
FLORIDA (CCDS)

CCDS will share the requested data with BGC, but only for purposes of BGC conducting the
analysis as described in Section 4 of this Agreement. CCDS will disclose/ redisclose only those
specific data elements required to complete the analysis. Data will be disclosed to BGC through
the CCDS Point of Contact identified in Section 5.

6.1 CCDS acknowledges that it must comply with the Protection of Pupil Rights
Amendment (20 U.S.C. § 1232h). CCDS is solely responsible for ensuring that any survey,
analysis, or evaluation provided to its students as part of the analysis defined in Section 4 of this
Agreement does not ask students to respond in any manner that reveals information concerning:
(1) political affiliations or beliefs of the student or the student's family; (2) mental or
psychological problems of the student or the student's family; (3) sex behavior or attitudes; (4)
illegal, anti-social, self-incriminating, or demeaning behavior; (5) critical appraisals of other
individuals with whom respondents have close family relationships; (6) legally recognized
privileged or analogous relationships, such as those of lawyers, physicians, or ministers; (7)
religious practices, affiliations, or beliefs of the student or student's parent; or (8) income.

6.2 As part of this Agreement, CCDS will, transmit the following data to BGC if the
data exists as a record in the CCDS Student Information System:

Identifiable, student-level information for BGC in the schools it will serve Florida
Student ID: (New Enrollment to Program)
Basic demographic data including:

Date of Birth
Race Ethnicity
Assigned Grade
Enrollment Data, including disenrollment date and reason.

Name of School, prior level school to enrollment if known or applicable
Reading, Science, and Math Grade levels; Q1, Q2, Q3 and Q4
Economic Status
ELL, ESE
Standardized test scores (FSA, PSAT, SAT, ACT, EOC); Q4
Algebra EOC: Q4
Geometry EOC; Q4
Clay Standard Assessments, Achieve 3000, Pre-Post, IREADY
Self-report survey data related to adolescent risk behavior (e.g., such as those
collected on the CDC Youth Risk Behavior Survey)
Total number of instructional days
Teacher and staff incident reports of violence indicators.
Behavior Referrals and Incident Reports - Monthly

Page 139 of 564

DRAFT



Daily attendance; Q1, Q2, Q3 and Q4
Data regarding the number of students who are eligible for free or reduced priced
meals

7. RESPONSIBILITIES OF BGC

7.1 BGC agrees to use PII shared under this Agreement for no purpose other than to
conduct the analysis described in Section 4 of this Agreement. CCDS approval to utilize PII from
education records pursuant to Section 4 of this Agreement does not confer approval to use it for
any other purpose.

7.2 BGC agrees to only share or redisclose PII received under this Agreement with The
Florida Department of Education’s EZReports Afterschool Management Software. BGC agrees
to not share or redisclose PII any other individual, institution, organization, entity, or government
without the prior written approval of CCDS, except as permitted by this Agreement or by
FERPA (e.g., upon obtaining prior consent of the parent or eligible student), or as required by a
valid subpoena, court order, or administrative directive. BGC is not prohibited from sharing
aggregate or deidentified student data if BGC follows appropriate disclosure avoidance policies.

7.3 BGC agrees to maintain PII obtained pursuant to this Agreement separate from all
other data files that possesses and not to copy, reproduce, or transmit data obtained pursuant to
this Agreement, except as necessary to complete the analysis described in Section 4 of this
Agreement, or as necessary for established data management and backup processes.
Transmission of all FERPA-protected data must be by secure electronic systems and/or networks.
All copies of data of any type, including any modifications or additions to data from any source
that contains PII, are subject to the provisions of this Agreement in the same manner as the
original data.

7.4 The ability to access or maintain PII under this Agreement will not under any
circumstances transfer from BGC or be assigned by BGC to any other individual, institution,
organization, government, or entity, except as permitted by this Agreement or upon obtaining
prior written consent of the parent or eligible student.

7.5 Under no circumstance shall BGC become an owner, proprietor, or custodian of
any PII provided by CCDS under this Agreement. BGC may not publish the results of its
analysis or other outcomes stemming from work performed under this Agreement in a way that
identifies CCDS, individual students or their parents, either directly or indirectly, absent their
prior written consent.

7.6 BGC agrees to establish procedures and systems to process, store, and/or transmit
PII under this Agreement in a secure manner that prevents unauthorized disclosure of the PII,
including the interception, diversion, duplication, or other unauthorized access to said PII.

7.7 BGC will permit CCDS to review all procedures set established pursuant to
subsection 7.6 of this Agreement, will provide written assurances to CCDS, regarding the use of
PII transmitted under this Agreement to ensure that CCDS has appropriate policies and

Page 140 of 564

DRAFT



procedures in place to protect the PII and to enable CCDS to confirm that BGC disclosure of PII
is authorized by this Agreement.

7.8 In accordance with section 6.2, any survey, analysis, or evaluation provided to
students as part of the analysis defined in Section 4 of this Agreement must be approved by the
Point of Contact defined in section 5 prior to utilization.

8. DATA SECURITY

BGC agrees to protect and maintain PII with security measures that include maintaining
secure environments that are properly patched and up to date with all appropriate security
updates implemented on a reasonably timely basis as designated by a relevant authority,
including but not limited to, Microsoft notifications. Likewise, BGC agrees to conform to the
following measures to protect and secure PII:

8.1 Data Transmission, Storage. Backup, and Recovery. BGC agrees that any and all
transmission or exchange of system application data with CCDS and/or any other parties shall
take place via secure means, e.g. HTTPS, FTPS, SFTP, or equivalent. BGC agrees that any and
all CCDS data will be stored, processed, and maintained solely on designated servers and that no
CCDS data at any time will be processed on or transferred to any portable or laptop computing
device or any portable storage medium, unless that storage medium is in use as part of BGC's
designated backup and recovery processes. All servers, storage, backups, and network paths
utilized in the delivery of service shall be contained within the states, districts, and territories of
the United States, unless specifically agreed to in writing by a CCDS officer with designated
data, security or signature authority. BGC agrees to store all CCDS backup data stored as part of
its backup and recovery processes in encrypted form, using no less than 128 bit key.

8.2 Data Re-Use. BGC agrees that any and all PII disclosed under this Agreement shall
be used expressly and solely for the purposes enumerated herein. PII shall not be distributed,
repurposed, or shared across other applications, environments, or business units of BGC except
as permitted in this Agreement. As required by Federal law, BGC agrees that no PII shall be
revealed, transmitted, exchanged, or otherwise passed to other contractors or interested parties
except as permitted by this Agreement, by the FERPA permitted disclosures set forth at 34 CFR
§§ 99.31(a)(1), 99.31(a)(6), and 99.31(a)(12), or on a case-by-case basis as specifically agreed to
in writing by a CCDS officer with designated data, security, or signature authority.

8.3 End of Agreement Data Handling. BGC agrees that, upon termination of this
Agreement, it shall return all PII to CCDS in a useable electronic form, and erase, destroy, and
render unreadable all PII stored on BGC computers, servers, information storage/retrieval
devices and systems of any kind or nature whatsoever, in its entirety in a manner that prevents its
physical reconstruction through the use of commonly available file restoration utilities, and
certify in writing that these actions have been completed within thirty (30) days after the
termination of this Agreement or within seven (7) days after the request of an agent of CCDS,
whichever shall come first. Notwithstanding the foregoing, BGC shall be permitted to retain an
archival copy of the PII solely for purposes of satisfying the data retention requirements of
third-party publishers of reports

Page 141 of 564

DRAFT



or other articles in connection with the analysis defined in Section 4 of this Agreement, or as may
be required by law.

8.4 Data Breach. BGC agrees to comply with Florida Statutes §501.171 and all
applicable laws that require the notification of individuals in the event of unauthorized release of
PII or other event requiring notification by law. In the event of a material breach of any of BGC's
security obligations under this Agreement or other event requiring notification under applicable
law ("Notification Event"). BGC agrees to notify CCDS promptly and to provide reasonable
assistance to CCDS to inform individuals if required by applicable law, and to indemnify, hold
harmless, and defend CCDS and its trustees, officers, and employees from and against any
claims, damages, or other harm related to such Notification Event.

8.5 Mandatory Disclosure of PII. If BGC becomes compelled by law or regulation
(including securities laws), or subpoena, court order, or other administrative directive to disclose
any PII related to CCDS students, BGC will provide CCDS with prompt written notice, to the
extent permitted by law, so that CCDS may seek an appropriate protective order or other remedy.
If a remedy acceptable to CCDS is not obtained by the date that BGC must comply with the
request, BGC will furnish only that portion of the PII that it is legally required to furnish, and
BGC shall require any recipient of the PII to exercise commercially reasonable efforts to keep
the PII confidential, to the extent permitted by law.

8.6 Remedies for Disclosure of Confidential Information. The Parties acknowledge
that unauthorized disclosure or use of PII or other confidential education records may irreparably
damage CCDS in such a way that adequate compensation could not be obtained from damages in
an action at law. Accordingly, the actual or threatened unauthorized disclosure or use of any PII
or education records shall give CCDS the right to seek injunctive relief restraining such
unauthorized disclosure or use, in addition to any other remedy otherwise available (including
reasonable attorneys' fees). BGC hereby waives the posting of a bond with respect to any action
for injunctive relief. BGC further grants CCDS the right, but not the obligation, to enforce these
provisions in BGC's name against any of BGC's employees, officers, board members, owners,
representatives, agents, contractors, and subcontractors violating the above provisions.

9. GOVERNING LAW AND REMEDIES

9.1 This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Florida. Any and all
legal action arising out of the Agreement will have its venue in the courts of the State of Florida
located in Clay County and the Agreement will be interpreted according to the laws of Florida
and/or federal law where appropriate. No remedy herein conferred upon any Party is intended to
be exclusive of any other remedy, and each and every other remedy given hereunder or now or
hereafter existing at law or in equity or by statute or otherwise. No single or partial exercise by
any Party of any right, power, or remedy hereunder shall preclude any other or further exercise
thereof.

9.2 If any legal action or other proceeding is brought for the enforcement of this
Agreement, or because of a dispute, breach, default, or misrepresentation in connection with any
provision of this Agreement, the successful or prevailing Party or Parties shall be entitled to

Page 142 of 564

DRAFT



recover court costs, and expenses recognized as taxable court costs pursuant to Florida Statutes
and/or The Florida Rules of Civil Procedure (including fees, costs, and expenses incident to
appeals) incurred in that action or proceeding, in addition to any other relief to which such Party
or Parties may be entitled.

10. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR RELATIONSHIP

10.1 BGC is, and shall be, in the performance of all activities under this Agreement, an
independent contractor, and not an employee, agent, or servant of CCDS. All persons engaged in
the analysis pursuant to Section 4 of this Agreement shall at all times, and in all places, be
subject to BGC's sole direction, supervision, and control. BGC shall exercise control over the
means and manner in which it and its employees perform pursuant to this Agreement, and in all
respects BGC's relationship and the relationship of its employees to CCDS shall be that of an
independent contractor and not as employees or agents of CCDS. BGC does not have the power
or authority to bind CCDS in any promise, agreement, or representation.

10.2 Nothing contained herein, other than the limited “agency” language in subsection
4.2 of this Agreement, shall be deemed to create an association, partnership, joint venture, or
relationship of principal and agent or master and servant among the Parties or any affiliate
thereof, or to provide any Party hereto with the right, power, or authority whether expressed or
implied, to create any such duty or obligation on behalf of any other Party.

11. INSURANCE

At its sole expense, during the term of this Agreement BGC shall maintain General and
Professional Liability insurance for any and all claims as a result of an action, lack of action,
error, or omission by BGC, its employees, agents, or subcontractors in an amount not less than
One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per claim. If such policy is written on a "claims-made" basis,
coverage shall remain in effect for three (3) years after the expiration or termination of this
Agreement and any of its extensions.

12. INDEMNIFICATION

12.1 Each party covenants and agrees at all times to save, hold, and keep harmless each
other party against any and all claims, demands, penalties, judgments, court costs, reasonable
attorney's fees, and liability of every kind and nature whatsoever to the extent permitted by law
arising out of or in any way connected or arising out of a party's performance of this Agreement.
However, this indemnification subsection shall not operate to release any party from liability for
their own negligence or the negligence of their officers, agents or employees or the duty to
indemnify another party from said negligence.

12.2 Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed or interpreted to increase the scope or
dollar limit of the CCDS’s liability beyond that which is set forth in section 768.28, Florida
Statutes. Nor shall any such language be construed or interpreted to waive the CCDS’s sovereign
immunity from suit, or to require the CCDS to indemnify BGC or any other person, corporation
or legal entity of any kind or nature whatsoever for injury or loss resulting from any acts or

Page 143 of 564

DRAFT



omissions other than those which arise from the actionable negligence of the CCSS or its
employees. The Board expressly reserves all other protections and privileges related to its
sovereign immunity.

13. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS

Neither CCDS nor BGC shall assign, sublet, convey, or transfer its interest in this
Agreement. Nothing herein shall be construed as creating any rights or benefits hereunder to
anyone other than CCDS and BGC.

14. NON-EXCLUSIVE AGREEMENT

The Parties understand and agree this Agreement is a non-exclusive agreement and the
Parties hereto may participate in other comparable services to and from any other person or
entity.

15. SEVERABILITY

If any term or provision of this Agreement, or the application thereof to any person or
circumstances shall, to any extent, be held invalid or unenforceable, such term or provision shall
be stricken and deemed unenforceable and every other term and provision of this Agreement
shall be deemed valid and enforceable to the extent permitted by law.

16. ENTIRETY OF AGREEMENT

CCDS and BGC agree that this Agreement, and any documents made a part thereof, set
forth the entire agreement between the Parties and that there are no promises or understandings
other than those stated herein. None of the provisions, terms, and conditions contained in this
Agreement may be added to, modified, superseded, or otherwise altered, except by written
instrument executed by the Parties hereto.

17. NON-WAIVER

The failure of either Party to exercise or delay in exercising any right, power, or privilege
provided for hereunder shall not be deemed a waiver thereof; nor shall any single or partial
exercise of any such right, power, or privilege preclude any other. or further exercise thereof, or
the exercise of any other right, power, or privilege under this Agreement. No Party shall be
deemed to have waived a right, power, or privilege provided for herein, unless such waiver is in
writing and signed by the waiving Party.

18. FORCE MAJEURE

Nonperformance of either Party shall be ·excused to the extent that performance is
rendered impossible by strike, fire, flood, pandemic, Acts of God, governmental acts or orders or
restrictions, failure of suppliers, or any other reason where failure to perform is beyond the
reasonable control of the non-performing party.

Page 144 of 564

DRAFT



19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT

Each Party has participated in negotiating and drafting this Agreement, so if an ambiguity or a
question of intent or interpretation arises, this Agreement is to be construed as if the Parties had
drafted it jointly, as opposed to being construed against a Party because it was responsible for
drafting one or more provisions of this Agreement.

20. TERM, TERMINATION AND EXTENSION OF AGREEMENT

This Agreement shall be for a term of two (2) years, commencing on the date on which
the last signature is affixed. Upon written agreement of the parties, executed at least thirty (30)
days prior to expiration, the Agreement may be extended three times for periods of one (1) year
each. The maximum term of this Agreement shall be five (5) years, including the original term
and the one year extensions, after which the Agreement must be reviewed for currency and
re-executed. Either party may terminate this Agreement immediately for cause in the event that
the other party acts in violation of any state or federal law, regulation or rule, including but not
limited to FERPA, or willfully or negligently abuses the confidentiality restrictions of this
Agreement or is in material violation of any term of this Agreement. Either party shall have the
absolute right to terminate this agreement with or without cause with sixty (60) days' prior
written notice to the other party. However, any unilateral termination of this Agreement by a
party shall be effective only at the end of the specific academic period during which the written
notice was given if the notice is given more than sixty (60) days from the end of the academic
period

21. NOTICE

All correspondence, formal notices, proposed changes, and determinations between the
Parties hereto including, but not limited to, changes to the notification addresses set forth below,
shall be in writing and shall be sufficient if mailed by United States mail, postage prepaid, to the
Parties at the contact information listed below:

Name: John Steinmetz and/or Jeremiah Blocker
Title: Attorney for the School Board of Clay County, Florida
Address: 900 Walnut Street

Green Cove Springs, Florida 32043
Email: schoolboardattorney@myoneclay.net
Phone: 904-336-6507

Name: Mr. Lendward Griffin
Title: Sr. Director of 21st Century Clubs

Boys & Girls Clubs of Northeast Florida
Address: 10 S Newnan Street

Jacksonville, Florida 32203
Email: LendwardG@BGCNF.org
Phone: 904.913.8100

Page 145 of 564

DRAFT



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned, in their representative capacities, acknowledge that
they have read this Agreement in full and have had an opportunity to review it; that they understand
and agree to each of the foregoing provisions; and that they are duly authorized to sign the
Agreement and have executed this Agreement on the dates written below.

BOYS & GIRLS CLUBS OF NORTHEAST FLORIDA

Printed Name:

Title:

Date:

THE SCHOOL BOARD OF CLAY COUNTY, FLORIDA

Printed Name:

Title:

Date:

Ashley Gilhousen

Board Chair

Page 146 of 564

DRAFT



Page 147 of 564

DRAFT



Page 148 of 564

DRAFT



Page 149 of 564

DRAFT



Page 150 of 564

DRAFT



Page 151 of 564

DRAFT



Page 152 of 564

DRAFT



Page 153 of 564

DRAFT



Page 154 of 564

DRAFT



Page 155 of 564

DRAFT



Page 156 of 564

DRAFT



Page 157 of 564

DRAFT



Page 158 of 564

DRAFT



Page 159 of 564

DRAFT



Page 160 of 564

DRAFT



Page 161 of 564

DRAFT



Page 162 of 564

DRAFT



Page 163 of 564

DRAFT



Page 164 of 564

DRAFT



Page 165 of 564

DRAFT



Page 166 of 564

DRAFT



Page 167 of 564

DRAFT



Page 168 of 564

DRAFT



Page 169 of 564

DRAFT



Page 170 of 564

DRAFT



Page 171 of 564

DRAFT



Page 172 of 564

DRAFT



Page 173 of 564

DRAFT



Page 174 of 564

DRAFT



Page 175 of 564

DRAFT



Page 176 of 564

DRAFT



Page 177 of 564

DRAFT



Page 178 of 564

DRAFT



Page 179 of 564

DRAFT



Page 180 of 564

DRAFT



Page 181 of 564

DRAFT



Page 182 of 564

DRAFT



Page 183 of 564

DRAFT



Page 184 of 564

DRAFT



Page 185 of 564

DRAFT



Page 186 of 564

DRAFT



Page 187 of 564

DRAFT



Page 188 of 564

DRAFT



Page 189 of 564

DRAFT



Page 190 of 564

DRAFT



Page 191 of 564

DRAFT



Page 192 of 564

DRAFT



Page 193 of 564

DRAFT



Page 194 of 564

DRAFT



Page 195 of 564

DRAFT



Page 196 of 564

DRAFT



Page 197 of 564

DRAFT



Page 198 of 564

DRAFT



Page 199 of 564

DRAFT



Page 200 of 564

DRAFT



Page 201 of 564

DRAFT



PUR 1-3501 E. 10/05/2026   Contract Review Process for ALL Contracts, September 2022, SBAO (web) 

CONTRACT REVIEW PROCESS FOR “ALL” CONTRACTS 
 

Step 1: Contract Initiator and Vendor prepare draft contract 
     (School Board Attorney Office (SBAO) Template Contracts available on SBAO webpage are strongly encouraged) 

Step 2: Complete Contract Review Form, attach Required Documents to include the UNSIGNED Contract by the District / School. 
             

Step 3: If Funded by Budgeted Funds, submit the Contract Review Package to the Purchasing Department. 
    Purchasing will begin the contract review process and submit the contract to the SBAO for review. SBAO may reach out to 
    Initiator and/or other Departments (Risk, IT,) with questions or concerns and will assist with contract revisions.  SBAO 
    will send the Contract Review Package back to the Purchasing Department for final processing and the return to Initiator. 

    Purchasing will log “District” Contracts (Cost/No Cost) on Contract Review Log and save copy of the Contract Review 
    Package PLUS the Final Signed Contract you’ve return to Purchasing in the Contract Review Team Drive.  

Step 5: The Initiator is responsible for finalizing the Contract which includes: 
    Addressing Comments/Revisions, Obtaining Required Signatures, Send District Final Signed Contract to Purchasing OR 
    Retain Internal Accounts Final Signed Contract at School per School Board Record Policy. 
    If there is a Cost associated with Contract, the Initiator must work with their Bookkeeper to finalize the Purchasing Process. 

 Budgeted Funds require a District Purchase Order.   Internal Accounts require an IA Purchase Order. 

Step 4:  If Funded by Internal Account (IA), submit the Contract Review Package directly to SBAO. 
   Email:  contractreview@myoneclay.net 

    The SBAO will begin the contract review process and return it directly to Initiator 

For Contracts using Budgeted Funds or For No Cost / Master (County Wide) Contracts: 
Initiator submits Contract Review Package to Purchasing Department - See Step 3 

For Contracts using Internal Funds Individual to each School: 
Initiator submits Contract Review Package direct to SBAO - See Step 4 

A contract is defined as an agreement between two or more parties that is intended to have legal effect. This may include MOUs, 
Interlocal Agreements, Service Agreements and Contracts.  Contracts document the mutual understanding between the parties as to 
the terms and conditions of their agreement, contain mutual obligations, and clearly state the agreement's consideration. The term 
consideration includes the cost of the services and/or products to be provided by second party (vendor or service provider) and any 
non-monetary performance. No school, department, or other organizational unit has authority to contract in its own name. All Board 
contracts must be made in the legal name of the Board, "The School Board of Clay County, Florida". The School or Department may 
extend this name to include the school or department as follows, "The School Board of Clay County, Florida o/b/o ________________ 
(insert the school or department name)" where o/b/o means "on behalf of". 

All contracts shall be reviewed and approved by the School Board Attorney and/or the Supervisor of Purchasing 
to ensure legality, compliance with Board policy, and to ensure the Board interests are protected before the 
authorized signatory may execute the contract. 

All contracts having a value of $100,000 or more shall be authorized by the Board at a regular or special meeting and signed by the 
Board Chairman.  All approved contracts having a value of less than $100,000 may be executed by the Superintendent or appropriate 
District administrator based on the value of the contract.  

1. All approved contracts having a value of $50,000 or more, but less than $100,000 shall be signed by the Superintendent, or
the   person who has been designated, in writing by the Superintendent, as the Superintendent’s Designee at the time of the
contract signing. All contracts executed pursuant to this subparagraph shall be reported to the School Board in a separate
entry as part of the monthly financial report.

2. All approved contracts having a value of $25,000 or more, but less than $50,000, shall be signed by the Superintendent, or
the Assistant Superintendent for Business Affairs.

3. All approved contracts having a value of less than $25,000 and contracts of any value described in Board Authorized
Contracts above that are exempt from the requirement for Board approval, may be signed by the Superintendent, or the
Assistant Superintendent for their Division, or Chief Officers, or Directors, or Principals.

4. The Superintendent is authorized to approve contract amendments or change orders for the purchase of commodities and
services up to the amount of ten (10) percent or $50,000, whichever is less, of the original contract amount that was
previously approved by the Board.

Employees who enter into agreements without authority may be personally liable for such agreements, whether oral or written. 

For assistance with legal-related matters, please visit the School Board Attorney’s Office (“SBAO”) webpage or call 904-336-6507 
For assistance with insurance-related matters, please visit the Business Affairs - Risk Management webpage or call 904-336-6745 
For assistance with District Purchasing, please visit the Business Affairs - Purchasing webpage or call 904-336-6736 

Page 202 of 564

DRAFT



SHARING SECURITY AND PRIVACY AGREEMENT BETWEEN
THE SCHOOL BOARD OF CLAY COUNTY, FLORIDA

AND
BOYS & GIRLS CLUBS OF NORTHEAST FLORIDA

This Data Sharing Security and Privacy Agreement ("Agreement") is made by and
between THE SCHOOL BOARD OF CLAY COUNTY, FLORIDA, a political subdivision of
the State of Florida, located at 900 Walnut Street, Green Cove Springs, Florida, 32043
(“CCDS”), and BOYS & GIRLS CLUBS OF NORTHEAST FLORIDA, a Florida not for
profit corporation, located at 10 S Newnan Street, 2nd Floor, Jacksonville, Florida, 32202,
("BGC"). CCDS and BGC may be referred to herein as "Party."

RECITALS

WHEREAS, on or about August 1, 2022, CCDS and BGC entered into a Memorandum
of Understanding regarding the establishment and operation of a 21st Community Learning
Center Program Boys & Girls Club. CCDS has seven (7) BGC programs known as Clay High
School, Grove Park Elementary School, Montclair Elementary School, Orange Park High
School, Orange Park Jr. High School, Keystone Heights Junior/Senior High School and
Wilkinson Junior High School in Clay County, Florida;

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Memorandum of Understanding, BGC provides student
supports including a range of academic support programs, and family and community
engagement services, while participating in a collaborative leadership along with fellow core
partners within the Boys & Girls Clubs of Northeast Florida network;

WHEREAS, CCDS and BGC have a common desire to share data in order to evaluate the
efficacy of the 21st Community Learning Center Program school as an effective educational
delivery mode.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties agree, pursuant to the Family Educational Rights and Privacy
Act ("FERPA"), set forth in 20 U.S.C. §12329, and its regulations at Part 99 of Title 34 of the
Code of Federal Regulations ("CFR"), as amended, as follows:

1. TERM AND TERMINATION

1.1 Any Party may terminate its participation in this Agreement with or without cause.
A Notice of Termination shall be provided to the other Party at least sixty (60) days prior to the
effective date of termination.

Page 203 of 564

DRAFT



1.2 CCDS may terminate this Agreement immediately due to negligence, abuse of
confidentiality restrictions, or any material violation of this Agreement by BGC. BGC may
terminate this Agreement immediately due to any material violation of this Agreement by CCDS.

2. COMPENSATION

There is no monetary compensation set forth under this Agreement. The Parties will each
bear their own costs and expenses relating to execution of their respective obligations and
responsibilities as set forth in this Agreement.

3. DEFINITIONS AND ABBREVIATIONS

3.1 "Confidential Information" means any information disclosed by one Party to the
other during the course of this Agreement, which is not generally known to the public in the form
provided, and shall include PII (as defined herein).

3.2 "Disclose," "disclosure," or "re-disclosure" means to permit access to or the
release, transfer, or other communication of PII (as defined herein) contained in education
records by any means, including oral, written, or electronic means, to any party except the party
identified as the party that provided or created the record. See 34 CFR §99.3.

3.3 "Education records" means records that are directly related to a student and
maintained by an educational agency or institution or by a party acting for the agency or
institution. See 34 CFR §99.3.

3.4 "FERPA" means the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act, 20 U.S.C.
§12329, and its implementing regulations enacted at 34 CFR §99, and Sections 1001.41 and
1002.22, Florida Statutes, as they relate to the release of student information.

3.5 "Personally Identifiable Information" ("PII") has the same meaning as under
FERPA at 34 CFR § 99.3.

4. PURPOSE OF THE DISCLOSURE

4.1 BGC uses data in partnership with CCDS in the legitimate educational interest of
students to improve instruction and administer student aid programs by reviewing student-level
data to identify which students need supports, to determine what supports are needed and to
initiate or modify those supports in response to data, aligning with the requirements listed in 34
C.F.R.
§99.31 of the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA). BGC shall administer the
"Efforts to Outcomes" database for the collection of services and outcomes for students within
CCDS community partnership schools in order to continually improve student services which
meaningfully contribute to student success.

4.2 For purposes of this Agreement, BGC shall function as an agent of the CCDS only
with regard to accessing and maintaining pupil record information necessary for BGC's

Page 204 of 564

DRAFT



performance. BGC agrees to the following conditions, as required by 20 U.S.C. §12329 and 34
C.F.R. §99.31(FERPA): (1) BGC is under the direct control of the agency or institution with
respect to the use and maintenance of education records; and (2) BGC is subject to the
requirements of 34 C.F.R. §99.33(a) governing the use and re-disclosure of personally
identifiable information from education records.

4.3 BGC shall comply with all requirements of 34 C.F.R. §99.31(a)(6). BGC shall
conduct its analysis in a manner that does not permit personal identification of parents and
students by anyone other than representatives of BGC authorized by this Agreement who have a
legitimate educational interest in the information for purposes of this Agreement. For the
purposes of auditing or evaluating BGC's federal or state supported program, BGC Year shall
comply with 34
C.F.R. §§99.31(a) and 99.35.

5. JOINT OBLIGATIONS OF THE PARTIES

5.1 CCDS and BGC shall comply with the provisions of FERPA in all respects.
Nothing in this Agreement may be construed to allow any Party to this Agreement to maintain,
use, disclose, redisclose or share PII in a manner not allowed by federal law, regulation, or this
Agreement.

5.2 CCDS and BGC shall each identify at least one point of contact/data custodian
from their respective organizations who shall be responsible for processing and responding to
data requests and general inquiries from the other Party. Upon signing of this Agreement, both
Parties will exchange in writing the name, mailing address, email address, and telephone number
of their point of contact/data custodian, which must be updated from time to time, as applicable.

5.3 BGC point of contact:

Lendward Griffin (LendwardG@BGCNF.org)
Sr. Director of 21st Century Clubs
Contact Number: 904.913.8100
Address: 10 S Newnan Street, 2nd Floor
Jacksonville, Florida 32202

CCDS point of contact:

_________________________
_________________________
Contact Number: __________
Address: _________________
_________________________

Page 205 of 564

DRAFT



6. RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE SCHOOL BOARD OF CLAY COUNTY,
FLORIDA (CCDS)

CCDS will share the requested data with BGC, but only for purposes of BGC conducting the
analysis as described in Section 4 of this Agreement. CCDS will disclose/ redisclose only those
specific data elements required to complete the analysis. Data will be disclosed to BGC through
the CCDS Point of Contact identified in Section 5.

6.1 CCDS acknowledges that it must comply with the Protection of Pupil Rights
Amendment (20 U.S.C. § 1232h). CCDS is solely responsible for ensuring that any survey,
analysis, or evaluation provided to its students as part of the analysis defined in Section 4 of this
Agreement does not ask students to respond in any manner that reveals information concerning:
(1) political affiliations or beliefs of the student or the student's family; (2) mental or
psychological problems of the student or the student's family; (3) sex behavior or attitudes; (4)
illegal, anti-social, self-incriminating, or demeaning behavior; (5) critical appraisals of other
individuals with whom respondents have close family relationships; (6) legally recognized
privileged or analogous relationships, such as those of lawyers, physicians, or ministers; (7)
religious practices, affiliations, or beliefs of the student or student's parent; or (8) income.

6.2 As part of this Agreement, CCDS will, transmit the following data to BGC if the
data exists as a record in the CCDS Student Information System:

Identifiable, student-level information for BGC in the schools it will serve Florida
Student ID: (New Enrollment to Program)
Basic demographic data including:

Date of Birth
Race Ethnicity
Assigned Grade
Enrollment Data, including disenrollment date and reason.

Name of School, prior level school to enrollment if known or applicable
Reading, Science, and Math Grade levels; Q1, Q2, Q3 and Q4
Economic Status
ELL, ESE
Standardized test scores (FSA, PSAT, SAT, ACT, EOC); Q4
Algebra EOC: Q4
Geometry EOC; Q4
Clay Standard Assessments, Achieve 3000, Pre-Post, IREADY
Self-report survey data related to adolescent risk behavior (e.g., such as those
collected on the CDC Youth Risk Behavior Survey)
Total number of instructional days
Teacher and staff incident reports of violence indicators.
Behavior Referrals and Incident Reports - Monthly

Page 206 of 564

DRAFT



Daily attendance; Q1, Q2, Q3 and Q4
Data regarding the number of students who are eligible for free or reduced priced
meals

7. RESPONSIBILITIES OF BGC

7.1 BGC agrees to use PII shared under this Agreement for no purpose other than to
conduct the analysis described in Section 4 of this Agreement. CCDS approval to utilize PII from
education records pursuant to Section 4 of this Agreement does not confer approval to use it for
any other purpose.

7.2 BGC agrees to only share or redisclose PII received under this Agreement with The
Florida Department of Education’s EZReports Afterschool Management Software. BGC agrees
to not share or redisclose PII any other individual, institution, organization, entity, or government
without the prior written approval of CCDS, except as permitted by this Agreement or by
FERPA (e.g., upon obtaining prior consent of the parent or eligible student), or as required by a
valid subpoena, court order, or administrative directive. BGC is not prohibited from sharing
aggregate or deidentified student data if BGC follows appropriate disclosure avoidance policies.

7.3 BGC agrees to maintain PII obtained pursuant to this Agreement separate from all
other data files that possesses and not to copy, reproduce, or transmit data obtained pursuant to
this Agreement, except as necessary to complete the analysis described in Section 4 of this
Agreement, or as necessary for established data management and backup processes.
Transmission of all FERPA-protected data must be by secure electronic systems and/or networks.
All copies of data of any type, including any modifications or additions to data from any source
that contains PII, are subject to the provisions of this Agreement in the same manner as the
original data.

7.4 The ability to access or maintain PII under this Agreement will not under any
circumstances transfer from BGC or be assigned by BGC to any other individual, institution,
organization, government, or entity, except as permitted by this Agreement or upon obtaining
prior written consent of the parent or eligible student.

7.5 Under no circumstance shall BGC become an owner, proprietor, or custodian of
any PII provided by CCDS under this Agreement. BGC may not publish the results of its
analysis or other outcomes stemming from work performed under this Agreement in a way that
identifies CCDS, individual students or their parents, either directly or indirectly, absent their
prior written consent.

7.6 BGC agrees to establish procedures and systems to process, store, and/or transmit
PII under this Agreement in a secure manner that prevents unauthorized disclosure of the PII,
including the interception, diversion, duplication, or other unauthorized access to said PII.

7.7 BGC will permit CCDS to review all procedures set established pursuant to
subsection 7.6 of this Agreement, will provide written assurances to CCDS, regarding the use of
PII transmitted under this Agreement to ensure that CCDS has appropriate policies and

Page 207 of 564

DRAFT



procedures in place to protect the PII and to enable CCDS to confirm that BGC disclosure of PII
is authorized by this Agreement.

7.8 In accordance with section 6.2, any survey, analysis, or evaluation provided to
students as part of the analysis defined in Section 4 of this Agreement must be approved by the
Point of Contact defined in section 5 prior to utilization.

8. DATA SECURITY

BGC agrees to protect and maintain PII with security measures that include maintaining
secure environments that are properly patched and up to date with all appropriate security
updates implemented on a reasonably timely basis as designated by a relevant authority,
including but not limited to, Microsoft notifications. Likewise, BGC agrees to conform to the
following measures to protect and secure PII:

8.1 Data Transmission, Storage. Backup, and Recovery. BGC agrees that any and all
transmission or exchange of system application data with CCDS and/or any other parties shall
take place via secure means, e.g. HTTPS, FTPS, SFTP, or equivalent. BGC agrees that any and
all CCDS data will be stored, processed, and maintained solely on designated servers and that no
CCDS data at any time will be processed on or transferred to any portable or laptop computing
device or any portable storage medium, unless that storage medium is in use as part of BGC's
designated backup and recovery processes. All servers, storage, backups, and network paths
utilized in the delivery of service shall be contained within the states, districts, and territories of
the United States, unless specifically agreed to in writing by a CCDS officer with designated
data, security or signature authority. BGC agrees to store all CCDS backup data stored as part of
its backup and recovery processes in encrypted form, using no less than 128 bit key.

8.2 Data Re-Use. BGC agrees that any and all PII disclosed under this Agreement shall
be used expressly and solely for the purposes enumerated herein. PII shall not be distributed,
repurposed, or shared across other applications, environments, or business units of BGC except
as permitted in this Agreement. As required by Federal law, BGC agrees that no PII shall be
revealed, transmitted, exchanged, or otherwise passed to other contractors or interested parties
except as permitted by this Agreement, by the FERPA permitted disclosures set forth at 34 CFR
§§ 99.31(a)(1), 99.31(a)(6), and 99.31(a)(12), or on a case-by-case basis as specifically agreed to
in writing by a CCDS officer with designated data, security, or signature authority.

8.3 End of Agreement Data Handling. BGC agrees that, upon termination of this
Agreement, it shall return all PII to CCDS in a useable electronic form, and erase, destroy, and
render unreadable all PII stored on BGC computers, servers, information storage/retrieval
devices and systems of any kind or nature whatsoever, in its entirety in a manner that prevents its
physical reconstruction through the use of commonly available file restoration utilities, and
certify in writing that these actions have been completed within thirty (30) days after the
termination of this Agreement or within seven (7) days after the request of an agent of CCDS,
whichever shall come first. Notwithstanding the foregoing, BGC shall be permitted to retain an
archival copy of the PII solely for purposes of satisfying the data retention requirements of
third-party publishers of reports

Page 208 of 564

DRAFT



or other articles in connection with the analysis defined in Section 4 of this Agreement, or as may
be required by law.

8.4 Data Breach. BGC agrees to comply with Florida Statutes §501.171 and all
applicable laws that require the notification of individuals in the event of unauthorized release of
PII or other event requiring notification by law. In the event of a material breach of any of BGC's
security obligations under this Agreement or other event requiring notification under applicable
law ("Notification Event"). BGC agrees to notify CCDS promptly and to provide reasonable
assistance to CCDS to inform individuals if required by applicable law, and to indemnify, hold
harmless, and defend CCDS and its trustees, officers, and employees from and against any
claims, damages, or other harm related to such Notification Event.

8.5 Mandatory Disclosure of PII. If BGC becomes compelled by law or regulation
(including securities laws), or subpoena, court order, or other administrative directive to disclose
any PII related to CCDS students, BGC will provide CCDS with prompt written notice, to the
extent permitted by law, so that CCDS may seek an appropriate protective order or other remedy.
If a remedy acceptable to CCDS is not obtained by the date that BGC must comply with the
request, BGC will furnish only that portion of the PII that it is legally required to furnish, and
BGC shall require any recipient of the PII to exercise commercially reasonable efforts to keep
the PII confidential, to the extent permitted by law.

8.6 Remedies for Disclosure of Confidential Information. The Parties acknowledge
that unauthorized disclosure or use of PII or other confidential education records may irreparably
damage CCDS in such a way that adequate compensation could not be obtained from damages in
an action at law. Accordingly, the actual or threatened unauthorized disclosure or use of any PII
or education records shall give CCDS the right to seek injunctive relief restraining such
unauthorized disclosure or use, in addition to any other remedy otherwise available (including
reasonable attorneys' fees). BGC hereby waives the posting of a bond with respect to any action
for injunctive relief. BGC further grants CCDS the right, but not the obligation, to enforce these
provisions in BGC's name against any of BGC's employees, officers, board members, owners,
representatives, agents, contractors, and subcontractors violating the above provisions.

9. GOVERNING LAW AND REMEDIES

9.1 This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Florida. Any and all
legal action arising out of the Agreement will have its venue in the courts of the State of Florida
located in Clay County and the Agreement will be interpreted according to the laws of Florida
and/or federal law where appropriate. No remedy herein conferred upon any Party is intended to
be exclusive of any other remedy, and each and every other remedy given hereunder or now or
hereafter existing at law or in equity or by statute or otherwise. No single or partial exercise by
any Party of any right, power, or remedy hereunder shall preclude any other or further exercise
thereof.

9.2 If any legal action or other proceeding is brought for the enforcement of this
Agreement, or because of a dispute, breach, default, or misrepresentation in connection with any
provision of this Agreement, the successful or prevailing Party or Parties shall be entitled to

Page 209 of 564

DRAFT



recover court costs, and expenses recognized as taxable court costs pursuant to Florida Statutes
and/or The Florida Rules of Civil Procedure (including fees, costs, and expenses incident to
appeals) incurred in that action or proceeding, in addition to any other relief to which such Party
or Parties may be entitled.

10. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR RELATIONSHIP

10.1 BGC is, and shall be, in the performance of all activities under this Agreement, an
independent contractor, and not an employee, agent, or servant of CCDS. All persons engaged in
the analysis pursuant to Section 4 of this Agreement shall at all times, and in all places, be
subject to BGC's sole direction, supervision, and control. BGC shall exercise control over the
means and manner in which it and its employees perform pursuant to this Agreement, and in all
respects BGC's relationship and the relationship of its employees to CCDS shall be that of an
independent contractor and not as employees or agents of CCDS. BGC does not have the power
or authority to bind CCDS in any promise, agreement, or representation.

10.2 Nothing contained herein, other than the limited “agency” language in subsection
4.2 of this Agreement, shall be deemed to create an association, partnership, joint venture, or
relationship of principal and agent or master and servant among the Parties or any affiliate
thereof, or to provide any Party hereto with the right, power, or authority whether expressed or
implied, to create any such duty or obligation on behalf of any other Party.

11. INSURANCE

At its sole expense, during the term of this Agreement BGC shall maintain General and
Professional Liability insurance for any and all claims as a result of an action, lack of action,
error, or omission by BGC, its employees, agents, or subcontractors in an amount not less than
One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per claim. If such policy is written on a "claims-made" basis,
coverage shall remain in effect for three (3) years after the expiration or termination of this
Agreement and any of its extensions.

12. INDEMNIFICATION

12.1 Each party covenants and agrees at all times to save, hold, and keep harmless each
other party against any and all claims, demands, penalties, judgments, court costs, reasonable
attorney's fees, and liability of every kind and nature whatsoever to the extent permitted by law
arising out of or in any way connected or arising out of a party's performance of this Agreement.
However, this indemnification subsection shall not operate to release any party from liability for
their own negligence or the negligence of their officers, agents or employees or the duty to
indemnify another party from said negligence.

12.2 Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed or interpreted to increase the scope or
dollar limit of the CCDS’s liability beyond that which is set forth in section 768.28, Florida
Statutes. Nor shall any such language be construed or interpreted to waive the CCDS’s sovereign
immunity from suit, or to require the CCDS to indemnify BGC or any other person, corporation
or legal entity of any kind or nature whatsoever for injury or loss resulting from any acts or

Page 210 of 564

DRAFT



omissions other than those which arise from the actionable negligence of the CCSS or its
employees. The Board expressly reserves all other protections and privileges related to its
sovereign immunity.

13. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS

Neither CCDS nor BGC shall assign, sublet, convey, or transfer its interest in this
Agreement. Nothing herein shall be construed as creating any rights or benefits hereunder to
anyone other than CCDS and BGC.

14. NON-EXCLUSIVE AGREEMENT

The Parties understand and agree this Agreement is a non-exclusive agreement and the
Parties hereto may participate in other comparable services to and from any other person or
entity.

15. SEVERABILITY

If any term or provision of this Agreement, or the application thereof to any person or
circumstances shall, to any extent, be held invalid or unenforceable, such term or provision shall
be stricken and deemed unenforceable and every other term and provision of this Agreement
shall be deemed valid and enforceable to the extent permitted by law.

16. ENTIRETY OF AGREEMENT

CCDS and BGC agree that this Agreement, and any documents made a part thereof, set
forth the entire agreement between the Parties and that there are no promises or understandings
other than those stated herein. None of the provisions, terms, and conditions contained in this
Agreement may be added to, modified, superseded, or otherwise altered, except by written
instrument executed by the Parties hereto.

17. NON-WAIVER

The failure of either Party to exercise or delay in exercising any right, power, or privilege
provided for hereunder shall not be deemed a waiver thereof; nor shall any single or partial
exercise of any such right, power, or privilege preclude any other. or further exercise thereof, or
the exercise of any other right, power, or privilege under this Agreement. No Party shall be
deemed to have waived a right, power, or privilege provided for herein, unless such waiver is in
writing and signed by the waiving Party.

18. FORCE MAJEURE

Nonperformance of either Party shall be ·excused to the extent that performance is
rendered impossible by strike, fire, flood, pandemic, Acts of God, governmental acts or orders or
restrictions, failure of suppliers, or any other reason where failure to perform is beyond the
reasonable control of the non-performing party.

Page 211 of 564

DRAFT



19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT

Each Party has participated in negotiating and drafting this Agreement, so if an ambiguity or a
question of intent or interpretation arises, this Agreement is to be construed as if the Parties had
drafted it jointly, as opposed to being construed against a Party because it was responsible for
drafting one or more provisions of this Agreement.

20. TERM, TERMINATION AND EXTENSION OF AGREEMENT

This Agreement shall be for a term of two (2) years, commencing on the date on which
the last signature is affixed. Upon written agreement of the parties, executed at least thirty (30)
days prior to expiration, the Agreement may be extended three times for periods of one (1) year
each. The maximum term of this Agreement shall be five (5) years, including the original term
and the one year extensions, after which the Agreement must be reviewed for currency and
re-executed. Either party may terminate this Agreement immediately for cause in the event that
the other party acts in violation of any state or federal law, regulation or rule, including but not
limited to FERPA, or willfully or negligently abuses the confidentiality restrictions of this
Agreement or is in material violation of any term of this Agreement. Either party shall have the
absolute right to terminate this agreement with or without cause with sixty (60) days' prior
written notice to the other party. However, any unilateral termination of this Agreement by a
party shall be effective only at the end of the specific academic period during which the written
notice was given if the notice is given more than sixty (60) days from the end of the academic
period

21. NOTICE

All correspondence, formal notices, proposed changes, and determinations between the
Parties hereto including, but not limited to, changes to the notification addresses set forth below,
shall be in writing and shall be sufficient if mailed by United States mail, postage prepaid, to the
Parties at the contact information listed below:

Name: John Steinmetz and/or Jeremiah Blocker
Title: Attorney for the School Board of Clay County, Florida
Address: 900 Walnut Street

Green Cove Springs, Florida 32043
Email: schoolboardattorney@myoneclay.net
Phone: 904-336-6507

Name: Mr. Lendward Griffin
Title: Sr. Director of 21st Century Clubs

Boys & Girls Clubs of Northeast Florida
Address: 10 S Newnan Street

Jacksonville, Florida 32203
Email: LendwardG@BGCNF.org
Phone: 904.913.8100

Page 212 of 564

DRAFT



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned, in their representative capacities, acknowledge that
they have read this Agreement in full and have had an opportunity to review it; that they understand
and agree to each of the foregoing provisions; and that they are duly authorized to sign the
Agreement and have executed this Agreement on the dates written below.

BOYS & GIRLS CLUBS OF NORTHEAST FLORIDA

Printed Name:

Title:

Date:

THE SCHOOL BOARD OF CLAY COUNTY, FLORIDA

Printed Name:

Title:

Date:

Ashley Gilhousen

Board Chair

Page 213 of 564

DRAFT



Page 214 of 564

DRAFT



Page 215 of 564

DRAFT



Page 216 of 564

DRAFT



Page 217 of 564

DRAFT



Page 218 of 564

DRAFT



Page 219 of 564

DRAFT



Page 220 of 564

DRAFT



Page 221 of 564

DRAFT



Page 222 of 564

DRAFT



Page 223 of 564

DRAFT



Page 224 of 564

DRAFT



Page 225 of 564

DRAFT



Page 226 of 564

DRAFT



Page 227 of 564

DRAFT



Page 228 of 564

DRAFT



Page 229 of 564

DRAFT



Page 230 of 564

DRAFT



Page 231 of 564

DRAFT



Page 232 of 564

DRAFT



Page 233 of 564

DRAFT



Page 234 of 564

DRAFT



Page 235 of 564

DRAFT



Page 236 of 564

DRAFT



Page 237 of 564

DRAFT



Page 238 of 564

DRAFT



Page 239 of 564

DRAFT



Page 240 of 564

DRAFT



Page 241 of 564

DRAFT



Page 242 of 564

DRAFT



Page 243 of 564

DRAFT



Page 244 of 564

DRAFT



Page 245 of 564

DRAFT



Page 246 of 564

DRAFT



Page 247 of 564

DRAFT



Page 248 of 564

DRAFT



Page 249 of 564

DRAFT



Page 250 of 564

DRAFT



Page 251 of 564

DRAFT



Page 252 of 564

DRAFT



Page 253 of 564

DRAFT



Page 254 of 564

DRAFT



Page 255 of 564

DRAFT



Page 256 of 564

DRAFT



Page 257 of 564

DRAFT



Page 258 of 564

DRAFT



Page 259 of 564

DRAFT



Page 260 of 564

DRAFT



Page 261 of 564

DRAFT



Page 262 of 564

DRAFT



Page 263 of 564

DRAFT



Page 264 of 564

DRAFT



Page 265 of 564

DRAFT



Page 266 of 564

DRAFT



Page 267 of 564

DRAFT



Page 268 of 564

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

May 2, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C8 - Approval for new 3-year Florida Virtual School Curriculum Contract for K-12

Description
FLVS curriculum is designed for students looking for high-quality education, unparalleled flexibility and support, an academic
challenge, and ownership of their education in a safe, distraction-free learning environment. Students have a variety of tuition-
free, flexible and full-time options to choose from and can enroll in either one or multiple courses. Students have convenient 24/7
online access to more than 190 courses – including NCAA-approved core, electives, world languages, career and technical
education, honors, college prep, and Advanced Placement® – allowing them to study anytime and anywhere.  Florida Virtual
School (the district and all of our individual schools) are accredited by Cognia and Southern Association of Colleges and Schools
Council on Accreditation and School Improvement (SACS CASI). SACS CASI is an accrediting division of Cognia. Our courses
meet all Florida Standards. In addition, our core course curriculum has been approved by the NCAA.

Gap Analysis
Clay Virtual Academy offered FLVS virtual instruction to CCDS K-12 students during the 23--24 school year.  CVA will not
pay upfront for courses, but by course, after the student’s grace period has passed.

Previous Outcomes
FLVS virtual curriculum was used in the 23-24 school year for all K-12 students.  Reports have been generated and shared with
stakeholders to assist in the monitoring of student progress. 

Expected Outcomes
Students will continue to use the FLVS curriculum and will be monitored for progress by teachers, guidance counselors, lab
facilitators, office staff, and administration. 
Teachers will differentiate instruction by holding live lessons and tutoring sessions.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal: 1.1 Student Success: Strengthen our high-quality instructional system through increased alignment to state standards, with
an emphasis on literacy.   
Strategy:  Utilize the District’s Vision for Instruction as the primary instructional framework to
ensure high-quality instructional practice, aligned to standards, to meet the needs of
all students.

Recommendation
That the Clay County School Board approves to continue with the FLVS curriculum for the next 3 years.

Contact
Roger Dailey, Chief Academic Officer, 904.336.6904, Roger.Dailey@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
We will pay curriculum fees ($45-$82) per course, per segment, based on students taking an FLVS course with a Clay Virtual
teacher.  Due to COVID-19, more students are now taking virtual courses.  Therefore, we are expecting an increase in cost for
the FLVS curriculum over the next couple of years.  Estimated total annual cost of the FLVS contract will be $650,000-$700,000
per year with an option to renew after the 3rd year.  Year 1:  $665,000, Year 2:  $665,000, Year 3:  $665,000.

Review Comments

Attachments

FLVS Contract 240150  2023-2024 Board.pdf

Page 269 of 564

DRAFT



240150 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
By Bertha Staefe at 1:11 pm, Mar 21, 2024 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
By Bertha Staefe at 1:12 pm, Mar 21, 2024 

FLDOE approved Program & Course Provider 

Fix email address on page 17 & the formating of Appendix A, B, C, D 
 

 
JPS 

 

 
3/25/24 

Legally sufficient. Approved after formatting is fixed 

 
By Elaine at 7:51 am, Apr 03, 2024 

Page 270 of 564

DRAFT



 
 

Page 1 of 34 

 

 

FLORIDA DISTRICT FRANCHISE AGREEMENT 
by and between 

FLORIDA VIRTUAL SCHOOL 
and 

THE SCHOOL BOARD OF  CLAY COUNTY, FLORIDA 
 

 
This Florida District Franchise Agreement (“Agreement”) is entered into by and 

between Florida Virtual School (“FLVS”) and The School Board of 

_Clay County, Florida (“District”), collectively referred to hereinafter as the “Parties” 

or “Party.” 

WHEREAS, FLVS is a corporate body and political subdivision of the State of Florida 

which serves a component of Florida’s Early Learning-20 Education System; and 

WHEREAS, the District is a corporate body and political subdivision of the State of 

Florida which governs and controls the above-named School District; and 

WHEREAS, Section 1002.37(2)(i), Florida Statutes, authorizes FLVS to enter into 

Franchise Agreements with Florida school districts; and 

WHEREAS, the Parties find the terms of this Agreement mutually beneficial and in the 

best interests of the students and families which they both serve. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants, terms, and conditions 

set forth herein, and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of 

which is hereby acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows: 

INCORPORATION OF RECITALS  

The foregoing recitals are true, correct, and incorporated herein by reference. 

1. DEFINITIONS 

a) “Affiliate” means any person or entity directly or indirectly controlling, controlled 

by, or under common control of another person or entity. “Control” as used here 

means the legal, beneficial, or equitable ownership, directly or indirectly, of more 

than fifty percent (50%) of the aggregate of all voting interest in such entity. 

b) “Authorized Third Parties” means any non-employee agent, representative, 

independent contractor, sub-contractor, or consultant of the District whose 

Page 271 of 564

DRAFT



 
 

Page 2 of 34 

 

 

duties or services require or include access to or use of the Licensed Materials 

on behalf of or at the direction of the District. 

c) “Authorized Users” means District personnel directly employed by the District 

whose duties require or include access to or use of the Licensed Materials. 

d) “Billable Enrollment” means any student enrollments designated as “Active” 

status in the FLVS Virtual School Administrator (“VSA”) for a minimum of thirty 

(30) consecutive days or who achieves twenty percent (20%) completion in any 

status. 

e) “Business Days” means Monday through Friday excluding any day which is a 

nationally observed holiday in both the United States of America and Canada. 

f) “Course Fees” means the license fees to be paid by the District to FLVS, which 

are described in Section 6, “Fees and Payment” and Appendix A –Course List 

and Fees of this Agreement. 

g) “Confidential Information” means (i) all information of either Party or its Affiliates 

or of third persons to whom the Party owes a duty of confidence that is marked 

confidential, restricted, or proprietary, or that may reasonably be considered as 

confidential from its nature or from the circumstances surrounding its disclosure; 

and (ii) the Licensed Materials. 

h) “Data” means District information entered into the LMS or VSA to include, but not 

limited to, student, staff, school, and parent information. 

i) “Intellectual Property” means proprietary commercial, industrial, and intellectual 

products and property (both tangible and intangible) as well as proprietary 

designs, information, processes, ideas, inventions, copyrights, trademarks, 

service marks, patents, trade secrets, and other legal rights and privileges held 

by FLVS, including those associated with and/or arising from the Licensed 

Materials. 

j) “Intellectual Property Rights” includes all worldwide intellectual and industrial 

property rights including all rights in each country to copyrights, trademarks, 

service marks, patents, inventions, industrial designs, trade secrets, trade dress, 

and all other proprietary rights. 

Page 272 of 564

DRAFT



 
 

Page 3 of 34 

 

 

k) “Learning Management Systems” or “LMS” means the software-based system 

that must be utilized to access the Licensed Course Content. 

l) “Licensed Course Content” means the courses and course components of the 

FLVS Course Content in object code format licensed to District hereunder and 

described in Appendix A of this Agreement and such additional third-party 

components required as part of the Licensed Course Content. 

m) “Licensed Materials” means the Licensed Course Content, LMS, and Virtual 

School Administrator. 

n) “Virtual School Administrator (VSA) License” means the licenses and associated 

restrictions with respect to the Licensed Virtual School Administrator. 

2. LICENSE GRANT 

FLVS grants to the District a restricted, non-exclusive, non-transferable license to use 

the Licensed Materials beginning as of the date upon which the Agreement is fully 

executed by both Parties and terminating pursuant to Section 3, “Term” of this 

Agreement. The District acknowledges and agrees that the Licensed Materials may only 

be accessed and used by Authorized Users and Authorized Third Parties for purposes 

of academic instruction and assessment of District students in accordance with this 

Agreement. Any other access or use of the Licensed Materials is strictly prohibited. 

3. TERM 

The term of this Agreement commences as of the date upon which it is fully executed by 

both Parties and ends on the term checked below (the “Term”). The District 

acknowledges that the pricing and course list is subject to modification at the sole 

discretion of FLVS prior to the start of each academic school year. FLVS shall provide 

the updated Appendix A - Course List and Fees of this Agreement on or before April 1 

prior to the start of each academic school year. 

District hereby agrees to the Agreement Term selected below: 

    one (1) academic school year term, July 1, 2024 through June 30, 2025 

_X   three (3) academic school year terms, July 1, 2024 through June 30, 2027 

Page 273 of 564

DRAFT



 
 

Page 4 of 34 

 

 

4. DISTRICT OBLIGATIONS 

The District shall: 

a) Designate a person or persons who shall serve as point(s) of contact as follows: 

i) District level leader; ii) District virtual school (franchise) leader; and iii) 

Franchise leader whose primary duty is to supervise, monitor, and evaluate the 

Franchise teachers and its program. The District level leader and District virtual 

school (franchise) leader shall be listed in Section 40, “Notice” of this Agreement. 

b) Adhere to all branding policies as outlined in the FLVS Branding and Media 

Policy in Appendix D of this Agreement. 

c) Use the FLVS Learning Management System and Student Information System 

for students enrolled in the Franchise program. 

d) Report only Florida Virtual School courses within the Franchise program for 

Florida Education Finance Program (FEFP) funding. 

e) Have approved and processed by FLVS all student transfers between the 

Parties. 

f) Comply with the Academic Integrity policies (see Appendix B of this Agreement) 

established by FLVS. 

g) Provide accurate rosters of teachers, participating in the Franchise, including 

contact information and subjects they teach, on July 1st and December 1st of 

each academic year, and provide FLVS with an updated roster whenever the 

District hires new teachers or teachers leave employment with the District. 

h) Require that all teachers complete new teacher training before being placed with 

students. 

i) Require all teachers of new or updated courses complete training on the new or 

updated course within two (2) weeks of training being made available. 

j) Record a course as completed only if a student has taken the final segment 

exams or the District has documented adherence to local District policy regarding 

course completion. 

k) Maintain all teacher and student email communications within the FLVS LMS. 

Page 274 of 564

DRAFT



 
 

Page 5 of 34 

 

 

l) Provide certified teachers in the subject they are teaching or otherwise comply 

with Section 1012.42, Florida Statutes, regarding out-of-field instructors. 

Certification numbers shall be entered and maintained by the District in the 

FLVS Student Information Management System (VSA) account. 

m) Have sole responsibility to comply with all College Board AP regulations and 

audits. Franchise AP courses not authorized by the College Board may not 

be offered with the AP label. 

n) Have sole responsibility to comply with all AICE regulations and audits. 

Franchise AICE courses not authorized by Cambridge may not be offered with 

the AICE label. 

o) Participate in end-of-year Franchise evaluations. 

p) Participate in Annual Franchise Management Training. 

q) Require each teacher teaching FLVS courses to sign Appendix B of this 

Agreement (“Teacher Acknowledgement Form”) and submit all signed forms 

to FLVS by October 1st of each academic year or within thirty (30) days of the 

teacher’s employment. 

r) Achieve an eighty-five percent (85%) or better satisfaction rating or higher as 

measured by Annual Customer Satisfaction Surveys conducted by FLVS’s 

external vendor. 

s) Provide FLVS with notice of any public records request received regarding 

this Agreement or any services provided thereunder within twenty-four (24) 

hours of receipt by the District. 

t) Apply appropriate corrective or disciplinary action to any teachers providing 

services pursuant to this Agreement that FLVS identifies as failing to properly 

deliver the curriculum. 

u) Provide a high-resolution vector logo to FLVS by July 30th of each academic 

year. 

v) Use the tagline “Powered by FLVS” when specifically promoting FLVS 

courses. 

w) Encourage instructors and staff to attend FLVS Professional Development 

Page 275 of 564

DRAFT



 
 

Page 6 of 34 

 

 

offerings and award professional development in-service points upon 

completion. 

x) Utilize the Salesforce application to access quality assurance documents and 

submit concern resolutions. 

y) Regularly monitor the program and the provision of services under the 

program for compliance with Florida law and the terms of this Agreement. The 

scope of monitoring includes, but is not limited to, verifying the following: 1) 

that the curriculum plan is followed; 2) that students have met graduation 

requirements set forth in Sections 1002.3105(5), 1003.4281, and/or 

1003.4282 (if applicable), Florida Statutes; 3) that FLVS maintains the 

confidentiality of all education records and the information contained within as 

per Section 10, “Confidential Information” of this Agreement. 

z) District’s failure to fulfill the obligations in this Agreement shall result in the 

action outlined in Appendix C “Steps for Enforcement.” 

5. FLVS OBLIGATIONS 

FLVS shall: 

a) Provide a Franchise Operations Manager assigned to support the District. 

b) Provide access to the LMS platform. 

c) Provide systems training during the academic year terms for Districts, 

inclusive of VSA, LMS, Web Collaboration Tool, and other systems utilized for 

student instruction. 

d) Provide hosting of courses on the LMS platform. 

e) Provide course materials to students which shall be returned to FLVS at the 

conclusion of the course by the District, unless FLVS has designated the 

materials as disposable. 

f) Provide course updates. 

g) Provide Student Information Management System (VSA). 

h) Provide Quality Assurance (“QA”) Services inclusive of one (1) Classroom 

Audit and one (1) Completion Audit per instructor, Educator footprints reports 

upon request, and Quality Assurance training. 

Page 276 of 564

DRAFT



 
 

Page 7 of 34 

 

 

i) Conduct Academic Integrity investigations pursuant to FLVS policy as set 

forth in Appendix B “Teacher Acknowledgement Form” of this Agreement for 

referral to the District and any subsequent disciplinary action upon conclusion 

of the investigation which the District may undertake. 

j) Provide monthly parent/student survey results. 

k) Provide an Annual Customer Satisfaction Report. 

l) Provide Instructor Training for all new course releases. 

m) Provide new Instructor Training. 

n) Provide a year-end evaluation of the program. 

o) Provide Franchise Management Training. 

p) Provide syllabus documents for AP courses for use in AP audit process. 

q) Provide a co-branded digital flyer*, which is designed and sent to the District 

by request only, up to three (3) times a year (August, January, and May). 

r) Provide access to FLVS video course tours. 

s) Provide the Salesforce platform to access QA documents and submit concern 

resolutions. 

*All messaging will be pre-determined and at the discretion of FLVS based on time of year. 

6. FEES AND PAYMENT 

The District shall pay to FLVS the Course Fees described in Appendix A “Course 

List and Fees” of this Agreement, for each Billable Enrollment. The District shall pay 

for each Billable Enrollment regardless of the student's status upon receipt of invoice. 

The Course Fees will be invoiced according to the Invoicing Schedule in the table 

set forth herein and paid pursuant to the provisions of the Local Government Prompt 

Payment Act after receipt of FLVS’s invoice. The Local Government Prompt 

Payment Act requires the District to pay correct and undisputed invoices within forty- 

five (45) days of the District's Accounts Payable Department's receipt of said invoice. 

The District shall issue a Purchase Order to FLVS prior to the enrollment of students 

under this Agreement. The District shall not incur any obligation for payment prior to 

the issuance of a Purchase Order to FLVS. Failure to pay the franchise fees when 

due shall be grounds for the immediate termination or suspension of all services due by 

Page 277 of 564

DRAFT



 
 

Page 8 of 34 

 

 

FLVS hereunder. 

All overdue (ninety (90)-plus days) accounts are subject to the late fees set forth in 

the Local Government Prompt Payment Act, Sections 218.70-218.80, Florida 

Statutes, and may be denied access to FLVS content at the sole discretion of FLVS. 

Performance of this Agreement will be suspended until payment is received by FLVS. 

FLVS Invoicing Schedule for Agreement Billable Enrollments: 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Billing Contact Personnel: 

District Florida Virtual School 

Name: Sonya Findley Name: Mihaela Brehoi 

Address of School/District: 900 Walnut St., 
Green Cove Springs, FL 32043 

Address: 5422 Carrier Drive, Suite 201 
Orlando, Florida 32819 

Email: accountspayable@myoneclay.net Email:  mbrehoi@flvs.net 

Telephone No.: 904-336-6500 Telephone No.: 407-513-3615 

 
7. SOFTWARE SECURITY 

The District will ensure all reasonable measures are taken to protect the Licensed 

Materials from any unauthorized use. The District shall strictly limit access to the 

Licensed Materials to Authorized Users and Authorized Third Parties. FLVS will 

ensure all reasonable measures are taken to protect the District Data while in use at 

the FLVS site. Reasonable measures are defined as the District Data being stored 

on a secure server in a secured building behind an internet firewall with role-based 

level password protection for all access to such Data. Further, Data shall be backed 

up on a schedule no less stringent than what is used by FLVS. 

8. BACKGROUND SCREENING 

FLVS agrees to comply with all requirements of Sections 1012.32 and 1012.465, 

Florida Statutes. All FLVS personnel who, (1) are to be permitted access to the 

District’s school grounds when students are present, (2) will have direct contact with 

Cycle Enrollment Data Date Range Invoice Sent to 
District on or before 

Cycle 1 July - Oct November 30th 

Cycle 2 Nov - Feb March 31st 

Cycle 3 Mar - Jun June 30th 

Cycle 4 True-up / Enrollments not captured in previous cycles July 31st 

 

Page 278 of 564

DRAFT



 
 

Page 9 of 34 

 

 

the District’s students, or (3) have access or control of District’s funds, shall 

successfully complete the background screening required by the referenced statutes 

and meet the standards established by the statutes. FLVS shall bear the cost of 

acquiring the background screening required by Section 1012.32, Florida Statutes, 

and any fee imposed to maintain the fingerprints provided with respect to FLVS and 

its personnel. The Parties agree that the failure of FLVS to perform any of the duties 

described in this Section shall constitute a material breach of this Agreement entitling 

the District to terminate immediately with no further responsibilities or duties to 

perform under this Agreement. To the extent permitted by law, FLVS agrees to 

indemnify and hold harmless the District, its officers, and employees from any liability 

in the form of physical or mental injury, death or property damage resulting in FLVS’s 

failure to comply with the requirements of this Section or with Sections 1012.32 and 

1012.465, Florida Statutes. Nothing herein shall be construed as a waiver by the 

District’s or FLVS of sovereign immunity or of any rights or limits to liability or 

damages existing under Section 768.28, Florida Statutes. 

9. INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS  

The District acknowledges and agrees that all FLVS content, software, courses, 

graphics, pictures, documents, licenses, designs, and materials, and any and all 

derivatives thereof (collectively, “Works”) made available to the District pursuant to 

this Agreement are protected via copyrights, trademarks, service marks, patents, 

trade secrets, and/or other proprietary laws and/or regulations, and FLVS retains all 

right, title, and interest in and to the Works. The District further acknowledges that it 

has no ownership of or interest in the Works except as expressly granted in this 

Agreement. 

Absent the express written authorization by and consent of FLVS, the District will not 

sell, license, sublicense, lease, modify, distribute, copy, reproduce, transmit, publicly 

display, publicly perform, publish, adapt, edit, or create the Works or any other 

component of the Licensed Materials. Further, the District will not take or knowingly 

permit any action or omission that jeopardizes or impairs FLVS’s rights in the Works 

or Licensed Materials.  For instance, the District will not: (a) disassemble, reverse 

Page 279 of 564

DRAFT



 
 

Page 10 of 34 

 

 

compile, reverse engineer, or otherwise attempt to discover the source code of or trade 

secrets embodied in the Works; (b) transfer, assign, distribute, rent, sell, or 

grant sublicenses to or otherwise make available the Works or any element thereof 

to any third parties; (c) embed or incorporate in any manner the Works or any 

element thereof into other applications or products belonging to and/or utilized by the 

District; (d) use or transmit the Works in violation of this any state or federal law or 

regulation applicable to the terms of this Agreement or the Licensed Materials; (e) 

access, use, or copy any portion of the Works (including any component of its logic, 

structure, and architecture) to develop, promote, distribute, sell, or support any other 

product or service; or (f) remove, obscure, or alter any FLVS symbol, copyright 

notice, mark, name, logo, tagline, or other similar designation displayed on or through 

any portion of the Works. 

10. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION 

To the extent permitted by law, each Party agrees to maintain the Confidential 

Information of the other Party. Each Party shall fully comply with the applicable 

requirements of Family Education Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) codified at 20 

U.S.C. 1232g and the federal regulations set forth in 34 C.F.R Part 99, and Sections 

1002.22, 1002.221, and 1006.1494, Florida Statutes, and State Board of Education 

rules 6A-1.0955 and 6A-1.09550, and all applicable laws and regulations regarding 

the confidentiality of personally identifiable student information and records.. This 

provision shall survive the termination of or completion of all performance or 

obligations under this Agreement and shall remain fully binding upon both Parties. 

For the limited purposes of auditing the implementation of the Agreement and 

accessing student information, FLVS is hereby designated a school official for the 

purposes of receiving this limited confidential student information and FLVS shall 

remain under the direct control of the District with respect to the use and 

maintenance of the confidential student information. FLVS acknowledges and 

agrees that it will not disclose the confidential student information to any other person 

or entity and will only use the confidential student information for the purposes listed 

above and for no other purpose. 

Page 280 of 564

DRAFT



 
 

Page 11 of 34 

 

 

11. CHILDREN’S ONLINE PRIVACY PROTECTION ACT (“COPPA”)  

The District shall comply with COPPA and all rules promulgated thereunder. 

12. E-VERIFY 

In accordance with Section 448.095, Florida Statutes, the Parties shall utilize the 

U.S. Agency of Homeland Security’s E-Verify system, https://e-verify.uscis.gov/emp, 

to verify the employment eligibility of all employees hired during the term of this 

Agreement. 

13. NCAA 

The National Collegiate Athletic Association (“NCAA”) has specific guidelines 

regarding the acceptance of distance learning or credit recovery courses for student- 

athletes. The District accepts responsibility for these criteria to the extent that it uses 

the Licensed Materials for students who desire to meet NCAA eligibility criteria. 

14. DATA/SECURITY BREACH  

The Parties acknowledge their respective obligations to comply with all data privacy 

laws, including Section 501.171, Florida Statutes. Upon knowledge of a data security 

breach, the breached Party shall notify the other Party immediately, and in no event 

later than thirty (30) calendar days following a determination of a breach of data 

security involving the other Party’s data. Additionally, each Party shall fully cooperate 

with the other regarding their respective statutory obligations with respect to security 

breaches, including all statutory and regulatory notification requirements. 

15. WARRANTIES OF FLVS 

Limit of Liability 

a) For any breach or default by FLVS of any of the provisions of this Agreement, 

or respect to any claim arising here from or related hereto, FLVS’s entire 

liability, regardless of the form of action, whether based on contract or tort, 

including negligence, shall in no event exceed (I) the amount paid by the 

District hereunder for the licensed materials; (II) the amount paid by the 

District for the renewal service that is the subject of the claim, if the claim 

relates to a breach or default by FLVS of the provisions of Section 7, “Software 

Security” of this Agreement; (III) the amount paid by the District for installation 

Page 281 of 564

DRAFT



 
 

Page 12 of 34 

 

 

service that is the subject of the claim if the claim relates to a breach or default 

by FLVS by the provisions of this Agreement pertaining to installation service; 

or (IV) in the aggregate with respect to all claims under or related to this 

Agreement, the amount paid by the District under this Agreement. 

b) FLVS shall in no event be liable for special, incidental, indirect, or 

c) consequential loss or damage, lost business revenue, loss of profits, loss of 

d) data, failure to realize expected profits or savings, or any claim against the 

District by another person (even if FLVS has been advised of the possibility 

e) of such damage) unless required by law. 

f) FLVS shall be liable to the District only as expressly provided in this 

g) Agreement, and shall have no other obligation, duty, or liability whatsoever in 

contract, tort, or otherwise to the District or a third party for any claim, 

h) including, not limited to, any liability for negligence. The limitations, 

i) exclusions, and disclaimers in this Agreement shall apply irrespective of the 

nature of the cause of action, demand, or action by the District, including but 

j) not limited to, breach of contract, negligence, tort, or any other legal theory 

k) and shall survive a fundamental breach or breaches or the failure of the 

l) essential purpose of this Agreement or of any remedy contained herein. 

16. INDEMNIFICATION. To the extent permitted by law, FLVS and the District hereby 

acknowledge their respective entitlement to sovereign immunity and the limited 

waiver of sovereign immunity as to certain tort and negligence claims pursuant to 

Section 768.28, Florida Statutes. Nothing herein shall be construed as a waiver of 

any such immunity nor as an agreement by either Party to indemnify or defend the 

other. Furthermore, nothing herein shall be construed as an obligation of either Party 

to defend, sue, or consent to be sued by a third party. Rather, FLVS and the District 

agree to be responsible only for such claims and damages caused by the tortious or 

otherwise negligent action or inaction of their own officers and employees while 

functioning within the scope of their official duties, and their respective liability for 

such damages shall be limited to the amounts set forth in Section 768.28, Florida 

Statutes. 

Page 282 of 564

DRAFT



 
 

Page 13 of 34 

 

 

17. INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY CLAIMS 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, FLVS shall have no liability for any claim that is based 

on (i) the use of other than the latest release and version of the Licensed Materials, 

if such infringement could have been avoided by the use of the latest versions and 

release and such version or release had been available to the District for use, (ii) the 

unauthorized combination of the Licensed Materials with the software, hardware or 

any other product not specifically provided by FLVS, or (iii) any unauthorized 

modification to the Licensed Materials or unauthorized use of the Licensed Materials 

other than as expressly authorized herein or as expressly described or 

recommended in writing by FLVS. 

18. TERMINATION 

This Agreement may be terminated by: 

a) either Party without cause upon delivery of written notice of intent to terminate 

this Agreement provided to the other Party not less than thirty (30) days prior 

to the effective date of such termination, subject to Section 19, “Termination 

for Convenience” of this Agreement; or 

b) written agreement executed by both Parties; or 

c) FLVS at any time if the District, upon notice by FLVS and the expiration of a 

d) ten (10)-day opportunity to cure period, fails to perform any duties or 

e) covenants of this Agreement; or 

f) the District at any time if FLVS, upon notice by the District and expiration of a ten 

(10) day opportunity to cure period, fails to perform any duties or 

g) covenants of this Agreement. 

19. TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE 

Anything to the contrary notwithstanding, the District may terminate this Agreement 

without cause and for convenience with thirty (30) days prior written notice to FLVS. 

In the event of a termination for convenience, the District shall pay FLVS for all 

Billable Enrollments for all service dates up to and including to the date of 

termination. In the event of such termination, the Parties--by mutual written 

agreement--may extend the notice of termination period to a time period beyond the 

Page 283 of 564

DRAFT



 
 

Page 14 of 34 

 

 

thirty (30) day notice period prescribed herein to ensure completion of services 

and/or to prevent any interruption of instruction and disruption of the delivery of 

services to the students. 

20. RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES  

At all times during the term of this Agreement, the Parties shall be considered 

independent contractors and not employees of each other, and nothing herein shall 

be deemed to create a joint venture or principal-agent relationship between the 

Parties. Neither Party is authorized to, nor shall either Party act toward third persons 

or the public in any manner that would indicate anything other than an independent 

contractor relationship with the other Party. 

21. DISPUTE RESOLUTION 

The Parties agree that they will use their best efforts to settle any and all disputes 

arising out of or in connection with this Agreement, including disputes as to its 

validity, interpretation, performance, and alleged breach, prior to initiating any legal 

proceeding, whether judicial or administrative in nature. 

22. NO PRESUMED CONSTRUCTION AGAINST DRAFTER(S)  

The Parties acknowledge that they have both had an opportunity to craft the terms 

and scope of this Agreement. Accordingly, each and every term of this Agreement 

shall be construed in accordance with the fair meaning of such term and there shall 

be no presumption against either Party for having drafted or participated in the 

drafting of this Agreement. 

23. SEVERABILITY  

The terms of this Agreement shall be severable such that, if any term herein is 

deemed unlawful, invalid, or unenforceable, such term shall not affect the validity 

and enforceability of any other terms of the Agreement. 

24. DISCLAIMER OF OTHER WARRANTIES AND CONDITIONS.  

EXCEPT AS EXPRESSLY SET FORTH HEREIN, THERE ARE NO EXPRESS OR 

IMPLIED WARRANTIES OR CONDITIONS IN RELATION TO THE LICENSED 

MATERIALS, SUPPORT, OR SERVICES THAT ARE THE SUBJECT MATTER OF 

THE  AGREEMENT,  INCLUDING,  BUT  NOT  LIMITED  TO,  ANY  IMPLIED 

Page 284 of 564

DRAFT



 
 

Page 15 of 34 

 

 

WARRANTIES OR CONDITIONS OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A 

PARTICULAR PURPOSE, OR ANY OTHER IMPLIED WARRANTIES OR 

CONDITIONS ARISING BY LAW, OR FROM A COURSE OF DEALING OR USAGE 

OF TRADE. THE LIMITED WARRANTIES SET FORTH ABOVE GIVE THE 

DISTRICT SPECIFIC LEGAL RIGHTS. THE DISTRICT MAY HAVE OTHER 

RIGHTS, WHICH VARY FROM JURISDICTION TO JURISDICTION. 

25. PUBLIC RECORDS NOTICE 

The Parties are required to comply with the Florida Public Records Law, Chapter 

119, Florida Statutes, in the performance of their duties under this Agreement. Each 

Party shall maintain its own respective records and documents associated with this 

Agreement in accordance with the records retention requirements applicable to 

public records. Each Party shall be responsible for compliance with any public 

documents request served upon it pursuant to Section 119.07, Florida Statutes, and 

any resultant award of attorney’s fees for non-compliance with that law. Accordingly, the 

Parties shall: 

a. Keep, maintain, and produce upon request and within a reasonable period of 

time all data created or collected in the performance of its duties under this 

Agreement (“Agreement Data”) which come within the definition of a “public 

record” under Chapter 119, Florida Statutes. 

b. Provide to each other, upon request and free of charge, a copy of each record 

which either Party seeks to produce in response to a public records request. 

c. Ensure that Agreement Data that are considered exempt under Chapter 119, 

Florida Statutes, are not disclosed except as authorized by law. 

d. Upon completion of their obligations under the Agreement, transfer to each 

other, at no cost, all Agreement Data in their possession or otherwise keep 

and maintain such data/records as required by law. 

Either Party’s failure to comply with the provisions set forth in this Section shall 

constitute a default and material breach of this Agreement, which may result in 

immediate termination by the non-breaching Party without penalty to them. 

IF THE DISTRICT HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE APPLICATION 

Page 285 of 564

DRAFT



 
 

Page 16 of 34 

 

 

OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, OR THE DISTRICT’S DUTY 

TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT, 

THE DISTRICT SHALL CONTACT FLVS’s CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC 

RECORDS AT 5422 CARRIER DRIVE, SUITE 201, ORLANDO, FLORIDA 

32819, OR AT 407-490-2879, OR AT: custodianofrecords@flvs.net. IN 

TURN, IF FLVS HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE APPLICATION OF 

CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, OR ITS DUTY TO PROVIDE 

PUBLIC RECORDS RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT, FLVS SHALL 

CONTACT THE DISTRICT’S CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS AT 

[business/street address]: _900 Walnut St., Green Cove Springs, 

FL 32043  OR AT [phone number]:  904-336-6500   OR 

AT [email address]:_sally.anderson@myoneclay.net . 

26. FORCE MAJEURE  

Neither Party to this Agreement shall be liable for delays or failures in performance 

under this Agreement resulting from acts or events beyond the reasonable control of 

such Party (“Force Majeure Event”), including acts of war, terrorism, acts of God, 

epidemic or pandemic, any police action of the federal, state, or local government, 

an earthquake, flood, embargo, riot, sabotage, labor dispute, governmental act, failure 

of the internet, power failure, or energy, utility, or telecommunications 

interruptions. The Party so affected, upon giving prompt notice to the other Party, 

shall be excused from such performance to the extent of such prevention, restriction, 

or interference; provided however, that the Party so affected shall take all reasonable 

steps to avoid or remove such cause of nonperformance and shall resume 

performance hereunder with dispatch whenever such causes are removed. 

Page 286 of 564

DRAFT



 
 

Page 17 of 34 

 

 

27. NO WAIVER  

No delay or failure to act on the part of either Party in exercising any right, power, or 

privilege under this Agreement shall impair any such right, power, or privilege or 

constitute a legal waiver or acquiescence regarding any such right, power, or 

privilege. Nor shall any single or partial exercise of any right, power, or privilege 

arising from this Agreement preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the 

exercise of any other right, power, or privilege. No waiver shall be valid and 

enforceable against either Party unless it is agreed upon in writing that is authorized 

and signed by the Party against whom enforcement of such waiver is sought. 

28. AUDIT RIGHTS 

FLVS may audit the use of their Licensed Materials and enrollment at any time while 

providing service hereunder. FLVS will conduct continuous audits for instructional 

quality. The results of this audit will be provided to the District and the Florida 

Department of Education. 

29. EMAIL ACCESS 

The District is responsible for providing FLVS, upon request, all email 

correspondence between teacher and student relevant to this Agreement. 

30. NON-SOLICITATION AGREEMENT 

FLVS and the District agree that during the term of this Agreement, except as 

provided elsewhere in this Agreement or through mutual consent of both 

organizations, they shall not directly or indirectly engage, hire, employ, or solicit any 

employee of the other, or any subsidiary or Affiliate of the other or otherwise induce 

or attempt to induce any employee of the other to leave employment of the other or 

alter the employment relationship of any employee with the other. 

31. NO WAIVER OF SOVEREIGN IMMUNITY 

Nothing herein is intended to serve as a waiver of sovereign immunity by any agency 

or political subdivision to which sovereign immunity may be applicable or of any rights 

or limits to liability existing under Section 768.28, Florida Statutes. 

32. NON-DISCRIMINATION 

The  Parties  shall  not  discriminate  against  any  employee  or  participant  in  the 

Page 287 of 564

DRAFT



 
 

Page 18 of 34 

 

 

performance of the duties, responsibilities, and obligations under this Agreement 

because of race, age, political or religious beliefs, color, gender, gender identity or 

expression, national origin, marital status, disability, or sexual orientation. 

33. ACCOMMODATIONS FOR STUDENTS WITH EXCEPTIONALITIES  

The District is responsible for complying with all federal and state requirements, 

including IDEA and Section 504 in connection with its use and implementation of the 

Licensed Materials. Furthermore, the District is responsible for providing any 

required services to support and accommodate students with special needs. The 

District acknowledges that virtual learning programs are not appropriate for all 

students, and it is the District’s responsibility to ensure that its delivery and 

implementation of the Licensed Materials is appropriate for each participating 

student. FLVS will not be responsible to make such a determination and is not 

required to make any associated modifications to the Licensed Materials. 

34. ENGLISH LANGUAGE LEARNER STUDENTS  

The District is responsible for providing appropriate equal access to all students, 

including ELL students. It is also responsible for ensuring compliance with the 

Florida META Consent Decree and other federal and state laws and regulations in 

connection with its use and implementation of the Licensed Materials. 

35. ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

This document incorporates and includes all prior negotiations, correspondence, 

conversations, agreements, and understandings applicable to the matters contained 

herein, and the Parties agree that there are no commitments, agreements, or 

understandings concerning the subject matter of this Agreement that are not 

contained in this document. Accordingly, the Parties agree that no deviation from the 

terms hereof shall be predicated upon any prior representations or agreements, 

whether oral or written. 

36. AMENDMENTS 

With the exception of the annual update to the FLVS Course Offerings and Price List 

(Appendix A), no modification or alternation in the terms or conditions contained 

herein shall be effective unless contained in a written Amendment executed by both 

Page 288 of 564

DRAFT



 
 

Page 19 of 34 

 

 

Parties. 

37. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS 

Each Party shall comply with all applicable federal and state laws, codes, rules and 

regulations in performing its duties, responsibilities, and obligations pursuant to this 

Agreement. 

38. GOVERNING LAW AND VENUE  

This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of 

the State of Florida without regard to any choice of law provisions. The Parties agree 

that the venue for any court proceeding arising from or related to this Agreement 

shall be in a court of competent jurisdiction situated in Orange County, Florida. 

39. PARTICIPATION IN SIMILAR ACTIVITIES 

This Agreement in no way restricts FLVS or the District from participating in similar 

activities with other public or private agencies, organizations, and individuals. 

40. NOTICE 

All notices, demands, and other communications required or permitted pursuant to 
this Agreement shall be provided in writing and directed to the following contacts: 
As to FLVS: 

Larry Banks, Sr. Director of Partner Services, Florida Florida Virtual School 
5422 Carrier Drive, Suite 201 
Orlando, FL 32819 
Email: lbanks@flvs.net and procurement@flvs.net 

 
With a copy to: 

Office of General Counsel 
Florida Virtual School 
5422 Carrier Drive, Suite 201 
Orlando, FL 32819 
Email: ogc@flvs.net 

 
As to the District: 

                       _David Broskie , Superintendent of Schools      
Schools District Name: School District of Clay County 
Address: 900 Walnut St. 
City/State: Green Cove Springs, FL 32043 
Email: david.broskie@myoneclay.net 

Page 289 of 564

DRAFT



 
 

Page 20 of 34 

 

 

With a copy to: 
Name/Title: Clay Virtual Academy, Amanda Stilianou, CVA Principal 
Address: 2306 Kingsley Ave. 
City/State: Orange Park, FL 32073 
Email: amanda.stilianou@myoneclay.net 

 
41. AUTHORITY 

Each person signing this Agreement on behalf of either Party individually warrants 

that each has full legal power to execute this Agreement on behalf of the Party for 

whom each is signing and to bind and obligate such Party with respect to all 

provisions contained in this Agreement. 

42. NO THIRD-PARTY BENEFICIARIES  

There are no third-party beneficiaries created or entitled by this Agreement, and only 

the specific Parties hereto shall have any rights or standing to enforce this 

Agreement or any provision thereof. 

43. NO ASSIGNMENT 

This Agreement may not be assigned, transferred, or conveyed in whole or in part 

by either Party. 

44. NO PARTNERSHIP OR JOINT VENTURE  

It is understood and agreed that nothing contained in this Agreement shall be 

deemed or construed as creating a partnership or joint venture between the District 

and FLVS or any other Party or cause either Party to be responsible in any way for 

the debts and obligations of the other Party. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

(Signatures to follow on next page) 

Page 290 of 564

DRAFT



 
 

Page 21 of 34 

 

 

[Signature page to Franchise Agreement between 
Florida Virtual School and 

 

Dated Upon Full Execution] 
 

 

WHEREFORE, the Parties agree upon the foregoing terms and conditions of this Agreement 

and bind themselves to each other and to the covenants and promises herein stated through 

each of their authorized representatives/signatories below: 

 

FLORIDA VIRTUAL SCHOOL  

By (Authorized Signature) Date 

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing: Louis J. Algaze, Ph.D. – President and CEO 

Address: 5422 Carrier Drive, Suite 201, Orlando, FL 32819.  

  

Approved as to legal form and sufficiency by:  

FLVS Office of General Counsel  

THE SCHOOL BOARD OF   CLAY  COUNTY, FLORIDA  

By (Authorized Signature) Date 

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing: 
Ashley Gilhousen, SBCC/CCDS Board Chair 

 

Address: 900 Walnut St., Green Cove Springs, FL 32043  

  

Approved as to legal form and sufficiency by: 
 

 
 

School Board Attorney/Legal Counsel for School Board of Clay County, Florida 
Jeremiah Blocker, School Board Attorney 

Page 291 of 564

DRAFT



 
 

Page 22 of 34 

 

 

 
APPENDIX A - Course List and Fees 

Effective July 1, 2024, to June 30, 2025 

The Licensed Materials, which are the subject of the Florida Virtual School (FLVS) Franchise 
Agreement, including Licensed Course Content, Third Party Components, FLVS Virtual 
School Administrator, Registration, Student Information System, and the FLVS Learning 
Management System granted to the District and the fees payable to FLVS are outlined in the 
following table, “FLVS Course Offerings”. 

 
This list includes the most current version of all FLVS courses available for public release, 
except for those still in a pilot or BETA phase of development. 

 
FLVS reserves the right to discontinue the availability of any course listed herein with 
reasonable notice to the District. In so doing, FLVS will assure the students currently in the 
course are permitted to matriculate and complete their course in which they are currently 
enrolled. 

 
1. Fees 

This Course Offering list may be altered based on any additional course releases or 
enhancements during the year. The Course Catalog may be found at: 
https://www.flvs.net/high-school-courses. 

 

 

FLVS Course Offerings 

Course Name (*Franchise only offering) Price per segment 

ENGLISH/LANGUAGE ARTS 

Advanced Placement English Language and Composition 45.00 

Advanced Placement English Literature and Composition 45.00 

English 1 45.00 

English 1 for Credit Recovery* 45.00 

English 2 45.00 

English 2 for Credit Recovery* 45.00 

English 3 45.00 

English 3 for Credit Recovery* 45.00 

English 4 45.00 

English 4 for Credit Recovery* 45.00 

English 4: Florida College Prep 45.00 

Page 292 of 564

DRAFT



 
 

Page 23 of 34 

 

 

Journalism 1 45.00 

M/J Journalism 45.00 

M/J Language Arts 1 45.00 

M/J Language Arts 2 45.00 

M/J Language Arts 3 45.00 

Social Media 1 45.00 

MATHEMATICS 

Advanced Placement Calculus AB 50.00 

Advanced Placement Calculus BC 50.00 

Advanced Placement Statistics 45.00 

Algebra 1 45.00 

Algebra 1 for Credit Recovery* 45.00 

Algebra 1-A 45.00 

Algebra 2 45.00 

Calculus Honors 50.00 

Geometry 45.00 

Geometry for Credit Recovery* 45.00 

M/J Grade 6 Mathematics 48.00 

M/J Grade 7 Mathematics 48.00 

M/J Grade 8 Pre-Algebra 45.00 

Mathematics for College Algebra 57.00 

Mathematics for College Liberal Arts 45.00 

Mathematics for Data and Financial Literacy 45.00 

Pre-Calculus Honors 45.00 

Probability & Statistics with Applications Honors 45.00 

SCIENCE 

Advanced Placement Biology 45.00 

Advanced Placement Environmental Science 45.00 

Advanced Placement Physics 1 68.00 

Anatomy and Physiology 45.00 

Astronomy / Solar Galactic 45.00 

Biology 1 45.00 

Biology 1 for Credit Recovery* 45.00 

Chemistry 1 45.00 

Chemistry 1 for Credit Recovery* 45.00 

Earth/Space Science 45.00 

Page 293 of 564

DRAFT



 
 

Page 24 of 34 

 

 

Environmental Science (Guy Harvey) 45.00 

Forensic Science 58.00 

M/J Comprehensive Science 1 45.00 

M/J Comprehensive Science 2 45.00 

M/J Comprehensive Science 3 45.00 

M/J Computer Science Discoveries 1 45.00 

M/J Computer Science Discoveries 2 45.00 

Marine Science 1 45.00 

Physical Science 45.00 

Physics 1 45.00 

SOCIAL STUDIES 

Advanced Placement Human Geography 45.00 

Advanced Placement Macroeconomics 45.00 

Advanced Placement Microeconomics 45.00 

Advanced Placement United States Government and Politics 78.00 

Advanced Placement United States History 65.00 

Cambridge AICE Psychology 1 AS 82.00 

Economics 45.00 

Holocaust History 45.00 

Law Studies 67.00 

M/J Civics 45.00 

M/J United States History 45.00 

M/J United States History & Career Planning 45.00 

M/J World History 45.00 

M/J World History & Career Planning 45.00 

Personal Finance and Money Management 45.00 

Psychology 1 45.00 

United States Government 45.00 

United States Government for Credit Recovery* 45.00 

United States History 45.00 

United States History for Credit Recovery* 45.00 

World History 45.00 

World History for Credit Recovery* 45.00 

ART/VISUAL ART/MUSIC 

Advanced Placement Art History 45.00 

Art History and Criticism 1 Honors 45.00 

Page 294 of 564

DRAFT



 
 

Page 25 of 34 

 

 

Digital Art Imaging 1 48.00 

Guitar 1 60.00 

M/J Digital Art and Design 1 45.00 

M/J Exploring Music 48.00 

M/J Guitar 1 60.00 

M/J Visual Art 1 45.00 

M/J Visual Art 2 45.00 

Music of the World 45.00 

Theatre, Cinema, & Film Production 58.00 

Two-Dimensional Studio Art 1 45.00 

CAREER AND LIFE SKILLS 

Accounting Applications 1 75.00 

Advanced Placement Computer Science A (STEM) 58.00 

Allied Health Assisting 3 45.00 

Applications in Artificial Intelligence 67.00 

Artificial Intelligence in the World 67.00 

Career Research and Decision Making 67.00 

Critical Thinking and Study Skills 67.00 

Driver Education/Traffic Safety - Classroom 71.00 

Leadership Skills Development 67.00 

M/J Career Research & Decision Making 45.00 

M/J Critical Thinking, Problem Solving, and Learning Strategies 45.00 

M/J Peer Counseling 1 67.00 

Parenting Skills 67.00 

Peer Counseling 1 67.00 

Peer Counseling 2 67.00 

Peer Counseling 2 ELL 67.00 

CAREER TECHNICAL EDUCATION 

Agriscience Foundations 1 45.00 

Agriculture Communications 2 48.00 

Agriculture Communications 3 48.00 

Computer & Network Security Fundamentals 59.00 

Criminal Justice Operations 1 45.00 

Cybersecurity Essentials 45.00 

Digital Information Technology 68.00 

Foundations of Curriculum and Instruction 67.00 

Page 295 of 564

DRAFT



 
 

Page 26 of 34 

 

 

Foundations of Programming 45.00 

Hospitality and Tourism Marketing Management 67.00 

Human Growth and Development 48.00 

Introduction to Hospitality & Tourism 67.00 

Introduction to the Teaching Profession 67.00 

M/J Business Keyboarding 45.00 

M/J Coding Fundamentals 45.00 

Principles of Entrepreneurship 67.00 

Procedural Programming 45.00 

Technology for Hospitality and Tourism 45.00 

HEALTH/PHYSICAL EDUCATION 

Fitness Lifestyle Design 45.00 

Health 1 - Life Management Skills 45.00 

Health Science Foundations 45.00 

HOPE - Physical Education (Core) 45.00 

M/J Comprehensive Physical Education Grade 6/7 45.00 

M/J Comprehensive Physical Education Grade 7/8 45.00 

M/J Fitness - Grade 6 45.00 

Outdoor Education 80.00 

Personal Fitness 45.00 

WORLD LANGUAGE 

American Sign Language 1 45.00 

American Sign Language 2 45.00 

Chinese 1 45.00 

Chinese 2 45.00 

Chinese 3 Honors 45.00 

French 1 45.00 

French 2 45.00 

French 3 honors 45.00 

Hebrew 1 45.00 

Hebrew 2 45.00 

Latin 1 45.00 

Latin 2 45.00 

Latin 3 Honors 45.00 

M/J Spanish, Beginning 45.00 

M/J Spanish, Intermediate 45.00 

Page 296 of 564

DRAFT



 
 

Page 27 of 34 

 

 

Spanish 1 45.00 

Spanish 2 45.00 

Spanish 3 Honors 45.00 

Spanish 4 Honors 45.00 

Spanish for Spanish Speakers 1 45.00 

ELEMENTARY 

Language Arts - Kindergarten 48.00 

Language Arts - Grade One 48.00 

Language Arts - Grade Two 48.00 

Language Arts - Grade Three 48.00 

Language Arts - Grade Four 48.00 

Language Arts - Grade Five 48.00 

Mathematics - Kindergarten 45.00 

Mathematics – Grade One 45.00 

Mathematics - Grade Two 45.00 

Mathematics - Grade Three 45.00 

Mathematics - Grade Four 45.00 

Mathematics - Grade Five 45.00 

Science - Kindergarten 45.00 

Science – Grade One 45.00 

Science – Grade Two 45.00 

Science – Grade Three 45.00 

Science – Grade Four 45.00 

Science – Grade Five 45.00 

Social Studies - Kindergarten 45.00 

Social Studies – Grade One 45.00 

Social Studies – Grade Two 45.00 

Social Studies - Grade Three 45.00 

Social Studies – Grade Four 45.00 

Social Studies – Grade Five 45.00 

Introduction to Computer Science K 45.00 

Introduction to Computer Science 1 45.00 

Introduction to Computer Science 2 45.00 

Introduction to Computer Science 3 45.00 

Introduction to Computer Science 4 45.00 

Introduction to Computer Science 5 45.00 

Elementary Spanish Introductory Level 45.00 

Page 297 of 564

DRAFT



 
 

Page 28 of 34 

 

 

Elementary Spanish 1 45.00 

Elementary Spanish 2 45.00 

Elementary Spanish 3 45.00 

Elementary Spanish 4 45.00 

Elementary Spanish 5 45.00 

Elementary Physical Education K 45.00 

Elementary Physical Education 1 45.00 

Elementary Physical Education 2 45.00 

Elementary Physical Education 3 45.00 

Elementary Physical Education 4 45.00 

Elementary Physical Education 5 45.00 

Art - Grade Kindergarten 45.00 

Art - Grade 1 45.00 

Art - Grade 2 45.00 

Art - Intermediate 1 - Grade 3 45.00 

Art - Intermediate 2 - Grade 4 45.00 

Art - Intermediate 3 - Grade 5 45.00 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
[End of Course List] 

Page 298 of 564

DRAFT



 
 

Page 29 of 34 

 

 

APPENDIX B 

Teacher Acknowledgement Form 
 

FLVS Mission: 
Equip students for success by developing and delivering highly effective digital learning 
through an intuitive online platform. 

 
FLVS Vision: 
Lead online education worldwide with innovative digital solutions that individualize 
learning for each student. 

 
FLVS Values: 

▪ Excellence – Deliver the best. Always. 
▪ Innovation – Lead transformative learning. 

▪ Community – Build meaningful connections. 

▪ Balance – Embrace flexibility. 

▪ Communication – Listen, share, and collaborate openly. 

 
FLVS Commitment: 
The Student is at the center of every decision we make. 

 
FLVS Franchise Policy Guide: 
Communication and interaction are at the heart of our success. Research continues to 
show that Student-Teacher interaction is the key to a successful educational experience. 
Frequent Student-Teacher communication in the virtual learning environment requires 
commitment above and beyond the traditional workday by staff, as communication is the 
critical element to the success of the program. Florida Virtual School’s evaluation 
consistently shows an overwhelming need and appreciation for the frequent 
communication that is occurring between staff and Students. Voice-to-voice 
communication and email are considered essential and are expected on a regular basis. 
Teachers are expected to perform Discussion Based Assessments as scheduled and 
additional as needed. 

 
Academic Integrity: 
Academic Integrity, along with hiring the best and brightest instructional staff, is one of 
the core values at FLVS. It is one of the most important things we do as a learning 
organization. Done well, Students will make decisions based on values that will prepare 
them as productive, meaningful, and ethical citizens. All Franchise teachers will comply 
with the FLVS Academic Integrity policies and procedures, which can be found at: 
https://www.flvs.net/docs/default-source/myflvs/academicintegrity.pdf?sfvrsn=6 

Page 299 of 564

DRAFT



 
 

Page 30 of 34 

 

 

Welcome Phone Call: 
Prior to being granted access to their online course, students must have a Welcome 
Phone Call conversation with their instructors. During the initial Welcome Call, instructors 
will ask for a preferred method of contact. Instructors will make note of the preferred 
method and communicate student progress accordingly. 

 
Grading Student Work: 
1. A major component of proper communication is returning student work in a timely 

manner. It is the Florida Virtual School’s policy that all communication be returned 
within twenty-four (24) hours. Responding within twenty-four (24) hours does not 
have to include the grading of all work that was submitted the previous day. It is the 
responsibility of the instructor to inform students about the expected turnaround time 
on grading work that has been submitted. All work should be graded within forty- 
eight (48) hours of submission. 

 
2. Florida Virtual School uses the state-adopted grading scale. Per Section 1003.437, 

Florida Statutes, Middle and High School (grades 6-12) Grading System: 
a) Grade A equals ninety percent (90%) through one hundred percent (100%). 
b) Grade B equals eighty percent (80%) through eighty-nine percent (89%). 
c) Grade C equals seventy percent (70%) through seventy-nine percent (79%). 
d) Grade D equals sixty percent (60%) through sixty-nine percent (69%). 
e) Grade F equals zero percent (0%) through fifty-nine percent (59%). 
f) W – Student withdrawn during the grace period. No credit awarded. 
g) WF – Student withdraws past grace period with a failing grade at the time 

of withdrawal. No credit awarded. 
h) WP – Student withdraws past grace period with a passing grade at the 

time of withdrawal. No credit awarded. 
i) P – Indicates that credit was awarded based on the student passing a state- 

administered End of Course (EOC) assessment instead of completing one 
hundred percent (100%) of the course materials. Florida refers to this as a 
Credit Acceleration Program (CAP) credit. However, Florida has instituted 
EOC exams for select courses. A final grade issued by FLVS in one (1) of 
the EOC exam courses may be interpreted differently based on district 
policies in effect at the time of enrollment and/or completion, and specific 
requirements per Florida Statute. 

 
Each Florida School District reserves the right to input FLVS statuses into their 
county transcript system based on their specific student progression plan and/or 
reporting capabilities. 

Page 300 of 564

DRAFT



 
 

Page 31 of 34 

 

 

 

 
Final Exam Policy: 
The purpose of the final exam is to assist in validating that Students have 
demonstrated mastery of key course concepts and standards. The final exam, unto 
itself, is not the sole determiner of Student achievement; however, students are 
required to take a final exam in all FLVS courses. 

 
For Courses with state-required EOC exams, the District may act in accordance with 
District policy. 

 
To maintain the integrity of all FLVS grades, instructors may choose to facilitate 
random oral assessments and/or face-to-face exams. 

 
Minimum Length of Courses: 
To ensure that Students are mastering content within their courses, it is important to 
remember that the fourteen (14) day minimum learning experience for all half-credit 
courses and a twenty-eight (28) day minimum for all full-credit courses remains in 
effect. For Students to successfully complete a skill-based course with specific course 
requirements, such as a time component (i.e., workout logs in Personal Fitness), a 
longer minimum learning experience may be required. 

 
As noted in the statement above, skill-based courses with a time component require a 
longer minimum stay. PE courses fall into that category. 

 

Personal Fitness (PF): Twenty-one (21) Days 

Fitness Lifestyle Design (FLD): Twenty-four (24) Days 

Health Opportunities in Physical Education Twenty-one (21) Days 

 
Documentation of Student Work: 
All Student assessment records should be kept in the FLVS course management 
system. Primarily, Student work will be completed within the course management 
system. Keep digital documentation of any Student assessments given by phone or in 
the chat room. Create a system for storing work that would be logical to anyone. 
Record the assessment grade and comments in the LMS. All email communication with 
Students must be maintained within the LMS. 

Page 301 of 564

DRAFT



 
 

Page 32 of 34 

 

 

 

 
As a Florida District Learning and Service Agreement Teacher, I have read and agree to 
abide by all FLVS Instructional Polices as found at: 
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1XBOfvyw9DBY7rnV_mvpady78GovoCXx2/view 

 
 
 

 

Teacher Name Certification Areas 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Teacher Signature Date 
 
 
 
 

 

Franchise Leader Date 

 
Please submit this form to the Franchise Manager within thirty (30) Business Days of 
Teacher employment with your Franchise School. 

Page 302 of 564

DRAFT



 
 

APPENDIX C 

Page 33 of 34 

 

 

 
Steps for Enforcement 

 
To ensure that its products and services are properly presented, FLVS reserves the 
right to review both the individual and overall performance of the District. Based on 
defined expectations for performance and policy/procedure alignment, FLVS will notify 
the District representative of any discrepancies so that the representative may take 
immediate action to correct the issue(s). FLVS may assist in providing additional tools 
and/or training at the expense of the District. Should the discrepancies continue, either 
with or without remediation, FLVS reserves the right to have a non-performing individual 
removed from the District program and/or terminate the Agreement with the District. 

 
Step One: Verbal Warning 
1. Memo to file summarizing the discussion. 
2. The District may file a written document outlining an opposing view with FLVS 

Franchise Manager, Director, and Chief. 
3. Verbal communication with the District Franchise Leader to identify deficiencies 

with a plan for correction of identified deficiencies to bring the Franchise back into 
compliance within seven (7) Business Days. 

4. If a deficiency is not corrected within seven (7) Business Days with the District 
back in compliance with the District Agreement, parties involved will attend 
mandatory training with costs being incurred by the District. 

 
Step Two: Probation 

1. Should the discrepancies continue, FLVS will place the District on probation for no 
longer than one (1) year. This probationary action shall not prevent students 
currently enrolled in FLVS courses to complete those courses. 

Page 303 of 564

DRAFT



 
 

APPENDIX D 

Page 34 of 34 

 

 

Florida Virtual School  
Branding and Media Policy 

 
FLVS Branding Policy: 

• Include the registered trademark ® symbol after the first mention of Florida Virtual 
School or FLVS on all newly created marketing pieces, and include the following 
trademark statement: 

Florida Virtual School and FLVS are registered trademarks of Florida Virtual School, a 
public school district of the State of Florida. 

 

• “Florida Virtual School” and “FLVS” are the only approved school name and 
abbreviation. “The Florida Virtual School,” “Florida Virtual,” and “Florida Virtual 
Schools” are not approved for use. 

• Never use FLVS or Florida Virtual School possessively. 
 

• Provide the FLVS Senior Director of Partner Services with a copy of all new 
marketing/informational pieces that mention Florida Virtual School or FLVS. 

 
FLVS Media Relations Policy: 

• Notify the FLVS Communications Manager and the FLVS Senior Director of 
Partner Services upon receiving an inquiry from the media, or directly upon 
completion of an interview if prior notice is not possible. 

o Tania Clow, Communications Manager: 407-513-3627, tclow@flvs.net 
o Larry Banks, Senior Director of Partner Services: 407-484-4031, 

lbanks@flvs.net 
 

• Media Resources Available: 
o FLVS Newsroom (flvs.net/news) – View news releases, annual reports, 

district enrollment summary, research documents, and FLVS leadership 
members. 

 

• When speaking about enrollment numbers, we ask that you clarify that the 
numbers are for your franchise specifically. If you need current enrollment data for 
FLVS, please reach out to the FLVS Communications Manager or FLVS Senior 
Director of Partner Services. 

Page 304 of 564

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

May 2, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C9 - Approval for the Purchase of i-Ready Mathematics K-5 for the 2024-2025 School Year

Description
i-Ready Mathematics is an online program that provides students of all ages with differentiated instruction and supports them in
their paths to success. Students gain experience through concrete examples and engaging lessons. Its responsive instruction
provides consistent insight into student understanding and performance on standards, enabling teachers to monitor their student’s
progress and help them prepare for standards-based assessments and beyond. The data from the i-Ready Assessment empowers
teachers with a deeper knowledge of their students’ needs. Based on research into assessment design and backed by extensive
validity evidence, sophisticated data is transformed into meaningful, actionable insights that make differentiating instruction a
reality for teachers. A suite of intuitive reports provides a common language through which teachers and administrators can work
toward the shared goal of student achievement.

Gap Analysis
i-Ready Mathematics is an effective program for addressing the achievement gaps among students with significant math
deficiencies. Using a gap analysis approach, it identifies the specific skill gaps of each student and provides them with a
prescriptive pathway designed to fill those gaps. This approach helps ensure that students are not left behind because of past
learning difficulties and receive the necessary support to achieve grade-level proficiency. The Beginning-of-Year(BOY), Middle-
of-Year (MOY), and End-of-Year (EOY) progress monitoring data generated by i-Ready Diagnostic for math (K-5) also provide
valuable insights into student progress over time, which can be used to adjust instruction and ensure that it meets all students'
needs. By leveraging this data, educators can make data-driven decisions that lead to better student outcomes and ultimately
narrow the achievement gaps among students with significant math deficiencies. i-Ready Mathematics is a powerful tool for
addressing the achievement gaps in math, ensuring that all students have access to high-quality instruction that prepares them for
future academic success.

Previous Outcomes
i-Ready Mathematics: Based on beginning of year (BOY) i-Ready Mathematics student performance data compared to EOY
student performance data, students working on grade level increased from 18% to 67%, students working one grade level below
decreased from 63% to 28%, and students working two or more grade levels below decreased from 28% to 6% during the 2022-
2023 school year.

Expected Outcomes
The expected outcome of implementing i-Ready Mathematics in grades K-5 is to significantly improve math proficiency among
all students, including those with substantial math deficiencies, by enriching their skill development and reinforcing grade-level
standards mastery. This approach will enhance Tier I core instruction by embedding critical foundational skills development,
leading to better student achievement outcomes. Additionally, this program is expected to help narrow the achievement gaps
among students with significant math deficiencies, ultimately ensuring that all students have access to supplemental high-quality
math instruction that prepares them for future academic success.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 1. Engage all students to attain the necessary skills and knowledge to be future-ready graduates.

Recommendation
The Clay County School Board approves the purchase of an i-Ready Mathematics site and student licenses, teacher toolbox, and
professional development for grades K- 5 for the 2024-2025 school year.

Contact
Heather Teto, Chief of Elementary Education, 904-336-6909, heather.teto@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
For 2024-2025, the fiscal impact of the i-Ready site and student licenses, teacher toolbox, and professional development will not
exceed $471,646.50 from the 2024-2025 SAI allocation and Title II funds.

Page 305 of 564

DRAFT



Review Comments

Attachments

240152 - Curriculum Associates Contract - pending Board approval.pdf

Page 306 of 564

DRAFT



Page 307 of 564

DRAFT



Page 308 of 564

DRAFT



Page 309 of 564

DRAFT



Page 310 of 564

DRAFT



Page 311 of 564

DRAFT



4/9/2024

Page 312 of 564

DRAFT



Page 313 of 564

DRAFT



4/9/2024

Page 314 of 564

DRAFT



Page 315 of 564

DRAFT



Page 316 of 564

DRAFT



Page 317 of 564

DRAFT



4/9/2024

Page 318 of 564

DRAFT



4/9/2024

Page 319 of 564

DRAFT



4/9/2024

Page 320 of 564

DRAFT



Page 321 of 564

DRAFT



Page 322 of 564

DRAFT



Page 323 of 564

DRAFT



Page 324 of 564

DRAFT



Page 325 of 564

DRAFT



Page 326 of 564

DRAFT



Page 327 of 564

DRAFT



Page 328 of 564

DRAFT



Page 329 of 564

DRAFT



Page 330 of 564

DRAFT



Page 331 of 564

DRAFT



Page 332 of 564

DRAFT



Page 333 of 564

DRAFT



Page 334 of 564

DRAFT



Page 335 of 564

DRAFT



Page 336 of 564

DRAFT



Page 337 of 564

DRAFT



Page 338 of 564

DRAFT



Page 339 of 564

DRAFT



Page 340 of 564

DRAFT



Page 341 of 564

DRAFT



Page 342 of 564

DRAFT



Page 343 of 564

DRAFT



Page 344 of 564

DRAFT



Page 345 of 564

DRAFT



Page 346 of 564

DRAFT



Page 347 of 564

DRAFT



Page 348 of 564

DRAFT



Page 349 of 564

DRAFT



Page 350 of 564

DRAFT



Page 351 of 564

DRAFT



Page 352 of 564

DRAFT



Page 353 of 564

DRAFT



Page 354 of 564

DRAFT



Page 355 of 564

DRAFT



Page 356 of 564

DRAFT



Page 357 of 564

DRAFT



Page 358 of 564

DRAFT



Page 359 of 564

DRAFT



Page 360 of 564

DRAFT



Page 361 of 564

DRAFT



Page 362 of 564

DRAFT



Page 363 of 564

DRAFT



Page 364 of 564

DRAFT



Page 365 of 564

DRAFT



Page 366 of 564

DRAFT



Page 367 of 564

DRAFT



Page 368 of 564

DRAFT



Page 369 of 564

DRAFT



Page 370 of 564

DRAFT



Page 371 of 564

DRAFT



Page 372 of 564

DRAFT



Page 373 of 564

DRAFT



Page 374 of 564

DRAFT



Page 375 of 564

DRAFT



Page 376 of 564

DRAFT



Page 377 of 564

DRAFT



Page 378 of 564

DRAFT



Page 379 of 564

DRAFT



Page 380 of 564

DRAFT



Page 381 of 564

DRAFT



Page 382 of 564

DRAFT



Page 383 of 564

DRAFT



Page 384 of 564

DRAFT



Page 385 of 564

DRAFT



Page 386 of 564

DRAFT



Page 387 of 564

DRAFT



Page 388 of 564

DRAFT



Page 389 of 564

DRAFT



Page 390 of 564

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

May 2, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C10 - Affiliation Agreement between Clay County District Schools and University of Central Florida (UCF)

Description
This agreement is between Clay County District Schools and University of Central Florida for UCF students to participate in
field and clinical experiences under the direction of a qualified mentor educator in Clay County schools.

Gap Analysis
Without this agreement, interns from University of Central Florida cannot be placed in Clay County District Schools and would
thereby prevent potential teacher candidates from choosing Clay to begin their career.

Previous Outcomes
Clay County District Schools currently has active agreements with 22 Colleges/Universities, and does not have a current
agreement with UCF.  This agreement would allow teacher candidates from UCF to be placed in Clay.

Expected Outcomes
Placement of teacher candidates provides real-world experiences to better prepare them for the rigors of teaching in the Prek-12
educational setting.  UCF is currently requesting the placement of 1 student, and this agreement will allow for future interns to be
placed over the duration of the contract period.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 2: Talent Recruitment, Development, and Retention
 
Strategy 1.1: Develop strategic partnerships with organizations and universities to source new talent for a diverse workforce that
is effective and highly-qualified for non-instructional, instructional, and administrative positions throughout CCDS

Recommendation
That the Clay County School Board approve the agreement between Clay County District Schools and University of Central
Florida.

Contact
Roger Dailey,  Chief Academic Officer, 904.336.6904  roger.dailey@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
$0

Review Comments

Attachments

240141 UCF Teacher Internship.pdf

Page 391 of 564

DRAFT



240141

No cost

By Elaine at 3:38 pm, Feb 22, 2024

By Bertha Staefe at 4:11 pm, Mar 04, 2024

JPS

3/7/24

Approved. 

Page 392 of 564

DRAFT



Page 393 of 564

DRAFT



Page 394 of 564

DRAFT



Page 395 of 564

DRAFT



Page 396 of 564

DRAFT



Page 397 of 564

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

May 2, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C11 - Library Media Services Manual

Description
The Library Media Services Manual provides information regarding the implementation of state and local policies related to
CCDS libraries.  The manual serves as a tool for the purpose of standardization of procedures for school and district level staff
responsible for libraries.
It is important for library personnel to be familiar with the procedures, and guidelines applicable to CCDS libraries. Contents of
this document are based on: 1. Current regulations, 2. State and County policies, and 3. Standardized procedures.

Gap Analysis
Adopting the 2024 Library Media Services Manual ensures Clay County meets the requirements of the Statutes and Regulations
regarding library services. 

Previous Outcomes
The previous manual was approved by the board.

Expected Outcomes
The manual will provide clear responsibilities for school and district library personnel.

Strategic Plan Goal
GOAL 1:1: Strengthen our high-quality instructional system through increased alignment to state standards, with an emphasis on
literacy.

Recommendation
That the School Board approve the Library Media Services Manual.

Contact
Roger Dailey, Chief Academic Officer, roger.dailey@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact

Review Comments

Attachments

Library Media Services Manual May 2024 (Draft) (1).pdf

Page 398 of 564

DRAFT



DR
AF
T

Page 399 of 564

DRAFT



DR
AF
T

Clay County District Schools
Green Cove Springs, Florida

David Broskie
Superintendent of Clay County District Schools

Library Media Services Manual

Including a description of state and district policy regarding
selection, funding and allocation of media and library materials.

Clay County District Schools Board Members:
Erin Skipper, District 1
Mary Bolla, District 2
Beth Clark, District 3

Michele Hanson, District 4
Ashley Gilhousen, District 5

Page 400 of 564

DRAFT



DR
AF
T

Page 401 of 564

DRAFT



DR
AF
T

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Preface 1
Statutes, Guidelines and Standards 1
State Library Media Training 1
Copyright 1
Personnel Responsible for Selection 2
Collection Development 2
Selection Criteria 2
School Library Media Advisory Committee 4
Comprehensive Plan 4
Inventory/End of Year Procedures 4
Weeding Overview 5
Discard Process/Surveying Equipment 6
Collection Access for Students 6

Page 402 of 564

DRAFT



DR
AF
T

Preface
The Library Media Services Procedure Manual is designed to be a guide for library media staff
throughout the county. It provides a guideline for school faculty and staff to refer to with questions
about the CCSD library services.

The primary objective of the library media center is to implement, enrich, and support the educational
program of the school. The library media center shall provide a wide range of materials on all levels of
difficulty, with diversity of appeal, and with the representation of different points of view.

The Library Media Services Policy Manual will be reviewed annually by the School Board.

Statutes, Guidelines and Standards
Florida Statute 1006.28 (1) (d)
(d) School library media services; establishment and maintenance.—Establish and maintain a
program of school library media services for all public schools in the district, including school
library media centers, or school library media centers open to the public, and, in addition such
traveling or circulating libraries as may be needed for the proper operation of the district school
system. Upon written request, a school district shall provide access to any material or book
specified in the request that is maintained in a district school system library and is available for
review.

State Library Media Training
In 2022, section 1006.29 (6) was amended by House Bill 1467 to require the Department of
Education to develop an online training program for librarians, media specialists and other
personnel involved in the selection and maintenance of library collections and materials on
reading lists. Beginning January 1, 2023 this training must be taken annually by such persons
before reviewing and selecting library materials.

No later than July 1, 2023, and annually thereafter, each superintendent must certify that all school
librarians and media specialists employed by the district have completed the online training program.

Copyright
Infringement of copyright protection is a violation of federal law. The CCDS complies with all federal
copyright laws. It is the responsibility of each principal and library media specialist to inform the
faculty and staff of current copyright laws concerning print and non-print materials. The library
media specialist should document annually how the information has been presented to the school. The
library media specialist is not a “copyright policeman.” Enforcement of copyright is the administrator’s
responsibility.

1
Page 403 of 564

DRAFT



DR
AF
T

Personnel Responsible for Selection
HB 1467 signed by the Governor on March 25, 2022 and became effective on July 1, 2022
requires that each material in a school library or assigned school- or grade-level reading list be
selected by a certified educational media specialist who holds a valid educational media specialist
certificate, regardless of whether the book was purchased, donated, or otherwise made available
to the students.

Beginning January 1, 2023, each school district shall provide training to school librarians, and
media specialists, and other personnel; involved in the selection of school district library materials
must complete the training program developed pursuant to s. 1006.29(6) before reviewing and
selecting.

School principals are responsible for overseeing compliance with school district procedures for
selecting school library media center materials at the school to which they are assigned.

Collection Development
Library collection development can be defined as “the ongoing process of systematically building
high-quality print and non-print information resources to meet the informed needs of a particular district
or school.” Collection development primarily focuses on the acquisition of print, non-print, and other
library materials by a trained librarian or school library media specialist for school staff, students and
community stakeholders.

The library media collection is developed in accordance with the district's educational media
materials selection policy and Florida statute 1006.28.

Each elementary school must publish on its website, in a searchable format prescribed by the
department, a list of all materials maintained in the school library media center.

Three Goals of Collection Development
1. A good collection development policy provides guidelines for the selection of materials for the

library that are balanced. Examples of a balanced collection include fiction, nonfiction and the
inclusion of opposing viewpoints.

2. Collection development also provides guidelines for retention, preservation, and archiving of
materials.

3. Collection development policies describe the ongoing process for removal of inappropriate
materials including the regular removal or discontinuation of books based on criteria provided in
s. 1006.28(2)(d), F.S.

Selection Criteria
Materials should be selected by certified educational media specialist considering
recommendations from school community stakeholders and reputable, professionally recognized
reviewing periodicals. These materials should support the school’s curriculum and contribute to
the learning goals of teachers and students. Selections should include a wide variety of materials,
both print and non-print.

2
Page 404 of 564

DRAFT



DR
AF
T

No library material shall be used, distributed, or made available to students if it contains content that
can meet the requirements found in the “harmful to minors” statute. Districts should err on the side of
caution with regards to material that is potentially harmful to minors and in violation of s. 847.012,
Florida Statutes.

The material selection procedures for developing library media center collections noted below
must be posted on the website for each school within the district.

All library media centers share three basic goals:
● To meet the needs of reader interest
● To support the state academic standards and aligned curriculum
● To support the academic needs of students and faculty

Book and media selections must meet the criteria in s. 1006.40(3)(d):
● Free of pornography and material prohibited under s. 847.012
● Suited to student needs and their ability to comprehend the material presented
● Appropriate for the grade level and age group for which the materials are used or made

available

Media considered for purchase are judged on the basis of the following criteria:
● Purpose – overall purpose and its direct relationship to instructional objectives and/or the

curriculum
● Reliability – accurate, authentic
● Quality – writing and/or production of merit
● Treatment – clear, comprehensible, skillful, convincing, well-organized
● Technical production – aurally and visually appealing, well-crafted, up-to-date
● Construction – durable, manageable, functional, attractive, well-packaged, safe
● Special features – useful illustrations, photographs, maps, graphics, charts, graphs,

documentation, sound, user-friendly
● Possible uses – individual, small and large group instruction, in-depth study

When choosing materials for the library media center, choose materials that are age appropriate by
taking into consideration the ages, grade-levels, levels of maturity, reading levels and special curricular
needs and programs of your school or district. Materials should reflect all levels of abilities from
struggling readers through those that are advanced. Special curricular needs may include materials for
English language learners, gifted learners, and schools that may have specialized programs such as
technology magnets, and advanced programs.

Section 1006.28(2)(d)2, F.S., states that the consultation of reputable, professionally recognized
reviewing periodicals and school community stakeholders is required. Consultation with stakeholders
and professional periodicals can provide information helpful to ensure the selection criteria set out in
statute, rule, and policy are met.

3
Page 405 of 564

DRAFT



DR
AF
T

School Library Media Advisory Committee
It is recommended that a School Library Media Advisory Committee be established. The
members of this committee will receive instruction annually by the library media specialist and
meet at least twice a year.

This committee may consist of:
● Principal or principal’s representative
● Media specialist(s)
● Teachers – at least one per grade level/department
● Parent of a student at the school (Minimum of one)
● Students (when appropriate).

The School Library Media Advisory Committee’s activities may include:
● Assisting with book fairs and other community activities that strengthen or promote the

media program
● Review and make recommendations on challenged materials and resources
● Providing leadership in collaborative teaching
● Promoting resource-based learning
● Soliciting purchasing recommendations from other teachers and students
● Consulting recommended selection tools
● Recommending purchase priorities in light of available funds using District guidelines

Comprehensive Plan
Every library media specialist should make plans for the library media center for the upcoming
year. A written comprehensive plan is an effective way to show the principal, staff, and School
Improvement Committee the needs of your media center.

This plan should include goals, objectives, an action plan, and evaluation. Items which could be
included are the addition of networked computers for student/teacher use, maintenance of state
standards for library materials, replacement of worn or broken equipment, addition of new
technologies, professional development activities, etc.

This plan should be written and shared with the principal before the principal begins planning for
the school’s budget year.One copy of your plan should be discussed with your principal and one
copy should go to the District Instructional Media Services Specialist. The Comprehensive Plan
will be completed annually in the Spring.

Inventory/End of Year Procedures
A complete and accurate inventory of all materials and equipment must be taken each school
year and recorded. The library media specialist and the media technical assistant, along with
library media volunteers, are responsible for conducting this inventory. Clay County District
Schools requires an inventory report to be submitted to the District Instructional Media Services
Specialist and the local designated school administrator.

4
Page 406 of 564

DRAFT



DR
AF
T

Inventories will be started at the beginning of each school year by the District Instructional Media
Services Specialist. School media specialists will need to notify the District Instructional Media
Services Specialist of completion of the inventory in order for it to be finalized.

Required by Florida State Statutes, completing an inventory:
● Helps assure appropriate selections by identifying weak areas or gaps in the collection
● Helps assess the extent to which students and teachers are provided a wide variety of

resources suitable to different learning styles and curriculum areas
● Helps identify resources that need minor repairs or those that should be discarded

(physical condition, outdated or inaccurate materials, duplicate copies)
● Assists Clay County District Schools and the Florida Department of Education in

assessing the current status of media collections in the schools and in relating to the
legislature the need for financial resources

● Serves as documentation for insurance purposes in case of a disaster.

All items owned by the school, barcoded with Follett Destiny-compatible barcodes, housed in the
library media center or other school location must be inventoried and accounted for.

Weeding Overview
Weeding (also known as deselection) is an essential part of collection development; weeding
ensures that the library media center materials are current, useful, and accessible. All library
media centers are limited by the amount of space available to house materials; weeding is a
continuous evaluation of resources intended to remove items that are worn out or no longer useful
from the collection. Media centers provide for the regular removal; or discontinuance of books
based on, at a minimum, physical condition, rate of recent circulation, alignment to state academic
standards and relevancy to curriculum, and out-of-date content.

Weeding (also known as deselection) is an essential part of collection development; weeding ensures
that the library media center materials are current, useful, and accessible. All library media centers are
limited by the amount of space available to house materials; weeding is a continuous evaluation of
resources intended to remove items that are worn out or no longer useful from the collection.

Media centers provide for the regular removal; or discontinuance of books based on, at a minimum:
● Outdated content
● Circulation Data
● Age appropriateness of material for the school community
● Information that us biased, racist, or sexist
● Relevance of the material to the needs and interests of students and staff
● Availability of an updated copy of the material
● Multiple copies of the same title and circulation data
● Availability as an online database
● Physical condition of the material

5
Page 407 of 564

DRAFT



DR
AF
T

Discard Process/Surveying Equipment
The final decision to discard materials from the library media collection is made by the media
specialist. Weeded materials must be physically removed from the library media center collection.

Teachers may choose any discarded materials for special classroom collections if the information
in the text is accurate and the material is appropriate. Any materials to be discarded should be
boxed, marked as discarded library books and placed with discarded textbooks at your school.
Disposal of Instructional Materials: Florida Statute 1006.41

When a piece of equipment is damaged beyond repair or is outdated and no longer serves a
viable purpose in the instructional program, it may be surveyed. Contact the property
administrator in your school before you survey equipment.

Collection Access for Students

As parents are the ultimate decision maker for their child(ren), CCDS strongly supports a parent’s right
to determine titles that are appropriate or inappropriate for their child to read. At the start of each school
year, parents must decide if their child has permission to check out titles from the school’s collection.
Parents can also elect to receive a daily email in order to remain updated on their child’s library activity.

CCDS recognizes that each family views book subject matter and content differently. Book titles vary in
subject matter and content. To ensure that parents approve of their child accessing titles with more
mature content, titles flagged as mature will require parents to select the Unlimited Library Access
option on the Secondary Library Book Access Level form. The Board approved community standards
are to help ensure that parents are able to make more fully informed decisions about what their student
is reading and is considered appropriate by each parent.

● General access: General Access provides access to check out library books excluding titles that
may be flagged Parental Advisory Status. This access level serves as the default pending
parental selection of other options.

● Unlimited access: This option allows secondary students unlimited access to all materials in the
library, including the secondary books that may be flagged as Parental Advisory Status.

● Limited access: Provides parents with the ability to limit their child’s access to certain books in
the library.

● No access: Student is prohibited by their parent(s) from checking out books from the library.
● Daily Emails: A parent may opt to receive daily afternoon emails listing materials checked out by

their student.

6
Page 408 of 564

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

May 2, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C12 - Proclamation of Mental Health Month May 2024

Description
The world around us is ever changing and it is important that we prioritize our mental health and recognizes the importance of
coordinated mental health services in promoting the academic success of our students.

Gap Analysis

Previous Outcomes

Expected Outcomes
The citizens of Clay County will recognize and further support coordinated mental health services that support children, youth,
young adults, and families.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 4: Safe and Positive Learning Environment
Strategy 1: Enhance supports surrounding student mental health and wellness.

Recommendation

Contact
 Laura Fogarty 904-336-6513 laura.fogarty@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

2024 Mental Health Awareness Month Proclamation.pdf

Page 409 of 564

DRAFT



SCHOOL BOARD OF CLAY COUNTY, FLORIDA
PROCLAMATION # 24-21

Mental Health Awareness Month

WHEREAS, the need for comprehensive, coordinated mental health services for children, youth, 
young adults, and families places a critical responsibility on our community; and

WHEREAS, it is appropriate that Clay County District Schools dedicate a time each year to 
raise the awareness of mental health; and

WHEREAS, Clay County District Schools, through its unique approach to providing
resources to students and families with mental health needs, is striving to effectively help 
students be more successful; and

WHEREAS, Clay County District Schools, encourages its citizens to participate in uniting to 
meet the mental health needs of children and youth in our community; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the School Board of Clay County, Florida, does 
hereby proclaim May 2024 as Mental Health Month.

Duly adopted and approved by the School Board of Clay County, Florida, this 2nd day of 
May, 2024

ATTEST:

_________________________________
David S. Broskie
Superintendent of Schools
Clay County, Florida

____________________________________
Ashley Gilhousen, School Board Chair

Page 410 of 564

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

May 2, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C13 - Approval to Advertise and Notice of Public Hearing 2024-2025 Student & Family Handbook and Code of Student
Conduct

Description
Per statutory requirements, the 2024-2025 Code of Student Conduct is being noticed prior to its official adoption by the School
Board of Clay County.  The Code of Student Conduct is a policy adopted by the district that defines and describes the expected
behavior of students while in the learning environment and is a guide for administrators on addressing conduct infractions
through intervention and consequences.
 

Gap Analysis
The Code of Student Conduct is updated annually to address new statutory requirements and strengthen existing language based
on a review of discipline data profiles.
 

Previous Outcomes
The Code of Conduct was enforced with fidelity by each school.
 

Expected Outcomes
By publicly advertising this revised version of the Student Handbook and the Code of Student Conduct per statutory regulation,
the District will continue its cycle of compliance with the Florida Department of Education and allow for public input on the
practices and procedures related to student rights and responsibilities as well as how the District handles student misbehavior
while in the learning environment.
 

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal: Goal 4 Strengthen the overall physical and emotional environment to foster an environment of safety and belonging for
students, staff, and all stakeholders.
Strategy:  4.2: Develop systems and processes that focus on developing the whole child. Cultivate and sustain resilience, respect
and positive behavior through the training and implementation of student-centered, evidence-based practices.
 
 

Recommendation
That the Clay County School Board will approve the advertisement of the 2024-2025 Student Handbook and Student Code of
Conduct, and set the public hearing for June 6th, 2024.

Contact
Roger Dailey, Chief Academic Officer, roger.dailey@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Summary of Changes - 24_25 Code of Conduct.pdf

Board Redline Copy - 2024_2025 - CCDS Student and Family Handbook and Code of Student Conduct.pdf

Page 411 of 564

DRAFT



Legal Adv. Notice of PH Student and Family Handbook and Code of Student Conduct.pdf

Page 412 of 564

DRAFT



 Summary of Changes 
 2024-2025 Student Code of Conduct 

 The following is a summary of updates and revisions to the student code of conduct. 

 ●  Entire Document  - Dates updated to reflect current  year. 
 ●  Entire Document  - Will be justified and pages assigned  once finalized. 
 ●  Entire Document  - Section and subsection numbers assigned  for ease of reference. 
 ●  Table of Contents  - Changes/Addition of sections and  pages updated. Additional 

 sections added to highlight added procedures/information. Page numbers will be 
 adjusted once the deleted portions are removed. 

 Section 1 - Introduction 

 1.1 - Superintendent’s 
 Message  (pg 3) 

 Updated 

 Section 2 - Mission, Vision, and Philosophy 

 Our Philosophy  (pg 5)  Removed misleading language 

 Section 3 - Student Rights and Responsibilities 

 3.6 - Student 
 Publications  (pg 8) 

 Moved statement to appropriate place 

 3.8 - Role of Home, 
 Student, and School  (pg 
 9) 

 Added recommended language 

 3.9, 3.10, 3.11  (pg 10-11)  Moved under Rights and Responsibilities instead of being under 
 Equal Opportunity. 

 Section 4 - Equal Opportunity: Prevention of Discrimination, Harassment, and Bullying 

 4.1 Notice of 
 Non-Discrimination  (pg 
 11) 

 Deleted language has to do with employees and hiring practice 
 and is found in the employee handbook. 

 Section 5 - Attendance 

 5.1 - Compulsory 
 School Attendance 
 (pgs 16-17) 

 ●  Updated language to reflect more student and parent 
 friendly language 

 ●  Removed language that outlines district establishment of 
 procedures. 

 5.3 - Make-Up Work  (pg 
 18) 

 Moved the section to more applicable location. 

Page 413 of 564

DRAFT



 5.6 - Attendance 
 Requirements for 
 Minors to Maintain 
 Driving Privileges  (pg 
 19) 

 Updated language to make it more student and parent friendly 

 5.7 - McKinney-Vento 
 Homeless Assistance 
 Act  (pg 20) 

 Updated language to match statute changes. 

 Section 6 - Student Conduct 

 6.2 - Dress Code  (pg 21)  Non-Permitted Apparel - #5 added language approved/acceptable 
 face covering 

 6.4 - Wireless 
 Communication 
 Devices  (pgs 23-24) 

 ●  Changed language to reflect statute changes from HB 379 
 ●  Clarified Secondary Only permissions. 

 6.9 - Zero Tolerance 
 Rule  (pg 26) 

 Added language about Threat Assessment Protocol 

 Section 7 - Student Accountability, Discipline, and Misconduct 

 7.7 - Weapons in 
 School  (pg 33) 

 Removed authorization of weapon at school. 

 7.10 - Discipline Action 
 Matrix  (pg 35) 

 Matched DSP code with definition in appendix 

 7.12 Discipline and 
 Students with 
 Disabilities  (pg 38-49) 

 ●  Updated language to be more user friendly 
 ●  Updated procedures to reflect current District practice and 

 alignment to policy. 

 7.13 - Procedural 
 Safeguards for 
 Students With 
 Disabilities  (pg 39) 

 Section renamed to reflect current language 

 Section - 8 Student Safety 

 8.1 - Threat 
 Management 
 Assessment  (pg 41) 

 Updated language to meet current Statute 

 8.2 & 8.3  (pg 41)  Added links for Fortify and Safer Watch 

 Section 10 - Other Important Information for Families 

 10.1 - Family 
 Educational Rights and 

 Added language to FERPA rights for Dual Enrollment Students 

Page 414 of 564

DRAFT



 Privacy Act (FERPA) 
 (pg 45-46) 

 Appendix A & B: Glossary & Behavior Infraction Codes 

 (pg 59-70)  ●  Removed SEL 
 ●  Updated  SESIR  language and terms to match state 

 requirements. 
 ●  Updated  SESIR  Examples and Non Examples to align 

 with those published by the FLDOE 
 ●  Linked All  SESIR  Events to the FLDOE  SESIR  definitions. 

Page 415 of 564

DRAFT



 Student and Family Handbook 
 and Code of Student Conduct 

 2024 - 2025 

 David S. Broskie 
 Superintendent of Schools 

 CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL BOARD 

 District 1:  Erin Skipper 
 District 2:  Mary Bolla 
 District 3:  Beth Clark 
 District 4:  Michele Hanson 
 District 5:  Ashley Gilhousen 

 Clay County District Schools 

Page 416 of 564

DRAFT



 Table of Contents 

 Table of Contents  1 

 Section 1 -  Introduction  3 
 1.1 -  Superintendent's Message  3 
 1.2 -  Jurisdiction of the School Board  3 

 Section 2 -  Mission, Vision, and Philosophy  4 

 Section 3 -  Student Rights and Responsibilities  5 
 3.1 -  School Participation  5 
 3.2 -  Learning Experiences and Outcomes  5 
 3.3 -  Freedom of Speech and Expression  6 
 3.4 -  Privacy and Property Rights  7 
 3.5 -  Student Executive Officers  7 
 3.6 -  Student Publications  8 
 3.7 -  Pledge of Allegiance Notice  8 
 3.8 -  Role of Home, Student, and Schoo  l 
 3.9 -  Student-Led Organizations 
 3.10 -  Student Activities, Athletics, and Extracurricular  Activities 
 3.11 -  Rules for Student Activities and Clubs  8 

 Section 4 -  Equal Opportunity: Prevention of Discrimination,  Harassment, and Bullying  9 
 4.1 -  Notice of Non-Discrimination  9 
 4.2 -  Discrimination/Harassment  11 
 4.3 -  Sexual Harassment  12 
 4.4 -  Bullying  12 
 4.5 -  Reporting Discrimination, Harassment, and Bullying  1  3 

 4.5.1 -  Procedures for Investigating Accusations of  Harassment and Bullying  13 
 4.5.2 -  HOPE Scholarship  14 

 Section 5 -  Attendance  15 
 5.1 -  Compulsory School Attendance  15 
 5.2 -  Absences/Truancy  16 
 5.3 -  Make-Up Work  16 
 5.4 -  Senior Attendance Policy  16 
 5.5 -  Truancy  16 
 5.6 -  Attendance Requirements for Minors to Maintain  Driving Privileges  18 
 5.7 -  McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act  1  9 

 Section 6 -  Student Conduct  19 
 6.1 -  Academic Honesty  19 
 6.2 -  Dress Code  19 
 6.3 -  Student Use of the Internet  2  1 
 6.4 -  Wireless Communication Devices  21 
 6.5 -  Student Conduct on a School Bus  2  2 

 Return to Table of Contents  24-25  CCDS Student and Family Handbook  1 
Page 417 of 564

DRAFT



 6.6 -  Student Conduct in the Restroom  23 
 6.7 -  Parking/Vehicle Rules  23 
 6.8 -  Youth Gang Membership  2  4 
 6.9 -  Zero Tolerance Rule  2  4 

 Section 7 -  Student Accountability, Discipline, and  Misconduct  2  5 
 7.1 -  Hearing Office  2  6 
 7.2 -  In-School Suspension  27 
 7.3 -  Out of School  Suspension, Alternative Placement,  and Expulsion  2  8 
 7.4 -  Reports to Law Enforcement Agencies  30 
 7.5 -  Investigations of Suspected Student Misconduct  31 
 7.6 -  Tobacco, Drugs, and Alcohol  31 
 7.7 -  Weapons In School  32 
 7.8 -  Firearms  32 
 7.9 -  Striking or Threatening a School Board Employee  32 
 7.10 -  Discipline Action Matrix  3  3 
 7.11 -  Category  Action  36 
 7.12 -  Discipline and Students with Disabilities  37 
 7.13  - Procedural Safeguards for Students With Disabilities 
 7.14 -  Students Charged with a Felony  39 

 Section 8 -  Student Safety  40 
 8.1 -  Threat Management Assessment  40 
 8.2 -  FortifyFL  - SaferWatch App  40 
 8.3 -  Random Searches  41 
 8.4 -  Family and Behavior Expectations  41 

 Section 9 -  Student Health  4  1 
 9.1 -  Immunization  4  1 
 9.2 -  Health Services/Screenings  4  2 
 9.3 -  Food Allergens  42 
 9.4 -  Live Lice Policy  4  2 
 9.5 -  Home Responsibilities for General Health Updates  44 

 Section 10 -  Other Important Information for Families  44 
 10.1 -  Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA)  44 
 10.2 -  Student Device Electronic Agreement  47 
 10.3 -  Responsible Use Guidelines  49 
 10.4 -  Child Abuse Reporting  50 
 10.5 -  Use of Student Work, Video, and Photographs  5  0 
 10.6 -  Social Media Guidelines  5  1 
 10.7 -  Rights of Divorced Parents  52 
 10.8 -  Parental Concerns Regarding Employees  52 
 10.9 -  Student Surveys 

 Appendix A: Glossary  53 

 Appendix B: Behavior Infraction Codes  55 

 Return to Table of Contents  24-25  CCDS Student and Family Handbook  2 
Page 418 of 564

DRAFT



 Section 1 -  Introduction 

 1.1 - Superintendent's Message 

 Dear Parents and Guardians: 

 Clay County District Schools is firmly committed to ensuring that every student can 
 succeed within a safe and positive learning environment. The 2023-2024 Student 
 Code of Conduct details the expectations for student behaviors that encourage a 
 positive learning experience for all. These skills build a foundation for students to 
 obtain academic and personal success. 

 The Student Code of Conduct is the District’s policy that is approved each year by 
 the Clay County School Board. This handbook contains important information to 
 ensure your child has a successful school year. Well-informed parents and 
 guardians have always been our best partners in this work.  I ask that you please 
 review the Student Code of Conduct with your child, discuss the content within the handbook, and complete the 
 acknowledgment form. Should you have any questions or concerns, I encourage you to reach out to your child’s 
 principal and they will be happy to assist with any questions regarding our policies and procedures within the 
 handbook. As always, parental and caregiver support is crucial to student success and well-being and I thank you 
 for your partnership as we provide an educational experience to our students that will help them grow, achieve, and 
 reach their full potential. 
 Respectfully, 

 David Broskie 
 Dear Parents and Guardians: 

 Clay County District Schools is committed to providing an educational environment in which every student has 
 the opportunity to reach his or her potential. The 2024-2025 Student Code of Conduct outlines the roles and 
 responsibilities that guide student behavior in our schools.  We believe that when students understand and 
 adhere to these guidelines, they are better equipped to succeed both inside and outside the classroom. 

 We recognize the crucial role that parents and guardians play in reinforcing these principles at home. By 
 reviewing the Student Code of Conduct with your child, you help ensure that they understand their rights, 
 responsibilities and the consequences of their actions. Additionally, your support in promoting a culture of 
 respect and safety on our school campuses is invaluable. Should you have any questions or concerns, I 
 encourage you to reach out to your child’s principal and they will be happy to assist with any questions 
 regarding the policies and procedures within the handbook. 

 As always, parental and caregiver support is crucial to student success and well-being and I thank you for your 
 partnership. Together, we can create a learning environment where all students feel safe, supported and 
 empowered to achieve their full potential. 

 Respectfully, 

 David Broskie 
 Superintendent of Schools 

 Return to Table of Contents  24-25  CCDS Student and Family Handbook  3 
Page 419 of 564

DRAFT



 1.2 - Jurisdiction of the School Board 
 This Handbook and all of its referenced policies and procedures is in 
 force at all times on all school campuses and properties, as well as 
 such times and places, including but not necessarily limited to, school 
 sponsored events, field trips, athletic functions and other activities 
 where school administrators have jurisdiction over students. 
 Jurisdictional control over the student may extend to the immediate 
 vicinity of the school when the conduct of the student is deemed to 
 have a detrimental effect on the health, safety, or welfare of the 
 school. With respect to bullying and harassment behavior, jurisdiction 
 of the Board extends to data or computer software accessed at a 
 non-school related location, activity, function, or program, or to 
 technology or an electronic device that is not owned, leased, or used 

 by the Clay County District Schools. 

 Our primary role as School Board members is to ensure the safety of all school district members and guests, and to 
 craft policies that reflect the spirit of our communities while also considering the future of our most precious asset – 
 the kids. This Handbook is just one of those guides that help to make our schools great. We are honored to be given 
 this opportunity, and look forward to the collaboration and partnership that makes Clay County a truly special place 
 to live. 

 Section 2 -  Mission, Vision, and Philosophy 

 Our Mission 
 Our mission is to work collaboratively with all stakeholders to provide a public education experience that is 
 motivating, challenging, and rewarding for all children. We will increase student achievement by providing 
 students with learning opportunities that are rigorous, relevant and transcend beyond the boundaries of the 
 school walls. We will ensure a working and learning environment built upon honesty, integrity, and respect. 
 Through these values, we will maximize student potential and promote individual responsibility. 

 Our Vision 
 The School District of Clay County exists to prepare life-long learners for success in a global and competitive 
 workplace and in acquiring applicable life skills. 

 Our Philosophy 
 Instruction should occur in an environment that promotes the highest level of learning. Effective instruction 
 requires high levels of student engagement, innovation of classroom rituals and routines, and clearly 
 articulated behavioral expectations. This is described as the absence of distractions, frictions, and 
 disturbances that interfere with the effective functioning of the student, class, and school. It is the presence of a 
 friendly, student-centered environment in which students and school personnel work cooperatively toward 
 mutually recognized and accepted goals, and in which the parent and the school develop and maintain a 
 positive, collaborative relationship focused on what is best for the learner. 

 As a student progresses through the grade levels, it is reasonable to assume that an increase in age and 
 maturity will result in the student assuming new opportunities to grow and greater responsibility for their 
 Return to Table of Contents  24-25  CCDS Student and Family Handbook  4 

Page 420 of 564

DRAFT



 actions. It is recognized that differences in age and maturity require different types of opportunities and 
 disciplinary action; while maintaining a fair and equitable system that is applied to all students in grades 
 PreK-12. 

 To assist parents, administrators, and faculty in maintaining a positive learning environment, this Student & 
 Family  Handbook, along with its embedded Code of Student Conduct, will: 

 ●  Describe the role of the home, student, and school in the education of the learner. 
 ●  Describe student’s rights and responsibilities as part of the learning environment. 
 ●  Describe student conduct and processes associated with student misconduct. 
 ●  Describe aspects of student health and wellness, safety and security, and other relevant information 

 that will  help lead to a positive experience for all stakeholders. 

 The content of this Handbook will be shared with all students, parents, faculty, and councils associated with 
 district and school teams, in language that is understandable to the audience,  in various formats  through 
 multiple media and sensory platforms,  and in writing  when requested by an individual, to ensure that a 
 common understanding is established for the education of our children and youth. 

 Section 3 -  Student Rights and Responsibilities 

 It is the intent of this document to help students understand that individual rights involve associated 
 responsibilities, and that individual rights must be viewed in relationship to the health, safety, and welfare of the 
 entire school community. The principal shall assume administrative responsibility and instructional leadership 
 under the supervision of the Superintendent, and in accordance with rules and regulations of the School Board 
 for planning, management, and operation of the school to which the principal is assigned. The faculty and staff 
 shall assist in the orderly operation of the school and assure the rights of students. 

 3.1 - School Participation 
 Regular attendance by students will facilitate the development of the skills and knowledge necessary to 
 function in a  modern democratic society. School staff, parents, students, and appropriate state agencies are 
 expected to work together  to ensure that all applicable school attendance laws are obeyed. 

 Student Rights  Student Responsibilities 

 To be informed of School Board policies and 
 individual school rules regarding absenteeism and 
 tardiness. 

 Take advantage of their educational opportunity by 
 attending all classes daily and on time. 

 To appeal a decision pertaining to an absence.  To provide the school with an adequate explanation 
 and documentation indicating the reason for an 
 absence. 

 To make up class work within a prescribed length of 
 time in case of an excused absence. 

 To request the make-up assignment from their 
 teachers upon their return from an excused absence 
 and to complete the work within a reasonable length 
 of time as determined by school board policy (1 day 
 per each day of  absence). 

 Return to Table of Contents  24-25  CCDS Student and Family Handbook  5 
Page 421 of 564

DRAFT



 Clay County District School employees are not responsible for supervising students who arrive on school 
 property 30 or  more minutes before school or a school-sponsored activity is scheduled to begin. Further, Clay 
 County District School  employees are not responsible for supervising students who remain on school property 
 30 minutes or more after school  ends, or 30 or more minutes after a school-sponsored activity ends. 

 3.2 - Learning Experiences and Outcomes 
 Active involvement in the learning process is critical to academic success, and is a complex interaction 
 between age, maturity, ability, and personal commitment. For all learners, the level of engagement with the 
 material and the experiences will be reflected in grades and assessments. 

 Student Rights  Student Responsibilities 

 To have equal educational opportunity with regard to 
 academic programs and extracurricular activities. 

 To pursue participation in academic programs and 
 extracurricular activities of interest and that are 
 commensurate with ability. 

 To be informed of district curriculum course 
 descriptions that will facilitate informed choices. 

 To actively pursue assistance from qualified school 
 staff with course selection that is consistent with 
 ability and program of study. 

 To receive instruction in courses of study under 
 competent instructors and in an atmosphere free 
 from bias and prejudice. 

 To cooperate fully and exert every effort to achieve 
 mastery at the highest level possible. 

 To receive access to instructional materials and 
 resources for the subject(s) they are studying. 

 To take care of instructional materials/resources 
 issued to them and to pay for lost or damaged 
 instructional materials.* 

 To receive and have explained to a teacher’s grading 
 criteria at the beginning of each year long or 
 semester course. 

 To become informed of the grading criteria and any 
 updates to grading rubrics. 

 To receive reasonable notification of failure or 
 potential failure during the grading period when it is 
 apparent unsatisfactory work is being performed. 

 To maintain standards of academic performance 
 commensurate with ability, and to make every effort 
 to improve performance upon receipt of notification 
 of unsatisfactory progress 

 *  Florida Statutes 1006.42(1)  : Each Parent of a student  to whom or for whom instructional materials have been issued, is liable for any 
 loss or destruction of, or unnecessary damage to, the instructional materials or for failure of the student to return the instructional 
 materials, and shall pay for such loss, destruction, or unnecessary damage as provided by law. 

 3.4 - Freedom of Speech and Expression 
 Citizens in our democracy are guaranteed self-expression under the 1st and 4th Amendments of the United 
 States Constitution; therefore, in a democratic society, one of the basic purposes of education is to prepare 
 students for responsible self-expression. 

 Student Rights  Student Responsibilities 

 Return to Table of Contents  24-25  CCDS Student and Family Handbook  6 
Page 422 of 564

DRAFT



 To form and express viewpoints through speaking 
 and  writing in a manner which is not obscene, 
 slanderous, or  libelous. 

 To respect the rights, property, and beliefs of other 
 individuals, to express disagreement in a manner 
 which  does not infringe upon the rights of others, 
 and does not  interfere with the orderly educational 
 process.** 

 To not be subject to disciplinary action because of 
 use of a language other than English if the student 
 has limited English proficiency. 

 To act in a manner which preserves the dignity of 
 patriotic observances. 

 To affirm their identity with the American ideals as 
 allowed and encouraged by state law.* 

 To respect the religious beliefs and observances of 
 others. 

 To refrain from any activity which violates the 
 precepts of their religion. 

 To plan for, seek approval of, and conduct activities 
 which are consistent with the educational objectives 
 of the school. 

 To petition and survey student opinion in accordance 
 with the procedures that are established by the 
 principal and  consistent with school district 
 guidelines. 

 *Pursuant to  F.S. 1003.44  . 
 **Pursuant to  School Board Rule 4.04  and  F.S. 1006.07(2)(c)  . 

 3.4 - Privacy and Property Rights 
 Federal and State laws provide persons with reasonable expectation of privacy in addition to freedom from 
 unreasonable search and seizure of property. Such guarantees are not unlimited and must be balanced by the 
 school’s responsibility to protect the health, safety, and welfare of all students (4th Amendment of the United 
 States Constitution). 

 Student Rights  Student Responsibilities 

 To maintain privacy of personal possessions unless 
 school  personnel have reasonable suspicion to 
 believe a student possesses any object or material 
 which is prohibited by law or School Board Policy. 

 To not carry or conceal any such material that is 
 prohibited by law or would detract from the 
 educational process. 

 To attend school in an educational environment in 
 which personal property is respected. 

 To respect the property rights of the public at large 
 as well as those of individuals, and to refrain from 
 destruction of, or damage to such property. 

 To be informed of state laws governing the search of 
 personal effects while on school property, including 
 lockers, backpacks, purses and gym bags.* 

 To accept the consequences for content stored 
 within an assigned locker or other storage device.* 

 *Pursuant to  F.S. 1006.09(9)  , school officials may  conduct a warrantless search of a student’s locker, vehicle, or any storage area on 
 school property if such officials have reason to believe that illegal, prohibited, or harmful items may be concealed. 

 3.5 -Student Executive Officers 
 Effective student associations are the forums for the training and involvement of students in the democratic 
 process, and promote the ideals of shared governance, respecting differing opinions, and engaging productive 

 Return to Table of Contents  24-25  CCDS Student and Family Handbook  7 
Page 423 of 564

DRAFT



 discourse with one another. Members of the school community share the responsibility for shaping such 
 associations into positive instruments for student involvement. 

 Student Rights  Student Responsibilities 

 To form and operate executive officers within student 
 groups under the direction of a faculty advisor. 

 To elect student executive officers and 
 representatives in  student groups who are 
 responsive to the needs of the  school and who will 
 work constructively toward the  resolution of such 
 needs. 

 To seek an executive office in student government or 
 other student organization regardless of race, sex, 
 color, creed, or political beliefs. 

 To conduct election campaigns in a positive, mature 
 manner, with all due respect provided their 
 opponents. 

 To attend, as a student executive officer or 
 representative, official student group meetings upon 
 approval of such meetings by the school principal. 

 To attend regularly scheduled meetings, if an elected 
 student representative, and exhibit appropriate 
 conduct at all times. 

 3.6 - Student Publications 
 Education is the process of inquiry and learning, acquiring and imparting knowledge, and exchanging ideas. 
 One of the important roles of the school is to provide effective avenues through which students may express 
 themselves on a wide range of subjects. Official student publications, such as school newspapers, should 
 include viewpoints representative of the entire student body.  Principals may suppress or recall literature  which 
 they consider primarily commercial in nature or material which could endanger the orderly operation of the 
 school. 

 Student Rights  Student Responsibilities 

 To possess, post, and distribute forms of literature 
 that are not inherently disruptive to the school 
 program through means such as, but not limited to, 
 newspapers, magazines, leaflets, pamphlets, and 
 online forums. 

 To use only those bulletin boards or wall areas 
 designated for use by students and student 
 organizations, and accept responsibility for the effect 
 that the posting might have on the normal activities 
 of the school. 

 To be free of censorship on their publications except 
 within the framework of guidelines previously agreed 
 upon by students and administrators. 

 To refrain from publishing libelous and obscene 
 materials, to seek full information on the topics about 
 which they write, and observe the normal rules for 
 responsible journalism under the guidance of the 
 faculty advisor. 

 3.7 - Pledge of Allegiance Notice 
 Pursuant to  F.S. 1002.20(12)  , students have the right  not to participate in reciting the pledge. Upon a written 
 request by his or her parent, a student must be excused from reciting the pledge, including standing and 
 placing the right hand over his or her heart. 

 Return to Table of Contents  24-25  CCDS Student and Family Handbook  8 
Page 424 of 564

DRAFT



 3.8 - Role of Home, Student, and School 
 In order for effective instruction to occur, there must be a cooperative relationship between student, parent, and 
 educator. This relationship may be described as follows: 

 Parents or Guardians Who: 
 1.  assume responsibility for their child’s behavior. 
 2.  maintain regular communication with the school and encourage their child to maintain acceptable 

 behaviors specific to their  home  , community, and  a  public  school  learning environment  . 
 3.  ensure that their child is in daily attendance, and promptly report and explain an absence to the school. 

 provide their child with the resources needed to complete class work. 
 4.  assist their child in developing grooming habits consistent with a school environment. 
 5.  bring to the attention of school authorities any problem or condition which affects their child or other 

 children of the school community. 
 6.  discuss report cards and work assignments with their child. 
 7.  maintain up-to-date contact information and addresses at the school, including medical provider and 

 hospital preference. 

 Students Who: 
 1.  attend all classes daily, and arrive on time. 
 2.  are prepared to come to class with appropriate working materials. 
 3.  are responsible for their own work and actions. 
 4.  are responsible for delivery of written communications to their parent/guardian. 
 5.  are respectful to all individuals and property. 
 6.  refrain from profane or inflammatory statements. 
 7.  maintain grooming habits appropriate for a school environment. 
 8.  abide by the rules and regulations set forth by the school and individual classroom teachers, while 

 conducting  themselves in a safe and responsible manner. 

 Schools That: 
 1.  provide high quality instruction for all students. 
 2.  encourage the use of  good guidance procedures  .  counseling  services for educational and personal 

 improvement. 
 3.  maintain an atmosphere conducive to good behavior  provide and maintain a safe atmosphere that 

 encourages good behavior and learning for all students. 
 4.  exhibit an attitude of respect for students. 
 5.  plan a flexible curriculum to meet the needs of all students. 
 6.  promote effective training and discipline based upon fair and impartial treatment of all students. 
 7.  develop a positive working relationship among staff, students, and community partners. 
 8.  encourage the school staff, parents and students to use the services of community partners. 
 9.  encourage parents to maintain regular communication with the school and participate in its affairs. 
 10.  seek to involve students in the development of district policy. 
 11.  inform all employees of their requirement to report to law enforcement felony offenses and violent 

 misdemeanors or delinquent acts which would be a felony offense if committed by an adult on or near 
 school property. 

 Return to Table of Contents  24-25  CCDS Student and Family Handbook  9 
Page 425 of 564

DRAFT



 3.9 - Student-Led Organizations 
 Student-led organizations are permitted in secondary schools, and such organizations are allowed to meet on 
 school premises during non-instructional time, as designated by the school principal. Students wishing to 
 establish an organization shall work with their school and within district policy. Membership in all student 
 organizations shall be on a voluntary basis and only open to students currently enrolled in the school at which 
 meetings are to be held. Student  organizations shall not engage in any activity which is contrary to law, district 
 policy, or school rules. 

 3.10 - Student Activities, Athletics, and Extracurricular Activities 
 Organized clubs and activities are characteristic of student life from the elementary school through college, and 
 are characteristic of adult life as well. All members of the school community share the responsibility for 
 organizing and supporting clubs and activities that meet student needs and serve definite and worthwhile 
 purposes. 

 3.11 - Rules for Student Activities and Clubs 
 1.  Clubs and activities must be open to all qualified students. 
 2.  Clubs cannot interfere with school activities and School Board policies must be followed. 
 3.  Clubs must have a charter and a constitution that state the membership qualifications and the rules of 

 conduct (written by both students and teachers, be approved by the administration, and be kept on file 
 so that all  students, parents, and school personnel may read them). 

 4.  Local chapters of national organizations whose charters are prescribed are exempt from the 
 requirement that they must be written by both students and teachers. 

 5.  Clubs must have a faculty sponsor approved by the administration; this sponsor must be at all 
 meetings/events and with chaperones when appropriate. 

 6.  Club members cannot be hazed pursuant to School Board Policy 4.11 and F.S. 1006.135(1). Hazing 
 means any action or situation that recklessly or intentionally endangers the mental or physical health or 
 safety of a student. Hazing includes any forced activity that could adversely affect the mental health or 
 dignity of the student. Students are always encouraged to talk to parents and school administrators 
 about any activity in which they are made to feel uncomfortable. Demeaning or dangerous activities are 
 not necessary to be a part of a team or group. 

 7.  Club dues must be reasonable. 
 8.  Club meetings must be held on the school grounds except for special meetings/events approved by the 

 administration. 
 9.  Club money must be handled through the school’s internal accounts system. 

 NOTE:  Florida Statute 1006.14  : Secret societies prohibited  in public K-12 school states that (1) It is unlawful 
 for any person, group, or organization to organize or establish a fraternity, sorority, or other secret society 
 whose membership is comprised in whole or in part of students enrolled in any public K-12 school or to go 
 upon any public K-12 school premises for the purpose of soliciting any students to join such an organization. 

 A student not currently suspended for interscholastic extracurricular activities, or suspended or expelled from 
 school, pursuant to the district’s suspension or expulsion authority provided in law is eligible to participate 
 interscholastic extracurricular activities pursuant to  F.S. 1006.195(1). 

 Return to Table of Contents  24-25  CCDS Student and Family Handbook  10 
Page 426 of 564

DRAFT



 Per  F.S. 1006.09(2)  , if a student is convicted of, or is found to have committed a felony or a delinquent act, 
 including an off-campus incident which would have been a felony if committed by an adult, the student’s 
 eligibility in interscholastic extracurricular activities is contingent upon local administration policy, regardless of 
 whether or not adjudication is withheld. 

 Students who participate in interscholastic extracurricular activities for, but are not enrolled in a district public 
 school, are subject to the district’s code of Student Conduct for the limited purpose of establishing and 
 maintaining the student’s eligibility to participate at the school. 

 All junior high students must have a 2.0 on a 4.0 GPA scale at the conclusion of each semester. A high school 
 student must have a cumulative 2.0 GPA on a 4.0 unweighted GPA scale at the conclusion of each semester. 

 Students are limited to four years of athletic eligibility upon entering high school. 

 The Florida High School Athletic Association continues to retain jurisdiction over eligibility rules dealing with 
 recruitment violations and sanctions against students. 

 Section 4 -  Equal Opportunity: Prevention of 
 Discrimination, Harassment, and Bullying 

 4.1 - Notice of Non-Discrimination 
 Notice of Non-Discrimination and Procedures for Handling Allegations of Possible Discrimination 
 within Clay County District Schools - Employment and Programs 
 Non-discrimination and diversity are foundation principles of the School Board. It is School Board policy to hire 
 and promote the best qualified candidate measured against the requirements of the job and to provide equal 
 employment and advancement opportunity for all individuals without discrimination because of race, color, 
 gender, religion, age, national  origin, disability, veteran, marital status or any other protected status. 
 The School Board also makes reasonable accommodations for disabled employees. Employees who would 
 like to be considered for accommodation assistance should contact the Assistant Superintendent for Human 
 Resources. Information obtained concerning individuals requesting accommodations is kept confidential, to the 
 extent possible, except that principals and supervisors may be informed regarding restrictions on the work 
 duties of disabled individuals and information regarding necessary accommodations. 
 The policy applies to all areas of employment, including recruitment, hiring, training, promotion, compensation, 
 benefits, transfer, and social and recreational programs. 

 The Clay County School Board reaffirms its Equal Education Opportunity (EEO) commitment as follows: 

 1.  Guidance  School  Counseling, financial assistance and  access to academic, career and vocational 
 opportunities are available without regard to race, religion, color, sex, marital status, age, national 
 origin, disability, or other protected status. 

 2.  Criteria for admission to programs and courses do not have the effect of restricting access. 
 3.  Recreational and athletic activities do not exclude participation in, deny benefits of, or treat people 

 differently on the basis of sex. 

 The Policy of the Clay County School Board (  6GX-10-1.06  )  relative to Non-Discrimination states the following: 

 Return to Table of Contents  24-25  CCDS Student and Family Handbook  11 
Page 427 of 564

DRAFT



 DISCRIMINATION ON THE BASIS OF RACE, RELIGION, COLOR, SEX,  MARITAL STATUS, AGE, 
 NATIONAL ORIGIN, PREGNANCY, OR DISABILITY IS  PROHIBITED IN THE EMPLOYMENT OF 
 PERSONNEL IN THE PROVISION OF  EDUCATIONAL PROGRAMS AND IN THE CONDUCT OF THE 
 BUSINESS AFFAIRS OF THE CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL SYSTEM, AND PROVIDES EQUAL ACCESS TO 
 THE BOY SCOUTS AND OTHER DESIGNATED PATRIOTIC GROUPS. 
 (Ref. F.S. 760.10; F.S. 760.50; Federal Civil Rights Acts title VI, VII, IX; Section 504F. Rehabilitation Act, 1973-78;  IDEA, ADEA; Equal 
 Pay Act; Americans with Disabilities Act) 

 The procedures outlined below shall be used for the processing of allegations of possible discrimination. 

 1.  All such allegations should be discussed initially on an informal basis with the school principal, 
 supervisor or appropriate division head directly responsible for the area of concern. Such discussion 
 should be held within ten (10) days of alleged incidents(s) if possible. 

 2.  In addition, each school has a school-based Title IX Coordinator, which is listed under each school's 
 webpage under the administration tab. A compiled list can be found on the  District's Title IX webpage  . 
 Any student matter not resolved by the school principal to the satisfaction of the aggrieved party shall 
 be  referred to the attention of the Title IX Office. 

 Title IX Office 
 School District of Clay County 
 900 Walnut Street 
 Green Cove Springs, Florida 32043 
 Telephone: (904) 336-6919 

 3.  Any student matter not resolved by the school principal to the satisfaction of the aggrieved party shall 
 be referred to the attention of the following office: 

 Coordinator of Student Engagement 
 School District of Clay County 
 900 Walnut Street 
 Green Cove Springs, Florida 32043 
 Telephone: (904) 336-5000 

 4.  Any  Human Resources  matter not resolved by the school  principal or division head to the satisfaction 
 of the aggrieved party shall be referred to the attention of the following office: 

 Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources 
 School District of Clay County 
 900 Walnut Street 
 Green Cove Springs, Florida 32043 
 Telephone: (904) 336-6701 

 5.  All complaints of discrimination or harassment shall be investigated fully and all person(s) involved shall 
 be questioned. The aggrieved party may be required to appear in person to answer questions. 

 6.  Such investigation shall be initiated within fifteen (15) days of receipt of the complaint. If an extension of 
 the timelines is deemed necessary, the aggrieved party shall be notified of such extension prior to the 
 end of the fifteen (15) days. 

 7.  Retaliation against any person who makes a complaint pursuant to this policy, or who participates in 
 any investigation initiated pursuant to this policy, will not be tolerated. Any employee who engages in 
 such retaliation shall be subject to disciplinary action up to and including termination. 

 Return to Table of Contents  24-25  CCDS Student and Family Handbook  12 
Page 428 of 564

DRAFT



 4.2 - Discrimination/Harassment 
 Discrimination is defined as treating a person of a particular group differently based on their protected class 
 characteristic. Harassment is defined as verbal, written or physical conduct that denigrates or shows hostility or 
 aversion toward an individual because of the person’s protected status and has the purpose or effect of 
 unreasonably interfering with an individual’s educational performance or creating an intimidating, hostile, or 
 offensive education environment. Harassing conduct includes epithets, slurs, or negative stereotyping; 
 threatening, intimidating, or hostile acts; denigrating jokes; and written or graphic material that denigrates or 
 shows hostility or aversion toward an individual or group that is placed on walls or elsewhere on the district’s 
 premises or circulated by e-mail, phone (including voice messages), text messages, social networking sites, or 
 other means. Harassment does not include verbal expressions or written material that is relevant and 
 appropriately related to course subject matter or curriculum. 

 It shall be a violation of District policy for any student, teacher, administrator, or other district personnel 
 to harass a student or adult through conduct of a sexual nature, or regarding race, color, sexual 
 orientation, national origin or disability as defined by this policy. 

 It shall also be a violation of District policy for any teacher, administrator, or other school personnel of 
 this District to tolerate sexual harassment or harassment based on race, color, sexual orientation, 
 national origin, or disability by a student, teacher, administrator, or other school personnel, or by any 
 third parties who are participating in, observing, or otherwise engaged in activities, including sporting 
 events and other extracurricular activities, under the auspices of the School District. 

 Examples of conduct that may constitute harassment based on race, color, sexual orientation, or 
 national origin, include: 

 1.  graffiti containing offensive language which refers to a person’s race, color, sexual orientation, or 
 national origin 

 2.  name calling, jokes, or rumors 
 3.  threatening or intimidating conduct directed at a person because of his/her race, color, sexual 

 orientation, or national origin 
 4.  racial or ethnic slurs, negative stereotypes, and hostile acts based on another’s race, col  o  r, 

 sexual orientation, or national origin 
 5.  a physical act of aggression or assault upon another because of, or in a manner reasonably 

 related to, that person’s race, color, sexual orientation, or national origin 
 6.  other kinds of aggressive conduct such as theft or damage to property which is motivated by 

 race, color, sexual  orientation, or national origin 

 Harassment based on a disability consists of verbal or physical conduct relating to an individual’s 
 physical or mental impairment when the harassing conduct is so severe, persistent, or pervasive that it 
 affects a student’s ability to participate in or benefit from services or opportunities in an educational 
 program or activity, or creates an intimidating, threatening, or abusive educational environment. 

 Examples of conduct that may constitute harassment because of a disability include: 
 1.  graffiti containing offensive language derogatory to a person because of their physical or mental 

 disability 
 2.  threatening or intimidating conduct directed at another because of that person’s physical or 

 mental disability 

 For additional information, please refer to District Policy Rule 1.11. 

 Return to Table of Contents  24-25  CCDS Student and Family Handbook  13 
Page 429 of 564

DRAFT



 4.3 - Sexual Harassment 
 Sexual harassment is defined as unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors and other verbal or 
 physical conduct of a sexual nature. Sexual harassment may include a range of subtle and not-so-subtle 
 behaviors and may involve individuals of the same or different gender. Depending on the circumstances, these 
 behaviors may include: unwanted sexual advances or requests for sexual favors; sexual jokes and innuendo; 
 verbal abuse of a sexual nature; commentary about an individual’s body, sexual prowess, or sexual 
 deficiencies; leering, whistling, or touching; insulting  or obscene comments or gestures; display of sexually 
 suggestive objects or pictures; and other physical, verbal, or visual  conduct of a sexual nature in the 
 workplace. Sexual harassment can take two forms: 1) hostile environment and 2) “quid  pro quo” which means 
 “you do something for me and I’ll do something for you” in a sexual context. 

 All public schools receiving any federal funds must also comply with Title IX of the Education Amendments of 
 1972. A  school has a responsibility to respond promptly and effectively to a claim of sexual harassment or 
 sexual violence. Title IX requires schools to adopt and publish grievance procedures for students to file 
 complaints of sex discrimination, including complaints of sexual harassment or sexual violence. Schools can 
 use general disciplinary procedures to address complaints of sex discrimination but all procedures must 
 provide for prompt and equitable resolution of sex discrimination complaints. 

 4.4 - Bullying 
 Bullying is defined as any written or verbal expression, or physical or electronic act or gesture, or a pattern 
 thereof, that is intended to coerce, intimidate, or cause any physical, mental, or emotional harm to any student, 
 or would be reasonably assumed to cause harm  .  Bullying  is prohibited against any student for any reason, 
 including but not limited to, any such behavior that is directed toward a student on the basis of academic 
 performance, or against whom federal and state laws prohibit discrimination. 

 To guide the investigation of alleged bullying, three key elements must be present in order to fall into the 
 Substantiated Bullying category. This includes behaviors that are repeated, or could be reasonably repeated, 
 intentional, and reflect a power imbalance between the individual engaged in bullying behavior and the one 
 being bullied. 

 Bullying includes actions such as making threats, spreading rumors, attacking someone physically or verbally, 
 or purposely excluding someone from a group. Cyberbullying is a specific form of bullying using technology to 
 hurt, harm or humiliate another individual or group. 

 4.5 - Reporting Discrimination, Harassment, and Bullying 
 If you feel you have been a victim of, or witness to, discrimination, harassment, or bullying, report it 
 immediately. Retaliation for reporting is not tolerated. The highest level of confidentiality possible will be upheld 
 regarding the submission of a complaint or report of harassment/bullying/hazing and the investigative 
 procedures that follow. The following actions are encouraged in reporting this behavior: 

 1.  Students are always encouraged to report the complaint directly to a teacher, school counselor, school 
 administrator, or parent. 

 2.  If a student or other person familiar with the situation would like to submit a report anonymously, they 
 may call the Bullying Hotline at (904) 336-6799. 

 3.  If the accused is a district employee, the student or parent should contact Human Resources at (904) 
 336-6706. 

 Return to Table of Contents  24-25  CCDS Student and Family Handbook  14 
Page 430 of 564

DRAFT



 4.  If the accused is an adult not employed by the school district, the student or parent should contact the 
 school principal. 

 4.5.1 - Procedures for Investigating Accusations of Harassment and Bullying 

 1.  When a report is made, the school principal will notify the parents of both the student(s) accused of 
 bullying  and the student(s) that has been allegedly bullied within 48 hours. This notification will include 
 a description of the accusation and the process for investigation that will take place, along with a 
 timeline of action. 

 It is expected that a thorough investigation will require more than one day but will be completed 
 in a timely manner. It must review more than a single incident to be considered bullying behavior 
 but not for harassment or hazing. 

 2.  The principal will designate a staff member that can remain neutral to lead the investigation. 
 3.  All interviews of students and adults will be documented and uploaded into the SIS referral system. All 

 interviewees should be prepared to give as much detail as possible regarding who, what, when, where, 
 and how the behavior allegedly occurred. 

 4.  The School Counselor will be notified within 48 hours of the report in order to meet with the student(s) 
 that was harassed, bullied, or hazed, to determine their counseling needs. 

 5.  Collection and evaluation of facts will include: 
 a.  the nature of the behavior 
 b.  how often the behavior occurred 
 c.  past incidents or past continuing patterns of behavior 
 d.  relationship between the parties involved, including any positions of power one may have over 

 another 
 e.  race, national origin, sex, disability (if any) and age of the person being harassed or bullied 
 f.  identity of the student(s) bullying others 
 g.  locations of all incidents 
 h.  impact on educational  progress and educational environment 
 i.  context in which the alleged incidents occurred 

 6.  Once an investigation is completed, information and findings are entered into the SIS and appropriate 
 actions are taken regarding student discipline per this Code of Student Conduct and supports put in 
 place for all individuals involved. 

 7.  The principal will notify the parent of the student being harassed or bullied of the Hope Scholarship 
 program within 15 days of the initial report and provide them with requisite paperwork for submission to 
 the state. 

 A maximum of 60 school days shall be the limit for the initial filing of incidents that fall under the Federal 
 guidelines for harassing behavior and completion of the investigative procedural steps. 

 4.5.2 - HOPE Scholarship 

 Section 1002.40, Florida Statutes,  was  were  established  in  last year’s  legislative session and provides the 
 parent of a public school student who was subjected to an incident of bullying or violence (a complete list of 
 incidents is found in section  1002.40(3), F.S.  , an  opportunity to transfer to another public school, or request a 
 scholarship for the student to enroll in and attend a participating private school. The law states in part, “Upon 
 receipt of a report of an incident, the school principal, or his or her designee, shall provide a copy of the report 
 to the parent and investigate the incident to determine if the incident must be reported as required by 

 Return to Table of Contents  24-25  CCDS Student and Family Handbook  15 
Page 431 of 564

DRAFT



 1006.09(6) F.S.  Within 24 hours after receipt of the report, the principal or his or her designee shall provide a 
 copy of the report to the parent of the alleged offender and to the superintendent. 

 Upon conclusion of the investigation or within 15 days after the incident was reported, whichever occurs first, 
 the school district shall notify the parent of the program and offer the parent an opportunity to enroll his or her 
 student in another public school that has capacity or to request and receive a scholarship to attend an eligible 
 private school, subject to available funding.” 

 Please go to the  FLDOE website  for more detailed information. 

 Section 5 -  Attendance 

 5.1 - Compulsory School Attendance 
 Regular school attendance is a necessary part of a student’s education.  Excessive absences impair a 
 student’s educational progress, impacts whether the student passes or fails a class or grade, and may result in 
 court proceedings and/or the loss of driving privileges.  Florida Law  (Section 1003.21, Florida Statutes)  states 
 that all children who are either six years of age, who will be six years old by February 1 of any school year, or 
 who are older than six years of age but who have not attained the age of 16 years, must attend school 
 regularly during the entire school term. A student who attains the age of 16 years during the school year is not 
 subject to compulsory attendance beyond the date of which the student attains that age if he/she files a formal 
 declaration of intent to terminate school enrollment with the school district. The declaration must acknowledge 
 that terminating school enrollment is likely to reduce the student’s earning potential and must be signed by the 
 student  and the student’s parent or legal guardian.  F.S. 1003.21(1)(c). 

 Florida law (  Section 1003.26, Florida Statutes  ) specifies  steps for enforcement of regular school attendance. It 
 is the responsibility of the school district superintendent to enforce school attendance of all children who are 
 subject to compulsory school age requirements. The responsibility includes: 

 1.  Develop policies and procedures to ensure that schools respond in a timely manner to each unexcused 
 absence, or absence for which the reason is unknown. 

 2.  Contact the home for every unexcused absence or absence for which the reason is unknown, to obtain 
 parent justification for the absence. 

 3.  Evaluate each justification and, based on district policy, determine whether the absence is excused or 
 unexcused; if excused, allow the student to make up assigned work without academic penalty. 

 4.  Track excused and unexcused absences. 
 5.  Identify and refer students who may be developing a pattern of nonattendance to the school child study 

 team for intervention services. 
 6.  Schedule a meeting with certain identified parents to discuss their child's attendance. 
 7.  Implement prevention and intervention strategies to address truancy and attendance issues as required 

 for drivers'  licenses and related requirements for habitual truants. 
 8.  Send a notice to the superintendent of schools and to the district home education contact regarding 

 patterns of nonattendance for specific students. 
 9.  Refer habitual truancy cases to the case staffing committee and/or child-in-need- of-services provider 

 for assistance. 

 Return to Table of Contents  24-25  CCDS Student and Family Handbook  16 
Page 432 of 564

DRAFT



 5.2 - Absences/Truancy 
 Absenteeism, regardless of the reason, negatively affects the continuity of the learning process. As a student’s 
 absenteeism increases, there is a greater responsibility for the school to deter future absenteeism, and a 
 greater responsibility for the student to demonstrate that such absenteeism has not negatively affected 
 performance mastery.  One of the greatest indicators  of success is simply showing up on a daily basis  . 

 The parent/guardian has the responsibility to ensure the student is rested and prepared for the rigor of a 
 learning environment. 

 All elementary, middle and high school students who are absent will be marked “unexcused” (U) until the 
 parent/guardian notifies the school in writing and justifies the absence with one of the acceptable reasons as 
 defined below. 

 1.  Failure to do so within three (3) school days may cause the absence to be recorded as “unexcused”. 
 2.  In the case of excessive or extended absences, which are claimed to be due to illness, upon request of 

 the principal or designee, a parent must provide documentation (doctor’s statement) of a student’s 
 illness. 

 3.  Excessive or extended absences are considered five (5) in one grading period, ten (10) in one 
 semester or twenty (20) in a calendar year, or a history of excessive absences per period. Absences 
 that meet this threshold as defined above will require a doctor’s note. The principal of the school shall 
 determine when it is necessary to require a doctor’s note from the student’s medical provider and 
 require the parent/guardian to provide a copy to their child’s school within a reasonable period of time 
 as determined by the principal or designee. 

 Reasons for acceptable  (excused)  absences include  but are not limited to: 
 1.  Scheduled doctor or dentist appointments. 
 2.  Illness of the student. 
 3.  Major illness in the immediate family of the student  (immediate family is determined as parents, 

 brothers, sisters, grandparents, aunts, uncles, legal guardians or persons “in loco parentis,” or a 
 member of one’s own household) 

 4.  Death in the immediate family of the student. 
 5.  Financial inability to provide necessary clothes for the student when reported by the parent in writing to 

 the  Superintendent and validated by the Superintendent (FS 1003.24(3). 
 6.  Religious holiday of the student’s faith 
 7.  Religious instruction 
 8.  Religious institutes, conferences, or workshops, provided that the principal or designee approves the 

 absence in advance. 
 9.  The principal shall reserve the right to refuse a student’s request for released time, if according to the 

 provisions  of the district’s student progression plan: 
 a.  The student is not enrolled in sufficient courses to allow for the student’s promotion or 

 graduation, and thus the released time would not be equivalent to an optional period. 
 b.  The student’s grades/academic progress is insufficient to allow for the student’s promotion or 

 graduation. 
 10.  Absences due to head lice will be excused. However, once a student has accumulated 10 absences 

 during a school year due to head lice, the school will refer the case to the School Social Worker for 
 family support and appropriate intervention, including a possible referral to the Truancy Arbitration 
 Program through the State Attorney’s Office. Unusual circumstances may be addressed by the principal 
 to go beyond these 10 days for excused absences. 

 Return to Table of Contents  24-25  CCDS Student and Family Handbook  17 
Page 433 of 564

DRAFT



 11.  Subpoena or forced absence by any law enforcement agency, a copy of the subpoena or court 
 summons must be submitted to the school. 

 12.  For purposes of attendance, school related activities would not be counted as absences from school. 
 13.  Issues and occasions specific to military families 

 An absence from school under the following circumstances may be considered  unexcused  . 
 1.  The absence was without the parent/guardian’s knowledge or consent. 
 2.  Permission for the absence was requested but denied by the principal of the student’s school. 

 a.  This could include the following  : 
 i.  Shopping trips 
 ii.  Pleasure trips 
 iii.  Suspension 
 iv.  Appointments without prior approval 
 v.  Truancy 

 vi.  Other avoidable absences 

 The principal has administrative discretion in cases of excessive absences to reject a written note and consider 
 the absence as unexcused when absences are seriously impacting academic progress, with the exception of 
 sickness, injury or insurmountable conditions. 

 For additional information, please refer to  District  Policy Rule 4.01. 

 5.3 - Make-Up Work 
 It is essential that students absent from school make up work missed. It is the responsibility of the student and 
 the family to initiate requests for, and to pick up, make-up work on the day the student returns to class from an 
 excused absence. All work missed from an absence can be made up within 24 hours for 100% credit. For 
 example, if a student  misses three days, they have three days to complete missing assignments for full credit. 

 5.4 - Senior Attendance Policy 

 Students must be in attendance for at least 90% of their total possible class periods during their senior year of 
 high school to participate in commencement ceremonies. Once all attendance is recorded and verified, the rate 
 of attendance will be pulled from the Student Information System. 

 This is not an excused/unexcused absence policy; it is an attendance policy. The type of absence does not 
 matter with the following exceptions: 

 1.  doctor appointments or doctor mandated stay at home that is documented on a physician’s professional 
 stationary 

 2.  subpoenas to court 
 3.  bereavement time for an immediate family member 
 4.  participation in a school-sanctioned activity 
 5.  pre-approved college visits documented by email or regular mail correspondence 
 6.  parent approved absence from school 

 It is the student’s responsibility to bring verification from the doctor, parent or court for an exception; otherwise 
 the  absence will count against the policy. Verification must be supplied within three school days following the 
 absence. 

 Return to Table of Contents  24-25  CCDS Student and Family Handbook  18 
Page 434 of 564

DRAFT



 NOTE: All decisions regarding participation in graduation activities as a function of the Senior Attendance 
 Policy will be at the discretion of school administration. 

 5.5 - Truancy 

 Florida law defines "habitual truant" as a student who has 15 or more unexcused absences within 90 calendar 
 days with or without the knowledge or consent of the student's parent or guardian, and who is subject to 
 compulsory school  attendance. 
 Absence by a student shall create a strong presumption that the student has failed those subjects or courses in 
 which they are enrolled during that period 

 1.  For the school yearTwenty (20) or more days . 
 2.  For semester courses, ten (10) days shall apply; 
 3.  For individual grading periods, five (5) days shall apply. 

 Such a presumption may be overcome by effort or performance which satisfies the teacher(s) involved, that 
 such student should receive other than a failing grade. A review committee representing the administration, the 
 instructional staff, and  guidance  School Counselor  ,  appointed by the principal, will review each  such  case 
 individually and  will  make recommendations. Individual  teacher(s) shall give strong consideration to the 
 recommendation of the review committee in determining the effort or performance of the student. 

 5.6 - Attendance Requirements for Minors to Maintain Driving Privileges 
 Florida law requires that minors who fail to satisfy attendance requirements will be ineligible for driving 
 privileges.  The School District is required to notify the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles of 
 the following: 

 1.  Students ages 14‐18 who accumulate fifteen (15) unexcused absences, not including out of school 
 suspensions, in a ninety (90) calendar‐day period. 

 2.  Students between the ages of 16‐18 who have signed a declaration of intent to terminate school 
 enrollment. 

 3.  Students ages 14‐18 who are expelled. 
 4.  Students ages 14‐18 who did not enter school and for whom the school has received no indication of 

 transfer to another educational setting. 
 These students may not be issued a driver’s license or learner driver’s license.  Also, the Department of Motor 
 Vehicles shall suspend any previously issued driver’s license or learner driver’s license of any such minor 
 pursuant to Florida Statute 322.091.  In order to have a driver’s license reinstated, the student must attend 
 school regularly for thirty (30) days with no unexcused absences and pay the appropriate reinstatement fee. 
 Recognizing the importance of education and keeping the students in school, the 1997 legislature enacted 
 322.091 F.S  . relating to the driver’s license for  students, ages 14 to 18, as an incentive for students to stay in 
 school and continue their education. In order for a student to retain or obtain his/her regular Florida driver’s 
 license or learner’s driver’s license, the student must comply with compulsory school attendance. 
 Accumulating 15 unexcused absences in a period of 90 calendar days or failure to remain enrolled in school 
 will result in being classified as a habitual truant and the loss of  said license, or the withholding of the 
 necessary forms to obtain a license by the Florida Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles. (  F.S. 
 1003.27(2b)  ). Parents and students will need to contact  the school district at (904) 336-9639  for detailed 
 information regarding reporting, reinstatement, and appeal procedures. 

 For additional information, please refer to  District  Policy Rule 4.53  and  322.091 F.S  . 

 Return to Table of Contents  24-25  CCDS Student and Family Handbook  19 
Page 435 of 564

DRAFT



 5.7 - McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act 
 The McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act of 2000 (Subtitle VII-B) per Title IX, Part A of the Elementary 
 and Secondary Education Act, as amended by the Every Student Succeeds Act, ensures homeless children 
 transportation to and from school free of charge, allowing children to attend their school of origin (last school 
 enrolled or the school they attended when they first became homeless) regardless of what district the family 
 resides in  . It further requires schools to register  homeless children even if they lack normally required 
 documents, such as immunization records or proof of residence.  Local school districts must appoint Local 
 Education Liaisons to ensure that school staff are aware of these rights, to provide public notice to homeless 
 families (at shelters and at school) and to facilitate access to school and transportation services. Contact 
 information and eligibility documents can be found at  Project REACH  . 
 The McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act of 2000 (Subtitle VII-B) per Title IX, Part A of the Elementary 
 and Secondary Education Act, as amended by the Every Student Succeeds Act, ensures the following: 

 ●  Students who are experiencing homelessness or are in housing transitions due to hardships have 
 transportation to and from school free of charge, when in the best interest of the student. 

 ●  It allows students to attend their school of origin (last school enrolled or the school they attended when 
 they first became homeless) regardless of what district the family resides in  , when in the best interest  of 
 the student. 

 ●  It further requires schools to register students experiencing homelessness even if they lack normally 
 required documents, such as immunization records or proof of residence. 

 ●  Local school districts must appoint Local Education Liaisons to ensure that school staff know these 
 rights, provide public notice to families experiencing homelessness (at shelters and school), and 
 facilitate access to school and transportation services. 

 ●  Contact information and eligibility documents can be found at  Project REACH  . 

 Section 6 -  Student Conduct 

 It is the belief of the Clay County District Schools that teachers and students deserve school environments that 
 are safe, nurturing, and conducive to education and development. Creating a positive school/classroom climate 
 while decreasing student time spent outside of the classroom now requires close attention to the social and 
 emotional needs of the student as well as the behavioral intent. In the event that the school or classroom 
 discipline has been disrupted to a level where a school must take action, the following information outlines the 
 steps and the powers that the District will and must take. 

 6.1 - Academic Honesty 
 Clay County District Schools recognizes the importance of promoting a learning environment, whether 
 traditional or distance learning, that values academic honesty. In order to foster ethical behavior among 
 students, it is critical to educate all students regarding the characteristics of academic integrity. When engaged 
 in learning activities, students should demonstrate the discipline necessary to seek guidance from their 
 instructor rather than resorting to inappropriate behaviors that may undermine their own academic and 
 personal development. This is a shared responsibility of all students, families, teachers, and staff. 

 Return to Table of Contents  24-25  CCDS Student and Family Handbook  20 
Page 436 of 564

DRAFT



 6.2 - Dress Code 
 Responsibility for the dress and appearance of students generally rests with individual students and their 
 families. Students may wish to express themselves by the manner of their dress and appearance; however, 
 students shall not wear clothing or affect an appearance at school or school-sanctioned activities or events that 
 are or may be disruptive to the educational environment. Clay County District Schools standards on student 
 attire are intended to help students focus on schoolwork, reduce discipline problems, and improve school order 
 and safety. Subject to approval, principals, working with their school community, may establish additional 
 specific standards for their schools. Any such standards must be published and distributed to families. 

 Dress and personal appearance of students should be a positive reflection on the family, student, school and 
 community. A good rule of thumb: if there is a question about whether an outfit would be acceptable, choose a 
 different outfit. Ultimately, school leadership reserves the right to determine if the dress code is being violated. 

 The following guidelines are to be followed: 

 1.  All students shall be properly groomed and attired appropriate to the activity when on school property or 
 participating in school-sponsored events. 

 2.  Students should have a school ID in their possession while on campus, and present their school ID to 
 staff upon request. 

 3.  Students shall be dressed so they will not present a clear danger to health and safety. Clothing should 
 be tailored in such a manner that because of fit, design, color, texture, or inadequate coverage of the 
 body does not create a classroom or school disruption as determined by administration, or expose 
 inappropriate areas of the body while in normal activity. 

 Permitted Apparel: 
 1.  Shorts, dresses or skirts should come to the middle thigh or longer. If leggings are worn with the above 

 mentioned clothing items, then the top layer of clothing (shorts, dress, skirt, etc.) MUST come to the 
 middle thigh or longer. 

 2.  Pants and shorts should be worn at the waistline without the necessity of support whether a shirt is 
 tucked in or  out and fastened at the top closure. Belts will be buckled at all times if worn. 

 3.  Jeans/pants that have frays/holes above the middle thigh must have something underneath them, such 
 as leggings that  cover the skin, so as not to expose skin or undergarments. 

 4.  Shirts must cover the shoulder and not expose undergarments in any manner or any part of the torso. 
 5.  The neckline of a shirt must limit exposure of the body. 
 6.  Footwear of some type must be worn at ALL times. 

 Non-Permitted Apparel: 
 1.  Apparel or personal items may not have imagery regarding drugs or alcohol, indecent remarks, tobacco 

 slogans or advertisements, or display violence or sexually suggestive imagery. 
 2.  Sleepwear, such as bedroom slippers, pajamas, etc. 
 3.  Tank tops, halter tops, muscle shirts, tube tops, spaghetti straps, mesh/see-through shirts, sheer-tops 

 or bottoms. 
 4.  Head coverings -unless approved by the administration. 
 5.  Any apparel or accessory determined by administration to present a safety hazard for the student or the 

 school.  (ski masks, gaiters or other face coverings  and sunglasses unless permitted outside of 
 buildings or medically necessary) 

 Return to Table of Contents  24-25  CCDS Student and Family Handbook  21 
Page 437 of 564

DRAFT



 Disciplinary action for violation of the student dress code shall include notifying the student of the violation and 
 a requirement that the dress or appearance be corrected before the student reenters the classroom, school 
 environment, or school sanctioned activity or event. An administrator will determine the suitability of attire in 
 question as it reflects the spirit of the dress code policy. Students found to be in violation of dress code policy 
 will have the following options; 1) change into appropriate school provided dress for the remainder of the day, 
 2) change into their own appropriate dress for the remainder of the day, or 3) be assigned to the in-school 
 suspension class for the remainder of the day or until a proper outfit can be brought for the student. At the 
 discretion of the building level administrator, a family conference may be held. More serious consequences 
 may result from repeated or serious violations. 

 For additional information, please refer to  District  Policy Rule 4.03  . 

 6.3 - Student Use of the Internet 
 The Internet and related electronic instructional resources are used in schools to support student learning and 
 distance learning. The use of these resources are for educational purposes only when on district property, at 
 district or school sanctioned activities or events, when students are being transported in vehicles dispatched by 
 Clay County District Schools, and off school property when such conduct has a nexus to school or any district 
 curricular or non-curricular  activity or event. Teachers and school administration determine use of the Clay 
 County District Schools Instructional Network based on educational goals of the school and classroom, and 
 may determine to limit access. Students are encouraged to use the network to do homework, class-related 
 research, and class work when appropriate. Students should not use this network for music, gaming, or 
 non-educational video streaming. In compliance with the Child Information Protection Act (CIPA) requirements, 
 this network will be monitored. Clay County District Schools accept no responsibility associated with loss, 
 damage, or theft of a device connected to the network. 

 6.4 - Wireless Communication Devices 
 The School Board is aware that parents and students use Wireless Communication Devices (WCDs)  (laptops, 
 chromebooks, tablets, smartphones, smartwatches, bluetooth devices (to include earbuds), etc.) to 
 communicate with each other. However, the use of wireless communication devices on school grounds must 
 be appropriately regulated to protect students, staff, and the learning environment. 

 Possession of a WCD by a student at school during school hours and/or during extracurricular activities is a 
 privilege that may be forfeited by any student who fails to abide by the terms outlined in the Code of Conduct, 
 or otherwise abuses this privilege. 

 Taking audio recordings, photographs or videos by any means whatsoever while on school property or while on 
 school transportation is prohibited. The only exceptions to this rule are: 

 1.  Taking photos or video for reproduction in a school sponsored publication. 
 2.  Taking photos or video during a school sponsored social event, sporting event, awards ceremony or 

 other school sponsored activity or function at which photography is allowed and the photographs are 
 images of activities which are reasonably considered to be part of the activity or event. 

 3.  Taking photographs or video with the permission of the school administration. 

 Publication on any internet site or social media platforms of any audio recordings, photographs, videos or 
 images taken in violation of the rules listed above or recording fights or similar events is strictly prohibited, will 
 be deemed disruptive to the order of the school and will be sufficient reason to impose disciplinary action. 

 Return to Table of Contents  24-25  CCDS Student and Family Handbook  22 
Page 438 of 564

DRAFT



 All Students 
 1.  Students may have  a wireless communication  an electronic  device on school property  , unless this 

 privilege has been revoked. 
 2.  Students may NOT use  a wireless communication device  during instructional time, except when 

 expressly directed by a teacher solely for educational purposes.  A teacher shall designate an area for 
 wireless communication devices during instructional time.  (HB 379)  their electronic devices during 
 instructional time for any reason. If School Issued Technology is not available, Wireless Communication 
 Devices may be used if the following criteria are met: 

 a.  It is approved by school administration 
 b.  It is under the guidance of school staff 
 c.  It is used only for educational purposes 
 d.  Otherwise, the electronic device must be silenced or powered off AND out of sight once 

 students enter the classroom. 
 3.  Students may not use an electronic device in areas considered personal space ( i.e. - bathroom, locker 

 room) and other areas designated by Administration. 
 4.  Students may not use their Wireless Communication Devices to accept or make phone calls or video 

 conferencing during school hours unless instructed to do so by Administration/School Personnel. 

 Secondary Only 
 Students may use an electronic device  outside of school  hours  before and after school  , during lunch 
 break, transitions between classes, at school related functions  as determined by school administration  , 
 and extracurricular activities as long as the electronic devices are not audible. (cannot be heard by 
 others) 

 Use of a Wireless Communication Device during standardized testing is prohibited and can cause the student’s 
 test to be invalidated. 

 6.5 - Student Conduct on a School Bus 
 The privilege of students to ride a school bus is contingent upon following the expectations outlined in this 
 handbook. The driver of the school bus shall be in complete charge of the bus during the ride and while 
 students are entering or leaving the vehicle. Students shall be required to conform to all regulations concerning 
 discipline, safety, and behavior while riding on the school bus. The driver shall notify appropriate authorities if a 
 student persists in violating the established rules of conduct. After due warning has been given to the student 
 and/or families, the privilege of riding the bus may be withheld from the student. Violation of district policies and 
 regulations while on the school bus may result in student discipline up to and including suspension or 
 expulsion, in accordance with district policy. 

 The Clay County  District Schools have jurisdiction over students who are on the school bus or at the school 
 bus stop when  the bus is present at the bus stop. [  F.S. 1006.10 (3)  ] Therefore it is the parent’s responsibility  to 
 take any action with local law enforcement to correct a problem during the time students are waiting at the bus 
 stop or when students are en route to or from the school bus stop. Other responsibilities of parents of 
 transported students include (exerted from  F.A.C.  6A-3.0121  ): 

 1.  To ensure the safe travel of students to and from school including to and from the assigned bus stop. 
 2.  To ensure that students ride only in their assigned school buses and get off only at assigned bus stops, 

 except when alternative buses or arrangements have been made and documented by the district.. 
 3.  To ensure students are aware of and follow the expected rules of behavior while they are at the bus 

 stops and to provide the necessary supervision during times when the bus is not present. 
 Return to Table of Contents  24-25  CCDS Student and Family Handbook  23 

Page 439 of 564

DRAFT



 4.  To provide the necessary assistance for students to get on and off at the bus stop when the physical 
 disability of the student renders them unable to get on and off the bus without assistance (as required 
 by district policy or the student’s individual education plan). 

 We believe that all pupils can behave appropriately and safely while riding the school bus, and as such we will 
 not tolerate behavior that is disruptive to the driver or which inhibits or interferes with the safe operation of the 
 bus. In order to guarantee your child and other children who ride buses the safe and efficient transportation 
 they deserve, the following has been established: 

 1.  Arrive at the bus stop ten (10) minutes prior to the scheduled pick up time. 
 2.  Take responsibility for their behavior and conduct themselves in a respectful, orderly manner while 

 waiting at the bus stop for the bus to arrive. 
 3.  Wait until the bus comes to a stop before attempting to get on or off the bus. 
 4.  Enter and leave the bus only at the front door after it has come to a stop, except in the case of an 

 emergency as  directed by the driver. 
 5.  Leave the bus only with the consent of the driver. 
 6.  Be silent when approaching or crossing railroad tracks. 
 7.  Keep the aisle and stepwell clear at all times. 
 8.  Do not tamper with door handles, windows, and other safety equipment at any time. 
 9.  Do not use wireless communication devices, or electronic devices. Exception: Field trips in which the 

 school administration approves the use of these devices or as a planned intervention for special needs 
 students. Do not use wireless communication devices except in an emergency concerning safety-to-life 
 issues (defined as a bus accident, mechanical breakdown which delays the normal route, and/or thirty 
 (30) minutes or more in a route delay). 

 Large Objects on the School Bus: Oversized objects, including, but not limited to, large band instruments or 
 cases, school projects or athletic equipment which cannot be held in the seat, are prohibited, unless prior 
 approval is obtained from the bus driver and the school administration. 

 Cameras: School buses are equipped with video cameras for the purposes of ensuring the health, welfare and 
 safety of all staff, students, and drivers. 

 NOTE: Bicycle riders under the age of 16 must wear properly fitted, safety-related helmets when riding a 
 bicycle. Law enforcement officers may issue a traffic citation and assess fines to riders who do not comply. 

 6.6 - Student Conduct in the Restroom 
 The restroom is a place on campus with an expectation of privacy. Students should not perform any action, 
 engage in any behavior, or promote behavior in others which could result in the loss of privacy, or the dignity, of 
 any individual. In order to promote the safety and welfare of all students, the following restroom procedures are 
 to be followed within Clay County District Schools: 

 1.  Students shall make every effort to maintain the cleanliness and effective working order of the 
 restrooms. 

 2.  Students may not loiter, or use the restroom as a place to socialize. At no time should more than one 
 person be in a restroom stall. 

 3.  Students may not utilize recording devices of any kind while in the restroom – including but not limited 
 to, cell phones, audio recording devices or cameras. 

 4.  Students may only utilize the restroom which corresponds to their biological sex assigned at birth. 
 Return to Table of Contents  24-25  CCDS Student and Family Handbook  24 

Page 440 of 564

DRAFT



 5.  Upon request through the school administration, students may be provided access to single-use 
 restroom facilities. 

 6.  A student should exit the restroom immediately if they observe others engaged in actions that violate 
 school policy, or procedures of conduct. At their earliest opportunity, they should report the behavior to 
 a staff member. 

 6.7 - Parking /Vehicle Rules 
 All parking areas are the property of Clay County District Schools.  The parking of a student’s vehicle on 
 campus is a privilege granted by the Clay County District Schools upon availability of parking, Written consent 
 from parent/guardian,  purchase of a parking decal at the school of attendance, and written agreement to 
 comply with the Student Code of Conduct. The Clay County District Schools regard the use of motor vehicles 
 for travel to and from school by students as an assumption of responsibility on the part of those students to 
 care for school property, in the observation of safety rules, and in the display of courtesy and consideration 
 toward others. Students who violate school parking rules may have their parking decal revoked and/or are 
 subject to disciplinary action that may result in loss of privileges, suspension, alternative disciplinary 
 placement, or expulsion from school. Searches of motor vehicles on school grounds may be conducted by the 
 principal or designee when that official has reasonable grounds to suspect that the search will uncover 
 evidence of a violation of Board and/or district policies, school rules, or federal, state, or local laws or uncover 
 the presence of an item that presents an immediate danger of physical harm or illness to any person. 

 6.8 - Youth Gang Membership 
 Students are not allowed to form or participate in groups virtually or in person which threaten, frighten or harm 
 other students. Such groups, when they become known by school and district authorities, may be considered a 
 gang. These groups generally have common names, and wear common colors, jewelry, signs or clothing. 
 Students are encouraged to alert an adult if such activity or groups become known to them. 

 6.9 - Zero Tolerance Rule 
 Florida Statute 1006.13  mandates that “each district  school board shall adopt a policy of zero tolerance for 
 crime and substance abuse…and victimization of students…” whenever and wherever students are under the 
 jurisdiction of the  school district. The law requires that expulsion be recommended for any student at school or 
 at a school-related function  that was determined to have had possession of a firearm or weapon as defined in 
 Chapter 790  , or any student making a  threat or false  report as defined by state statutes  790.162  and  790.163  . 

 Simulating a firearm or weapon while playing or wearing clothing or accessories that depict a firearm or 
 weapon or express an opinion regarding a right guaranteed by the Second Amendment to the United States 
 Constitution is not grounds for disciplinary action or referral to the criminal justice or juvenile justice system 
 under  Chapter 790  or s.  1006.13  . Simulating a firearm  or weapon while playing includes, but is not limited to: 

 1.  Brandishing a partially consumed pastry or other food item to simulate a firearm or weapon. 
 2.  Possessing a toy firearm or weapon that is 2 inches or less in overall length. 
 3.  Possessing a toy firearm or weapon made of plastic snap-together building blocks. 
 4.  Using a finger or hand to simulate a firearm or weapon. 
 5.  Vocalizing an imaginary firearm or weapon. 
 6.  Drawing a picture, or possessing an image, of a firearm or weapon. 
 7.  Using a pencil, pen, or other writing or drawing utensil to simulate a firearm or weapon. 

 Return to Table of Contents  24-25  CCDS Student and Family Handbook  25 
Page 441 of 564

DRAFT



 A student may be subject to disciplinary action if simulating a firearm or weapon while playing that substantially 
 disrupts student learning, causes bodily harm to another person, or places another person in reasonable fear 
 of bodily harm. The severity of consequences imposed upon a student including referral to the criminal justice 
 or juvenile system, must be proportionate to the severity of the infraction and consistent with school board 
 policies for similar infractions.  Actions could result  in a potential threat assessment that could result in 
 disciplinary action/consequences. 

 In fulfilling this statutory requirement, we have incorporated the specified legal definitions into the language of 
 the Code of Student Conduct. Regardless of language to the contrary in federal or Florida Law, possession of 
 a firearm, electric weapon or destructive device on the property of any school, school bus, or school bus stop is 
 prohibited. This prohibition includes firearms in motor vehicles parked in parking lots, or anywhere on any 
 school property. 

 Certain disruptive behavior(s) will be reported to law enforcement authorities as defined by the state SESIR 
 codes. A referral by law enforcement to the criminal justice or juvenile delinquency system must be made on all 
 violent acts noted below and weapon charges as defined in the  Gun Free School Act of 1994  &  F.S.790.115. 
 The following are prohibited on any school property (including parking areas), school bus, school bus stop, and 
 school sponsored event: 

 1.  Any weapon which will or is designed to or may readily be converted to expel a projectile by the action 
 of an explosive. 

 2.  The frame or receiver of any weapon described above. 
 3.  Any firearm muffler or firearm silencer. 
 4.  Any explosive, incendiary, or poison gas, bomb, grenade, rocket having a propellant charge of more 

 than four ounces, missile having an explosive or incendiary charge of more than one-quarter ounce, 
 mine or similar device. 

 5.  Any weapon which will, or which may be readily converted to, expel a projectile by the action of an 
 explosive or other propellant, and which has any barrel with a bore of more than one-half inch in 
 diameter. Any combination of parts either designed or intended for use in converting any device into 
 any destructive device described in the two immediately preceding examples, and from which a 
 destructive device may be readily assembled. 

 6.  Any Firearm. 
 7.  Any weapon as defined in  Florida Statute 790.00 (13)  . 

 Incidents defined in the next section of this Handbook will be reported and may result in criminal prosecution. If 
 the infraction involves a victim, the school shall notify the victim and parents, if a minor, of the infraction and the 
 victim’s right to press charges against the offender. The Clay County District Schools will take all steps 
 necessary to protect the victim of any violent crime from any further victimization. Florida law prohibits any 
 student that commits any of the felony offenses specified by  s.985.455(2)  ., against another student from 
 attending school with, or riding the same school bus as, the victim or any sibling of the victim. All school 
 personnel will be made aware of the Student Victimization and Zero Tolerance Rule  F.S. 1006.13  . 

 Infractions that fall under Zero Tolerance Rule are defined by the Florida Department of Education through the 
 School Environmental Safety Incident Reporting (SESIR) and receive the most severe consequences provided 
 for by School Board Policy. 

 THE DISTRICT MAY ASSIGN MORE SEVERE CONSEQUENCES THAN NORMAL WHEN THE STUDENT 
 APPEARS MOTIVATED BY HOSTILITY TOWARD THE VICTIM’S REAL OR PERCEIVED RACE, RELIGION, 
 COLOR, SEXUAL ORIENTATION, ETHNICITY, ANCESTRY, NATIONAL ORIGIN, POLITICAL BELIEFS, 
 Return to Table of Contents  24-25  CCDS Student and Family Handbook  26 

Page 442 of 564

DRAFT



 MARITAL STATUS, AGE, SOCIAL AND FAMILY BACKGROUND, LINGUISTIC PREFERENCE, DISABILITY, 
 OR WHEN THE OFFENSE IS DETERMINED TO BE GANG- RELATED. 

 Section 7 -  Student Accountability, Discipline, and 
 Misconduct 

 Self-direction and personal responsibility are goals of Clay County District Schools. Students must be 
 accountable for their actions, and CCDS recognizes that effective student discipline is a major contributor to 
 the creation of a positive and productive learning environment for all students. In accordance with state law, 
 CCDS uses this student/parent handbook as a written code of conduct, based upon the principle that every 
 student is expected to follow accepted rules of conduct and show respect for persons of authority. Certain 
 behavior, especially behavior that disrupts the classroom, is unacceptable and may result in disciplinary action. 
 Clay County District Schools uses proportionate disciplinary action and/or restorative practices to keep 
 students engaged in learning. 

 Teachers and other instructional personnel shall have the authority to undertake any of the following actions in 
 managing student behavior and ensuring the safety of all students in their classes, on school grounds, and at 
 school sponsored events. 

 1.  Establish classroom rules of conduct that includes positive reinforcement of desired behaviors. 
 2.  Establish and implement consequences, designed to modify undesired behavior. 
 3.  Methods may include: 

 a.  monitoring student behavior through short-term progress reports. 
 b.  conferences and/or contracts between administrators, parents, teachers, and students. 
 c.  referrals to school or district services, e.g., school social worker, school counselor, and/or district 

 mental health therapist, etc. 
 The Code of Student Conduct defines infractions that have been committed by students while under the 
 supervision of  district staff or designees. 

 1.  A major consideration in the application of the Code of Student Conduct is the identification of the most 
 appropriate disciplinary action necessary to bring about positive student behavior. To that end, specific 
 grounds for disciplinary action have been divided into three categories: the offense, disciplinary actions, 
 and restorative practices.  Administrators may choose the discipline for each event. 

 2.  It is important to note that the administrator and teacher, consistent with the power delegated to 
 him/her, has the authority to take additional or more severe administrative action under this Code if, in 
 his/her opinion, the nature of the misconduct warrants it. 

 3.  Each classroom teacher should deal with general classroom disruption by taking in-class disciplinary 
 action, by making a personal call to the parents or guardians when feasible, and by scheduling 
 conferences with parent(s) or guardian and other school staff. Only when the action taken by the 
 teacher is ineffective, or the disruption is sufficiently severe, should the student be referred to the 
 principal or his/her designee. Teachers will be notified of the results of the action taken. 

 Return to Table of Contents  24-25  CCDS Student and Family Handbook  27 
Page 443 of 564

DRAFT



 7.1 - Hearing Office 
 The Student Hearing Office is designed for circumstances that warrant District-level review of intervention 
 beyond a school administration decision. This is the case for zero-tolerance infractions, as well as 
 school-based decisions that a parent wishes to appeal. 

 Hearings will be conducted pursuant to Florida Statutes  1006.07(1)(a)  and  1006.08(1)  . Suspension hearings 
 are exempted from provisions of Ch. 120 F.S. Expulsion hearings shall be governed by F.S. 120.57(2) and are 
 exempt from F.S. 286.0111. 

 Florida Statute  1003.32(4)  and  1006.09(1)(a)  , along  with School Board policies of the Clay County District 
 Schools, give teachers and other school staff who have control and direction of students assigned to them by 
 the principal or the principal’s designee, the authority to remove students who are disobedient, disrespectful, 
 violent, abusive, uncontrollable or disruptive to the learning environment. If the teacher requests the student 
 not be returned to the classroom, the principal may not return the student to that teacher’s class without the 
 teacher’s consent. In the event of a disagreement on the student’s return to the teacher’s classroom, a 
 committee determines that such placement is the best or only available alternative. 

 Due Process Procedures 
 Students will be informed of the infraction and have the opportunity to be heard before disciplinary action. 
 Students will be notified of the school rules that have been violated, either verbally or in writing, by an 
 administrator or designee.  Students will be given the right to present evidence or provide a list of witnesses 
 concerning the charges.  The following steps will be taken to guarantee due process: 

 1.  Proper notification of the infraction or complaint against the student and proposed disciplinary action. 
 2.  Explanation of evidence against the student. 
 3.  Opportunity to present evidence and/or provide a list of witnesses on their behalf. 
 4.  Opportunity to refute charges with an administrator/designee. 

 7.2 - In-School Suspension 
 In-school suspension (ISS) is a strategy used to discipline students for their behavior while ensuring that they 
 continue to participate in learning activities.  It consists of students being removed from their classroom 
 environment, and spending their day or assigned time working on their class work in a designated location for 
 these students. Adult supervision and assistance will be provided to students with their assignments and 
 activities. 

 The goals and primary student outcomes of ISS are: 
 1.  Allows students to continue with school work. 
 2.  Gives students a "time out" to regroup and refocus. 
 3.  Provides the student an opportunity to remediate behavioral concerns. 
 4.  Keeps students in their school routine. 
 5.  Makes transition back into a regular school day easier. 

 In-School Suspension For Students With Disabilities 
 Like all students, students with disabilities can be placed in ISS for violating the school’s code of conduct. 
 However, the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) requires schools to follow additional procedures 
 when placing students with disabilities in ISS. 

 Students with Disabilities Must Be Able to: 

 Return to Table of Contents  24-25  CCDS Student and Family Handbook  28 
Page 444 of 564

DRAFT



 1.  Appropriately progress in the general curriculum.  Generally, this means that the student is 
 receiving all of their regular education assignments and that regular education teachers are 
 involved in the setting, either through supervising it or making regular appearances there. 

 2.  Receive the services specified on the child’s IEP or 504.  Generally this means that the 
 student is receiving an appropriate amount of specialized instruction, supplementary aids and 
 services, and all related services (E.g. – Speech, OT/PT, Adaptive PE, Counseling, etc.). 

 3.  Participate with nondisabled students to the same  extent.  This means that the student is 
 not in a setting that is exclusively for students with disabilities or that he is permitted to leave the 
 setting to attend certain activities with nondisabled peers. 

 The ISS program should include both an academic and behavioral component. The behavior component 
 should address the specific behavior for which the student is placed in ISS. 

 Note:  The school does not have to include ISS in counting  removal days if, during the suspension, it affords 
 the student the opportunity to continue to progress in the general curriculum, receive ESE services, and 
 participate with non-disabled peers. 

 7.3 - Out of School Suspension, Alternative Placement, and Expulsion 
 Clay County District Schools may consider the following factors to determine whether to suspend or expel a 
 student: 

 1.  Age; 
 2.  Disciplinary history; 
 3.  Eligibility as a student with a disability; 
 4.  Seriousness of the infraction; 
 5.  Threat posed to other students and staff; and 
 6.  Likelihood that a lesser intervention would properly address the violation. 

 In matters involving student behavior which may result in the suspension or expulsion of a student, it is district 
 policy that the family will be provided the opportunity to be involved in all such disciplinary procedures. 

 Out of School Suspension 
 A school principal may suspend a student from all classes of instruction on school grounds and all other school 
 sponsored activities,  except as authorized by the  principal or principal’s designee, for persistent disobedience 
 and/or gross misconduct. Principals take this action when they have exhausted informal and other formal 
 disciplinary strategies, or when they have at least considered those alternatives and rejected them as 
 inappropriate in a given situation. 

 Pursuant to Florida Statute 1006.09(1)(b), no student who is required by law to attend school shall be 
 suspended for unexcused tardiness, or absences. Therefore, suspension is not an appropriate disciplinary 
 action for truancy as it relates to students who fall within the mandatory state attendance requirements. 

 Procedures for OSS 
 1.  Prior to suspension, the student shall be advised of why he/she is being suspended (i.e., infraction 

 code)  ,  be provided an opportunity to refute the charges  verbally or through a written statement,  and be 
 given an opportunity to submit to the administrator a list of names of other individuals who might have 

 Return to Table of Contents  24-25  CCDS Student and Family Handbook  29 
Page 445 of 564

DRAFT



 witnessed the incident. It should be noted that any statement a student makes may be used, along with 
 other documentation, to prove whether the student is guilty or not guilty of the infraction. 

 2.  If the student is found to be guilty of the misconduct, determination of the suspension will be provided in 
 writing through the notification of consequences. 

 3.  Written notice such as a copy of the electronic referral and a notification of consequences shall be sent 
 to the parent(s) or guardian by  mail within 24 hours.  All reasonable attempts to conference with the 
 parent via phone or in person must be made during the suspension process. 

 4.  If the immediate suspension of the student is justified because the student’s presence endangers 
 others or school property, the necessary notice and conference, if requested, will follow as soon as 
 possible. 

 5.  The school is required to provide all work assignments to be completed by the student. 
 6.  Principal Review will be held for any student referred to the hearing office. 

 Appeal of Suspension/Principal Review 
 1.  The school principal, after reviewing the case with the parent or adult student, will either affirm or 

 adjudicate the length of suspension as originally stated in the suspension notification during a 
 Principals review. This change shall be made on the electronic referral in the Student Information 
 System. 

 2.  The parent, or adult student, at the Principal’s Review should be advised of his/her right to appeal the 
 action to the Hearing Office. 

 3.  If the parent/guardian, or adult student feels that they were not afforded due process at the Principal’s 
 Review, he/she shall appeal to the Hearing Office in writing within 3 days. 

 4.  The Hearing Office shall review the case to rectify any procedural errors. 
 5.  The Hearing Office recommendation will be presented back to the school for a modification of the 

 original suspension decision or uphold the original suspension. 

 Alternative Learning Placement 
 The removal of a student from the traditional educational setting to an alternative learning placement with 
 continued educational services. 

 Expulsion 
 Expulsion is the removal of the right and obligation of a student to attend a public school under conditions set 
 by the school board, and for a period of time not to exceed the remainder of the term or school year and one 
 (1) additional year of attendance. Expulsions may be imposed with or without continuing educational services 
 and shall be reported accordingly. All Level IV infractions and Level III infractions that are especially egregious, 
 violent, or otherwise significant enough to warrant such a decision will be considered for expulsion. 

 Procedures for Alternative Learning Placement/Expulsion/District Hearing Office 
 1.  Prior to a meeting with the District Hearing Office, a Principal’s Review will be held to advise the student 

 as to why he/she has been recommended for alternative learning placement and/or  expulsion, be 
 provided with an opportunity to refute the charges in a meeting with the principal or principal designee, 
 and be given the opportunity to submit to the administrator a list of names of other individuals who 
 might have witnessed the incident leading to the recommendation. 

 2.  The parent or adult student shall also be advised in the Principal Review of the right to appeal and be 
 advised of the appeal procedures to the District  Hearing Office. 

 3.  Once the Principal Review  is completed, a referral  is made to the Hearing Office for final review and 
 consideration of expulsion recommendation to the Superintendent. 

 Return to Table of Contents  24-25  CCDS Student and Family Handbook  30 
Page 446 of 564

DRAFT



 4.  The District Hearing Office will determine if sufficient basis is found for a recommendation to an 
 alternative learning placement or expulsion to the School Board. 

 In the event that a student who has been recommended for expulsion withdraws from the Clay County District 
 Schools, the expulsion proceedings with the School Board shall continue as though the student had not 
 withdrawn. The Superintendent and School Board shall not delay action on an expulsion recommendation 
 pending re-entry/reregistration of the student in Clay County District Schools. 

 Clay County District Schools will uphold and enforce disciplinary proceedings from other public school districts. 
 A student who has been expelled from another school district, shall not be permitted to transfer, enroll, or be 
 admitted into a Clay County District School.  If a student was expelled with services or alternatively placed in 
 another district, Clay County District Schools will uphold said expulsion or alternative disciplinary placement. 

 7.4 - Reports To Law Enforcement Agencies 
 The School Board views criminal acts committed by students to be extremely serious. In addition to School 
 District disciplinary action, criminal acts will be reported to the appropriate law enforcement agency as outlined 
 in the School District’s zero tolerance policy. These include: 

 School Districts must report the following SESIR incidents, as defined in Rule 6A-1.0017, F.A.C., to law 
 enforcement: 

 1.  Aggravated Battery 
 2.  Alcohol 
 3.  Arson 
 4.  Burglary 
 5.  Criminal Mischief<$1000 
 6.  Disruption on Campus Major 
 7.  Drug Sale/Distribution excluding Alcohol 
 8.  Drug Use-Possession excluding Alcohol 
 9.  Fighting 
 10.  Grand Theft <$750 
 11.  Hazing 

 12.  Homicide 
 13.  Kidnapping 
 14.  Other Major Incidents 
 15.  Robbery 
 16.  Sexual Assault 
 17.  Sexual Battery 
 18.  Sexual Offenses Other 
 19.  Simple Battery Physical Attack 
 20.  Threat/Intimidation 
 21.  Trespassing 
 22.  Weapons Possession 

 School Districts must report all SESIR incidents to law enforcement where the incident includes one or more of 
 the following related elements, as defined Rule 6A-1.0017, F.A.C.: 

 1.  Alcohol-Related 
 2.  Drug-Related 
 3.  Gang-Related 
 4.  Hate Crime-Related 

 5.  Hazing-Related 
 6.  Injury-Related 
 7.  Vaping-Related 
 8.  Weapon-Related 

 “Law enforcement action” means that official action was taken by a School Resource Officer (SRO) or local law 
 enforcement officer in response to a SESIR incident, including but not limited to: an arrest, referral to a civil 
 citation or similar pre arrest diversion program authorized by Section  985.12  , F.S., or initiation of an involuntary 
 examination authorized by Section  394.463  , F.S. 

 “Reported to law enforcement” means that a school district or charter school communicated with a 
 School Resource Officer (SRO) or other law enforcement agency or official about an incident. Reporting 

 Return to Table of Contents  24-25  CCDS Student and Family Handbook  31 
Page 447 of 564

DRAFT



 to law enforcement may not always result in law enforcement action being taken. 

 7.5 - Investigations of Suspected Student Misconduct 
 In order to protect the safety and welfare of students and school personnel, and to maintain order and 
 discipline on school property or at school-sponsored activities or events, school authorities may search a 
 student’s locker or desk and its contents, personal property, or automobile under the circumstances described 
 in policy and may seize any illegal, unauthorized, or contraband materials. 

 School lockers, desks, and other storage areas provided for student use on school premises are school 
 property and remain at all times under the ownership and control of the school. Lockers, desks, and storage 
 areas, as well as the contents therein, are subject to inspection at any time, without notice and without cause, 
 at the discretion of the Clay County District Schools. No student shall lock or impede access to any locker or 
 storage areas except with a lock provided or approved by school authorities. Searches of a student’s person or 
 personal effects such as a backpack, purse, book bag, electronic devices, motor vehicle, etc, within the school 
 or on school grounds may be conducted by the principal or designee when that official has reasonable grounds 
 to suspect that the search will uncover evidence of a violation of Board and/or district policies, school rules, or 
 federal, state, or local laws or uncover the presence of an item that presents an immediate danger of physical 
 harm or illness to any person. 

 7.6 - Tobacco, Vapes, Drugs, and Alcohol 
 Clay County District Schools is committed to promoting the general health, welfare, and well-being of our 
 school community. Consequently, it is district policy that no student shall be permitted to use, be under the 
 influence of, possess, distribute, gift, purchase, exchange, or sell any tobacco product, alcohol, or illegal drug 
 while on district property, at district or school-sanctioned activities or events, when students are being 
 transported in vehicles dispatched  by  CCDS or one  of its schools, and off school property when such conduct 
 has a nexus to school or any district curricular or non-curricular activity or event. As used in this policy, “illegal 
 drugs” are all substances defined under either federal statutes as “drugs” or “controlled substances,” or state 
 statutes as a controlled substance including marijuana or marijuana concentrate as well as counterfeit or 
 synthetic illegal drugs and substances falsely represented as being drugs. As used in this policy, “drugs” also 
 are legal and illegal drugs not properly possessed under state or federal law. An exception to this policy will be 
 made for the administration of medical marijuana in accordance with state law and district policy. As per Florida 
 Statute  1006.09(8)  : School personnel are REQUIRED  to report to the principal or the principal’s designee any 
 suspected unlawful use, possession, or sale by a student of any controlled substance as defined in  s.893.02  ; 
 any counterfeit controlled substance as defined in  s.831.31  ; any alcoholic beverage as defined in  s.561.01(4)  ; 
 or model glue. School personnel are exempt from civil liability when reporting in good faith to the proper 
 school authority suspected unlawful use, possession, or sale by a student. Only a principal or principal’s 
 designee is authorized to contact a parent or legal guardian of a student regarding this situation. 

 Compliance with the standards of conduct set forth in this policy and its accompanying regulations are 
 mandatory for all students. A violation shall subject a student to appropriate disciplinary action, up to and 
 including expulsion and referral for prosecution. For tobacco violations, students may have the option to 
 complete an alternative to suspension program, in lieu of other disciplinary procedures. 

 All students, families, and community members are expected to be aware of the prohibited conduct addressed 
 in district policy and comply with the prohibitions. Failure to comply may result in student discipline up to and 
 including expulsion; or family member or community member trespass  ed  from district property. 

 Return to Table of Contents  24-25  CCDS Student and Family Handbook  32 
Page 448 of 564

DRAFT



 “School property” means all property owned, leased, rented, or otherwise used or contracted for by a school. 
 This includes, but is not limited to: all buildings used for instruction, administration, support services, 
 maintenance, or storage; the grounds surrounding those buildings if the school is authorized to exercise 
 dominion and control over the grounds; and all vehicles used by the school for transporting students, workers, 
 visitors, or other persons. 

 “Tobacco product” means any product that contains nicotine or tobacco or is derived from tobacco and is 
 intended to be ingested, inhaled, or applied to the skin of an individual. “Tobacco product” does not include any 
 product that has been approved by the appropriate federal agency as a tobacco use cessation product. 
 However, due to the wide range of nicotine levels available in tobacco cessation products, the school may 
 request a written document from a medical provider, for anyone under the age of 18, detailing dosage 
 recommendation for tobacco cessation product use. “Use”  means the lighting, chewing, smoking, inhaling, 
 vaporizing, ingesting or application of any other tobacco substance. 

 7.7 - Weapons In School 
 The possession and/or use of a weapon by a student is detrimental to the welfare and safety of students and 
 school  personnel within the district. Carrying, bringing, using, or possessing a weapon in any school building, 
 on school grounds, in any school vehicle, or at any school-sponsored activity  without the authorization  of the 
 school or the school district  is prohibited. 

 7.8 - Firearms 
 Any student who is determined to have brought a firearm or weapon (as defined in Chapter  790.115(1)  , F.S.)  to 
 school, onto any school ground (including parking areas), to any school function, or onto any school-sponsored 
 transportation and for making threats or false reports against a person or persons (as defined in F.S.  790.162 
 and  790.163  ) is automatically recommended to be expelled  for not less than one full year. 

 The Superintendent may consider the one year expulsion on a case by case basis and request the School 
 Board to modify the requirement, including placement in an alternative program if in the best interest of the 
 student and school system. 

 ***  Possession of an artificial firearm is an automatic  suspension and possible expulsion 
 recommendation to the Superintendent.  *** 

 7.9 - Striking or Threatening a School Board Employee 
 Infractions include: 

 1.  Striking a school board employee. 
 2.  Threatening or attempting bodily harm when the person being threatened feels that the threat is real 

 and may be carried out. 

 Procedures for investigating the striking or threatening of school district employees will include, but not be 
 limited to, the following: 

 1.  Collect all relevant information, including witness statements. 
 2.  Consult with law enforcement at the staff member’s direction; school administration and the district 

 Human Resources office should assist the staff member if needed in notifying CCEA or CESPA. 
 3.  Notify the parent of the incident; notice the family with a certified letter of principal review. 

 Return to Table of Contents  24-25  CCDS Student and Family Handbook  33 
Page 449 of 564

DRAFT



 4.  Issue suspension notice with recommendation for expulsion (see ESE guidelines if student is a Student 
 with Disabilities; a ten-day recommended suspension must be addressed at the district meeting). 

 5.  Notify the Hearing Office by sending paperwork and recommendations. 
 6.  Recommendations may include temporary placement in an appropriate alternative setting prior to any 

 district level hearing. 
 7.  The Superintendent or designee will convene the District Discipline Review Committee to investigate 

 the incident. The Superintendent or designee will select the members of the committee, including 
 members of the Clay County Education Association (CCEA) or Clay Educational Staff Professional 
 Association Local 7409 (CESPA) when the injured staff member presses charges. If the district 
 employee chooses to press charges, they can attend the district-wide meeting. 

 8.  The student must attend the review meeting. Unusual circumstances that prevent their participation 
 should be processed as part of the discipline backup material. 

 9.  The committee will present its findings to the Superintendent through the Hearing Office for his 
 expulsion recommendation to the School Board. 

 7.10 - Discipline Action Matrix 

 All infractions can be paired with multiple actions as set forth in the guidelines for assessing consequences of 
 student misconduct. School principals have the discretion to deviate from these guidelines by assessing an 
 appropriate consequence other than ones stated in the guidelines if it is determined that there are mitigating or 
 aggravating circumstances.  Clay County District Schools has implemented the use of restorative practices 
 designed to strengthen relationships.  Restorative practices focus on responsibility/accountability, repairing 
 harm, communication, and appropriate responses. 

 The nature of the misbehavior and the student’s past disciplinary record may be considered in disciplinary 
 action under progressive discipline. Students may be referred for mental health services as indicated by need 
 and history. The school district employee who is supervising the student or who observes the misbehavior 
 should intervene in the misconduct. If repeated misbehavior or further action is necessary the school district 
 employee should refer the student to the school administrator. After hearing the student’s explanation, 
 consulting with staff members and investigating as necessary, the administrator will decide on disciplinary 
 action and/or restorative practice. 

 Following are disciplinary actions and/or restorative practices that can be used to address student misconduct. 
 Each disciplinary  action and/or restorative practice  is coded in the Student Information System (SIS)  to guide 
 the user when choosing which action/intervention to apply. ALL INFRACTIONS REQUIRE PARENT CONTACT 
 SUCH AS A CONFERENCE. More than one disciplinary  action  and/or restorative practice  can be used for a 
 single incident. 

 It is strongly encouraged that an action and/or restorative practice  is focused on building better coping skills  or 
 desired behavior be used when an exclusionary action is also utilized. 

 Level 0/Minor Offenses 

 Incident Description  Disciplinary Actions  Restorative Practices 

 Return to Table of Contents  24-25  CCDS Student and Family Handbook  34 
Page 450 of 564

DRAFT



 ●  Behavior Incident 
 Tracking (BIT) 

 ●  Unsubstantiated Bullying 
 (UBL) 

 ●  Unsubstantiated 
 Harassment (UHR) 

 ●  Letter of Apology 
 ●  Loss of Privileges 
 ●  Time Out 
 ●  School Defined Consequence 
 ●  Warning/Verbal Reprimand 

 ●  Check In/Check Out with 
 Identified Staff Member 

 ●  Counseling 
 ●  Parent Contact 
 ●  Reflection Sheet 
 ●  School Defined Practice 
 ●  Student Conference 
 ●  Teach/Reteach Student 

 Expectations 

 Level 1/ Minor Offenses 

 Incident Description  Disciplinary Actions  Restorative Practices 

 ●  Dress Code Violation 
 (DRS) 

 ●  Profanity/Obscene 
 Language or Gesture 
 (PRO) 

 ●  Providing False 
 Information/Forgery 
 (FLS) 

 ●  Skipping Class (SKP) 
 ●  Tardy (TAR) 
 ●  Violation of  Classroom 

 Rule (VCR) 
 ●  Wireless Communication 

 Device (WCD) 

 ●  Contract 
 ●  ISS (1-5) 
 ●  Loss of Privileges 
 ●  School Detention 
 ●  School Defined Consequence 
 ●  Work Detail/School Chores 

 ●  Check In/Check Out with 
 Identified Staff Member 

 ●  Counseling 
 ●  Letter of Apology 
 ●  Parent Contact 
 ●  Reflection Sheet 
 ●  School Defined Practice 
 ●  Student Conference 
 ●  Teach/Reteach Student 

 Expectations 

 Level 2/ Major Offenses 

 Incident Description  Disciplinary Actions  Restorative Practices 

 ●  Abuse of School 
 Property - vandalism 
 under  $1000 (ABS) 

 ●  Defiance/ Disrespect 
 Insubordination (DEF) 

 ●  Inappropriate Conduct 
 (IAC) 

 ●  Leaving School Without 
 Permission (LVS) 

 ●  Low Level 
 Confrontation  Dispute/Stu 
 dent to Student Verbal 
 Confrontation  (DSP) 

 ●  Possession of 
 Inappropriate Object 
 (POS) 

 ●  Student uses  Profanity 
 or Gesture/School Board 
 Employee (SPE) 

 ●  Stealing/Petty Theft  < 
 $750 (STP) 

 ●  Bus Suspension (1-10) 
 ●  Consultation 
 ●  Consultation with Law 

 Enforcement 
 ●  Contract 
 ●  ISS (1-10) 
 ●  Loss of Privileges 
 ●  OSS (1-10) 
 ●  School Defined Consequence 
 ●  School Detention 
 ●  Work Detail/School Chores 

 ●  Check In/Check Out with 
 Identified Staff Member 

 ●  Counseling 
 ●  FEP- Family Education 

 Program 
 ●  Letter of Apology 
 ●  Parent Contact 
 ●  Reflection Sheet 
 ●  School Defined Practice 
 ●  Student Conference 
 ●  Teach/Reteach Student 

 Expectations 

 Level 3/Major Offenses 

 Return to Table of Contents  24-25  CCDS Student and Family Handbook  35 
Page 451 of 564

DRAFT



 Incident Description  Disciplinary Actions  Restorative Practices 

 Local District Codes 

 ●  Felony Charges filed 
 outside of the school 
 (SAO) 

 ●  Identity Theft (IDT) 
 ●  Inappropriate Use of 

 Technology (TEC) 
 ●  Multiple Level 2 

 Referrals (MUL) 
 ●  Room Clearing  Event 

 (RCE) 
 ●  Student 

 Confrontation/School 
 Board Employee non 
 physical (SCE) 

 ●  Violation of  Behavior 
 Contract (VBC) 

 SESIR Violation Codes 

 ●  Bullying/ Cyberbullying 
 (BUL) 

 ●  Burglary (BRK) 
 ●  Disruption on  Campus - 

 Major Disorderly 
 Conduct (DOC) 

 ●  Fighting (FIT) 
 ●  Harassment (HAR) 
 ●  Hazing (HAZ) 
 ●  Other Major OMC 
 ●  Sexual Offense SXO 
 ●  Simple Battery - 

 including school board 
 personnel (PHA) 

 ●  Tobacco (TBC) 
 ●  Threat/Intimidation 

 (TRE) 

 ●  Alternative Learning Placement 
 ●  Bus Suspension (1-10) 
 ●  Consultation 
 ●  Contract 
 ●  ISS (1-10) 
 ●  Loss of Privileges 
 ●  OSS (1-10) 
 ●  Recommendation for Expulsion 

 with or without services 
 ●  Refer to Hearing Office 
 ●  Refer to Law Enforcement 
 ●  School Defined Consequence 
 ●  School Detention 
 ●  Work Detail/School Chores 

 ●  Check In/Check Out with 
 Identified Staff Member 

 ●  Counseling 
 ●  FEP- Family Education 

 Program 
 ●  Letter of Apology 
 ●  Parent Contact 
 ●  Reflection Sheet 
 ●  School Defined Practice 
 ●  Student Conference 
 ●  Teach/Reteach Student 

 Expectations 
 ●  Tobacco Education Program 

 Level 4/Major Offenses 

 Incident Description  Disciplinary Actions  Restorative Practices 

 Return to Table of Contents  24-25  CCDS Student and Family Handbook  36 
Page 452 of 564

DRAFT



 ●  Aggravated Battery 
 (BAT) 

 ●  Alcohol (ALC) 
 ●  Arson (ARS) 
 ●  Criminal Mischief > 

 $1000 (VAN) 
 ●  Drug Sale and 

 Distribution, Excluding 
 Alcohol (DRD) 

 ●  Drug Use Possession, 
 Excluding Alcohol (DRU) 

 ●  Grand Theft  >  $750, 
 including Motor Vehicle 
 Theft (STL) 

 ●  Kidnapping (KID) 
 ●  Homicide (HOM) 
 ●  Robbery/Extortion (ROB) 
 ●  Sexual Assault (SXA) 
 ●  Sexual Battery (SXB) 
 ●  Sexual Harassment 

 (SXH) 
 ●  Trespassing (TRS) 
 ●  Weapon Possession 

 (WPO) 

 ●  Alternative Learning Placement 
 ●  OSS (10) 
 ●  Recommendation for Expulsion 

 with or without services 
 ●  Refer to Hearing Office 
 ●  Refer to Law Enforcement 
 ●  School Defined Consequence 

 ●  Check In/Check Out with 
 Identified Staff Member 

 ●  Counseling 
 ●  FEP- Family Education 

 Program 
 ●  Letter of Apology 
 ●  Parent Contact 
 ●  Reflection Sheet 
 ●  School Defined Practice 

 Category Action 

 Parent Involvement  Parent Involvement is critical to upholding the Code 
 of Conduct 

 ●  Admin/Parent/Student 
 Conference 

 ●  Parent Phone Call 

 School Defined  The School has the authority to define 
 consequences based on the offenses 

 ●  Consequence 
 ●  Restorative Practice 

 Restorative Practice  Restorative practices help students in taking 
 ownership of their behavior and understanding how 
 it affects others. 

 ●  Apology Letter (required 
 for each infraction) 

 ●  Peer Mediation 
 ●  Reflection Sheet 
 ●  Restitution 
 ●  Work Detail/School 

 Chores 

 Contract  Students may be placed on a contract as a way to 
 correct behavior 

 ●  Attendance Contract 
 ●  Behavior Contract 
 ●  No Contact Contract 

 Detention 
 Students may be assigned detention as a 
 consequence for Code of Conduct violations 

 ●  After School Detention 
 ●  Class Detention 
 ●  Saturday Detention 
 ●  Silent Lunch Detention 

 Removal  Removal from Extracurricular Activities based on 
 Code of Conduct Violations 

 ●  Loss of 
 Privilege(s)/Extracurricular 
 Activities 

 Consultation  Consultation with various departments to ensure 
 student needs are met 

 ●  ESE Department 
 Collaboration 

 Return to Table of Contents  24-25  CCDS Student and Family Handbook  37 
Page 453 of 564

DRAFT



 ●  Referral to Family 
 Education Program 

 ●  Referral to School 
 Counselor 

 ●  Referral to Hearing Office 
 ●  Referral to Social Worker 

 or Mental Health 
 ●  Referral to Tobacco 

 Education Program 

 Suspension  Students may be suspended from school for 
 violations of the Code of Conduct 

 ●  School Bus Suspension 
 ●  In-School Suspension 
 ●  Out-of-School Suspension 

 Alternative Learning 
 Placement 

 Students may be placed at the alternative school in 
 lieu of expulsion 

 ●  Alternative Learning 
 Placement 

 Expulsion  The School Board of Clay County must hear and 
 vote on any case of Expulsion  ●  Expulsion 

 7.12 - Discipline and Students with Disabilities 
 The School District of Clay County is committed to providing all students with disabilities a free, appropriate 
 public education. While this commitment includes all aspects of learning experiences for students with 
 disabilities, it in no way lessens the School Board’s intention to maintain a safe, orderly environment for the 
 entire student and staff population. 

 Additionally, the School Board believes that the implementation of thoughtful, carefully constructed disciplinary 
 procedures is a necessary component of student education. 

 Formal disciplinary actions described in the Clay County Code of Student Conduct may be used with students 
 with disabilities when trained professionals have evidence that such strategies are appropriate to the student’s 
 conduct and contribute to  his  the  learning process.  When necessary to ensure the overall safety, welfare, 
 and/or order of the school environment, a student with disabilities may be subjected to out of school 
 suspension (not to exceed 10 school days within a school year) with all alternative procedures and safeguards 
 affirmed. More serious violations may result in a recommendation for expulsion and/or an administrative 
 placement in an Alternative Exceptional Education setting. 

 When working with students with disabilities, the goal is to focus on proactive strategies using positive 
 behavioral interventions and supports with an intentionally reduced focus on exclusionary methods (i.e. 
 out-of-school suspension). Individualized Education Plan (IEP) or 504 teams must convene when a student 
 reaches his or her fifth day, or any time prior to the fifth day of out-of-school suspension in order to proactively 
 address the student’s needs. 

 Procedures which govern a change of placement generally follow these guidelines: 

 1.  The district prohibits any student with a disability from being suspended out-of-school for more than ten 
 (10) consecutive days or ten (10) cumulative days within a school year. Any disciplinary removal of a 
 student with a disability for more than ten (10) days in a school year is considered a change of 

 Return to Table of Contents  24-25  CCDS Student and Family Handbook  38 
Page 454 of 564

DRAFT



 placement. If a decision is made that a change of placement will occur for a student with a disability, the 
 student’s IEP or 504 team will be convened to conduct a manifestation determination review. 

 2.  Students with disabilities who have been determined to have committed certain Level III or Level IV 
 infractions of the Code of Student Conduct may be recommended for expulsion. 

 3.  The manifestation  determination  review committee is  a team of professionals trained to provide input 
 regarding the student’s needs and disability. The team conducts a comprehensive records/data review 
 and makes a determination if the student’s behavior was or was not a manifestation of the student’s 
 disability.  The team shall include the school psychologist, appropriate Exceptional Student Education 
 (ESE) or 504 personnel, parents/student, and administrative representation of the referring campus. If 
 the student’s behavior is determined to be a manifestation of the student’s disability and the student’s 
 misconduct did not involve weapons, drugs, or serious bodily injury, the student may not be expelled 
 and the student's original placement is restored.  The IEP or 504 team will ensure the student’s needs 
 are addressed via the IEP or 504 plan. 

 4.  If it is determined that the offense is a manifestation of the student’s disability, but the conduct involves 
 drugs, weapons, or serious bodily injury, the student may not be expelled, but may be provided services 
 for a limited time in an alternative setting. For students with an IEP, a Functional Behavior Assessment/ 
 Positive Behavior Support Plan (FBA/PBSP) is to be generated or reviewed and added to the IEP.  For 
 students with 504 Plan, a behavior plan will be generated or reviewed  .  For students with a 504 Plan, 
 the 504 team should review and update any existing Behavior Intervention Plan or conduct a 504 
 Reevaluation to determine if a Behavior Intervention Plan is needed. 

 5.  If the manifestation determination team determines that the student’s behavior is not a manifestation of 
 the student’s disability, the district may discipline the student according to its regular discipline code of 
 conduct. 

 6.  A district-wide discipline hearing may be held to consider the Principal’s recommendations to the 
 Superintendent. 

 7.  The recommendations will be based on the Statement of Manifestation and the determination of 
 eligibility for expulsion. 

 8.  After a review of the following documentation by the ESE Director or Student Services staff, the 
 Superintendent may notify the parents regarding the Clay County School Board hearing schedule and 
 the rights accorded the student at the hearing: 

 a.  Statement of Manifestation 
 b.  Current IEP, including relevant matrix amendments, or 504 Plan or Least Restrictive 

 Environment (LRE) 
 c.  Functional Behavior Assessment/Positive Behavior Support Plan 

 9.  All Due Process Rights and Procedures are granted to students with disabilities.  Parents must be 
 provided with a copy of the procedural safeguards at the IEP/Manifestation Determination or 
 504/Manifestation Determination meeting as applicable. 

 10.  Under no circumstances shall expulsion of a student with disabilities result in a complete cessation of 
 educational services. Students will be provided an alternative setting in order to ensure that the IEP or 
 504 Plan is continued. 

 NOTE: In reference to students with a 504 Plan, the consequences for drug or alcohol use or possession by 
 any student with a disability are not different from non-disabled students. 

 ESE Parent Notification  7.13 - Procedural Safeguards  for Students With 
 Disabilities 
 Notice of  IDEA  Procedural Safeguards for Parents of  Student with Disabilities 

 Return to Table of Contents  24-25  CCDS Student and Family Handbook  39 
Page 455 of 564

DRAFT



 A copy of the ESE procedural safeguards will be provided to you when your child is initially referred and placed 
 in the exceptional student education program and at each annual IEP meeting thereafter. You will also receive 
 a copy when a decision is made to take a disciplinary action against your child that constitutes a change of 
 placement, upon receipt of your first State or due process complaint, when you request an evaluation, and 
 upon your request.  For easy reference, the procedural safeguards are located on the Clay County District 
 Website’s Exceptional Student Education page. This document provides parents with a full explanation of the 
 procedural safeguards available under IDEA and the Department of Education regulation such as: prior written 
 notice, parent consent meetings, independent evaluations, records, state complaint procedures, mediation, 
 hearings, administrative law judges, due process hearing rights, appeals of due process, placement during due 
 process hearings and appeals, attorney’s fees, discipline including long term removals and interim alternative 
 educational settings (IAES), placement consent and revocation, and private school placements.  For additional 
 copies or explanations of the procedural safeguards, you may contact your child's school and/or the ESE 
 district office  . 

 Notice of  Rights for Students With Disabilities and Their Parents Under Section 504 of the 
 Rehabilitation Act of 1973 

 A copy of the 504 procedural safeguards will be provided to you when your child is initially determined eligible 
 for a 504 plan and at each annual 504 plan meeting thereafter. You will also receive a copy when a decision is 
 made to take a disciplinary action against your child that constitutes a change of placement, upon receipt of an 
 impartial due process hearing, and upon your request.  For easy reference the procedural safeguards are 
 located on the Clay County district’s website Climate and Culture page. 

 The purpose of this notice is to inform parents and students of their rights granted to them under 504 [34 CFR 
 104.32] such as, the right to receive a free and appropriate education, evaluation, placement decisions, 
 educational records, and grievance or complaint procedures. 

 7.14 - Students Charged with a Felony 
 Pursuant to Section 1006.09(2), Florida Statutes, a student charged with a felony or delinquent act that would 
 be a felony if committed by an adult, whether it occurred on or away from school board property, may be 
 suspended or assigned to an alternative education program. Such assignment may be made upon 
 determination that the student is eligible according to federal and state program criteria, and: 

 ❏  the nature of the offense is such that the student poses a threat to safety of other students or personnel 
 at school 

 ❏  the student’s safety is at risk by remaining in school or at a school-sponsored event with other students. 

 A principal can initiate this process in writing through the Hearing Office under authority of F.S.  1001.54  and 
 guidance of F.S.  1006.13(6)  . Suspension pursuant to  this process shall not affect the delivery of educational 
 services to the student and the student shall be enrolled in an alternative education program. Students who are 
 eligible for services under the IDEA or Section 504 of the Americans with Disabilities Act are subject to those 
 procedural safeguards. The recommendation of the principal to exercise this policy must be approved by the 
 principal supervisor. 

 Return to Table of Contents  24-25  CCDS Student and Family Handbook  40 
Page 456 of 564

DRAFT



 Section 8 -  Student Safety 

 8.1 - Threat Management Assessment 
 In support of maintaining school safety, staff will investigate reports of, or evidence regarding, 
 students who exhibit behaviors that indicate a potential intent to harm or other concerning behavior that 
 requires intervention  student behavior  on or off school  grounds that could pose a threat to the safety or welfare 
 of other students or staff . 

 Threatening or  concerning  potentially dangerous  behavior  and communication  may include 
 may be expressed verbally, visually, in writing, electronically, or through other means. Concerning 
 communications may be considered threatening, even if they do not involve a direct and explicit threat of 
 violence. Concerning communications may also allude to hopelessness or suicide.  verbal, written, or 
 non-verbal communications or gestures. Threats may be direct, indirect, conditional, or veiled. Threats may be 
 communicated in person, electronically, through a third party, or by other intentional or unintentional means. 

 In assessing the potential level of danger of a student’s behavior, school staff may conduct a threat  intake 
 and/or  assessment following district policy. Families  may be invited to assist school staff in completing the 
 assessment; however, family refusal to assist staff in completing the assessment will not prevent staff from 
 completing those parts of the assessment about which staff is knowledgeable. Clay County District Schools 
 may also make a  level of concern  determination  of  risk  based on information received from law enforcement 
 agencies, court personnel, mental health professionals, human services, or other agency partners. 

 Families will be notified when a threat assessment is being conducted, or as soon as possible after such 
 assessment has been conducted, regarding their student. Records of student threat management 
 assessments shall be provided to families upon request.  Students  Parents will be invited  may be required  to 
 participate in the development of a  student support  management  safety  plan and comply with such a plan. 
 SB Policy 9.18 

 8.2 - FortifyFL 
 FortifyFL  is a suspicious activity reporting tool  that allows you to instantly relay information to appropriate law 
 enforcement agencies and school officials. It is available on the CCDS student portal, and may be downloaded 
 to any portable device through the FLDOE website. 

 8.2 - SaferWatch App 

 SaferWatch  is a free emergency notification app. Please  take a short moment to download the free app to your 
 phone by accessing the App Store for iPhone users or Google Play for Android users. The app is programmed 
 so that when CCDS teachers and staff are on any of our district's properties, a mobile panic button is available 
 for use in the event of an immediate emergency. For CCDS students, the app allows them to report suspicious 
 activity and tips occurring in schools. 

 Return to Table of Contents  24-25  CCDS Student and Family Handbook  41 
Page 457 of 564

DRAFT



 The SaferWatch App Terms of Service (ToS) prohibits using the app for  fraudulent, abusive, or illegal 
 activity  . SaferWatch makes it clear that any suspected  fraudulent, abusive, or illegal activity may be grounds 
 for terminating the User’s right to use the SaferWatch app. 

 SaferWatch’s User Privacy Policy (UPP) states that anonymous tips may not remain anonymous in the event 
 that a user makes a False Report with the app, and that SaferWatch may release the user’s information to law 
 enforcement in these circumstances. 

 Since SaferWatch connects to the 911/E911 system, the misuse of the app could result in criminal charges. 

 8.3 - Random Searches 
 School officials or school employees designated by the principal may conduct random searches of groups of 
 individuals if the checks are done in a minimally intrusive, nondiscriminatory manner (e.g., on all students in a 
 randomly selected class; on every third individual entering an athletic event, etc.). Random searches may not 
 be used to single out a particular individual or category of individuals. 

 If a school official or a law enforcement officer has reasonable suspicion to believe that a particular student is 
 in possession of an illegal or unauthorized metal container, object, or weapon, he or she may conduct a metal 
 detector check of the student’s person and personal effects. 

 A student’s failure to permit a search as provided in this policy will be considered grounds for disciplinary 
 action, including suspension. 

 School personnel may conduct a search of a student’s possessions, a student’s locker, or any other storage 
 area on school property or student vehicle without a warrant when school personnel have reasonable 
 suspicion that illegal, prohibited, harmful items or substance, or stolen property may be concealed in such 
 location. School personnel have the authority to  search a student’s possessions upon reasonable suspicion if 
 the student refuses to reveal the contents inside. 

 School personnel are encouraged to attempt to obtain consent from a student to search for illegal, prohibited, 
 harmful  items or substance, or stolen property, but may proceed with a search without a student’s consent, 
 upon reasonable suspicion of a prohibited or illegally-possessed substance or object. 

 Principals are authorized to request from law enforcement the need to utilize trained dogs to detect the 
 presence of illegally possessed substances or objects in student lockers, in student automobiles parked on 
 campus, and any student possession that is located on campus per Florida Statute  1006.09(9)  . 

 8.4 - Family and Behavior Expectations 
 All Clay County District Schools students and staff deserve to learn and work in an environment free from 
 disruption, threat or intimidation. Family members and adult visitors will display appropriate and professional 
 adult behavior in schools, during school events and at sanctioned school activities at all times. In accordance 
 with Florida law, failure of a family member or adult visitor to act appropriately may result in the violator being 
 prohibited (trespassed) from being on school property or attending any school sanctioned events. In cases of 
 significant disruption, law enforcement will be contacted regarding the matter. 

 Section 9 -  Student Health 
 Return to Table of Contents  24-25  CCDS Student and Family Handbook  42 

Page 458 of 564

DRAFT



 9.1 - Immunization 
 The Florida Department of Health has published the  2023  2020-21  School  Entry  Immunization Requirements 
 on their  website  , along with multiple resources to  help families navigate the  Immunization Guidelines  for 
 school-age and preschool/daycare requirements. There is a  FAQ  section to assist in this process. 

 A Certificate of Immunization (DH 680) indicating compliance with the current required schedule of 
 immunizations must be presented prior to enrollment in school. A physical exam (performed within 1 year prior 
 to initial enrollment in Florida public or private schools) is required for all students new to the district. (  FS 
 1003.22) 

 9.2 - Health Services/Screenings 
 The new Florida Statute  1014.06  titled “Parents’ Bill  of Rights”, requires parental consent to provide health 
 services in our schools.  Parents will need to have a  consent form  for care provided in the school health  rooms 
 signed for each student and on file with the school.  At the beginning of each school year, the Clay County 
 Schools and the Florida Department of Health in Clay County are required, by law, (F.S.  381.0056  ) to inform 
 parents of the health screening program. This program is carried out to appraise, protect and promote the 
 health of students through assisting in the early identification of health problems in the areas of hearing, vision, 
 growth & development, dental, mental health, and scoliosis. These screenings are limited to procedures that 
 do not penetrate the skin or any body orifice (i.e.., any invasive screening requires written parent  permission). 

 9.3 - Food Allergens 
 For the safety and wellness of our student body, outside foods and beverages that are not commercially 
 prepared and/or packaged are not allowable at school events or for shared consumption.  All outside foods and 
 beverages must contain an FDA-compliant nutrition label and/or a complete list of ingredients that will allow 
 school personnel and/or students to identify potential allergens. 

 9.4 - Live Lice Policy 
 The  Florida Department of Health in  Clay County  District  Schools are  is  committed to utilizing best practice 
 recommendations for lice  management in schools in a manner that respects the privacy of students and 
 families. No Clay County District School (CCDS) personnel, parents of other students or unauthorized 
 personnel other than clinic staff and school principal (on a need to know basis) will be notified of a student 
 having lice/nits. Lice exclusions are viewed as necessary only when excessive infestations (more than 10 live 
 lice, diagnosed by a treating health care provider) are present or there is lack of follow up with treating lice. 

 Per the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, head lice can be a nuisance but they have not been 
 shown to spread disease. Personal hygiene or cleanliness in the home or school has nothing to do with getting 
 head lice. For more information, go to  head lice information  for schools from the CDC  . 

 Both the  American Academy of Pediatrics (AAP)  and  the  National Association of School Nurses (NASN)  offers 
 the following information and advocates that school districts review policies regularly based on the following 
 reasons: 

 1.  Many nits are more than ¼ inch from the scalp. Such nits are usually not viable and very unlikely to 
 hatch to become crawling lice, or may in fact be empty shells, also known as ‘casings’. 

 2.  Nits are cemented to hair shafts and are very unlikely to be transferred successfully to other people. 
 Return to Table of Contents  24-25  CCDS Student and Family Handbook  43 

Page 459 of 564

DRAFT



 3.  The burden of unnecessary absenteeism to the students, families and communities far outweighs the 
 risks associated with head lice. 

 4.  Misidentification of nits is very common during nit checks conducted by nonmedical personnel. 
 5.  Lice are typically not spread within the school setting. Lice transmission requires close head-to head 

 contact or the sharing of personal hair related items. 

 School health room staff responsibilities regarding lice in schools: 

 1.  Educate school staff regarding head lice causes, treatment and common misconceptions such as: 
 a.  Getting head lice is not related to cleanliness of the person or his/her environment. 
 b.  Head lice are mainly spread by direct contact with the hair of an infested person. 
 c.  Head lice are not known to transmit disease. 
 d.  Head lice move by crawling, not hopping or flying. 
 e.  Head lice are not reportable to the public health departments unless there are other 

 communicable disease related concerns. 
 2.  Educate students and their families about how to prevent lice and what to do if a family member has 

 lice. 
 3.  Collaborate with the Public Health Department or other resources in planning assistance to families 

 who have chronic infestation. 

 Treatment: 

 If you suspect a child has head lice, it’s important to encourage the parent(s)/guardian(s) to consult with a 
 pediatrician or family physician for proper care as soon as possible. Treatment failure may be caused by lack 
 of response to a treatment, incorrect product usage, misdiagnosis of the original condition, or re-infestation. To 
 help avoid these pitfalls, the physician can confirm the diagnosis, discuss treatment options, provide an 
 appropriate recommendation, and advise parent(s)/guardian(s) on how to properly use the medication. 

 Key treatment considerations: 

 1.  A common approach to head lice treatment is to use an over-the-counter (OTC) medication. While 
 these treatments have been effective in the past, resistance to some OTC head lice treatments has 
 been reported in recent years. A 2016 study showed that 48 states now have lice that may be 
 genetically predisposed to resistance to commonly used treatments. 

 2.  There are new prescription treatment options available that are safe and do not require nit combing. 
 3.  Parent(s)/guardian(s) should closely follow treatment instructions. Using extra amounts or multiple 

 applications of the same medication is not recommended, unless directed by a healthcare professional. 
 4.  Family bed linens and recently used clothes, hats, and towels should be washed in very hot water and 

 dried on the highest setting. 
 5.  Personal articles such as combs, brushes, and hair clips should be soaked in very hot water (at least 

 130° F) for 5 to 10 minutes. 
 6.  All household members and other close contacts should be checked, and anyone with evidence of an 

 active infestation should be treated. All persons with active head lice should be treated at the same 
 time. 

 Communicating with families: 
 School nurses will help educate the community about head lice and treatment options, including OTC and 
 prescription products, through letters to parents at the beginning of the school year or during a lice outbreak, 
 handouts in the nurse’s office, and presentations during parent-teacher nights. 

 Return to Table of Contents  24-25  CCDS Student and Family Handbook  44 
Page 460 of 564

DRAFT



 School nurses can also help prevent stigmatization in the community by spreading the word that head lice 
 infest children from all backgrounds and walks of life. Anyone can get head lice, no matter how clean their 
 home or hair is, or where they live or go to school or play. 

 Head Lice Protocol: 

 1.  When live lice are identified, the child’s parent or guardian WILL be notified that same day by telephone 
 stating that prompt, proper treatment must be completed before return to school after live lice 
 diagnosis. 

 2.  There are many acceptable treatment options; however, treatment with a product that is both a 
 pediculicide as well as ovicidal is the surest way to kill lice and prevent further re-infestation. 

 3.  Students will not be allowed to return to school until proof of treatment is presented by 
 parent(s)/guardians(s). Acceptable proof of treatment is a health care provider note, receipt from 
 purchase of over-the-counter lice treatment or visual confirmation from CCDS health room staff of no 
 live lice on scalp upon students return to school. 

 4.  Notification letters should be sent home to alert parents only if a high percentage (20% or more) of 
 children in a classroom are infested with lice. 

 9.5 - Home Responsibilities for General Health Updates 
 It is the responsibility of the parent(s)/guardian to notify the school of any health condition of their student(s) 
 which may require medication, treatment, or monitoring at school or on school-sponsored trips or activities. 

 It is the responsibility of the parent(s)/guardian to submit a properly executed “Authorization for 
 Medication/Treatment” form (MIS 12470) to school administration if their student requires medication 
 (including over the counter) or treatment to be given during the school day. Parents will be responsible for 
 delivery and retrieval of medications to the school nurse/health designee. No medications are to be 
 transported via the school bus system. All medications to be administered by school personnel shall be 
 received and stored in the ORIGINAL container; this includes over-the-counter medications. 

 It is the responsibility of the parent(s)/guardian to notify the school immediately of any chronic or acute 
 medical conditions a child may have and of any necessity for a child to be allowed to self-medicate during 
 the school day. The Health Services Manual may be viewed at  Health Services  . 

 Section 10 -  Other Important Information for Families 

 10.1 - Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) 
 The revised Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) became a Federal law in November, 1974 
 (amended 1976). The intent of this law is to protect the accuracy and privacy of student educational records. 
 The Clay County School Board has adopted a policy for the implementation of this Act and the Superintendent 
 of Schools has approved administrative procedures for this purpose. 

 Accordingly, this notice outlines the type of student information collected and how that information is 
 maintained and released. It further indicates the school officials who have the responsibility to follow 
 appropriate procedures regarding the information. 

 Return to Table of Contents  24-25  CCDS Student and Family Handbook  45 
Page 461 of 564

DRAFT



 Section 1003.25 and Section 1002.22, F.S. mandates that each principal maintain a permanent cumulative 
 record for  each student enrolled in a public school. Such records are to be maintained according to a format 
 prescribed by rules of  the State Board of Education. These State Board Rules also define the data which must 
 be kept. 

 What information is in a student’s record? 
 Education records of a student include but are not necessarily limited to: personally identifiable data (student 
 and parent name, address, birth date, birthplace, sex, race), academic record, standardized test results, 
 attendance records, health data, family background information, teacher or counselor ratings and observation, 
 psychological reports, extracurricular activities, honors and awards, list of schools attended, and any other 
 evidence, knowledge, or information recorded in any medium and maintained and used by an educational 
 institution or by a person acting for such institution. The principal may maintain a separate disciplinary file for 
 students involved in misconduct to include, but not be limited to, description of misconduct, suspension 
 notices, records of action taken, etc. As amended by NCLB (No Child Left  Behind), the district will transfer 
 disciplinary records, with respect to a suspension or expulsion, as part of the student’s educational record to 
 any private or public elementary school or secondary school for any student who is enrolled or seeks, intends, 
 or is instructed to enroll, on a full-or part-time basis, in the school (Section 4155 of the Elementary and 
 Secondary Education Act of 1965). Confidential records created by the Department of Juvenile Justice are not 
 included in a Student’s Educational record. The destruction of student records is in accordance with a retention 
 schedule approved by the Bureau of Archives. 

 Who has access to student records? 
 Those persons having access to student records are the School Board, the Superintendent, school personnel 
 within a school or school district with a legitimate educational interest and others specified by Section 1002.22 
 F.S. A Record of Request shall be maintained in the records. These records are maintained under the direction 
 of the principal. 

 What are the rights of a parent or adult student? 
 According to (34C.F.R. § 300.20), a parent means: 

 1.  A natural or adoptive parent of a child; 
 2.  A guardian; 
 3.  A person acting in the place of a parent (such as a grandparent or stepparent with whom the child lives, 

 or a  person who is legally responsible for the child’s welfare); or 
 4.  A surrogate parent; or 
 5.  A foster parent if the natural parent’s authority to make educational decisions on the child’s behalf has 

 been extinguished under State law and the foster parent has an “ongoing, long-term parental 
 relationship with the child; is willing to make the educational decisions required of parents under the 
 Act; and has no interest that would conflict with the interests of the child.” 

 6.  FERPA regulations indicate that in the situation when a student is dually enrolled in both a K12 
 educational institution and a post-secondary institution, the parents retain the rights over the student’s 
 education records maintained by the high school and the student retains the rights over the education 
 records maintained by the college or university. 

 Parents, legal guardians, or adult students (age 18 and/or in post-secondary education) have the right of 
 access, right of waiver of access, right to revoke waiver of access, right to challenge and hearing, and right of 
 privacy of records maintained on their child, and a right of a copy of the record (at the cost of reproduction). 

 Return to Table of Contents  24-25  CCDS Student and Family Handbook  46 
Page 462 of 564

DRAFT



 Transfer, disclosure, or release of student records requires prior written consent of the parent of eligible student 
 exceptions include: 

 1.  disclosures made to school officials with legitimate educational interests; 
 2.  disclosures made to another school at which the student intends to enroll; 
 3.  disclosures made to state or local education authorities for auditing or evaluating federal-or 

 state-supported  education programs, or enforcing relevant federal laws; and 
 4.  disclosures including information the school has designated as “directory information.” 

 A parent who wishes to review his/her child’s record should make an appointment with the principal or school 
 counselor. School personnel are available to interpret student record information. All such requests will be 
 honored by school officials as soon as possible. It is required that requests be honored within thirty (30) days. 
 A copy of the Clay County Student Records Policy is available in all schools, and at the School Board offices in 
 Green Cove Springs. 

 In case of divorce or legal separation, either parent may have access to a child’s educational record unless an 
 appropriate  court order to the contrary has been filed with the school. 

 Whatever rights are vested in the parent shall pass to the student whenever the student has attained eighteen 
 (18) years of age or is attending a postsecondary educational institution, unless the student continues to be 
 carried as a dependent on the parent’s income tax return. [Ref. 1002.22(3)] Students under age 18 may 
 assume adult rights if they become married or are emancipated by court order. [Ref. F.S. 743.01 and 743.015] 
 Note: Pregnant and parenting teens continue as minors unless they become married or emancipated by court 
 order. 

 Parents or eligible students have the right to file a complaint with the Department of Health and Human 
 Services concerning the alleged failure by the educational agency to comply with Section 438 of the Act. (200 
 Independence Avenue, S.W., Washington, D. C., 20207).  F.S. 1000.21(5)  defines “Parent” as: either or both 
 parents, any guardian, or any person who is in a parental relationship to a student, or who is exercising 
 supervisory authority in place of a parent over a student of public school age. The school district specific 
 guidelines regarding “in-loco parentis” situations are detailed in School Board Policy  4.08  . 

 Are there any records which the school can refuse to show a parent or eligible student? 
 The right to access does not pertain to the following educational records: teacher’s/counselor’s /administrator’s 
 personal notes and records that are not accessible to any other person except a substitute of any such person; 
 law enforcement records which are maintained solely for their purposes; personnel records, physician, 
 psychologist, psychiatrist records, or other recognized professional or paraprofessional records that are 
 maintained solely in connection with treatment; letters of recommendation/evaluation which were considered 
 confidential and entered into the record prior to July 1, 1977. No public educational institution shall maintain 
 any report or record relative to a pupil or student which includes a copy of the pupil’s or student’s fingerprints. 
 The name and address of the office that administers FERPA is: Family Policy Compliance Office, U.S. 
 Department of Education, 400 Maryland Avenue, SW, Washington, D.C. 20202-5920; See additional details in 
 F.S. 1002.22(2)(c)1-8. 

 What information is released without parent permission? 
 The School District of Clay County reserves the right for its agents to release “directory information” without 
 prior permission of the parent or adult student. Directory information is information that is generally not 
 considered harmful or an invasion of privacy if released. Such information will be limited to name, address, 
 telephone number (if not unlisted), electronic mail address, field of study, age, participation in school 
 Return to Table of Contents  24-25  CCDS Student and Family Handbook  47 

Page 463 of 564

DRAFT



 sponsored activities, height and weight of  athletic team members, dates of attendance, most recent school 
 attended, and degrees and awards received. 

 This information relating to the student body in general (bulk information release) may not be released to any 
 individual or agency unless it is normally published for the public in general. Such information may be released 
 only to a business rendering services under contract with the School Board. Examples: the local newspapers, 
 television, school newspaper, school yearbook, or military services. 

 Section 9528 of the No Child Left Behind (NCLB) Act requires local education agencies (LEAs) to provide 
 military recruiters with the name, address, and telephone listing of secondary students. The District shall honor 
 any request of a parent or eligible student to withhold any or all of the information relating to a particular 
 student. Photographs are designated as directory information and annual yearbooks and other publications 
 may customarily include student photographs. Parents or eligible students objecting to the use of specific 
 directory information must notify the school principal of such objection in writing within the first month of the 
 student’s enrollment. Notification objecting to the use or disclosure of directory information must be in writing 
 and either hand delivered to the Principal of the school at which the student is attending, sent by mail to the 
 Director of Information Services/Public Records Officer at the county office of the Clay County District Schools, 
 900 Walnut Street, Green Cove Springs, Florida 32043 or sent by email to optoutferpa@myoneclay.net. 

 Personally identifiable information may be disclosed, transferred, or released without prior consent of the 
 parent or eligible student in connection with enrollment in another school, in emergency situations, application 
 for financial aid, research, a state statute, or an accrediting organization; a court of competent jurisdiction in 
 compliance with an order of that court, or a lawfully issued subpoena upon the condition that the pupil or 
 student and his parent are notified of the order or subpoena in advance of compliance therewith by the 
 educational institution. 

 In preparation of cases for prosecution under the Compulsory School Attendance and Child Welfare Law (F.S. 
 1003.21), the school system is authorized to release pertinent data in interpretative form to the State Attorney’s 
 Office, to the Department of Juvenile Justice, and the appropriate court without parent consent. 

 10.2 - Student Device Electronic Agreement 
 Please read the following carefully before electronically signing this document. This is a legally binding contract 
 and must be signed by the student (“Student”) and a Parent or Legal Guardian (“Parent/Guardian”) before a 
 Chromebook (hereafter “Electronic Device”) is assigned to you. 

 Purpose 
 The primary purpose of Clay County District School's provision of access to electronic devices, network 
 resources, and  computer support services is to facilitate education and research consistent with the 
 educational objectives of Clay  County District Schools (“CCDS”). 

 This Agreement must be signed by both the Student and the Parent/Guardian and is binding upon both parties. 

 Terms and Conditions 
 Term and Termination: This Agreement shall commence on the issue date and shall terminate at the end of the 
 school year the agreement is signed. 

 Student and Parent/Guardian’s Obligations 
 Student and their Parent/Guardian agrees to: 
 Return to Table of Contents  24-25  CCDS Student and Family Handbook  48 

Page 464 of 564

DRAFT



 1.  Use, maintain, and keep the Electronic Device in good operating order, at their own expense, in the 
 manner for  which it was designed and intended 

 2.  Not allow or make any alterations or additions to the Electronic Device without the prior written consent 
 of CCDS 

 3.  Return the Electronic Device to CCDS in the same condition as received on the beginning date of the 
 Agreement, minus reasonable wear and tear 

 4.  Use the Electronic Device in ways that are not disruptive, offensive, harmful, or otherwise improper or 
 against the acceptable use policies of CCDS 

 5.  Provide CCDS with written notice to any change in address or telephone number during the term of this 
 Agreement 

 Issuing Electronic Devices 
 If you have an objection to your student using CCDS electronic devices, you must notify the school of your 
 objection, in writing, within 48 hours of your receipt of this information. 

 Return of Electronic Device 
 Students are required to return the Electronic Device to the assigned school administrative office upon:  ∙ 
 Graduation OR 

 1.  Transfer from CCDS School OR 
 2.  Temporary or permanent discontinuance of schooling OR 
 3.  Last Day of School OR 
 4.  Termination of this Agreement for Failure to Comply 

 Student and Parent/Guardian acknowledge that failure to return the property after notice of termination 
 constitutes theft. 

 Failure to Comply 
 Failure to comply with any of the terms of this Agreement may result in the imposition of fines (for repair or 
 replacement of the device), termination of the Student’s ability to participate in this Program, and/or the 
 imposition of appropriate civil or criminal penalties against Student and/or Parent/Guardian. 

 Criminal or Civil Liability 
 Student and Parent/Guardian acknowledge that they are subject to criminal prosecution or civil liability for the 
 destruction or misuse of the device. A theft report will be filed with the local Law Enforcement if a device is 
 reported as stolen and Student and Parent/Guardian would still be financially responsible for the Electronic 
 Device. 

 Ownership of Electronic Device 
 The Electronic Device is, and shall remain, the property of CCDSB. Student and Parent/Guardian shall have 
 no right, title, or interest herein or thereto except as expressly set forth in this Agreement. 

 Student and Parent/Guardian shall not assign rights or obligations under this Agreement or enter into any 
 sublease of all or any part of the Electronic Device. 

 Warranty 
 Student is being issued the device acknowledges that the device is being presented “as is” without warranty, 
 other than  any warranty provided by the manufacturer of the Electronic Device. 

 Lost or Damaged Electronic Device 
 Return to Table of Contents  24-25  CCDS Student and Family Handbook  49 

Page 465 of 564

DRAFT



 Should the Student damage or lose the Electronic Device, the Student and Parent/Guardian will be responsible 
 for  paying all outstanding lease payments for the entire term of this Agreement or repair cost, as applicable. 

 Right to Audit 
 As permitted by law, CCDS reserves and intends to exercise the right to review, audit, intercept, access, and 
 search the Electronic Device at will, monitor data usage and messages on the Electronic Device at any time for 
 any reason, without notice or other restrictions. 

 Computer Resource Use Policies 
 All users of CCDS devices and network resources are required to comply with the following: 

 1.  Files, user ID's, passwords, and computer output belonging to an individual or to CCDS are considered 
 to be personal property, but may be subject to audit by CCDS. 

 2.  Users shall not examine, change, or use CCDS or another person's files, output, or usernames for 
 which they do  not have explicit authorization. 

 3.  Users shall not deliberately attempt to degrade system performance or capability. Knowledge of 
 systems or  special passwords shall not be used to damage a system or file, or to change or remove 
 information without  authorization. 

 4.  Users shall not use the system for any illegal purpose or to enter or send any material that is obscene, 
 pornographic, or defamatory, or material that is intended to annoy, harass, or alarm another person. 

 5.  All users shall use software only in accordance with applicable license agreements. Users shall not 
 make unauthorized copies of any software under any circumstances. Duplication of licensed software 
 for any purpose except for backup and archival purposes or when otherwise specifically authorized is 
 prohibited. Users shall not give or transfer software to anyone except other authorized users of the 
 CCDS network or device without specific approval from the CCDS. All software must be lawfully 
 purchased or acquired. 

 6.  Use of computer systems and databases shall be limited to the purpose(s) for which access is granted. 
 Unless such use is specifically granted, use of CCDS digital resources for personal or private use 
 for-profit, is prohibited. 

 7.  Students are authorized to use electronic devices and network services for incidental personal use, 
 provided such  use does not interfere with the educational objectives of CCDS or overload network 
 resources, thereby denying  it to others. 

 8.  Repeated minor infractions of the Student Responsible Use Guidelines or violations of a serious nature 
 may result in the temporary or permanent loss of network access and/or Electronic Device use. More 
 serious violations that may result in permanent loss of network access and/or Electronic Device use 
 include, but are not  limited to, extending computing resources to unauthorized users, attempts to steal 
 passwords or data, unauthorized use or copying of licensed software, unauthorized attachment of 
 personal computers to the CCDS  network, unauthorized use of another's account, or overloading 
 network resources thereby denying it to others.  No payments made for the Electronic Device will be 
 refunded if network access and/or Electronic Device use is denied due to violations or infractions of any 
 CCDS or computer use policies, whether or not such infractions  are mentioned in this Agreement. 

 9.  Filtering will be provided by CCDS for school and off-site use. This filtering is a best effort to ensure that 
 inappropriate material is not accessed by students whether in school or off site. No filtering solution is 
 perfect, and this service is being provided free of any warranty. 

 10.3 - Responsible Use Guidelines 
 Discovering Endless Possibilities 
 Technology is an integral part of the CCDS curriculum across subjects and grades in developmentally 
 appropriate ways, and it is aligned to the competencies listed in the Florida Standards which include: seek 
 Return to Table of Contents  24-25  CCDS Student and Family Handbook  50 

Page 466 of 564

DRAFT



 knowledge and understanding; think critically and solve problems; listen, communicate and interact effectively; 
 exhibit strong personal qualities; and engage and compete in a global environment. 

 Technology Agreement 
 I understand that using digital devices (whether personal or school owned) and the CCDS network is a 
 privilege, and when I use them according to the Responsible Use Guidelines I will keep that privilege. 
 I understand that I have no right to privacy when using the CCDS network. 

 All students of Clay County District Schools agree to follow the Clay County District Schools Code of Student 
 Conduct, school rules, and commit to the following Responsible Use Guidelines: 

 I will: 
 1.  use digital devices, networks, email, and software in school for educational purposes. 
 2.  keep my personal information (including home/mobile phone number, mailing address, and user 

 password) and that of others private. 
 3.  show respect for myself and others when using technology, including social media. 
 4.  give acknowledgement to others for their ideas and work. 
 5.  report inappropriate use of technology immediately. 

 The  Responsible Use Guidelines  will be reviewed each  school year together with students and teachers and 
 will  provide a springboard for teaching and learning around topics such as Internet safety, digital citizenship, 
 ethical, and appropriate use of technology. 

 10.4 - Child Abuse Reporting 
 All employees and agents of the District School Board are authorized and mandated by Florida Statute 
 1006.061  to report all actual or suspected cases of  child abuse, abandonment, or neglect to the Department of 
 Children and Families, Central Abuse Hotline (1-800-962-2873), and to provide them with the necessary 
 information to pursue such complaints. Employees have immunity from liability if they report such cases in 
 good faith. 

 10.5 - Use of Student Work, Video, and Photographs 
 From time to time, students have the opportunity to be recorded, photographed, or display artwork. Some of 
 these recordings, photographs, schoolwork or artwork may be archived, included in the local news, on the 
 school’s CCTV or web page, and may eventually air on the School District of Clay County educational channel 
 or be used at local, state or national conferences. 

 If you have an objection to your student’s work or name being used for any of the above purposes, or if you 
 object to photographs or recordings of your student being used, you must notify the school of your objection, in 
 writing, within 48 hours of your receipt of this information. 

 For your information, if your student is an exceptional education student, your explicit, written permission will 
 be obtained prior to any media release which identifies your student by name, along with his exceptionality or 
 exceptional placement designation. 

 Return to Table of Contents  24-25  CCDS Student and Family Handbook  51 
Page 467 of 564

DRAFT



 10.6 - Social Media Guidelines 
 In accordance with the Clay County District Schools’ Student Code of Conduct, the District expects students to 
 set and  maintain high ethical standards in their use of social networking. Personal use of social media may 
 have an effect at school. While at times it is easy to tell whether social media use is school-related or personal, 
 at other times it may be difficult to distinguish fully between different uses. Sometimes, personal social media 
 use, including off-hours use, may result in disruption at school and the school may need to get involved. This 
 could include disciplinary action such as a parent conference, suspension, alternative disciplinary placement, 
 and/or expulsion. It is important to remember that infractions outlined in the CCDS Student Code of Conduct 
 prohibiting certain types of communication also apply to electronic communication. To be safe, be in control of 
 what you do online, even if it is during personal time. 

 Guidelines for Student Use of Social Media 

 1.  Think before you post. Clay County District Schools recommends that students use discretion when 
 posting to social media sites at all times and requires that students follow the CCDS Student  Code of 
 Conduct when on school district property. 

 2.  If you see anything of concern on a fellow student's social networking page or account, you should 
 promptly contact your school based administration, your teacher, or other school staff. 

 3.  Be thoughtful about what you share online and consider how it would appear to family, friends, 
 colleges, and future employers. Do not post or link anything (photos, videos, web pages, audio files, 
 forums, groups, fan pages, etc.) to your social networking site(s) that you wouldn’t want anyone to 
 access. Social media venues are public and information can be shared beyond your control. 

 4.  When responding to others, remember to be respectful and avoid comments that may be hurtful. You 
 should refrain from using profane, obscene, or threatening language. 

 5.  Use of school or District logos or images on your personal social networking sites is prohibited. The 
 Clay County District Schools reserves the right to request school-related images or content posted 
 without permission to be removed from the internet. If you wish to promote a specific activity or event, 
 you may do so only by means of a link to school or District official social media accounts. 

 6.  You should always take responsibility for what you post. Do not misrepresent yourself by using 
 someone else's identity. 

 7.  Only accept invitations to share information from people you know. Utilize privacy settings to control 
 access to your network, web pages, profile, posts, blogs, wikis, podcasts, digital media, forums, groups, 
 fan pages, etc. 

 8.  Online stalkers and identity thieves are a real threat. Never share personal information, including, but 
 not limited to: Social Security numbers, phone numbers, addresses, exact birth dates, and pictures with 
 parties you don’t know or on unsecure sites. 

 9.  Users should keep their passwords secure and never share passwords with others. If someone 
 tampers with your blog, email, or social networking account without you knowing about it, you could be 
 held accountable. 

 10.  Cyberbullying is considered an act of harassment. See the CCDS Student Code of Conduct for detailed 
 information. 

 10.7 - Rights of Divorced Parents 
 Under current divorce laws, “shared parental responsibility” awards both parents full rights to the child, 
 although “primary physical residence” is awarded to one parent. Neither parent has priority over the other with 
 regard to the child’s education, both parents have full and complete rights to pick up the child, to inquire about 
 school work, and participate in school activities. The parent(s) should provide the school with a copy of the final 
 Return to Table of Contents  24-25  CCDS Student and Family Handbook  52 

Page 468 of 564

DRAFT



 court judgment to determine new shared responsibility. Additional court documents, such as injunctions or 
 modifications to the final judgments, should be provided to the school immediately as these may put new limits 
 on access rights of a parent.  "In the event  a  parent  is not  granted shared parental responsibility  then  that parent 
 may not pick up or check out the child unless the parent who is the primary residential custodian informs the 
 school in writing that such actions are acceptable. 

 Custody papers issued by a court outside the state of Florida will not be accepted at face value. Out-of-state 
 documents must be domesticated through the Florida Courts. 

 10.8 - Parental Concerns Regarding Employees 
 The Clay County School Board recommends that parents who have a complaint about an employee begin by 
 registering their concern directly with the employee in question, if possible. The vast majority of parental 
 concerns are solved at this level. If not, parents are urged to contact the principal, district office staff, the 
 Deputy Superintendent or the Superintendent to express their concerns. 

 Parents are often asked to put their concerns in writing. While this is not a requirement, it is often important, 
 depending on the seriousness of the charge and the ultimate action proposed as the result of investigation. It is 
 not the school system’s intent to discourage parental concerns by establishing complex procedures for 
 registering them. It is our intent, however, to make certain that parents are heard, that their concerns are 
 investigated, if appropriate, and that our employees’ due process rights are protected. 

 10.9 - Student Surveys 
 No Child Left Behind (NCLB) requires Local Education Agencies (LEA’s) to notify parents and/or obtain 
 parental  consent prior to the administration of a student survey that is: 

 1.  part of an “applicable program” (funded in whole or in part by any program administered by the United 
 States Department of Education (USDOE) require LEAs to obtain prior written consent of the parent. 

 2.  surveys that are created by a third party (funded by sources other than USDOE programs) required 
 LEAs to adopt  specific policies. (These surveys do not require prior written parental consent but 
 instead require districts to offer  parents the opportunity to opt the student out of participation.) 

 LEAs are required to make the survey instrument available for inspection by parents regardless of funding 
 source.  By request of the State of Florida, school districts administer the Florida Youth Survey (FYS) which is 
 funded from  sources other than the USDOE. The district is required to offer parents the opportunity to opt their 
 child out of the  survey. 

 Return to Table of Contents  24-25  CCDS Student and Family Handbook  53 
Page 469 of 564

DRAFT



 Appendix A: Glossary 

 Commonly used acronyms and definitions of educational terms frequently used in Clay County District 
 Schools: 

 Glossary of Acronyms and Definition of Terms 

 504 Plan  Disability Accommodation Plan under Section 504 Rehabilitation Act of 1973 

 Access Points  Expectations written for students with significant cognitive disabilities to access the 
 general education curriculum 

 Achieve3000  Reading and writing intervention program using non-fiction text to differentiate instruction 

 ACT  American College Test; college entrance exam 

 ADD/ADHD  Attention Deficit/Hyperactivity Disorder 

 AP  Advanced Placement 

 ASD  Autism Spectrum Disorder 

 AYP  Adequate Yearly Progress 

 CCEA  Clay County Education Association 

 CESPA  Clay Educational Staff Professional Association 

 CTE  Career and Technical Education 

 CVA  Clay Virtual Academy 

 ELA  English Language Arts 

 ELL  English Language Learners 

 EOC  End of Course Exam 

 ESE  Exceptional Student Education 

 ESL  English as a Second Language 

 ESY  Extended School Year 

 FERPA  Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act 

 FHSAA  Florida High School Athletic Association 

 FLDOE  Florida Department of Education 

 Focus  CCDS  Student Information System 

 FSA  Florida Standards Assessment 

 GPA  Grade Point Average 

 Return to Table of Contents  24-25  CCDS Student and Family Handbook  54 
Page 470 of 564

DRAFT



 Guardian  School employee qualified and trained to carry a gun on a school campus 

 IDEA  Individuals with Disabilities Education Act 

 IEP  Individualized Education Plan 

 IQ  Intelligence Quotient 

 i-Ready  An interactive online learning environment for reading and math 

 LLI  Leveled Literacy Intervention 

 PSAT  Preliminary SAT; practice college entrance exam 

 RAIT  Risk Assessment & Intervention Team 

 SAC  School Advisory Council 

 SAT  Scholastic Assessment Test; college entrance exam 

 SEDNET  The Multi-agency Network for Students with Emotional/Behavioral Disabilities creates and 
 facilitates a network of key stakeholders committed to assisting in the provision of a quality 
 system of care for students with or at-risk of emotional or behavioral challenges 

 SEL  Social-Emotional Learning 

 SESIR  School Environmental Safety Incident Reporting; FLDOE student behavior coding system 

 SIPPS  Systematic Instruction in Phonological Awareness, Phonics, and Sight Words 

 SIS  Student Information System 

 SRO  School Resource Officer 

 STEAM  Science, Technology, Engineering, Arts, and Mathematics 

 STEM  Science, Technology, Engineering, and Mathematics 

 YMHFA  Youth Mental Health First Aid 

 Return to Table of Contents  24-25  CCDS Student and Family Handbook  55 
Page 471 of 564

DRAFT



 Appendix B: Behavior Infraction Codes 

 Level 0 
 Level 0 codes are reserved for documentation purposes only for state reporting purposes and student behavior 
 records. Any actions/intervention can be administered and recorded in the student information system at the 
 principal’s  discretion. Suspension of any kind should not be used with these codes. 

 Behavior Incident Tracking (BIT)  - To be used for  documentation of problematic student behaviors. 
 Consequences can  be issued using this code. 

 Unsubstantiated Bullying (UBL)  – After a complete  investigation and follow up of a reported bullying incident, 
 the investigator determines that there is not enough evidence to substantiate that the incident meets the 
 criteria of a prohibited act under definition of bullying as listed in the Jeffrey Johnston Stand Up for all Students 
 Act (Florida Statute  1006.147  ). 

 Unsubstantiated Harassment (UHR)  – After a complete  investigation and follow up of a reported harassment 
 incident,  the investigator determines that there is not enough evidence to substantiate that the incident meets 
 the criteria of a  prohibited act under definition of harassment as listed in the Jeffrey Johnston Stand Up for all 
 Students Act (Florida  Statute  1006.147  ). 

 Level 1 
 Level 1 infractions is relatively minor misbehavior or general classroom disruption that interferes with the 
 orderly educational process in the classroom or other areas. 

 Dress Code Violation (DRS)  - To dress in a manner  that would constitute a disruption in the school, create a 
 safety  hazard or exhibit impropriety. Non-conformity to the general code of appearance as outlined in Board 
 Policy. 

 Profanity/Obscene Language or Gesture (PRO)  – Abusive,  profane, obscene or vulgar language (verbal, 
 written, or gestures) or conduct in the presence of another person. 

 Providing False Information Lying/Forgery (FLS)  -  Giving false or misleading information, either oral or 
 written,  which may injure another person’s character or reputation or disrupt the orderly process of the school. 
 Intentionally providing false or misleading information to, or withholding valid information from, a school staff 
 member. This includes Forgery - to fashion or reproduce for fraudulent purposes, such as signing parents’ 
 name to a note. 

 Skipping Class (SKP)  – If the student does not report  to their assigned class but has been marked present 
 throughout the  school day or if the student reports 15 minutes or later to their assigned class. 

 Tardiness (TAR)  - Late to class or school; if the  student arrives 15 minutes after the beginning of class w/o 
 permission  then the student is considered SKP/skipping class. 

 Violation of Classroom Rules (VCR)  - Violation of  specific posted or written class rules that are not 
 necessarily a disruptive behavior. Breaking behavioral contract, thereby progressing to the next disciplinary 
 level as specified in the school student handbook. 

 Return to Table of Contents  24-25  CCDS Student and Family Handbook  56 
Page 472 of 564

DRAFT



 Cheating  - Academic cheating is defined as representing someone else's work as your own. If the 
 student cheated on their own with no other student or participant then the cheating will be a Violation of 
 Classroom Rules. In the event the student was cheating with multiple participants or on a state 
 assessment, the student  will receive Inappropriate Conduct. 

 ●  Example: having answers prior to an exam. 

 Wireless Communication Device (WCD) -  Use of a wireless  communication device in a way that is not 
 outlined in the Wireless Communication Device Guidelines.  (Refer to Inappropriate Use of 
 Technology/Wireless Communication Devices as a possible code) 

 Level 2 
 Level 2 infractions are acts of misbehavior whose frequency and seriousness tends to disrupt the learning 
 climate of the  school. These infractions usually result from a continuation of Level 1 misbehavior and require 
 administrative personnel intervention. This misconduct must be reported to the appropriate school 
 administrator for disciplinary action. The administrator will follow the procedure designated for major  violations 
 (Level 1) when investigating the situation and deciding on disciplinary action. 

 Abuse of School Property vandalism under $1,000 (ABS)  - To use wrongly or improperly, or to maltreat any 
 school equipment or property, including, but not limited to, the inappropriate use of a computer by breaking into 
 restricted accounts or networks, modifying or destroying files without permission, illegally copying software and 
 entering, distributing or printing unauthorized files. 

 Defiance/Disrespect Insubordination (DEF)  - Refusal  or failure to obey, marked by resistance to authority. 
 The flagrant or hostile challenge of the authority of a school staff member, bus driver, or any other adult in 
 authority. Examples see below: 

 Leaving Class Without Permission - Student did not have permission granted by the teacher or other 
 school entity to leave the classroom environment; unauthorized leaving of assigned class. 

 Inappropriate Conduct (IAC)  - Violation of specific  posted or written school rules that are not necessarily a 
 disruptive behavior. Breaking behavioral contract, thereby progressing to the next disciplinary level as specified 
 in the school  student handbook. 

 Cheating - Academic cheating is defined as representing someone else's work as your own. If the 
 student cheated on their own with no other student or participant, the cheating will be a Violation of 
 Classroom  Rules. In the event the student was cheating with multiple participants or on a state 
 assessment, the student will receive IAC: Inappropriate Conduct. Several examples of IAC include 
 sharing work with someone else, purchasing an academic paper or test questions in advance, paying 
 another student to do the work, and  plagiarism. 
 Gambling - One who participates in games of chance or skill for money or profit. 

 Leaving School Without Permission (LVS)  – Unauthorized  leaving of school grounds. 

 Low Level Confrontation (DSP)  - Student who deliberately  pushes, pulls, shoves, strikes, taunts, 
 antagonizes, or mutual physical altercation with another student or by acts or words that does not result in any 
 injuries and is stopped by verbal intervention. 

 Possession of an Inappropriate Object (POS)  - Possession  and/or use of items or contraband designated by 
 the school as inappropriate materials such as portable paging devices, beepers, cellular telephones, portable 
 cassette or CD players, electronic games, rollerblades, skateboards, lighters, hats, etc. and any other items 
 that cause distraction and/or damage  to persons or property or otherwise interferes with learning. An example 
 Return to Table of Contents  24-25  CCDS Student and Family Handbook  57 

Page 473 of 564

DRAFT



 is the possession of a pocket knife which may  be potentially dangerous or harmful to others. These items will 
 be confiscated. 

 Stealing/Petty Theft <$750 (STP)  - taking of property  while on school grounds or from a vehicle on school 
 property worth under $750 

 Student uses Profanity directed at a School Board Employee (SPE)  - A student who intentionally engages 
 in a verbal confrontation involving a school board employee with profanity/obscene gestures. If the verbal 
 confrontation involves a  threat, the behavior will be coded as Threat/Intimidation (  TRE)  . 

 Level 3 
 Level 3 infractions are major acts of misconduct. They include serious disruptions of school order and threats 
 to the health, safety and property of others. The misconduct must be reported promptly to a school 
 administrator, who may remove the student from the school or activity immediately. 

 Local Codes 

 Felony Charges (SAO)  - Previously defined as State  Attorney Charges. 

 Identity Theft (IDT)  - When a student represents themselves  as another individual (including but not limited to 
 students and district employees) with the intent of creating confusion or disruption to another’s well-being. The 
 fraudulent acquisition and use of a person's private identifying information. 

 Inappropriate use of Technology/Wireless Communication Devices (TEC)  - When the possession of a 
 wireless communication device disrupts the educational process. This includes the unauthorized use of a 
 wireless communication device to capture images or recordings without permission during school hours, 
 attaching power cords to school devices, and/or the unauthorized use on school buses in the absence of an 
 emergency concerning safety-to-life issues (defined as  a bus accident, mechanical breakdown which delays 
 the normal route, and/or thirty (30) minutes or more in a route  delay). 

 Multiple Level 2 Infractions (MUL)  - If a student  commits 7 or more Level 2 infractions they may receive a 
 “multiple level 2” infraction. This code can be used to initiate a Hearing Office Referral. 

 Room Clearing Event (RCE)  – Should a student create  an unsafe environment and the student population of 
 the classroom needs to be removed for their safety. 

 Examples: 
 1.  Student is throwing objects and turning over chairs 
 2.  Student is running around the classroom and refuses to stop while pushing into other students. 

 Non-Example: 
 1.  Student refuses to do work and yells when asked to begin. 
 2.  Student throws an object not directed towards another student 

 Student Confrontation/ School Board Employee Non Physical (SCE)  - A student who intentionally 
 engages in a confrontation involving a school board employee. 

 Violation of Behavior Contract (VBC)  – If a student  violates the school or district behavior contract. 

 Return to Table of Contents  24-25  CCDS Student and Family Handbook  58 
Page 474 of 564

DRAFT



 SESIR Codes  - These are violations defined by the Florida Department of Education and are to be reported 
 as School Environmental Safety Incident Reporting incidents. 

 Bullying/Cyberbullying (BUL)  - Systematically and  chronically inflicting physical hurt or psychological distress 
 on one or more students or employees. Bullying includes instances of cyberbullying, as defined in Section 
 1006.147(3)(b), F.S  . Bullying may include, but is  not limited to, repetitive instances of teasing, social exclusion, 
 threats, intimidation, stalking, physical violence, theft, harassment, public or private humiliation, or destruction 
 of property. If the physical harm or psychological distress is not the result of systematic or chronic behavior, 
 evaluate for Harassment. 

 Examples: 
 1.  Student uses a cell phone to take a picture of a student using the bathroom at school and 

 shares it electronically. 
 2.  Student spreads nasty rumors at school about another person, in conversation, in a note, or 

 electronically. 
 3.  Student repeatedly teases another person in a mean way, calling him/her inappropriate names, 

 making fun of his/her appearance, or the way he/she talks, dresses, or acts. 
 Non-Examples: 

 Student calls another student an inappropriate name once. 

 The most common places where cyberbullying occurs are: 
 1.  Social Media, such as Facebook, Instagram, Snapchat, and Twitter 
 2.  SMS (Short Message Service) also known as Text Message sent through devices 
 3.  Instant Message (via devices, email provider services, apps, and social media messaging 

 features) 
 4.  Email 

 Burglary (BRK)  -  Unlawful entry into or remaining  in a dwelling, structure, or conveyance with the intent to 
 commit a crime therein. 

 Examples: 
 1.  Student or other breaking and entering into: 

 a.  a school building during athletic events, 
 b.  a school bus, or 
 c.  a residential garage that is being used for a school-sponsored event 

 2.  Student or other willfully remaining within a building after it has been secured and committing a 
 crime, such as vandalism or theft. 

 Non-Examples: 
 1.  Student or other entering an unlocked gym, without permission, and using the basketball court. 
 2.  Student or other wandering the halls, after hours, after entering through an unlocked door. 

 Disruption on Campus (DOC) - Major -  Disruptive behavior  that poses a serious threat to the learning 
 environment, health, safety or welfare of others.  Examples of major disruptions include bomb threats, 
 inciting a riot, or initiating a false fire alarm. 

 Examples: 
 1.  Student or other making a bomb threat. 
 2.  Student engaging in disruptive behavior that causes the bus driver to stop the bus to ensure the 

 safety of the group. 
 3.  Student or other causing an incident that results in closing the cafeteria. 
 4.  Student or other inciting a riot. 
 5.  Student or other pulling the fire alarm. 

 Return to Table of Contents  24-25  CCDS Student and Family Handbook  59 
Page 475 of 564

DRAFT



 6.  Student or other deliberately crashing the school computer system. 
 7.  Student or other causing an incident that prevents others from proceeding to the next class or 

 prevents egress. 
 Non-Examples: 

 1.  Disruption of a single classroom. 
 2.  Student defying authority. 
 3.  Student disobeying or showing disrespect to others. 
 4.  Student or other using obscene or inappropriate language or gestures. 
 5.  Student not sitting in seat and/or talking loudly while school bus is moving. 

 Fighting (FIT)  - When two or more persons mutually  participate in use of force or physical violence that 
 requires  either  physical  intervention  restraint  or  results in injury  requiring medical attention  . 

 Examples: 
 1.  Student or other engaging in a fight/combat with another and physical  intervention  restraint  is 

 necessary to stop it. 
 2.  Student becoming engaged in a fight which results in the need for first aid or medical attention 

 for one or both of the participants. 
 Non-Examples: 

 1.  Student engaging in “horseplay” 
 2.  Student verbally confronting another student/teacher. 
 3.  Student or other engaging in pushing and shoving who is easily separated or stopped. 
 4.  Student or other engaging in a fight which is resolved without injury or need for physical 

 intervention. 

 Harassment (HAR)  - Any threatening, insulting, or  dehumanizing gesture, use of data or computer software, 
 or written,  verbal, or physical conduct that  places  a student or school employee in reasonable fear of harm to 
 his or her person or damage to his or her property; has the effect of substantially interfering with a student’s 
 educational performance, opportunities, or benefits, or has the effect of substantially disrupting the orderly 
 operation of a school, including any course of conduct directed at a specific person that causes substantial 
 emotional distress in such a person and serves no legitimate purpose. Instances of Harassment that are 
 chronic or repeated in nature should be evaluated for Bullying or Bullying-related. 

 Example: 
 One student approaches another student and makes an insulting gesture. The targeted student 
 runs off in tears and is visibly upset. 

 Non-Example: 
 Two students approach each other and one student makes an insulting gesture towards the 
 other student. Both students are good friends, no offense was taken by either student from the 
 interaction. 

 Hazing (HAZ)  - Any action or situation that endangers  the mental or physical health or safety of a student at a 
 school with any of grades 6 through 12 for purposes of initiation or admission into or affiliation with any 
 school-sanctioned organization.  Hazing includes, but  is not limited to pressuring, coercing, or forcing a student 
 to participate in illegal or dangerous behavior, or any brutality of a physical nature, such as whipping, beating, 
 branding, or exposure to the elements. 

 Examples: 
 Pressuring, coercing or forcing a student into: 1) violating state or federal law; 2) consuming 
 food, liquid, drug, or other substance; or 3) participating in physical activity that could adversely 
 affect the health or safety of the student  for purposes  of initiation or admission  . 

 Return to Table of Contents  24-25  CCDS Student and Family Handbook  60 
Page 476 of 564

DRAFT



 Non-Examples: 
 Requiring new team members to attend additional supervised practices. 

 Other Major (OMC)  -  (Major incidents that do not fit  within the other definitions)  Any serious, harmful  incident 
 resulting in the need for law enforcement intervention not  previously classified.  This includes any drug  or 
 weapon found unattended and not linked to any individual; such incidents must be coded with the appropriate 
 Related element (such as Drug-related or Weapon-related) and incident involvement must be reported as 
 unknown. 

 Examples: 
 1.  Student produces or uses counterfeit money. 
 2.  Student participates in gambling activities,  i.e.,  throwing quarters for money  . 
 3.  Student possessing drug paraphernalia. 
 4.  Student possesses pornographic materials depicting others under the age of 18. 

 Non-Examples: 
 1.  Student arrested for violating probation. 
 2.  Student or other arrested for committing crimes off-campus. 

 Sexual Offenses (SXO)  - Other sexual contact, including  intercourse, without force or threat of force, 
 subjecting an  individual to lewd sexual gestures or comments or sexual activity, or exposing private body parts 
 in a lewd manner. 

 Examples: 
 1.  Student or other participating in sexual activity in front of a student. 
 2.  Student or other intentionally exposing genitals. 
 3.  Student or other touching the buttocks of another in lewd, lascivious manner. 
 4.  Two or more students engaging in sexual activity. 
 5.  Student or other soliciting or encouraging a person to commit a sexual act. 

 Non-Examples: 
 1.  Students kissing consensually. 
 2.  Student swearing 
 3.  A kindergarten child relieving himself publicly. 
 4.  A first grade student hugging another. 
 5.  Student inadvertently touching the breasts, buttocks or groin of another student. 
 6.  Inappropriate or suggestive gestures. 

 Simple Battery (PHA)  - An actual and intentional striking  of another person against his/her will, or the 
 intentional causing of bodily harm to an individual. 

 Example: 
 1.  Throwing an object and hitting someone hard enough to cause injury. 
 2.  Aggressively punching another person in the face. 
 3.  Student committing a battery upon a school district employee such as a teacher or other staff 

 person. 
 Non-Examples: 

 1.  Horseplay, low-level pushing and shoving between students. 
 2.  Student or other engaging in a fight/combat with another and physical restraint is necessary to 

 stop it. 
 3.  Student becoming engaged in a fight which results in the need for first aid or medical attention 

 for one or both of the participants. (Refer to Fighting as a possible alternative code.) 

 Return to Table of Contents  24-25  CCDS Student and Family Handbook  61 
Page 477 of 564

DRAFT



 Tobacco (TBC)  -The possession,  sale, purchase,  distribution,or use of tobacco  or nicotine  products  and 
 vape/vaping related products  on school grounds, at school-sponsored events, or on school transportation by 
 any person under the age of 21. 

 Examples: 
 1.  A student under 21 possessing and/or smoking cigarettes, cigars, etc. 
 2.  A student under 21 possessing and/or using a nicotine dispensing device or electronic nicotine 

 delivery system (ENDS) such as electronic cigarettes, vape pens, hookah pens, etc. 
 3.  A student using smokeless tobacco or nicotine products. 

 Non-Examples: 
 A 21-year old student smoking a cigar on campus. 
 Student in possession of any oils or products containing THC or CBD (refer to  DRU  ). 
 Student in possession of aromatic essential oils. 

 Threat/Intimidation (TRE)  -  An incident where there  was no physical contact between the offender and victim, 
 but the victim reasonably believed that physical harm could have occurred based on verbal or nonverbal 
 communication by the offender. This includes nonverbal threats and verbal threats of physical harm which are 
 made in person, electronically or through any other means. 

 Examples: 
 1.  Student or other willfully and repeatedly following another or stalking with intent to cause the 

 person to fear for  their safety. 
 2.  Student or other who willfully and repeatedly uses email or text messages to cause another to 

 fear for their  safety or cause substantial emotional distress (cyber stalking). 

 Level 4 
 Level 4 acts of misconduct are the most serious. All Level 4 infractions are grounds for expulsion, and will 
 result in a  mandatory 10-day suspension. These acts are clearly criminal and are serious enough to require 
 administrative actions that result in immediate removal of the student from school, the intervention of law 
 enforcement authorities, or action by  the Superintendent and Clay County School Board. 

 Aggravated Battery (BAT)  - A battery where the attacker  intentionally or knowingly causes more serious injury 
 (as defined in paragraph (8)(g) of  6A-1.0017  (SESIR),  such as: great bodily harm, permanent disability, or 
 permanent disfigurement; uses a deadly weapon; or, where the attacker knew or should have known the victim 
 was pregnant. 

 Examples: 
 1.  Student hitting another with a heavy object over the head  resulting in serious injury  . 
 2.  Student jabbing a pen into another’s arm  resulting  in serious injury  . 
 3.  Student or other engaging in a mutual physical altercation with another and continuing to 

 hit/beat that person even after that person stops fighting, or is no longer able to fight back 
 resulting in serious injury  . 

 4.  Student committing aggravated battery upon a school district employee such as a teacher or 
 other staff person. 

 Non-Examples: 
 a.  Student or other delivering a single poke to the chest. 
 b.  Student or other delivers a single, non-injuring strike to the arm of another. 
 c.  Students or others actively engaging in a fight with each other  (refer to  Fighting  code as a 

 possible SESIR code)  . 
 d.  Student or other striking back when hit by an aggressor and becoming engaged in a fight with 

 the aggressor  (refer to  Fighting  code as a possible  SESIR code)  . 

 Return to Table of Contents  24-25  CCDS Student and Family Handbook  62 
Page 478 of 564

DRAFT



 Alcohol (ALC)  - Possession, sale, purchase, distribution, or use of alcoholic beverages.  Use means the 
 person is caught in the act of using, admits to use or is discovered to have used in the course of an 
 investigation.  Alcohol incidents cannot be Drug-related. 

 Examples: 
 1.  Student testing positive for alcohol by law enforcement. 
 2.  Student possessing, using, or selling alcohol. 

 Non-Examples: 
 1.  Student suspected of using alcohol without evidence. 
 2.  Student smelled of alcohol who after investigation, was found to be diabetic. 

 Arson (ARS)  - To  intentionally  damage or cause to be  damaged, by fire or explosion, any dwelling, structure or 
 conveyance, whether occupied or not, or its contents.  Fires that are not intentional, that are caused by 
 accident, or do not cause damage are not required to be reported in SESIR  . 

 Examples: 
 Student or other deliberately setting a fire on campus. 

 Non-Examples: 
 Student or other unintentionally starting a fire. 

 Criminal Mischief > $1,000 (VAN)  - Willfully and maliciously  injuring or damaging by any means any real or 
 personal property belonging to another, including, but not limited to, the placement of graffiti thereon or other 
 acts of vandalism thereto. Incidents that fall below the $1,000 threshold are not reportable in SESIR, but 
 instead should be reported as locally-defined incidents according to district policies. 

 Examples: 
 1.  Student or other  extensively  defacing school with  graffiti. 
 2.  Student or other keying or scratching a car in a campus parking lot. 
 3.  Student or other trashing a classroom resulting in damages of $1,000 or more. 
 4.  Student(s) damaging a hotel room ($1,000 or more) on a school-sponsored trip. 

 Non-Examples: 
 1.  Student or other accidentally damaging chemistry lab equipment. 
 2.  Student or other causing damages under $1,000. 

 Drug Sale/Distribution Excluding Alcohol (DRD)  - The  manufacture, cultivation,  purchase,  sale or 
 distribution of any drug, narcotic, controlled substance or substance represented to be a drug,  narcotic,  or 
 controlled substance  . 

 Examples: 
 1.  Student passing a marijuana cigarette around in the school bathroom. 
 2.  Student giving prescription drugs prescribed for someone else to another. 
 3.  Student selling cocaine to another. 
 4.  Student or other misrepresenting substances as illegal drugs. 

 Non-Examples: 
 1.  Student taking medication prescribed for themselves. 
 2.  Student giving an aspirin or other over-the-counter medication to another in dosage prescribed. 
 3.  Student smoking a marijuana cigarette alone. (Refer to DRU: Drug Use/Possession) 
 4.  Student found with a single marijuana cigarette in backpack. (Refer to DRU: Drug Use/ 

 Possession) 

 Drug Use Possession Excluding Alcohol (DRU)  - The  use, or possession of any drug, narcotic, controlled 
 substance or any substance when used for  chemical  intoxication. Use means the person is caught in the act of 
 using, admits to use or is discovered to have used in the course of an investigation. 
 Return to Table of Contents  24-25  CCDS Student and Family Handbook  63 

Page 479 of 564

DRAFT



 Examples: 
 1.  Student or other possessing or being under the influence of illegal drugs at school, at 

 school-sponsored events, or on school transportation. 
 2.  Student possessing or observed swallowing prescription drugs that are not prescribed for 

 him/her. 
 3.  Student found inhaling or ingesting intoxicants, glue, solvents, or aerosols for hallucinogenic 

 purposes. 
 Non-Examples: 

 1.  Student possessing or using over-the-counter medications in dosage prescribed. 
 2.  Student using inhalers for asthmatic condition. 
 3.  Student possessing drug paraphernalia (refer to Other Major,  OMC  ). 

 Grand Theft (STL)  ,  The unauthorized taking of the property  of another person or organization, including motor 
 vehicles, valued at $750 or more, without threat, violence, or bodily harm. Incidents that fall below the $750 
 threshold are not reportable in SESIR, but instead should be reported as locally-defined incidents according to 
 district policies. Thefts of property of any value that involve a use of force, violence, assault, or putting the 
 victim in fear must be reported as Robbery. 

 Examples: 
 1.  Student or other embezzling public funds. 
 2.  Student or other stealing an item  /  items worth $750  or more. 
 3.  Student finding a checkbook, signing owner’s name and making a purchase. 
 4.  Student or other stealing a car or motorcycle. 

 Non-Examples: 
 1.  Student or other borrowing an item without permission. 
 2.  Student or other committing robbery (code as Robbery instead) 
 3.  Student or other stealing an item less than $750. 
 4.  Student steals a credit card but no charges are made to the card. 

 Homicide (HOM)  - The unjustified killing of one human  being by another. 
 Examples: 

 Student or other person, known or unknown, committing any homicide on school campus, at 
 school-sponsored events, or on school transportation. 

 Non-Examples: 
 1.  Student or other accidentally dying 
 2.  Student or other committing suicide. 

 Kidnapping (KID)  - Forcibly, secretly, or by threat,  confining, abducting, or imprisoning another person against 
 his/her will and without lawful authority. 

 Examples: 
 1.  Student or other holding another person for ransom or reward, as a shield, or as a hostage. 
 2.  Non-custodial caregiver, with a restraining order, picking up a student. 

 Non-Example: 
 Student running away with her boyfriend after being picked up from school by him. 

 Robbery (ROB)  - The taking or attempted taking of  money or other property from the person or custody of 
 another with the intent to permanently or temporarily deprive the person or owner of the money or other 
 property  under the confrontational circumstances of  force or threat of force or violence and/or by putting the 
 victim in fear.  A key difference in Grand Theft and  Robbery is that Robbery involves violence, a threat of 
 violence or assault, and putting the victim in fear. 
 Return to Table of Contents  24-25  CCDS Student and Family Handbook  64 

Page 480 of 564

DRAFT



 Examples: 
 1.  Student or other snatching a gold chain off someone’s neck 
 2.  Student or other extorting lunch money 
 3.  Student or other engaging in “Carjacking” 

 Non-Examples: 
 Student or other taking money  or valuable worth $750  or more  from an unattended purse. 
 (Refer to Grand Theft as a possible alternative code.) 

 Sexual Assault (SXA)  -  An incident that includes fondling,  indecent liberties, child molestation, or threatened 
 rape. Both males and females can be victims of sexual assault. 

 Example: 
 1.  Student or other threatening to rape another. 
 2.  Student or other intentionally touching anyone younger than 16 years old in a lewd manner. 

 Non-Example: 
 Kindergarten student threatening another with a sexual act. 

 Sexual Battery (Rape) (SXB)  - Forced or attempted  oral, anal or vaginal penetration by using a sexual organ 
 or an object simulating a sexual organ, or the anal or vaginal penetration of another by any body part or object. 
 Both males and females can be victims of sexual battery  . 

 Examples: 
 1.  Student or other raping someone. 
 2.  Student or other attempting to rape someone. 

 Non-Examples: 
 1.  Students engaging in consensual sex acts. (Consensual sex is not Sexual Battery. Refer to 

 SXO: Sexual  Offenses (Other) as a possible alternative code.) 
 2.  Student or other threatening to rape someone. (Refer to  Sexual Assault  as a possible SESIR 

 code.) 

 Sexual Harassment (SXH)  -  Unwelcome conduct of a  sexual nature, such as sexual advances, requests for 
 sexual favors, and other verbal, nonverbal, or physical conduct of a sexual nature. Harassing conduct can 
 include verbal or nonverbal actions, including graphic and written statements, and may include statements 
 made through computers, cellphones, and other devices connected to the Internet. The conduct can be carried 
 out by school employees, other students, and non-employee third parties. 

 Examples: 
 1.  Student or other causing unwanted and ongoing episodes of leering, pinching, grabbing. 
 2.  Student or other making repeated suggestive comments or jokes or actions of a sexual nature. 
 3.  Student or other pressuring one to engage in sexual activity. 
 4.  Student or other repeatedly showing a photograph, poster or other images of nudity, lewd or 

 sexual activity. 

 Trespassing (TRS  )  - To enter or remain on a school  grounds/campus, school transportation, or at a 
 school-sponsored  event  function/off campus  without  authorization or invitation and with no lawful purpose for 
 entry.  Only incidents involving a student currently  under suspension or expulsion, or incidents where any 
 offender (student or non-student) was previously issued an official trespass warning by school officials, or 
 where any offender was arrested for trespass are required to be reported in SESIR. Trespass incidents that did 
 not have a prior official warning, did not result in arrest, or did not involve students under suspension or 
 expulsion should be reported as locally defined incidents according to district policies  . 

 Examples: 
 1.  Any unauthorized person entering the campus  and  arrested  for trespass  . 

 Return to Table of Contents  24-25  CCDS Student and Family Handbook  65 
Page 481 of 564

DRAFT



 2.  Any unauthorized person remaining on property after being  issued an official trespass warning 
 by school officials. 

 3.  A student currently under suspension or expulsion returning to campus without authorization or 
 invitation. 

 Non-Examples: 
 1.  Parent entering the building to pick up his/her child without first getting clearance through the 

 office. 
 2.  Person searching for assistance  at a school facility after his/her car has broken down. 

 Weapons Possession (WPO)  - Possession of  a firearm  or any instrument or object as defined by  Section 
 790.001, F.S  .,  any instrument or object (as defined  by Section 790.001 (13), Florida  Statutes, or district code of 
 student conduct)  that can inflict serious harm on  another person or that can place a person in reasonable fear 
 of serious harm. 

 Examples: 
 1.  Student or other possessing a firearm or knife. 
 2.  Student or other  wielding  using  a knife, pocketknife,  or other sharp or pointed implement as a 

 weapon. 
 Non-Examples: 

 1.  Student, after investigation, found to possess a common pocket knife, or eating utensil with no 
 intent to harm. 

 2.  Student possessing items not covered under law or district policy such as pointed instruments, 
 pens, or pencils. 

 3.  Student possessing a cutting tool  that is being  used  in art, shop, or other class. 

 Return to Table of Contents  24-25  CCDS Student and Family Handbook  66 
Page 482 of 564

DRAFT



 A reminder from the Office of Climate and Culture: 
 We are in this together and together we make a difference! 

 Return to Table of Contents  24-25  CCDS Student and Family Handbook  67 
Page 483 of 564

DRAFT



 Approval  to  Advertise:  The  School  Board  of  Clay  County,  Florida  (“the  Board”)  approves  the  advertisement  of 
 revisions to Student and Family Handbook and Code of Student Conduct. 

 Purpose  &  Effect:  The  proposed  amendments  are  intended  to  simplify,  update,  and  ensure  alignment  of 
 School  Board  Policies  with  state  law,  federal  law,  State  Board  of  Education  Rules,  and  other  applicable  rules 
 and regulations. 

 Access  to  Text  of  Proposed  Amendments:  The  full  text  of  the  proposed  revisions  to  Student  and  Family 
 Handbook  and  Code  of  Student  Conduct  is  available  for  inspection  and  copying  by  the  public  in  the  Office  of 
 the  Superintendent  for  Clay  County  District  Schools,  located  at  900  Walnut  Street,  Green  Cove  Springs, 
 Florida  32043.  The  full  text  is  also  available  via  the  School  District’s  website  at  www.oneclay.net  under  the 
 School  Board  Meeting  Links,  School  Board  Agendas  -  May  2,  2024.  The  Superintendent  is  authorized  to 
 correct  technical  errors  in  grammar,  numbering,  section  designations,  and  cross-references  as  may  be 
 necessary to reflect the intention of such Policy amendments. 

 Rule  Making  Authority:  The  Board  is  authorized  to  adopt  revisions  to  Student  and  Family  Handbook  and 
 Code of Student Conduct under sections 120.54, 1001.31, and 1001.32 of the Florida Statutes. 

 Laws  Implemented:  The  laws  implemented  by  the  above-referenced  policy  revisions  are  noted  under  each 
 section of the Policy. 

 Person(s)  Originating  Policy  Changes:  The  proposed  policy  was  originated  by  the  Superintendent  and  his 
 designee(s) in collaboration with the School Board Attorney. 

 Public  Hearing:  The  Board  intends  to  formally  adopt  proposed  revisions  to  Student  and  Family  Handbook  and 
 Code  of  Student  Conduct  following  a  public  hearing.  The  public  hearing  shall  be  held  on  Thursday,  June  6, 
 2024,  during  the  course  of  the  Board’s  regular  meeting,  which  begins  at  6:00  p.m.  and  takes  place  in  the 
 Boardroom  at  the  Teacher  In-service  Training  Center  at  Fleming  Island  High  School,  2233  Village  Square 
 Parkway, Orange Park, Florida. 

 Any  person  requiring  special  accommodations  to  attend  or  participate  in  public  meetings  should  advise  the 
 School  District  at  least  48  hours  before  the  meeting  by  contacting  the  Superintendent’s  Office  at  (904) 
 336-6508  .  If  you  are  hearing  or  speech  impaired,  you  may  contact  the  District  by  email  addressed  to 
 bonnie.onora@myoneclay.net  or by calling  (904) 336-6584  (TDD). 

 If  a  person  decides  to  appeal  any  decision  made  by  the  Board  with  respect  to  any  matter  considered  at  the 
 meeting,  he  or  she  will  need  a  record  of  the  proceedings,  and,  for  such  purpose,  he  or  she  may  need  to  ensure 
 that  a  verbatim  record  of  the  proceedings  is  made,  which  record  includes  the  testimony  and  evidence  upon 
 which the appeal is to be based. 

Page 484 of 564

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

May 2, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C14 - Proposed Allocation Changes for 2023-2024

Description
Staff allocation documents clarify how each school, district department and division is staffed for the 2023-2024 school year.
The School Board is required to take action on all staff allocation changes.

Gap Analysis
These allocation changes are required to ensure the adequate staffing of the district and schools.

Previous Outcomes
The district and schools are adequately staffed.

Expected Outcomes
Staffing will be sufficient to meet the needs of the various schools and district departments.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 5: Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available
resources necessary to provide an environment that is safe,m efficient, and conductive to learning.

Recommendation
Approve staff allocation plan as submitted.

Contact
Dr. Susan Legutko, Assistant Superintendent for Business Affairs, (904)336-6722, susan.legutko@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
Reflected in attachment.

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 485 of 564

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

May 2, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C15 - Proposed Allocation Changes for 2024-2025

Description
Staff allocation documents clarify how each school, district department and division is staffed for the 2024-2025 school year.
The School Board is required to take action on all staff allocation changes.

Gap Analysis
These allocation changes are required to ensure the adequate staffing of the district and schools.

Previous Outcomes
The district and schools are adequately staffed.

Expected Outcomes
Staffing will be sufficient to meet the needs of the various schools and district departments.

Strategic Plan Goal
The district ensures fiscal responsibility and equitable distribution of resources.

Recommendation
Approve staff allocation plan as submitted.

Contact
Dr. Susan Legutko, Assistant Superintendent for Business Affairs, (904)336-6722, susan.legutko@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
Reflected in attachment.

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 486 of 564

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

May 2, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C16 - Monthly Financial Reports for March, 2024

Description
The Monthly Financial Reports, in accordance with SBE Rule 6A-1.008, are submitted for the use and consideration of the Board
for the month ending March 31, 2024.

Gap Analysis
The Monthly Financial Reports show compliance to the district's amended budget as of the month end reported and meet State
and School Board financial reporting requirements.

Previous Outcomes
It has been a past (normal) practice to provide Monthly Financial Reports, in accordance with SBE Rule 6A-1.008.
 

Expected Outcomes
The Monthly Financial Reports are provided to meet the stewardship responsibilities of the district for reporting and
accountability of the district's finances.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 5:  Strategy 2:  Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize
available resources necessary to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conducive to learning.  Promote fiscal
transparency and communication.
 

Recommendation
That the Clay County School Board accept for use and consideration the Superintendent's Monthly Financial Reports for March,
2024.
 

Contact
Dr. Susan M. Legutko, Assistant Superintendent of Business Affairs, (904) 336-6721, susan.legutko@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
The Monthly Financial Reports reflect the year-to-date results of operations.

Review Comments

Attachments

March 2024 Monthly Board Financial Report.pdf

March 2024 Monthly Board Property Report.pdf

Contracts Signed by Superintendent $50,000 to $100,000.pdf

Page 487 of 564

DRAFT



Page 488 of 564

DRAFT



Page 489 of 564

DRAFT



Page 490 of 564

DRAFT



Page 491 of 564

DRAFT



Page 492 of 564

DRAFT



Page 493 of 564

DRAFT



Page 494 of 564

DRAFT



Page 495 of 564

DRAFT



Page 496 of 564

DRAFT



Page 497 of 564

DRAFT



Page 498 of 564

DRAFT



Page 499 of 564

DRAFT



Page 500 of 564

DRAFT



Page 501 of 564

DRAFT



Page 502 of 564

DRAFT



Page 503 of 564

DRAFT



Page 504 of 564

DRAFT



Page 505 of 564

DRAFT



Page 506 of 564

DRAFT



Page 507 of 564

DRAFT



Page 508 of 564

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

May 2, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C17 - Budget Amendment Report for March  31, 2024

Description
Florida State Board of Education Administrative Rule 6A-1.006 requires that the School Board approve amendments to the
district school budget whenever the function and object amounts in the accounts prescribed by the State Board form are changed
from the original budget approved by the School Board.  The Budget Amendments are procedurally necessary to update our
budget to reflect changes as outlined in the attached statements.

Gap Analysis
The monthly budget amendment show compliance to the district's amended budget as of the month end reported and meet State
and School Board financial reporting requirements. 

Previous Outcomes
Reported as per Florida State Board of Education Administrative Rule 6A-1.006. 

Expected Outcomes
The monthly budget amendment is provided to meet the stewardship responsibilities of the district for reporting and
accountability of the district's budget.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 5: Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available
resources necessary to provide an environment that is safe,m efficient, and conductive to learning.

Recommendation
Approval of the Budget Amendments for March 2024 as presented.

Contact
Dr. Susan M. Legutko, Assistant Superintendent for Business Affairs

Financial Impact
See attached statements for a complete analysis of the financial impact.

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 509 of 564

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

May 2, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C18 - DELETION OF CERTAIN ITEMS REPORT APRIL, 2024

Description
The items listed have been surveyed by the Coordinator of Property Control, at the request of the Cost Center Property Manager,
and the recommended disposition is noted. These items are either obsolete, unusable or beyond economical repair. These items
should be removed from active inventory and disposed of in the manner indicated. Deletions are for property items received in
the month of March, 2024.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
Property Records followed State mandate on trackable assets, Chapter 274.05

Expected Outcomes
Tangible Personal Property shall be controlled and supervised from acquisition through transfer or disposal. Disposal of property
shall be in accordance with Section 274.05, Florida Statutes. All deletions of items with a value of $1,000.00 or more will be
approved by The School Board of Clay County prior to disposition - School Board Policy Section 5.03C

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 5: Strategy 5.4; Enhance fiscal practices that enable the district to maximize effectiveness and efficiency.

Recommendation
Approve Deletion of Certain Items Report - April, 2024 as submitted.

Contact
Dr. Susan Legutko,
Assistant Superintendent for Business Affairs
(904)-336-6721
susan.legutko@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
Provides additional storage space and eliminates the need to account for unusable property. Reduces the dollar value of Tangible
Personal Property.

Review Comments

Attachments

DELETION OF CERTAIN ITEMS REPORT APRIL, 2024.pdf

Page 510 of 564

DRAFT



Page 511 of 564

DRAFT



Page 512 of 564

DRAFT



Page 513 of 564

DRAFT



Page 514 of 564

DRAFT



Page 515 of 564

DRAFT



Page 516 of 564

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

May 2, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C19 - BID Renewal

Description
Renew BID as required per FS 287, DOE 6A-1.012 and School Board Policy
a.  Water & Wastewater Treatment Plants Contracted Operations County Wide #22-MA-324:  Contract Period is July 1, 2024
through June 30, 2025. The contract period is for one (1) year and is the second of three renewal options. 
b.  Epoxy Floor Services County Wide Bid #22-F-239:  Contract Period is July 1, 2024 through June 30, 2025. The contract
period is for one (1) year and is the first of three renewal options.

Gap Analysis
The District requires contractors to provide services to ensure our ??facilities and equipment are maintained and functional. The
District requires vendors to provide products to ensure our students and staff receive the services, and or products to meet their
needs.

Previous Outcomes
Original Bid was Board approved and has been used successfully during the past term to provide quality services and products to
the district.

Expected Outcomes
Upon approval by the Board; we expect the contractors and vendors? to continue providing quality services and products at the
same terms and conditions as when the original Bid was awarded.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 2; Strategy 2.4; Ensure effective and efficient use of resources for fiscal stability.

Recommendation
Extend renewal as follows:
a. Water & Wastewater Treatment Plants Contracted Operations County Wide #22-MA-324:

Two Fold Water Engineering Inc, PO Box 767, Melrose, FL 32666-
b. Epoxy Floor Services County Wide Bid #22-F-239:

Ronald Lance Tile & Resinous Systems LLC, P.O Box 1097, Fairfield, FL 32634-

Contact
Dr. Susan Legutko, Assistant Superintendent for Business Affairs, Phone: (904)336-6721, Email: susan.legutko@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
a. Water & Wastewater Treatment Plants Contracted Operations County Wide #22-MA-324: The total estimated expenditure for
the one (1) year contract renewal is $120,000.00 from General Revenue.

b. Epoxy Floor Services County Wide Bid #22-F-239: The total estimated expenditure for the one (1) year contract renewal is
$50,000.00 from General and Capital Revenue.

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 517 of 564

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

May 2, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C20 - Contract - Third-Party Administrator (TPA) Benefit Consultant

Description
The School District obtains a Third-Party Administrator (TPA) Benefit Consultant as our broker of record for health and welfare
plans and other life, accident and voluntary insurance policies procured from various insurance companies. Scope of services
shall include but not limited to Consulting Services, Financial Services, Communications/Employee Engagement, Compliance
and Legislative Support, Plan Administration/Daily Support, and Well-Being and Engagement as listed in Schedule A. The
initial term is for four (4) years from June 1, 2024 through May 31, 2028 thereafter shall automatically continue for successive
twelve (12) month periods (each a “Renewal Term”, and together with the Initial Term, the “Term”) for a maximum of four
additional years.

Gap Analysis
The District requires Contractor to provide third party administrative services to ensure our staff receives products and services
that meet their needs.

Previous Outcomes
The Bailey Group has served as the TPA Benefit Consultant of record for approximately six (6) years and earns commissions
from the Insurance Carriers based on the amount of payments from the District to the carriers on a monthly basis.

Expected Outcomes
We expect the Contractor to continue providing quality services as they have done in previous years. In addition to the ongoing
services, the Contractor will continue to sponsor and support the School Board's "Tools 4 Clay Schools Store" as well as any
related events, in coordination and partnership with the Clay Education Foundation. Furthermore, the Contractor will fully
subsidize or provide tech credits toward the benefits administration cost.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 5; Strategy 5.4; Enhance fiscal practices that enable the district to maximize effectiveness and efficiency.

Recommendation
That the School Board approve the agreement between the School Board of Clay County and the Bailey Group, an NFP
Company.

Contact
Dr. Susan Legutko, Assistant Superintendent for Business Affairs, Phone: (904)336-6721, Email: susan.legutko@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
Cost paid out of carrier fees and/or commission(s) shall not to exceed $375,000.00 annually.

Review Comments

Attachments

240157 Bailey Group Service Agreement.pdf

Page 518 of 564

DRAFT



PUR 1-3501 E. 10/05/2023   Contract Review Process for ALL Contracts, September 2022, SBAO (web) 

FOLLOW ALL PROCEDURES ON BACK OF THIS FORM
  Contract #______________________ 

Number Assigned by Purchasing Dept.   

BOARD MEETING DATE:

WHEN BOARD APPROVAL IS REQUIRED DO  
NOT PLACE ITEM ON AGENDA UNTIL  

REVIEW IS COMPLETED 
 Must Have Board Approval over $100,000.00 

Date Submitted: 
Name of Contract Initiator:      Telephone #: 
School/Dept Submitting Contract:   Cost Center # 
Vendor Name: 
Contract Title: 

Contract Term:    Renewal Option(s): 
Contract Cost: 
 BUDGETED FUNDS – SEND CONTRACT PACKAGE DIRECTLY TO PURCHASING DEPT

  Funding Source:   Budget Line #_________________________________________________________________ 
  Funding Source:   Budget Line #_________________________________________________________________ 

 NO COST MASTER (COUNTY WIDE) CONTRACT  - SEND CONTRACT PACKAGE DIRECTLY TO PURCHASING DEPT

 INTERNAL ACCOUNT -  IF FUNDED FROM SCHOOL IA FUNDS – SEND CONTRACT PACKAGE DIRECTLY TO SBAO
 REQUIRED DOCUMENTS FOR CONTRACT REVIEW PACKAGE  (when applicable): 
______ Completed Contract Review Form 
______ SBAO Template Contract or other Contract (NOT SIGNED by District / School) 
______ SIGNED Addendum A (if not an SBAO Template Contract) - When using the Addendum A, this Statement MUST BE included in the body of the Contract: 
               “The terms and conditions of Addendum A are hereby incorporated into this Agreement and the same shall govern and prevail over any conflicting terms and/or 
                conditions herein stated.” 
______ Certificate of Insurance (COI) for General Liability & Workers’ Compensation that meet these requirements: 
               COI must list the School Board of Clay County, Florida as an Additional Insured and Certificate Holder.  Insurer must be rated as A- or better. 

   General Liability = $1,000,000 Each Occurrence & $2,000,000 General Aggregate. 
   Auto Liability = $1,000,000 Combined Single Limit ($5,000,000 for Charter Buses). 
  Workers’ Compensation = $100,000 Minimum 

[If exempt from Workers’ Compensation Insurance, vendor/contractor must sign a Release and Hold Harmless Form.  If not exempt, vendor/contractor 
must provide Workers’ Compensation coverage]. 

______ State of Florida Workers Comp Exemption (https://apps.fldfs.com/bocexempt/) (If Applicable) 
 
 

______ Release and Hold Harmless (If Applicable) 
 

 **AREA BELOW FOR DISTRICT PERSONNEL ONLY ** 
CONTRACT REVIEWED BY: COMMENTS BELOW BY REVIEWING DEPARTMENT 

Purchasing Department    

Review Date 

_______________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________ 

School Board Attorney   

Review Date 

_______________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________ 

Other Dept. as Necessary 

Review Date 

_______________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________________ 

PENDING STATUS:  YES    NO IF YES, HIGHLIGHTED COMMENTS ABOVE MUST BE CORRECTED BY INITIATOR 

FINAL STATUS  DATE:______________________ 

CONTRACT REVIEW 

Contract Type:   New □   Renewal □   Amendment □     Extension □      Previous Year Contract # 

Not to exceed $375,000 annually paid via carrier commissions

4/9/2024
Bertie Staefe for Insurance Department 336-6736

Business Affairs/Insurance Department 9050 / 9053
The Bailey Group an NFP Company

Service Agreement - Insurance-Benefits Brokerage/Consulting Services

X
June 1, 2024 - May 31, 2028 AUTO RENEW for up to 4 additional years

240157

May 2, 2024

FDOE Rule 6A-1.012 (15) Third-Party Admin 
SBCC Addendum A 

180373/210085/220117/ 230134

Page 519 of 564

DRAFT



PUR 1-3501 E. 10/05/2023   Contract Review Process for ALL Contracts, September 2022, SBAO (web) 

CONTRACT REVIEW PROCESS FOR “ALL” CONTRACTS 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Step 1: Contract Initiator and Vendor prepare draft contract 
              (School Board Attorney Office (SBAO) Template Contracts available on SBAO webpage are strongly encouraged) 

Step 2: Complete Contract Review Form, attach Required Documents to include the UNSIGNED Contract by the District / School. 
             
 

Step 3: If Funded by Budgeted Funds, submit the Contract Review Package to the Purchasing Department.  
             Purchasing will begin the contract review process and submit the contract to the SBAO for review. SBAO may reach out to                    
             Initiator and/or other Departments (Risk, IT,) with questions or concerns and will assist with contract revisions.  SBAO 
             will send the Contract Review Package back to the Purchasing Department for final processing and the return to Initiator. 
 
             Purchasing will log “District” Contracts (Cost/No Cost) on Contract Review Log and save copy of the Contract Review 
             Package PLUS the Final Signed Contract you’ve return to Purchasing in the Contract Review Team Drive.  

Step 5: The Initiator is responsible for finalizing the Contract which includes:  
             Addressing Comments/Revisions, Obtaining Required Signatures, Send District Final Signed Contract to Purchasing OR  
             Retain Internal Accounts Final Signed Contract at School per School Board Record Policy. 
 

             If there is a Cost associated with Contract, the Initiator must work with their Bookkeeper to finalize the Purchasing Process. 
                      Budgeted Funds require a District Purchase Order.   Internal Accounts require an IA Purchase Order. 

Step 4:  If Funded by Internal Account (IA), submit the Contract Review Package directly to SBAO.  
              Email:  contractreview@myoneclay.net 
             The SBAO will begin the contract review process and return it directly to Initiator  

For Contracts using Budgeted Funds or For No Cost / Master (County Wide) Contracts: 
Initiator submits Contract Review Package to Purchasing Department - See Step 3 

 

For Contracts using Internal Funds Individual to each School: 
 Initiator submits Contract Review Package direct to SBAO - See Step 4 
 

A contract is defined as an agreement between two or more parties that is intended to have legal effect. This may include MOUs, 
Interlocal Agreements, Service Agreements and Contracts.  Contracts document the mutual understanding between the parties as to 
the terms and conditions of their agreement, contain mutual obligations, and clearly state the agreement's consideration. The term 
consideration includes the cost of the services and/or products to be provided by second party (vendor or service provider) and any 
non-monetary performance. No school, department, or other organizational unit has authority to contract in its own name. All Board 
contracts must be made in the legal name of the Board, "The School Board of Clay County, Florida". The School or Department may 
extend this name to include the school or department as follows, "The School Board of Clay County, Florida o/b/o ________________ 
(insert the school or department name)" where o/b/o means "on behalf of". 
 
All contracts shall be reviewed and approved by the School Board Attorney and/or the Supervisor of Purchasing 
to ensure legality, compliance with Board policy, and to ensure the Board interests are protected before the 
authorized signatory may execute the contract. 
 
All contracts having a value of $100,000 or more shall be authorized by the Board at a regular or special meeting and signed by the 
Board Chairman.  All approved contracts having a value of less than $100,000 may be executed by the Superintendent or appropriate 
District administrator based on the value of the contract.  

1. All approved contracts having a value of $50,000 or more, but less than $100,000 shall be signed by the Superintendent, or 
the   person who has been designated, in writing by the Superintendent, as the Superintendent’s Designee at the time of the 
contract signing. All contracts executed pursuant to this subparagraph shall be reported to the School Board in a separate 
entry as part of the monthly financial report. 

2. All approved contracts having a value of $25,000 or more, but less than $50,000, shall be signed by the Superintendent, or     
       the Assistant Superintendent for Business Affairs. 
3. All approved contracts having a value of less than $25,000 and contracts of any value described in Board Authorized 

Contracts above that are exempt from the requirement for Board approval, may be signed by the Superintendent, or the 
Assistant Superintendent for their Division, or Chief Officers, or Directors, or Principals. 

4. The Superintendent is authorized to approve contract amendments or change orders for the purchase of commodities and 
services up to the amount of ten (10) percent or $50,000, whichever is less, of the original contract amount that was 
previously approved by the Board. 

 

Employees who enter into agreements without authority may be personally liable for such agreements, whether oral or written. 
 

For assistance with legal-related matters, please visit the School Board Attorney’s Office (“SBAO”) webpage or call 904-336-6507 
For assistance with insurance-related matters, please visit the Business Affairs - Risk Management webpage or call 904-336-6745 
For assistance with District Purchasing, please visit the Business Affairs - Purchasing webpage or call 904-336-6736 

Page 520 of 564

DRAFT



Service Agreement 

Page 1 of 13
240101 SMA

SERVICE AGREEMENT

THIS SERVICE AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered into this 1st day of June 2024, (“Effective 

Date”) by and between the School Board of Clay County, Florida (the “Client”), and The Bailey Group, an 

NFP Company. (“NFP”). It is agreed by and between the parties hereto as follows:  

A. APPOINTMENT OF NFP. The client has appointed NFP as its broker of record for health and welfare

plans and other life, accident and voluntary insurance policies procured from various insurance

companies by NFP on behalf of Client. In consideration of the premiums paid under those policies

and the commissions earned by NFP and paid by the insurance companies, NFP has agreed to

perform services as described in Schedule A on behalf of the Client pursuant to the terms of this

Agreement.

B. SERVICES OF NFP. During the term of this Agreement, and at the Client’s request, NFP has agreed

to provide the services as listed in Schedule A.

C. OPERATING EXPENSES. Client agrees to pay all its own operating expenses not outlined in

Schedule A. 

D. CLIENT RESPONSIBILITIES. Client agrees to:

1. Disclose and provide all information reasonably necessary for NFP to provide the Elected 
Services as soon as administratively possible.

2. Verify correctness of all data associated with Elected Services in writing.

3. Execute a service agreement, if applicable, with the selected vendor to provide the Elected 
Services.

DI. TERM AND TERMINATION.

1. Term of Agreement. This engagement shall be in force for an initial term commencing on 
Effective Date and ending on May 31, 2028, (the “Initial Term”) and thereafter this 
engagement shall automatically continue for successive twelve (12) month periods (each a 
“Renewal Term”, and together with the Initial Term, the “Term”) for a maximum of four 
additional years.

2. Termination of Agreement. This Agreement may be terminated:

a. During the term, by either party upon issuance of written notice to the other party 
in the event of a breach of any material term of this engagement, which breach is 
not remedied within thirty (30) days following written notice thereof. Such written 
notice shall include a detailed description of occurrence and potential remedies for 
addressing the breach.

b. At the conclusion of the initial term ending May 31, 2028, this contract can be 
terminated by either party for any reason upon with (90) days prior written notice 
to terminate the engagement.

DII. FEES AND COMPENSATION.

NFP is proposing a compensation agreement not to exceed $375,000 annually. This compensation 
is derived from carrier fees or commission(s) and will be reconciled annually to ensure 
compliance. This fee excludes sums paid by supplemental insurance carriers. No portion of the 

Page 521 of 564

DRAFT



Service Agreement 

Page 2 of 13
240101 SMA

compensation is refundable except as required by law. The service fee is fully earned at the 
commencement of the term.   

G. CONFIDENTIALITY.  

1. All Confidential Information (as defined below) of one party disclosed to the other party 

hereunder will remain the exclusive and confidential property of the disclosing party. The 

receiving party will not disclose the Confidential Information of the disclosing party and will 

use at least the same degree of care, discretion, and diligence in protecting the Confidential 

Information of the disclosing party as it uses with respect to its own confidential 

information, but in no event less than reasonable care. The receiving party will limit access 

to Confidential Information to its personnel with a need to know such Confidential 

Information and will instruct such personnel to keep such information confidential. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the receiving party may disclose Confidential Information 

(a) to the extent necessary to comply with any law, rule, regulation, legal process or ruling 

applicable to it, (b) to the extent necessary to enforce its rights under this agreement and 

(c) to the extent necessary to perform the Elected Services. Upon the written request of the 

disclosing party, the receiving party will return or destroy all Confidential Information of the 

disclosing party that is in its possession (other than archive data copies or information that 

is embedded within the computer hardware or other technical systems used to perform the 

services hereunder, and in accordance with internal document retention policies and 

procedures for legal, compliance or regulatory purposes). For purposes of this Section, 

“Confidential Information” shall mean: all information of a confidential or proprietary 

nature, including trade secrets, provided by the disclosing party to the receiving party for 

use in connection with the Elected Services which is marked as confidential or reasonably 

should be known as confidential in light of the circumstance. However, Confidential 

Information does not include (i) information that is already known by the receiving party, 

(ii) information that becomes generally available to the public other than as a result of 

disclosure by the receiving party in violation of this agreement, and (iii) information that 

becomes known to the receiving party from a source other than the disclosing party on a 

non-confidential basis. Notwithstanding the foregoing, NFP may use Client’s and its 

employees’ information for purposes other than the performance of the services but only 

in an aggregated, anonymized form, such that neither Client nor its employees or 

participants may be identified, and Client will have no ownership interest in such 

aggregated, anonymized data.  

2. NFP has implemented administrative, technical, physical, and organizational measures to 

help ensure the security and confidentiality of any personally identifiable information or 

proprietary data received in connection with the services. The security measures will be in 

material compliance with applicable data protection law. In performing the services, NFP 

will comply with all applicable local, state, and federal laws and regulations pertaining to 

protection of personally identifiable data, privacy, and security.  

3. NFP further acknowledges and understands that to the extent it receives Protected Health 

Information (“PHI”) as defined by the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 

1996, as amended (“HIPAA”) while performing Elected Services, then in order to safeguard  

Page 522 of 564

DRAFT



Service Agreement 

Page 3 of 13
240101 SMA

PHI from inadvertent and/or unauthorized disclosures, NFP and Client will enter into a 

standard Business Associate Agreement.   

H. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY. Under no circumstances will NFP be liable for indirect, incidental, 

consequential, or  exemplary losses and damages, whether foreseeable or not, such as, but not 

limited to, damages arising from loss of or denial of benefits, overcharges of vendor premiums, 

loss of revenue, data, or anticipated profits, or lost business irrespective of whether such 

damages were incurred by Client due to negligent act, willful misconduct or omission, breach of 

contract, breach of warranty, negligence, strict liability, misrepresentation or other torts. NFP’s 

aggregate liability for any and all damages hereunder shall not exceed the amounts received by 

NFP under this arrangement in the six (6) months prior to the event occurring for which Client 

seeks damages from NFP. 

NFP shall not be liable for any delay in performance or failure to perform caused directly or 

indirectly by fire, explosion, accident, flood, labor trouble, weather condition, any regulation, rule 

or act of any government or governmental agency, act of God, armed conflicts, civil commotion or 

any other cause or damage that is beyond the reasonable control of NFP or any of its sources or 

could not reasonably have been foreseen.   

I. MISCELLANEOUS.  

1. Governing Law; Dispute Resolution. This Agreement is made under and shall be governed 

by the laws of the State of Florida as if fully performed therein. Before commencing formal 

legal proceedings in connection with this Agreement or the engagement for service, the 

parties agree to use good faith efforts to informally resolve any disputes arising hereunder 

for a period of no less than thirty (30) days. Any dispute or controversy between the parties 

relating to or arising out of this Agreement or any amendment or modification hereof, or 

any other claims between the parties shall be determined by confidential arbitration in St. 

Augustine, FL, under the auspices of the American Arbitration Association (“AAA”) and 

pursuant to the Federal Arbitration Act; provided however, that any action to compel or 

stay arbitration, for any dispute regarding the arbitrability of a claim relating to or arising 

under this Agreement, or an action seeking injunctive relief under this Agreement may be 

brought in any state or federal court of competent jurisdiction. The parties acknowledge 

and agree that in connection with any proceeding, hereunder, including arbitration, they 

are waiving their right to trial before a court and/or jury.   

2. Entire Agreement; Interpretation; Amendment; Assignment. This Agreement document 

contains the entire agreement and understanding of the parties, with respect to the subject 

matter herein; there exist no other agreements, whether oral or written and this supersedes 

any prior written or oral agreements between the parties. If any court of competent 

jurisdiction finds any provision of these terms and conditions invalid, illegal, or 

unenforceable, such provision shall be severed, and the remainder of the terms and 

conditions shall remain valid and enforceable. These terms and conditions may only be 

altered, waived, modified, or terminated in writing, signed, and delivered by an authorized 

representative of each of the parties. This Agreement may not be assigned by a party 

without the prior written consent of the other, however, NFP may assign this document to 

an affiliate upon written notice to Client.  

Page 523 of 564

DRAFT



Service Agreement 

Page 4 of 13
240101 SMA

3. Standard of Care. NFP may exercise its own reasonable judgment, within the parameters 

set forth herein and in compliance with state regulations, as to the nature and extent of the 

services to be provided hereunder. Additionally, NFP shall be held to the same standard of  

care that would apply for services performed by like insurance brokers/consultants under 

similar circumstances.  

4. Disclaimer. NFP disclaims any undertaking to provide accounting, legal, or tax consultation 

services or advice. NFP will not be responsible for any of the following: (i) errors or omissions 

by Client, any Plan representative or fiduciary, or their respective officers, director, agents, 

and employees; (ii) failures, errors or omissions by Client or NFP’s vendors, or their 

respective officers, directors, agents, and employees; (ii) failure by any party to provide any 

required or necessary information or data to NFP on a timely basis as necessary or 

appropriate for the performance of NFP’s services under this Agreement; and (iv) any 

privacy violations committed by Client or NFP’s vendors, or the respective officers, directors, 

agents, and employees thereof.  

The terms and conditions of Addendum A are hereby incorporated into this Agreement and the same 

shall govern and prevail over any conflicting terms and/or conditions stated herein. 

[END OF TEXT; SIGNATURES TO FOLLOW]  

Page 524 of 564

DRAFT



Service Agreement 

Page 5 of 13
240101 SMA

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed as of the 

Effective Date by their respective officers thereunto duly authorized.  

The Bailey Group, an NFP Company  

By:          Sabrina M Abare, SVP, Account Management Name 

Signature 

________________________________________________________  

Date CLIENT: 

School Board of Clay County, Florida  

By:            

Name

Signature 

                                                                  _______________________________________________________  

                                                                                                                            Date 

Page 525 of 564

DRAFT



Service Agreement 

Page 6 of 13
240101 SMA

Schedule A:  Scope of Services 

Included in proposed fees unless otherwise noted. 

SCOPE OF SERVICES   

If any services, functions, or responsibilities not specifically described are necessary for the proper 

performance and provision of the agreement, they shall be deemed to be implied by and included 

within the scope of services to the same extent and in the same manner, described herein.   

Consulting Services 

NFP will continually assess the current strategic plan and alignment with the District’s organizational 

objectives.  

NFP provides brokerage and consulting services for all core and voluntary benefits, including Medical, 

Dental, Vision, Life, Short- and Long-Term Disability, and all worksite benefits.  

NFP evaluates and monitors the capabilities of each included provider. NFP will perform a market 

study and present benefits options for all lines of coverage including issuing competitive solicitations 

and bidding/quoting/negotiating all lines of coverage as directed by the Insurance Committee and 

approved by the School Board yearly or as needed, to be presented to the Insurance Committee for 

review and recommendation to the School Board.  

NFP shall identify and provide a dedicated account manager. The account manager shall be present 

for scheduled Insurance Committee meetings, as well as any special school scheduled meetings 

outside of any regular cadence.  

NFP will execute benchmarking comparisons of programs with like industry, location, and size. 

Financial Services 

NFP will provide a monthly detailed financial summary/claims review. NFP will also provide additional 

financial reports, usage reports, and special analyses periodically. 

NFP will monitor large medical and pharmacy claims, all approved stop loss reimbursements and 

denials.  

NFP will provide an overview of all rates, including COBRA rate development. 

NFP will provide IBNR calculation and analysis annually. 

NFP will review and approve the details for policies submitted by the District’s insurance providers to 

ensure the base for billing is correct and financial contract terms are enforced.  

NFP will provide ongoing rebate monitoring and confirmation. 

NFP will prepare billing and backup files for monthly stop loss payment, for the District’s final review. 

NFP will continue to sponsor and support the School Board’s “Tools 4 Clay Schools Store” as well as 

related events in coordination and partnership with the Clay Education Foundation.  

Communications/Employee Engagement

Page 526 of 564

DRAFT



Service Agreement 

Page 7 of 13
240101 SMA

During the annual Open Enrollment and enrollment for New Hires, NFP shall provide a sufficient 

number of enrollment counselors to meet with eligible employees, if needed as well as provide 

additional staff for site and/or virtual visits for multiple locations during open enrollment, if needed. 

NFP will prepare approved annual benefits guide inclusive of all benefits that may be provided 

electronically to active, retiree, and COBRA participants. The annual benefit guide will include all core 

and voluntary benefits brokered by NFP, eligibility rules, instructions for utilizing carrier website and 

online enrollment, current enrollment information and dates, and other information as determined by 

the District. 

NFP will assist with information for the District’s benefits website, providing up-to-date information 

on all benefits programs under this contract. This includes attending weekly benefits administration 

calls with the vendor.  

NFP will participate and assist in providing educational programs, as agreed upon between NFP and 

the District, for all employees to make them aware of their benefits and to help contain costs.  

NFP will be responsible for developing and providing the Plan Documents. They will also provide 

access to summary booklets, identification cards, and enrollment forms for life, medical, dental, 

vision, hospital indemnity, and disability insurance.  

The District shall have final approval on all open enrollment forms and other distributed literature. 

Compliance and Legislative Support

NFP will provide in-depth compliance checklist review and assistance annually, and ongoing as 

legislation changes. 

The District shall arrange for the annual actuarial certification that be submitted to the Insurance 

Commissioner's office by the date determined by the actuary. It shall be NFP’s responsibility to 

provide the District’s actuarial firm with the correct data necessary for the certification of the 

District’s self-funded medical and pharmacy plans.  

NFP will provide HIPPA compliance assistance and certification. 

NFP will provide access to internal resources which include compliance updates, podcasts, webinars, 

compliance attorney support, and electronic toolkits for various compliance items.  

Plan Administration/Daily Support

NFP will provide all services necessary to communicate, enroll, and administer the plans beginning 

with the 2024 plan year. NFP will be available to meet with participants as needed and requested by 

the District. 

NFP will provide appropriate education, training, and analytics to the District’s Insurance Committee 

to ensure informed and intelligent decision-making.  

NFP shall identify an account management team to assist plan members through customer service 

issues, including claims questions and eligibility issues. NFP shall provide any necessary training for the 

service team.  

NFP will assist the District with the implementation of file feeds between plan vendors and the District 

benefits administration system.  

Page 527 of 564

DRAFT



Service Agreement 

Page 8 of 13
240101 SMA

NFP will assist in reconciling payroll deduction reports provided by the District’s Payroll Department 

and will identify discrepancies (amounts not deducted, incorrect amounts deducted, etc.) for all 

insurance-related benefits upon request.  

NFP will provide ongoing assistance with benefits administration marketing, selection and 

implementation. NFP will fully subsidize or provide tech credits toward the benefits administration 

cost.  

NFP will manage District relationships with carriers, including managing vendor performance, 

accountability and communication lines.  

NFP will provide overall Human Resources assistance, including assistance with policies and 

procedures support, if needed.  

Well-Being and Engagement

NFP shall identify a Well-Being and Engagement Consultant to work with the District’s Wellness 

Coordinator for anything wellness related. 

NFP’s Well-Being and Engagement Consultant will provide program consulting, strategic support, data 

analysis and review, and wellness vendor research and support.  

NFP will provide wellness tools, resources, and access to virtual wellness programs. 

NFP will work with the District to ensure wellness program compliance. 

End Scope of Services, Please see Addendum B 

Page 528 of 564

DRAFT



Service Agreement 

Page 9 of 13
240101 SMA

Addendum B – Year-Round Planning and Activity Calendar 

Ongoing Services
As an NFP client, you are continuously supported by comprehensive services that form the foundation 

underlying every step of our start up and ongoing benefits cycle processes. These services are a 
natural outgrowth of NFP's analytical, year-round consulting approach, detail orientation, 

underwriting expertise, technical proficiency, and client focus. NFP will provide ongoing support on a 
wide variety of issues with a dedicated team.  

Review of Administration Resources

- Current processes  

- Internal capacity and expertise 

- Assess need for outsourced vendors - including communication, eligibility maintenance, 

- enrollment and call centers 

- Assist with technology solutions - self-serve, carrier portals, eligibility maintenance 

- Communication materials 

- Website utilization 

Financial Monitoring 

- Evaluate financial impact of plan modifications 

- Review utilization and claim experience, including high claimant activity 

- Identify plan trends 

- Monitor claim activity compared to budget 

Assist and Assess Administration/Outsourcing 

- Assess current resources/technology 

- Develop cost efficient administration processes and/or technology solutions for: - 

- Billing/eligibility 

- Communication 

- Web Enrollment 

Vendor Management 

- Manage vendors proactively, to maximize service 

- Assist in establishment of service standards 

- Work with client/vendors to resolve complex issues 

- Stay abreast of available service advancements and alternatives

Regulatory Compliance 

- Provide proactive updates on regulatory changes/developments via written communications, 
email bulletins and educational webcasts 

- Provide compliance assessments and assist in developing and implementing action plans 
aimed at resolving compliance deficiencies 

- Provide user-friendly tools to help meet compliance requirements 

- Review policies, procedures and documents including: 

- Plan Documents 

- Summary Plan Descriptions 

- Section 125 documents 

- Health Care Reform

Wellness Program Strategy and Design

- Increase employee knowledge and education 

Page 529 of 564

DRAFT



Service Agreement 

Page 10 of 13
240101 SMA

- Design a customized yearly communications calendar aimed at educating and changing 
behavior 

- Ensure all carrier resources are being fully utilized  

- Advise on implementation of active health management programs 

- Assist in designing a participation incentive plan 

- Assist in creating participation-oriented program modules 

- Coordinate measurable activities such as HRA/biometric screenings 

- Introduce financial accountability-based health management program 

- Tie employee cost share to wellness goals 

- Design measurable program goals 

- Create a ROI equation 

- Coordinate program with carrier and onsite wellness coordinator 

- Assess need for third party wellness vendors 

Mid-Year Services

Mid-Year Strategic Planning  

- Evaluate current financial performance, funding and contribution strategies 

- Review utilization data 

- Conduct a renewal projection 

- Conduct a Health Care Reform evaluation 

- Compare actual plan designs and costs to benchmark data 

- Evaluate results of plan changes and vendor changes 

- Critique/assess vendor performance 

- Review/update compliance changes 

- Discuss benefit/marketplace trends including: 

- Product portfolio 

- Consumerism 

- Wellness initiatives 

- Voluntary products 

- Validate, reassess and update strategic goals/objectives

Reporting

- Develop a comprehensive report covering current costs, plan designs, benchmarking, 
observations and identified areas of opportunity related to: 

- Medical coverage - plan design, network discounts, access and financial arrangements 

- Pharmacy - plan design, PBM discounts, carve-in or carve-out approach 

- Employee contributions and the overall current strategy 

- Dental - plan design, network discounts and financial arrangements 

- Life - basic program and optional buy-up programs, participation and guarantee issue levels, 
Executive life and disability insurance (if applicable) 

- Short- and long-term disability - basic and buy-up programs, state mandated benefits, 
taxability of benefits 

- Voluntary products  

- Health Care Reform risk analysis 

- COBRA administration 

- FSA administration 

Page 530 of 564

DRAFT



Service Agreement 

Page 11 of 13
240101 SMA

- Benefit technologies 

- Employee assistance programs 

- Disease management programs 

- Wellness programs 

- Overall benefits communication to employees 

- Annual benefit statements (if applicable) 

- Consumer Driven Health Plans, including HRA/HSA 

- Vision benefits 

- Retiree programs 

- Plan eligibility rules including waiting periods, student age, leave provisions, domestic 
partners, etc. 

Pre-Renewal

Create Strategic Plans                                                              

- Establish short- and long-term goals  

- Prioritize goals 

- Develop target timeline for achieving objectives

Renewal/Market Survey  

- Analyze demographics, utilization and current plans designs 

- Prepare detailed request for proposals 

- Conduct comprehensive market survey 

- Act as liaison/advocate through the RFP process 

- Ensure RFP responses are accurate and competitive 

Explore/Evaluate Options                                                                        

- Develop detailed carrier/administration vendor RFPs 

- Act as liaison/advocate through the RFP process 

- Ensure RFP responses are accurate and competitive 

- Evaluate carrier/vendor responses for each line of coverage relative to: 

- Pricing; Rating/underwriting methodology 

- Plan of benefits, Funding mechanisms, Performance and rate guarantees 

- Provider access, Employee disruption, Implementation considerations, Technology 

- Administration; Communication/enrollment capabilities 

- Stability and solvency 

Renewal

Market Survey Analysis and Presentation   

- Secure in-force renewals 

- Evaluate/negotiate renewal and proposals relative to: 

- Your organizational objectives 

- Pricing 

- Rating/underwriting methodology 

- Financial funding alternatives 

- Plan of benefits 

- Cost management 

- Carrier reporting capabilities 

Page 531 of 564

DRAFT



Service Agreement 

Page 12 of 13
240101 SMA

- Provider access 

- Employee disruption 

- Implementation considerations 

- Account management 

- Performance and rate guarantees 

- Funding mechanisms 

- Communication/enrollment capabilities 

- Technology 

- Stability and solvency 

- Assess funding and plan design options 

- Prepare and present renewal/market comparisons 

Present Findings/ Alternatives                

- Prepare comprehensive report including: 

- Current cost summary 

- Alternative cost summary 

- Plan of benefits comparison 

- Employee/provider disruption analysis 

- Carrier/vendor financial rating 

- Present alternatives aligned with employer objectives 

Support Decision-Making  

- Provide additional information and clarify findings as needed 

- Conduct follow-up and negotiate with vendors 

- Facilitate finalist presentations (as applicable) 

- Secure vendor references 

Plan/Vendor Selection

- Prepare and present a comprehensive report that considers all of the aspects listed above and 
details the alternatives most consistent with your objectives 

- Provide summary information designed to help decision making including: 

- Medical - current cost summary 

- Financial alternatives/comparisons - insurance, self-funding, stop loss, carve-in vs. carve-out 
approaches 

- Alternative vendor cost summary 

- Plan design/plan of benefits comparison 

- Network analysis/employee disruption considerations 

- Performance and rate guarantees

Coordinate Program Implementation 

- Manage applicable vendor transitions 

- Develop detailed project plans including: 

- Enrollment 

- Administration 

- Communication 

- Facilitate administrative solutions, enrollment testing 

- Create employee communication strategy and collateral including new technology initiatives, 
preparation/review of all employee materials 

- Conduct enrollment meetings

Page 532 of 564

DRAFT



Service Agreement 

Page 13 of 13
240101 SMA

Employee Communications Review and Design

- Assist establishing communication strategies including use of newer technologies 

- Review employee communications materials such as: 

- Annual enrollment communications 

- New hire materials 

- Plan change announcements 

- Employee newsletter articles 

- Assist in the development of language as warranted 

- Develop a year-round, customized employee communication campaign 

- Assist with implementation of annual personalized benefit statements, upon request 

- Implement and manage benefits landing page

Post-Renewal

Post Implementation Review  

- Review plan documents/contracts/booklets and manage revision process 

- Confirm accurate premium/fee billing 

- Evaluate financial impact of final enrollment 

- Appraise carrier/vendor performance 

Page 533 of 564

DRAFT



                SBAO (9/21/2022) – “Addendum A” To Contract With The SBCC                                                                     Page 1 of 13 
 

  

“ADDENDUM A” 
TO CONTRACT WITH 

THE SCHOOL BOARD OF CLAY COUNTY, FLORIDA 
 

 

Notwithstanding any contractual language to the contrary, the terms and conditions of this “Addendum A” shall govern 
and prevail over any conflicting or inconsistent terms and conditions in the underlying contract to which this “Addendum 
A” is attached and/or otherwise incorporated. All references herein made to the School Board of Clay County, Florida 
(“SBCC”) shall be interpreted to include the School Board of Clay County, Florida, Clay County District Schools 
(“District”), and all Board officers and employees. 
 

1. The Company, Vendor, Agency, or Consultant, of Contract with the School Board of Clay County, hereafter 
collectively and individually referred to as the “CONTRACTOR”. 
 

2. CONTRACTOR represents that it is an independent contractor and that it requires that the SBCC treat it as such. 
CONTRACTOR agrees:  
a. That it has no rights to any benefits extended by the SBCC to its employees [including without limitation, sick 

leave, vacation time, insurance coverage, etc.];  
b. That it will not take a position contrary to their status as an independent contractor, and agrees to accept the 

responsibilities placed on independent contractors by federal and state law accordingly, the SBCC will not make 
the deductions or contributions that an employer may be required to make with respect to its employees, and the 
undersigned will be responsible for all federal and state tax and fund obligations, including without limitation, 
income tax, Social Security, unemployment compensation, etc.];  

c. CONTRACTOR agrees, as an independent contractor and not an employee of the SBCC, it is responsible for 
providing their own Worker’s Compensation Insurance and social security/self-employment contributions.   

  

3. CONTRACTOR acknowledges and accepts responsibility for all risks of injury and loss associated with the 
performance of this Agreement.  In addition to any other statutory or common law obligation to indemnify and defend 
the SBCC, CONTRACTOR shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the SBCC, its officers, and employees from 
any claim, loss, damage, penalty, or liability arising from the negligent acts, omissions, misfeasance, malfeasance, or 
intentionally wrongful conduct of CONTRACTOR, its employees, or agents relating to the performance of duties 
imposed upon CONTRACTOR by this Agreement. Such indemnity shall not be limited by benefits payable by or for 
CONTRACTOR under worker’s compensation, disability, or any other employee benefits or insurance programs or 
policies. Contractor shall timely provide to the SBCC written notice of any claim, complaint, or demand asserted 
against CONTRACTOR related to the performance of this Agreement. CONTRACTOR’s obligations under this 
section shall survive the termination of this Agreement. 
 

4. CONTRACTOR agrees to be bound by, and at its own expense comply with, all federal, state, and local laws, 
ordinances, and regulations applicable to the services. CONTRACTOR shall review and comply with the 
confidentiality requirements of federal and state law and the SBCC policy regarding access to and use of records.  
 

5. Reservation of Sovereign Immunity: No provision or language in the underlying contract shall be construed or 
interpreted to increase the scope or dollar limit of the SBCC’s liability beyond that which is set forth in Section 768.28 
of the Florida Statutes. Nor shall any such language be construed or interpreted to waive the SBCC’s sovereign 
immunity from suit, or to require the SBCC to indemnify CONTRACTOR or any other person, corporation or legal 
entity of any kind or nature whatsoever for injury or loss resulting from any acts or omissions other than those which 
arise from the actionable negligence of the SBCC. The SBCC expressly reserves all other protections and privileges 
related to its sovereign immunity. 
 

6. CONTRACTOR will perform the services in a thorough, efficient, and professional manner, promptly and with due 
diligence and care, and in accordance with the best practices of the profession, utilizing qualified and suitable 
personnel, equipment and materials. CONTRACTOR warrants and represents to the SBCC that it possesses the 
expertise, capability, equipment and personnel to properly perform the services and that it is properly and legally 
licensed to perform the services. CONTRACTOR acknowledges that the SBCC is relying on the warranties and 
representations made by CONTRACTOR.   

Page 534 of 564

DRAFT



                SBAO (9/21/2022) – “Addendum A” To Contract With The SBCC                                                                     Page 2 of 13 
 

 

7. Method of Payment (if applicable): Services and/or Products satisfactorily received shall be compensated in 
accordance with Attachment A and the following terms:  
a. Procurement is performed in accordance with applicable law, State Board of Education Rules, Clay County School 

Board Policy and other applicable rules and regulations which govern. CONTRACTOR shall be paid in accordance 
with the Local Government Prompt Payment Act (218.70, et seq., Florida Statutes) upon submission of detailed 
invoices to the appropriate location listed on the District Purchase Order and/or the School Internal Account 
Purchase Order, and only after delivery and acceptance of the services and/or products provided.   

b. Services and/or Products, as authorized and approved by SBCC, shall be compensated by Hour Rate (cost per 
hour) / Fixed Fee (includes direct and indirect costs) / Flat Rate (cost for scope of work) / etc.  

c. Direct reimbursement for travel expenses, as authorized by and listed in Attachment A, shall be made in accordance 
with the requirements and rates found at F.S. 112.061 and any applicable the SBCC policies.  

d. Incurrence of other direct expenses, if any, must be pre-approved in writing by the SBCC.  
e. Unless otherwise required by law, the SBCC’s payment obligations (if any) arising from the underlying Agreement 

are contingent upon an annual appropriation by the School Board and the availability of funds to pay for the 
contracted services and/or products provided. If such funds are not appropriated for the underlying Agreement and 
results in its termination, such conditions/events shall not constitute a default by the SBCC.   

 

8. The SBCC and CONTRACTOR have mutual rights to terminate this Agreement with or without cause and without 
penalty or further payment, at any time upon thirty (30) days written notice to the other party. However, if it is 
determined by the SBCC that the work is not being performed as agreed herein, CONTRACTOR shall be deemed to 
be in default, and the SBCC reserves the right to cancel this Agreement immediately.  
 

9. Force Majeure: Neither party to this Agreement shall be liable for delays or failures in performance under this 
Agreement (other than obligations relating to payment, confidentiality, and protection of ownership and intellectual 
property rights) resulting from acts or events beyond the reasonable control of such party (a “Force Majeure Event”), 
including acts of war, terrorism, acts of God, earthquake, flood, embargo, riot, sabotage, labor dispute, wide spread 
outbreak of disease or pandemic, governmental act, failure of the internet, power failure, or energy, utility, or 
telecommunications interruptions, provided that the delayed party: (i) gives the other party prompt notice of such 
cause; and (ii) uses its reasonable commercial efforts to promptly correct such failure or delay in performance. In the 
event that a Force Majeure Event lasts for more than 90 days, and the party experiencing the initial delay cannot 
correct its failure or delay in performance during that period of time, despite using its reasonable commercial efforts 
to do so, the other party may terminate the affected portions of this Agreement. 
 

10. This Agreement shall not be modified or amended except in writing, duly agreed to and executed by the parties. 
  

11. CONTRACTOR shall not assign this Agreement in whole or in part, without the express written consent of the SBCC 
Purchasing Department.  
 

12. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Florida and venue 
shall be in Clay County, Florida.  
 

13. No other representations or promises shall be binding on the parties hereto except those representations or promises 
contained herein.  
 

14. In the event that any part, term, or provision of this Agreement is, in a court of competent jurisdiction, found to be 
illegal or unenforceable, the validity of the remaining portions and provisions will not be affected, and the rights and 
obligations of the parties shall be construed and enforced as if this Agreement did not contain the particular part, term, 
or provision held to be so invalid.  
 

15. Should any litigation be commenced in connection with this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to 
reasonable attorney fees and court costs.  
 

16. The parties hereto represent that they have reviewed this Agreement and have sought legal advice concerning the legal 
significance and ramifications of this Agreement.  
 

17. CONTRACTOR shall retain records associated with the services and/or products provided herein for a period of three 
years following final payment. CONTRACTOR shall, with reasonable notice, provide the SBCC access to these 
records during the above retention period.  
  

Page 535 of 564

DRAFT



                SBAO (9/21/2022) – “Addendum A” To Contract With The SBCC                                                                     Page 3 of 13 
 

18. Jessica Lunsford Act: SBCC is required to conduct background screening of CONTRACTOR (including its 
employees, agents, and sub-contractors) (go to Clay County District Schools website for fingerprinting procedures).  
CONTRACTOR represents and warrants to the SBCC that CONTRACTOR is familiar with Sections 1012.32, 
1012.321, 1012.465, 1012.467, and 1012.468 of the Florida Statutes regarding background investigations. 
CONTRACTOR covenants to comply with all requirements of the above-cited statutes at CONTRACTOR’s sole 
expense and shall provide the SBCC proof of such compliance upon request.  
 

Certification: By executing this Agreement, CONTRACTOR swears and affirms under penalty of perjury that all of 
its employees, agents, and subcontractors will comply with these procedures, the requirements of the Jessica Lunsford 
Act, SBCC’s finger printing procedures, and the laws of the State of Florida. Failure to comply with these procedures, 
the Act, SBCC’s finger printing procedures, and the law of the State of Florida shall constitute a material breach of 
the Agreement, and SBCC may avail itself of all remedies pursuant to law. CONTRACTOR agrees to indemnify and 
hold harmless SBCC, its officers, employees, and agents, from and against any and all claims or causes of action, 
including without limitation those for personal injury, death, property damages, and attorney fees, arising out of or 
relating to CONTRACTOR's failure to comply with any of the above. 
 

19. E-Verify: CONTRACTOR named herein, and its subcontractors, are required to register with and use the U.S. 
Department of Homeland Security’s (DHS) E-Verify system to verify the work authorization status of all newly hired 
employees. By executing this Agreement, the CONTRACTOR certifies that it, and any sub-contractors with which it 
contracts, are registered with, and use, the E-Verify system for all newly hired employees, and acknowledges that it 
must obtain an affidavit from its subcontractors in accordance with Section 448.095(2)(b) Fla. Stat. that the 
subcontractor does not employ, contract with or subcontract with any unauthorized alien. The CONTRACTOR must 
maintain a copy of such affidavit for the duration of the Agreement. This section serves as notice to the 
CONTRACTOR that, pursuant to the terms of Section 448.095(2)(c) 1 and 2, Florida Statutes, the SBCC shall 
terminate this Agreement if it has a good faith belief that the CONTRACTOR has knowingly violated Section 
448.09(1), F.S.. If the SBCC has a good faith belief that the subcontractor, without the knowledge of the 
CONTRACTOR, has knowingly violated Section 448.09(1) or 448.095(2), F.S., the SBCC shall notify the 
CONTRACTOR and order the CONTRACTOR to immediately terminate the contract with the subcontractor. If the 
SBCC terminates an Agreement with a CONTRACTOR pursuant to sec. 448.095(2)(c), F.S., the CONTRACTOR 
will not be awarded a public contract for at least one year after the date of such termination. 
   

20. The CONTRACTOR certifies that CONTRACTOR is in compliance with the requirements of law regarding 
equal employment opportunity for all persons without regard to age, race, color, religion, sex, national origin, or 
disability and is not on the Discriminatory Vendor List pursuant to Florida Statute 287.134. 
 

21. CONTRACTOR shall, at CONTRACTOR’s sole expense, procure and maintain during the term of this Agreement, 
at least the following minimum insurance coverage, which shall not limit the liability of CONTRACTOR:   
  

General Liability Policy:   Auto Liability Policy:    Worker’s Compensation Policy: 
$1,000,000.00 per occurrence  $1,000,000.00 combined single limit  $100,000 
$2,000,000.00 aggregate  $5,000,000.00 (if charter or common carrier) *Exempt, need signed WCAF 
 

*If the CONTRACTOR is exempt from Worker’s Compensation insurance obligations, the CONTRACTOR must sign 
the Worker’s Compensation Acknowledgment Form (WCAF) attached hereto as Exhibit # 1 . 

 

  All policies of insurance shall be rated “A-” or better by the most recently published A.M. Best Rating Guide and 
shall be subject to the SBCC approval as to form and issuing company. The SBCC shall be named as certificate holder 
and as an additional insured in the comprehensive general (including property damage) liability policy within five (5) 
days after execution of this Agreement. CONTRACTOR shall furnish the SBCC’s Representative copies of insurance 
certificates evidencing that it maintains at least the insurance coverage required hereunder, and which contain the 
following or equivalent clause:  “Before any reduction, cancellation, modification or expiration of the insurance 
policy, thirty (30) days prior written notice thereof shall be given to the SBCC.” CONTRACTOR is NOT authorized 
to proceed with the services until all the insurance certificates have been received and accepted.    

  Receipt of certificates or other documentation of insurance or policies or copies of policies by the SBCC, or by any 
of its representatives, which indicate less coverage than required does not constitute a waiver of CONTRACTOR‘s 
obligation to fulfill the insurance requirements herein.  

 

Page 536 of 564

DRAFT



                SBAO (9/21/2022) – “Addendum A” To Contract With The SBCC                                                                     Page 4 of 13 
 

22. CONTRACTOR shall not solicit or accept brokerage or any other fees or remuneration from any provider of the 
SBCC insurance program.  
 

23. CONTRACTOR recognizes and acknowledges that by virtue of entering into this Agreement and providing services 
hereunder, CONTRACTOR, its agents, employees, officers, and subcontractors may have access to certain 
confidential information and processes, including confidential student information, personal health information, 
financial records, and access to the SBCC networks (hereinafter “Confidential Information”). CONTRACTOR agrees 
that neither it nor any CONTRACTOR agent, employee officer, or subcontractor will at any time, either during or 
subsequent to the term of this Agreement, disclose to any third party, except where permitted or required by law or 
where such disclosure is expressly approved by the SBCC in writing, any Confidential Information. In addition, 
following expiration of said Agreement, CONTRACTOR, its agents, employees, officers, and subcontractors shall 
either destroy or return to the SBCC all Confidential Information. With 72-hours written notification, the SBCC 
reserves the right to determine whether or not Confidential Information has been destroyed and such confirmation 
may include inspecting the CONTRACTOR’s facilities and equipment. CONTRACTOR understands and agrees that 
it is subject to all federal and state laws and SBCC rules relating to the confidentiality of student information. 
Contractor further agrees to comply with the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (“FERPA”) 34 C.F.R. § 99. 
Contractor shall regard all student information as confidential and will not disclose personally-identifiable student 
records or information to any third party without appropriate legal authorization. Access to SBCC data or networks 
shall require a SBCC Data-Sharing and Usage Agreement and shall only be authorized by the SBCC IT Department.  
 

24. CONTRACTOR is required to comply with the Florida Public Records Law, Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, in the 
performance of CONTRACTOR’s duties under this Agreement, and will specifically: 
a. Keep, maintain, and produce upon request and within a reasonable period of time all data created or collected in 

the performance of its duties under this Agreement (“Agreement Data”) which come within the definition of a 
“public record” under Chapter 119.  

b. Provide to the SBCC, upon its request and free of charge, a copy of each record which CONTRACTOR seeks to 
produce in response to a public records request. 

c. Ensure that all Agreement Data considered exempt under Chapter 119 are not disclosed except as authorized by 
law. 

d. Upon completion of its obligations under the Agreement, transfer to the SBCC, at no cost, all Agreement Data 
in CONTRACTOR’s possession or otherwise keep and maintain such data/records as required by law. All 
records transmitted to the SBCC must be provided in a format that is compatible the SBCC’s information 
technology systems. 

e. The SBCC is authorized to collect, use or release social security numbers (SSN) of CONTRACTOR and their 
employees for the following purposes, which are noted as either required or authorized by law to be collected.  The 
collection of social security numbers is either specifically authorized by law or imperative for the performance of 
the District’s duties and responsibilities as prescribed by law (Sections 119.071(5)(a)2 and 3, Florida Statutes):  
a) Criminal history and criminal background checks/Identifiers for processing fingerprints by Department of Law 

Enforcement, if SSN is available [Required by Fla. Admin. Code 11 C-6.003 and Fla. Stat. § 119.071(5)(a)6] 
b) Vendors/Consultants that District reasonably believes would receive a 1099 form if a tax identification number 

is not provided including for IRS form W-9 [Required by 26 C.F.R. § 31.3406-0, 26 C.F.R. § 301.61091, and 
Fla. Stat. § 119.071(5)(a)2 and 6] 

 

CONTRACTOR’s failure to comply with the provisions set forth in this section shall constitute a default and 
material breach of this Agreement, which may result in termination by the SBCC without penalty.  
   

IF CONTRACTOR HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, 
FLORIDA STATUTES, OR CONTRACTOR’S DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS 
RELATING TO THIS CONTRACT, CONTRACTOR SHALL CONTACT THE SBCC’S 
CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS AT 900 WALNUT STREET, GREEN COVE SPRINGS, 
FLORIDA 32043, OR AT 904-336-6500, OR AT: PRR@myoneclay.net 
 

25. Government Funding (if Applicable): Funding for this Agreement may be provided in whole or in part by one or 
more Government funding agencies (Federal, State, Local). As a result, CONTRACTOR shall comply with 
applicable Laws, Regulations, Executive Orders, and Governmental Agency Rules and Policies included but not 

Page 537 of 564

DRAFT



                SBAO (9/21/2022) – “Addendum A” To Contract With The SBCC                                                                     Page 5 of 13 
 

limited to Titles:  2 – Grants and Agreements (2 C.F.R. §200), Title 7 – Agriculture (NSLP), Title 34 – Education 
(EDGAR, FERPA), Title 44 – Emergency Management and Assistance (FEMA); U.S. Code Titles: 20,31,40,41.  

To the extent that the SBCC is using Government Funds as a source of payment for this Agreement, 
CONTRACTOR shall execute and deliver to the SBCC the following forms, attached hereto as Exhibit # 2 : (a) 
EDGAR Certification; (b) Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary 
Exclusion; (c) Drug-Free Workplace Certification; (d) Non-Collusion Affidavit; and (e) Disclosure of Potential 
Conflict of Interest.  

  
SBCC’S Representative with CONTRACTOR is: _______________________________________________________    

School/Department Name: _________________________________________________________________________    

Mailing Address: _________________________________________________________________________________    

Phone #: ________________________ Email Address: ___________________________________________________  

 
 

Accepted and Agreed to: 
  

SCHOOL BOARD OF CLAY COUNTY       CONTRACTOR  

By: ______________________________        By: ______________________________  

Print Name: _________________________       Print Name: ________________________ 

Title: _____________________________       Title: ____________________________ 

Date: _____________________________        Date: ____________________________   

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 538 of 564

DRAFT



                SBAO (9/21/2022) – “Addendum A” To Contract With The SBCC                                                                     Page 6 of 13 
 

Exhibit # 1  
 

WORKERS COMPENSATION ACKNOWLEDGEMENT FORM (WCAF) 
 
The undersigned Contractor/Vendor (“Contractor”) represents and acknowledges that it is an independent contractor and is 
not provided coverage under any self-insured workers compensation program of the School Board of Clay County, Florida 
(the “Board” or “District”), any primary workers compensation insurance policy purchased by or on behalf of the District, 
any excess workers compensation insurance purchased by or on behalf of the District, any risk sharing arrangement, risk 
sharing pool, or any state reimbursement fund for workers compensation payments made by the District, based on the 
following understandings and representations by the Contractor: 
 

1. Contractor is not an “Employee” as defined under Chapter 440 of the Florida Statutes. The Parties agree that Chapter 
440 describes remedies for employers and employees in place of Florida common law and limits the rights of 
independent contractors like the undersigned. 

 

2. Contractor maintains a separate business with its own work equipment, material, and accommodations. 
 

3. Contractor has a different federal employer identification number than the District or is a sole proprietor who is not 
required to obtain a federal employer identification number under state or federal regulations. 

 

4. Contractor receives compensation for services rendered or work performed, and such compensation is paid to a 
business rather than to an individual. 

 

5. Contractor maintains at least one bank account in the name of the Contractor or associated persons or entities for 
the purposes of paying business expenses related to the services rendered or work performed for the District. 

 

6. Contractor performs work or is able to perform work for entities other than the District at the Contractor’s election 
without the necessity of completing an employment application or process. 

 

7. Contractor either provides its own workers compensation coverage or has elected to be exempt from workers 
compensation coverage. 

 

8. Contractor has provided proof of other insurance, including liability insurance, to the District in the amounts 
required by the District. 

 

9. Contactor had an opportunity to review and consult with legal counsel regarding this document. 
 

10. Contactor understands that the District is relying upon the truthfulness and accuracy of representations in this 
acknowledgement as a material basis for the District entering into the underlying agreement(s) with Contractor. 

 

Name of Contractor/Vendor: _______________________________________ 
 

Signature of Authorized Representative: __________________________________ 
 

Printed Name of Authorized Representative: _______________________________ 
 

Title of Authorized Representative: __________________________________ 
 

Date: ______________________________ 

 

 

Page 539 of 564

DRAFT



                SBAO (9/21/2022) – “Addendum A” To Contract With The SBCC                                                                     Page 7 of 13 
 

Exhibit # 2 (a) 
 

EDGAR CERTIFICATIONS 
All purchases involving the expenditure of federal funds must be compliant with the Education Department General 
Administrative Regulations (“EDGAR”).  The following certifications and provisions are required and apply when the School 
Board of Clay County, Florida (“SBCC” “School Board”) expends federal funds for any purchase resulting from this 
procurement process.  Pursuant to 2 C.F.R. § 200.326, all contracts, including small purchases, awarded by the District 
shall contain the procurement provisions of Appendix II to Part 200, as applicable. 
 

REQUIRED CONTRACT PROVISIONS FOR NON-FEDERAL ENTITY CONTRACTS UNDER FEDERAL AWARDS 
APPENDIX II to C.F.R. PART 200 

 
(A) Contracts for more than the simplified acquisition threshold currently set at $150,000, which is the inflation 
adjusted amount determined by the Civilian Agency Acquisition Council and the Defense Acquisition Regulations 
Council (Councils) as authorized by 41 U.S.C. 1908, must address administrative, contractual, or legal remedies in 
instances where contractors violate or breach contract terms, and provide for such sanctions and penalties as 
appropriate. 
 

Pursuant to Federal Rule (A) above, when School Board expends federal funds, School Board reserves all rights and 
privileges under the applicable laws and regulations with respect to this procurement in the event of breach of contract by 
either party.   
 

(B) All contracts in excess of $10,000 must address termination for cause and for convenience by the non-Federal 
entity including the manner by which it will be effected and the basis for settlement. 
 

Pursuant to Federal Rule (B) above, for all contracts involving Federal funds in excess of $10,000, School Board reserves 
the right to terminate the contract (i) for convenience, and/or (ii) for cause by issuing a certified notice to the vendor. 
 

(C) Equal Employment Opportunity. Except as otherwise provided under 41 CFR Part 60, all contracts that meet 
the definition of “federally assisted construction contract” in 41 CFR Part 60-1.3 must include the equal opportunity 
clause provided under 41 CFR 60-1.4(b), in accordance with Executive Order 11246, “Equal Employment 
Opportunity” (30 FR 12319, 12935, 3 CFR Part, 1964-1965 Comp., p. 339), as amended by Executive Order 11375, 
“Amending Executive Order 11246 Relating to Equal Employment Opportunity,” and implementing regulations at 
41 CFR part 60, “Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs, Equal Employment Opportunity, Department of 
Labor.”  
 

Pursuant to Federal Rule (C) above, when School Board expends federal funds on any federally assisted construction 
contract, the equal opportunity clause is incorporated by reference herein.  
 

(D) Davis-Bacon Act, as amended (40 U.S.C. 3141-3148). When required by Federal program legislation, all prime 
construction contracts in excess of $2,000 awarded by non-Federal entities must include a provision for 
compliance with the Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. 3141-3144, and 3146-3148) as supplemented by Department of 
Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 5, “Labor Standards Provisions Applicable to Contracts Covering Federally 
Financed and Assisted Construction”). In accordance with the statute, contractors must be required to pay wages 
to laborers and mechanics at a rate not less than the prevailing wages specified in a wage determination made by 
the Secretary of Labor. In addition, contractors must be required to pay wages not less than once a week. The non-
Federal entity must place a copy of the current prevailing wage determination issued by the Department of Labor 
in each solicitation. The decision to award a contract or subcontract must be conditioned upon the acceptance of 
the wage determination. The non-Federal entity must report all suspected or reported violations to the Federal 
awarding agency. The contracts must also include a provision for compliance with the Copeland “Anti-Kickback” 
Act (40 U.S.C. 3145), as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 3, “Contractors and 
Subcontractors on Public Building or Public Work Financed in Whole or in Part by Loans or Grants from the United 
States”). The Act provides that each contractor or subrecipient must be prohibited from inducing, by any means, 
any person employed in the construction, completion, or repair of public work, to give up any part of the 
compensation to which he or she is otherwise entitled. The non-Federal entity must report all suspected or reported 
violations to the Federal awarding agency. 
 

Pursuant to Federal Rule (D) above, when School Board expends federal funds during the term of an award for all contracts 
and subgrants for construction or repair, Vendor will be in compliance with all applicable Davis-Bacon Act provisions. 
 

(E) Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 3701-3708). Where applicable, all contracts awarded 
by the non-Federal entity in excess of $100,000 that involve the employment of mechanics or laborers must include 
a provision for compliance with 40 U.S.C. 3702 and 3704, as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29  
 

Page 540 of 564

DRAFT



                SBAO (9/21/2022) – “Addendum A” To Contract With The SBCC                                                                     Page 8 of 13 
 

EDGAR CERTIFICATIONS (continued) 
 
CFR Part 5). Under 40 U.S.C. 3702 of the Act, each contractor must be required to compute the wages of every 
mechanic and laborer on the basis of a standard work week of 40 hours. Work in excess of the standard work week 
is permissible provided that the worker is compensated at a rate of not less than one and a half times the basic 
rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of 40 hours in the work week.  The requirements of 40 U.S.C. 3704 are 
applicable to construction work and provide that no laborer or mechanic must be required to work in surroundings 
or under working conditions which are unsanitary, hazardous or dangerous. These requirements do not apply to 
the purchases of supplies or materials or articles ordinarily available on the open market, or contracts for 
transportation or transmission of intelligence. 
 

Pursuant to Federal Rule (E) above, when federal funds are expended by School Board, Vendor certifies that Vendor will 
be in compliance with all applicable provisions of the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act during the term of an 
award resulting from this procurement process. 
 

(F) Rights to Inventions Made Under a Contract or Agreement. If the Federal award meets the definition of “funding 
agreement” under 37 CFR §401.2 (a) and the recipient or subrecipient wishes to enter into a contract with a small 
business firm or nonprofit organization regarding the substitution of parties, assignment or performance of 
experimental, developmental, or research work under that “funding agreement,” the recipient or subrecipient must 
comply with the requirements of 37 CFR Part 401, “Rights to Inventions Made by Nonprofit Organizations and Small 
Business Firms Under Government Grants, Contracts and Cooperative Agreements,” and any implementing 
regulations issued by the awarding agency. 
 

Pursuant to Federal Rule (F) above, when federal funds are expended by School Board, Vendor certifies that Vendor will 
be in compliance with all applicable provisions of Federal Rule (F) during the term of an award resulting from this 
procurement process. 
 

(G) Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 7401-7671q.) and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act (33 U.S.C. 1251-1387), as 
amended Contracts and subgrants of amounts in excess of $150,000 must contain a provision that requires the 
non-Federal award to agree to comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations issued pursuant to the 
Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 7401 7671q) and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act as amended (33 U.S.C. 1251-1387). 
Violations must be reported to the Federal awarding agency and the Regional Office of the Environmental 
Protection Agency (EPA). 
 

Pursuant to Federal Rule (G) above, when federal funds are expended by School Board, Vendor certifies that Vendor will 
be in compliance with all applicable provisions of Federal Rule (G) during the term of an award resulting from this 
procurement process.   
 

(H) Energy Policy and Conservation Act (2 CFR §910.120, 10 CFR §600.236).  Vendor agrees to comply with the 
mandatory standards and policies relating to energy efficiency contained in the state energy conservation plan 
issued in compliance with the Energy Policy and Conservation Act. 
 

Pursuant to Federal Rule (H) above, when federal funds are expended by School Board, Vendor certifies that Vendor will 
be in compliance with all applicable provisions of Federal Rule (H) during the term of an award resulting from this 
procurement process.   
 

(I) Debarment and Suspension (Executive Orders 12549 and 12689)—A contract award (see 2 CFR 180.220) must 
not be made to parties listed on the government wide exclusions in the System for Award Management (SAM), in 
accordance with the OMB guidelines at 2 CFR 180 that implement Executive Orders 12549 (3 CFR part 1986 Comp., 
p. 189) and 12689 (3 CFR part 1989 Comp., p. 235), “Debarment and Suspension.” SAM Exclusions contains the 
names of parties debarred, suspended, or otherwise excluded by agencies, as well as parties declared ineligible 
under statutory or regulatory authority other than Executive Order 12549. 
 

Pursuant to Federal Rule (I) above, when federal funds are expended by School Board, Vendor certifies that during the 
term of an award resulting from this procurement process, that neither it nor its principals are presently debarred, suspended, 
proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, ort voluntarily excluded from participation by any federal department or agency. 
 

 (J) Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment (31 U.S.C. 1352)—Contractors that apply or bid for an award exceeding 
$100,000 must file the required certification. Each tier certifies to the tier above that it will not and has not used 
Federal appropriated funds to pay any person or organization for influencing or attempting to influence an officer  
or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member 
of Congress in connection with obtaining any Federal contract, grant or any other award covered by 31 U.S.C. 1352.  
Each tier must also disclose any lobbying with non-Federal funds that takes place in connection with obtaining 
any Federal award. Such disclosures are forwarded from tier to tier up to the non-Federal award. 
 

Pursuant to Federal Rule (J) above, Vendor certifies that it is in compliance with all applicable provisions of the Byrd Anti-
Lobbying Amendment (31 U.S.C. 1352).  The Vendor further certifies that:  (1) No Federal appropriated funds have been  

Page 541 of 564

DRAFT



                SBAO (9/21/2022) – “Addendum A” To Contract With The SBCC                                                                     Page 9 of 13 
 

EDGAR CERTIFICATIONS (continued) 
 
paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or 
employee of an agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of 
Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any 
Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or 
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.  (2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated 
funds have been paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, Member 
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal 
contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, “Disclosure 
Form to Report Lobbying,” in accordance with its instructions.  (3)  The undersigned shall require that the language of this 
certification be included in the award documents for all covered subawards in Federal funds at all appropriate tiers and that 
all subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly. 
 
 

RECORDS ACCESS AND RETENTION 
 
Records Access (34 CFR 80.36 (i)(10): All vendors, contracts and subcontractors shall give access to the SBCC, the 
appropriate Federal agency, the Comptroller General of the United States, or any of their duly authorized representative to 
any books, documents, papers, and records of the vendor which are directly pertinent to this specific bid/contract for the 
purpose of making audit, examination, excerpts and transcriptions. 
 
Records Retention (2 C.F.R. § 200.333):  Financial records, supporting documents, statistical records and all other non-
Federal entity records pertinent to a Federal award must be retained for a period of three (3) years from the date of 
submission of the final expenditure report or, for Federal awards that are renewed quarterly or annually, from the date of 
the submission of the quarterly or annual financial report, respectively, as reported to the Federal awarding agency or 
passthrough entity in the case of a subrecipient. 
 
 

RECOVERED MATERIALS 
 
Recovered Materials (2 CFR §200.322):  Contractor must comply with Section 6002 of the Solid Waste Disposal Act, as 
amended by the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act. The requirements of Section 6002 include procuring only items 
designated in guidelines of the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) at 40 CFR part 247 that contain the highest 
percentage of recovered materials practicable, consistent with maintaining a satisfactory level of competition, where the 
purchase price of the item exceeds $10,000 or the value of the quantity acquired during the preceding fiscal year exceeded 
$10,000; procuring solid waste management services in a manner that maximizes energy and resource recovery; and 
establishing an affirmative procurement program for procurement of recovered materials identified in the EPA guidelines.  
 
 
 
Vendor agrees to comply with all federal, state, and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances, as applicable.  It 
is further acknowledged that vendor certifies compliance with all provisions, laws, acts, regulations, etc. as 
specifically noted above. 
 
 
Vendor’s Name:     _________________________________________________________ 
 
Signature of Authorized Representative:  __________________________________________________________ 
 
Print Name of Authorized Representative: __________________________________________________________ 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 542 of 564

DRAFT



                SBAO (9/21/2022) – “Addendum A” To Contract With The SBCC                                                                     Page 10 of 13 
 

Exhibit # 2 (b) 
 

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, INELIGIBILITY AND      
VOLUNTARY EXCLUSION -  LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS 

 

This certification is required by the Department of Education regulations implementing Executive Order 12549, Debarment and 
Suspension, 34 CFR Part 85, for all lower tier transactions meeting the threshold and tier requirements stated at Section 85.110. 

 

1. By signing and submitting this proposal, the prospective lower tier participant is providing the certification set out below. 
 

2. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was entered into.  If it is later 
determined that the prospective lower tier participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal 
Government, the department or agency with which this transaction originated may pursue available remedies, including suspension and/or debarment. 
 

3. The   prospective   lower   tier   participant   shall   provide immediate written notice to the person to whom this proposal is submitted if at any time the 
prospective lower tier participant learns that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed 
circumstances. 
 

4. The terms “covered transaction,” ”debarred,” “suspended,” “ineligible,” “lower tier covered transaction,” “participant,” “person,” “primary covered 
transaction,” “principal,” “proposal,” and “voluntarily excluded,” as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and Coverage sections 
of rules implementing Executive Order 12549.   You may contact the person to which this proposal is submitted for assistance in obtaining a copy of 
those regulations. 
 

5. The prospective lower tier participant agrees by submitting this proposal that, should the proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not 
knowingly enter into any lower tier covered transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from 
participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by the department or agency with which this transaction originated. 
 

6. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the clause titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, 
Suspension, Ineligibility, and Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” without modification, in all lower tier covered transactions and in 
all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions. 
 

7. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, 
suspended, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous.   A participant may decide 
the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals.  Each participant may, but is not required to, check the Non-Procurement 
List. 
 

8. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records in order to render in good faith the certification 
required by this clause. The knowledge and information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent person 
in the ordinary course of business dealings. 
 

9. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 5 of these instructions, if a participant in a covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier 
covered transaction with a person who is suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition to other 
remedies available to the Federal Government, the department or agency with which this transaction originated may pursue available remedies, including 
suspension and/or debarment. 
 

Instructions for Certification: 
1. The prospective lower tier participant certifies, by submission of this proposal that neither it nor its principals are: 
a) presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any 

Federal department or agency; 
b) have not within a three-year period preceding this application been convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of 

fraud or a criminal offense in performing a public (federal, state or local) transaction or contract under a public transaction; or for violation of federal 
or state antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements or 
receiving stolen property; 

c) are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a government entity (federal, state or local) with commission of the offenses 
enumerated in this certification; or 

d) have not within a three-year period preceding this application had one or more public transaction (federal, state or local) terminated for cause or 
default. 

 

2. Where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, such prospective participant shall attach 
an explanation to this proposal. 
 
Name of Vendor:  
 
    
Printed Name  Title of Authorized Representative 
 
Signature:   Date:   
 

Page 543 of 564

DRAFT



                SBAO (9/21/2022) – “Addendum A” To Contract With The SBCC                                                                     Page 11 of 13 
 

Exhibit # 2 (c) 
 

DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE CERTIFICATION 
 
Preference shall be given to vendors/contractors certifying their compliance with a drug-free workplace in 
accordance with Section 287.087, Florida Stat. as follows: 

 
Preference to businesses with drug-free workplace programs - Whenever two or more bids, proposals, or 
replies that are equal with respect to price, quality, and service, are received by the State or by any political 
subdivision for the procurement of commodities or contractual services, a bid, proposal, or reply received from 
a business that certifies that it has implemented a drug-free workplace program shall be given preference in the 
award process. Established procedures for processing tied bids, proposal, or replies shall be followed if none of 
the tied vendor has a drug-free workplace program. In order to have a drug-free workplace program, a business 
shall: 

 
1. Publish a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensing, possession, 
or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the workplace and specifying the actions what shall be taken 
against employee for violations of such prohibition. 
 
2. Inform employees about the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace, the business’s policy of maintaining a 
drug-free workplace, any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs, and the 
penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations. 
 
3. Give each employee engaged in providing the commodities or contractual services that are under bid a copy 
of the statement specified in subsection (1). 
 
4. In the statement specified in subsection (1), notify the employees that, as a condition of working on the 
commodities or contractual services that are under bid, the employee shall abide by the terms of the statement 
and shall notify the employer of any conviction of, or plea of guilty or nolo contendero to, any violation of Chapter 
893 or of any controlled substance law of the United States or any state, for a violation occurring in the workplace 
no later than five (5) days after such conviction. 
 
5. Impose a sanction on, or require the satisfactory participation in a drug abuse assistance or rehabilitation 
program if such is available in the employee’s community, by any employee who is so convicted. 
 
6. Make a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through implementation of this section. 
 
As the person authorized to sign the statement, I certify that this firm complies fully with the above requirements. 
 
CONTRACTOR NAME:_____________________________________________________________ 
 
AUTHORIZED CONTRACTOR REPRESENTATIVE SIGNATURE: 
 
 
 
_____________________________________  _____________________________________ 
(Printed Name)      (Signature) 
 
 
_____________________________________  _____________________________________ 
(Title)        (Date) 

 
 
 
 

Page 544 of 564

DRAFT



                SBAO (9/21/2022) – “Addendum A” To Contract With The SBCC                                                                     Page 12 of 13 
 

Exhibit # 2 (d) 
 

NON-COLLUSION AFFIDAVIT 
 
 

State of FLORIDA) 
County of CLAY) 
 
My name is (INSERT NAME ________________________). I hereby attest that I am authorized to 
execute this affidavit on behalf of my firm, its owners, directors, and officers. I have personal knowledge 
of the price(s), guarantees and the total financial commitment represented in the firm’s offer and/or 
contract.  
 
(1) The firm’s prices and amounts offered have been arrived at independently and without consultation, 
communication or agreement with any other contractor or respondent. 
 
(2) Neither the final nor approximate prices or amounts offered have been disclosed to any other firm 
or person who is a respondent or potential respondent, nor were they disclosed prior to opening of 
offers. 
 
(3) The offer from my firm is made in good faith and no attempt has been made to induce any firm or 
person to refrain from submitting an offer, or to submit an offer higher than our offer, or to submit any 
intentionally high or noncompetitive offer or other form of complementary offer. 
 
(4) (INSERT NAME OF COMPANY _______________________________) its affiliates, subsidiaries, 
officers, directors, employees are not currently under investigation by any governmental agency and 
have not in the last three years been convicted or found liable for any act prohibited by State or Federal 
law in any jurisdiction, involving conspiracy or collusion with respect to bidding, proposing or offering 
on any public contract, except as follows: 
 
I attest that (INSERT NAME OF COMPANY _______________________________) understands and 
acknowledges that the above representations are material and important, and will be relied on by The 
School Board of Clay County, Florida, in awarding the contract for which this offer is submitted. I 
understand and my firm understands that any misstatement of material representations herein shall be 
treated as fraudulent or otherwise intentional concealment of the true facts relating to submission of 
offers for this contract. 
 
CONTRACTOR NAME: ________________________________________________ 
 
AUTHORIZED CONTACTOR REPRESENTATIVE SIGNATURE:  
 
 
______________________________  ________________________________ 
(Printed Name)     (Signature) 

 
______________________________  ________________________________ 
(Title)       (Date) 
 
 
 

Page 545 of 564

DRAFT



                SBAO (9/21/2022) – “Addendum A” To Contract With The SBCC                                                                     Page 13 of 13 
 

Exhibit # 2 (e) 
 

DISCLOSURE OF POTENTIAL CONFLICT OF INTEREST AND  
CONFLICTING EMPLOYMENT OR CONTRACTUAL RELATIONSHIP 

 
 
Section 112.313 (3) and (7), Florida Statutes, sets forth restrictions on the ability of SBCC employees 
acting in a private capacity to rent, lease, or sell any realty, goods or services to SBCC. It also places 
restrictions on SBCC employees concerning outside employment or contractual relationships with any 
business entity which is doing business with SBCC.  
 
Contractor must disclose the names of any employees who are employed by Contractor who are also 
an employees of SBCC. Persons identified below may have obligations and restrictions applicable to 
them under Chapter 112, Florida Statutes. 
 
 
Name of Contractor’s Employee SBCC Title or Position of  

Contractor’s Employee 
SBCC Department/School of  

Contractor’s Employee 
   

_________________________ ___________________________ ________________________________ 
 

_________________________ ___________________________ ________________________________ 
   

_________________________ ___________________________ ________________________________ 
   

 
 
 
Check one of the following and sign: 
 

 I hereby affirm that there are no known persons employed by Contractor who are also an employee 
of SBCC.   
 

 I hereby affirm that all known persons who are employed by Contractor who are also an employee 
of SBCC have been identified above.   
 
 
 
    
 Signature Company Name 
 

 

   

 

 
 
 
   

Page 546 of 564

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

May 2, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C21 - BID Award - PLACEHOLDER

Description
Award BID as required per FS 287, DOE 6A-1.012 and School Board Policy
a. Custodial Services For Selected Administrative Buildings County Wide #24-F-246: Contract period is for a two (2) year
period from July 1, 2024 through June 30, 2026 with the option to renew for three (3) additional one (1) year contract periods
upon mutual agreement, in writing. Bid established for the purchase of labor and supervision to efficiently and effectively
perform custodial service for School Board Facilities.  The vendor awarded is the lowest most responsive and responsible
qualified bidder meeting specifications.   
b. Elementary Schools Orff Instrument Sets Bid #24-SCH-97: Contract period is for purchases made between May 3, 2024
through June 30, 2024 with no renewals. Bid established for the purchase of Orff Instrument Sets at all Elementary Schools.  The
vendor awarded is the lowest, most responsive and responsible qualified bidder meeting specifications for Sections 1 - 5. No
award for Section 6, as there were no vendors meeting specifications.     
c. Aluminum Ramps and Stairs – County Wide Bid #24-F-247: Contract period is for a three (3) year period from June 1, 2024
through May 31, 2027 with the option to renew for an additional three (3) year contract period, upon mutual agreement, in
writing. Bid established for the purchase and installation/removal of aluminum landings/ramps/stair systems.  One bid was
received and evaluated by the Purchasing Department to be a responsive & responsible Bid. The Operation Department
determined the bidder was qualified to do the work as specified. The vendor awarded was the sole responsive and responsible
bidder meeting specifications.

Gap Analysis
The District requires contractors to provide services to ensure our ??facilities and equipment are maintained and functional. The
District requires vendors to provide products to ensure our students and staff receive the services, and or products to meet their
needs.

Previous Outcomes
Prior Board approved Bids will expire but it was used successfully during the past terms to provide quality services and products
to the district. No prior bids have been used to procure Orff Instruments.

Expected Outcomes
Upon approval by the Board, we expect the vendor to provide quality services and products at the terms and conditions listed in
the Bid.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 5; Strategy 5.4; Enhance fiscal practices that enable the district to maximize effectiveness and efficiency.

Recommendation
Award BID as follows:
a. Custodial Services For Selected Administrative Buildings County Wide #24-F-246:

Southern Cleaning Service Inc 13052 US Hwy 11, Springville, AL 35146-
b. Elementary Schools ORFF Instruments Sets #24-SCH-97:

PLACEHOLDER-
c. Aluminum Ramps and Stairs – County Wide #24-F-247:

PLACEHOLDER-

Contact
Dr. Susan Legutko, Assistant Superintendent for Business Affairs, Phone: (904)336-6721, Email: susan.legutko@myoneclay.net

Page 547 of 564

DRAFT



Financial Impact
a. Custodial Services For Selected Administrative Buildings County Wide #24-F-246: The total estimated expenditure for the
two (2) year contract is $262,000. Estimated annual spend of $131,000 for 2024-25, and $131,000 for 2025-26 from General
Revenue.

b. Elementary Schools Orff Instrument Sets Bid #24-SCH-97: The total estimated expenditure for purchase is $500,000.00 from
Grant Revenue.

c. Aluminum Ramps and Stairs – County Wide Bid #24-F-247: The total estimated expenditure for the three (3) year contract is
$160,000. Estimated annual spend of $60,000 for 2024-25, $50,000 for 2025-26, and $50,000 for 2026-27 from General
Revenue.

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 548 of 564

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

May 2, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C22 - RFP to be Awarded - PLACEHOLDER

Description
Award RFP as required per FS 287, DOE 6A-1.012 and School Board Policy
a. Temporary Substitute and Other Staffing Services #23-BA-130: Contract period is for a five (5) year period from July 1, 2024
through June 30, 2029 with the option to renew for five (5) additional year contract period upon mutual agreement, in writing.   

Gap Analysis
The District requires vendors to provide services to ensure our students and staff needs are met.

Previous Outcomes
Prior Board approved contract will expire but it was used successfully during the past terms to provide quality services to the
district.

Expected Outcomes
Upon approval by the Board, we expect the vendor to provide quality services at the terms and conditions listed in the
Contract/RFP.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 5; Strategy 5.4; Enhance fiscal practices that enable the district to maximize effectiveness and efficiency.

Recommendation
Award RFP as follows:
a. Temporary Substitute and Other Staffing Services #23-BA-130:

 -

Contact
Dr. Susan Legutko, Assistant Superintendent for Business Affairs, Phone: (904)336-6721, Email: susan.legutko@myoneclay.net
Brenda Troutman, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, Phone (904)336-6700, Email:
brenda.troutman@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
a. Temporary Substitute and Other Staffing Services #23-BA-130: The total estimated expenditure for the five (5) year contract
is $____. Estimated annual spend of $_____ from General Revenue.

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 549 of 564

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

May 2, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C23 - Schematic/Preliminary/Final (Phase I, II, and III) Plans and Specifications for Keystone Heights High School Visitor
Concession Stand

Description
Each phase or combination of phases is submitted to the School Board for review and approval.  The plans have received staff
review and are complete to the Schematic/Preliminary/Final (Phase I, II, and III) stage.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
Individual departments have the opportunity to express needs during plan review in order to design a project that will meet user’s
expectations. 

Expected Outcomes
Schematic, Preliminary and Final Plan review allows for participation from a variety of departments to ensure any program
changes are incorporated into the design. 

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available resources
necessary to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conducive to learning.

Recommendation
Approve Schematic/Preliminary/Final (Phase I, II, and III) Plans and Specifications for Keystone Heights High School Visitor
Concession Stand.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
As budgeted in the Educational Facilities Work Plan for $500,000.00.  The architect’s cost estimate is $500,000.00.

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 550 of 564

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

May 2, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C24 - Change Order #2 for Green Cove Springs Junior High School Window/HVAC Replacement (Buildings 1, 2, & 3)

Description
Change Orders are initiated by the Contractor, Architect/Engineer or owner, and may increase or decrease the scope of the
project as defined by the plans and specifications. Change Orders are reviewed by the Architect/Engineer or staff prior to
submission to the School Board for approval. This Change Order is for repairing of dry rotted beams, extra painting, and re-
strapping conduit in soffit area.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
Construction will proceed immediately translating to an on time completion.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available resources
necessary to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conducive to learning.

Recommendation
Approve Change Order #2.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
This Change Order will increase the contract amount by $21,804.12. Architect fees will increase by $1,968.91. These funds are
available and budgeted in the Educational Facilities Work Plan.

Review Comments

Attachments

Change Order #2 GCJ Window HVAC Replacement Building 1, 2, & 3

Page 551 of 564

DRAFT



Page 552 of 564

DRAFT



Page 553 of 564

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

May 2, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C25 - Change Order #1 for Orange Park Junior High School Roof Repair/Replacement Buildings 1, 2, 3, & 4

Description
Change Orders are initiated by the Contractor, Architect/Engineer or owner, and may increase or decrease the scope of the
project as defined by the plans and specifications. Change Orders are reviewed by the Architect/Engineer or staff prior to
submission to the School Board for approval. This Change Order is for adding perimeter wood nailer modifications on buildings
2, 3, & 4 and adding 9 roof drains to building 1.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
Construction will proceed immediately translating to an on time completion.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available resources
necessary to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conducive to learning.

Recommendation
Approve Change Order #1.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
This Change Order will increase the contract amount by $34,826.99. These funds are available and budgeted in the Educational
Facilities Work Plan.

Review Comments

Attachments

Change Order #1 for OPJ Roof Repair Replacement Buildings 1, 2, 3, & 4

Page 554 of 564

DRAFT



Page 555 of 564

DRAFT



Page 556 of 564

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

May 2, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C26 - Prequalification of Contractors

Description
Section 1013.46 of Florida Statutes requires School Boards to pre-qualify contractors prior to their being able to bid on
construction projects for the district. The rules for pre-qualification are stipulated in the State Requirements for Educational
Facilities (SREF). The attached list identifies the contractors to be approved this month. As this is an annual requirement, the
attached list may contain both new contractors and contractors seeking to renew their pre-qualification status. Per Florida
Statutes, only those contractors currently pre-qualified at the time of bidding may bid on a School Board construction project.

Gap Analysis
Contractor Pre-Qualification is an annual requirement.

Previous Outcomes
CCDS complies with contractor pre-qualification as required by Florida Statutes and SREF (State Requirements for Educational
Facilities).

Expected Outcomes
CCDS will remain in compliance by certifying the contractors recommended for pre-qualification meet the requirements of
Section 1013.46 FS, the State Requirements for Educational Facilities (SREF) and School Board Policy.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available resources
necessary to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conducive to learning.

Recommendation
Approve the attached Contractor Pre-qualification list.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None.

Review Comments

Attachments

Table for Board Backup Contractor Prequal, 5.2.24

Page 557 of 564

DRAFT



SBCC PRE-QUALIFIED CONTRACTORS 
 
 
The following contractors are being submitted to the School Board for Contractor Pre-Qualification approval 
having met all requirements of Chapter 1013.46 F. S., as determined by the Pre-Qualification Committee 
consisting of Bryce Ellis, Clayton Anderson, Bertie Staefe, Chris Deely-Isais and Beth Clark.  The pre-
qualification certification is valid for one year from the end of the month in which Board approval is obtained. 

 
 

COMPANY TRADE CATEGORY BOND LIMIT EXPIRATION DATE 

Acme Roofing & Sheet Metal 
Company, Inc. 

General Contractor $6,500,000.00 May 31, 2025 

BBG Contracting Group, Inc. Roofing Contractor $12,000,000.00 May 31, 2025 

Central Pipe Rehab, LLC Building Contractor $300,000.00 

 

May 31, 2025 

D.H. Pace Company, Inc. Building Contractor $30,000,000.00 May 31, 2025 

Elkins Construction, LLC General Contractor $250,000,000.00 May 31, 2025 

Harrell Construction Company, Inc. General Contractor $15,000,000.00 May 31, 2025 

Parrish McCall Constructors, Inc. General Contractor $250,000,000.00 May 31, 2025 

Perry-McCall Construction, Inc. General Contractor $250,000,000.00 May 31, 2025 

Premier American Construction, Inc. Building and Underground 
Utility & Excavation 

Contractor 

$3,000,000.00 May 31, 2025 

W.W. Gay Mechanical Contractor, 
Inc. 

General, Mechanical, and 
Plumbing Contractor 

$100,000,000.00 May 31, 2025 

 

Page 558 of 564

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

May 2, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C27 - Wilkinson Junior High School Fire Alarm Replacement Contract Award

Description
This project is listed in the Educational Facilities Work Plan. The selection was conducted in accordance with Florida Statute
287.055.  The project was advertised for three (3) consecutive weeks with The Clay Today.  The bid opening was held April 18,
2024 at 2:00 p.m.  The project had _____ (__) qualified bidders. 

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
Completion of Wilkinson Junior High School Fire Alarm Replacement.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available resources
necessary to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conducive to learning.

Recommendation
Award the construction contract to the low bidder meeting specifications, _________________, the base bid in the amount of
$__________________.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
These funds are available and budgeted in the Educational Facilities Work Plan.

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 559 of 564

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

May 2, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C28 - Interlocal Agreement with the Clay County Sheriff’s Office for Low-Priced Gasoline in the Middleburg Area

Description
This agreement between the Clay County Sheriff’s Office and the School Board of Clay County is to be able to provide a source
of low-priced gasoline for Clay County Sheriff’s Office vehicles in the area of Middleburg, Florida.

Gap Analysis
The Clay County Sheriff’s Office is in need of a source of low-priced gasoline for their vehicles in the area of Middleburg,
Florida other than the utilization of privately owned gasoline stations.

Previous Outcomes
The Clay County School Board agreed to sell gasoline to the Clay County Sheriff from the Middleburg Facility.  The price per
gallon cost plus a 3.45 percent administrative fee charged by and payable to the School Board.

Expected Outcomes
The Clay County Sheriff’s Office could realize significant savings to the tax payers by purchasing gasoline from the Clay County
School Board at the facility.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available resources
necessary to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conducive to learning.

Recommendation
Approve the Interlocal Agreement.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
No cost to the District.

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 560 of 564

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

May 2, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C29 - Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP) Bid Package 1 (Construction Site Preparation) for Oakleaf Junior High School
Classroom Addition

Description
In accordance with the School Board’s contract with Scorpio for Construction Management At-Risk Services for Oakleaf Junior
High School Classroom Addition, presents to the School Board the GMP Bid Package 1 (Construction Site Preparation) for Enter
amount of Bid Package and any additional information.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
The Construction Manager At-Risk is able to proceed with construction site preparation in a timely manner which will translate
to an on time completion.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available resources
necessary to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conducive to learning.

Recommendation
Approve Scorpio’s Guaranteed Maximum Price Bid Package.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
The GMP Bid Package 1 (Construction Site Preparation) for the project is $Enter the amount..  These funds are available and
budgeted in the Educational Facilities Work Plan.

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 561 of 564

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

May 2, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C30 - Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP) Bid Package 1 (Construction Site Preparation) for Lake Asbury Junior High School
Classroom Addition

Description
In accordance with the School Board’s contract with Parrish McCall Contractors for Construction Management At-Risk Services
for Lake Asbury Junior High School Classroom Addition, presents to the School Board the GMP Bid Package 1 (Construction
Site Preparation) for Enter amount of Bid Package and any additional information.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
The Construction Manager At-Risk is able to proceed with construction site preparation in a timely manner which will translate
to an on time completion.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available resources
necessary to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conducive to learning.

Recommendation
Approve Parrish McCall Contractors Guaranteed Maximum Price Bid Package.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
The GMP Bid Package 1 (Construction Site Preparation) for the project is $Enter the amount..  These funds are available and
budgeted in the Educational Facilities Work Plan.

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 562 of 564

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

May 2, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C31 - Schematic/Preliminary/Final (Phase I, II, and III) Plans and Specifications for the construction site preparation for the
classroom addition at Lake Asbury Junior High School GMP 1 for the construction site preparation

Description
Each phase or combination of phases is submitted to the School Board for review and approval.  The plans have received staff
review and are complete to the Schematic/Preliminary/Final (Phase I, II, and III) stage.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
Individual departments have the opportunity to express needs during plan review in order to design a project that will meet user’s
expectations. 

Expected Outcomes
Schematic, Preliminary and Final Plan review allows for participation from a variety of departments to ensure any program
changes are incorporated into the design. 

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available resources
necessary to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conducive to learning.

Recommendation
Approve Schematic/Preliminary/Final (Phase I, II, and III) Plans and Specifications for construction site preparation for the
classroom addition at Lake Asbury Junior High School GMP 1 for the construction site preparation.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
As budgeted in the Educational Facilities Work Plan for $____________.  The architect’s cost estimate is $____________.

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 563 of 564

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

May 2, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C32 - Schematic/Preliminary/Final (Phase I, II, and III) Plans and Specifications for the construction site preparation for the
classroom addition at Oakleaf Junior High School GMP 1 for the construction site preparation

Description
Each phase or combination of phases is submitted to the School Board for review and approval.  The plans have received staff
review and are complete to the Schematic/Preliminary/Final (Phase I, II, and III) stage.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
Individual departments have the opportunity to express needs during plan review in order to design a project that will meet user’s
expectations. 

Expected Outcomes
Schematic, Preliminary and Final Plan review allows for participation from a variety of departments to ensure any program
changes are incorporated into the design. 

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available resources
necessary to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conducive to learning.

Recommendation
Approve Schematic/Preliminary/Final (Phase I, II, and III) Plans and Specifications for construction site preparation for the
classroom addition at Oakleaf Junior High School GMP 1 for the construction site preparation.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
As budgeted in the Educational Facilities Work Plan for $____________.  The architect’s cost estimate is $____________.

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 564 of 564

DRAFT


